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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION  

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K  

Part I  

Item 1.  Business  

Overview  

The Corporation  

Sprint Nextel Corporation, incorporated in 1938 under the laws of Kansas, is mainly a holding company, with its operations primarily conducted 
by its subsidiaries. Unless the context otherwise requires, references to “Sprint Nextel,” “we,” “us” and “our” mean Sprint Nextel Corporation 
and its subsidiaries. On August 12, 2005, a subsidiary of our company merged with Nextel Communications, Inc. and, as a result, we acquired 
Nextel.  

We are a global communications company offering a comprehensive suite of wireless and wireline communications products and services that 
are designed to meet the needs of our targeted customer groups: individuals, and business and government customers. Although our operations 
are divided into three lines of business, wireless, long distance and local, we have organized our sales and distribution efforts to focus on the 
needs of two distinct customer types – individuals, and businesses and government agencies, which has enabled us to create customer-focused 
communications solutions that can incorporate any of our wireless and wireline services. We are one of the three largest wireless companies in 
the United States based on the number of wireless subscribers. We own extensive wireless networks and a global long distance, Tier 1 Internet 
backbone. We also provide regulated local exchange telephone services to approximately 7.4 million access lines in our local service territories 
in 18 states.  

We, together with third-party affiliates, each referred to as a PCS Affiliate, and Nextel Partners, Inc., offer digital wireless service in all 50 
states, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The PCS Affiliates, through commercial arrangements with us, provide wireless personal 
communications services, or PCS, under the Sprint ® brand name in certain mid-sized and tertiary United States markets on wireless networks 
built and operated at their expense, in most instances using spectrum licensed to, and controlled by, us. Nextel Partners provides digital wireless 
communications services under the Nextel ® brand name in certain mid-sized and tertiary United States markets on wireless networks built and 
operated at its expense. We, together with the PCS Affiliates, Nextel Partners and resellers of our wireless service, served more than 49.6 million 
wireless subscribers at the end of 2005. During 2005 and the first quarter 2006, we acquired five PCS Affiliates, and we expect to acquire Nextel 
Partners in the second quarter 2006.  

We offer a wide array of wireless mobile telephone and wireless data transmission services on networks that utilize code division multiple 
access, or CDMA, and integrated Digital Enhanced Network, or iDEN ® , technologies. We market wireless services provided on our CDMA 
network under the Sprint brand. We are deploying high-speed evolution data optimized, or EV-DO, technology, which increases by up to 10 
times average mobile-device data speeds, across our CDMA network. The services supported by this technology, marketed as PowerVision SM , 
give consumer and business subscribers with EV-DO-enabled devices access to numerous sophisticated data messaging, imaging, entertainment 
and location-based applications. We first introduced EV-DO commercially in the second quarter 2005, and we will continue to expand our EV-
DO footprint to provide coverage to more people and markets in 2006.  

We market wireless services provided on our iDEN network under two brand names: Nextel, for post-paid wireless services, and Boost Mobile 
™ , for prepaid wireless services. Both brands feature our industry-leading walkie-talkie services, which give subscribers the ability to 
communicate instantly across the continental United  
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States and to and from Hawaii, and, through agreements with other iDEN-based providers, to and from selected markets in Canada, Latin 
America and Mexico, as well as a variety of digital wireless mobile telephone and wireless data transmission services.  

We are one of the nation’s largest providers of long distance services and one of the largest carriers of Internet traffic. We operate an all-digital 
long distance and Tier 1, Internet Protocol, or IP, network, over which we provide a broad suite of wireline communications services targeted to 
domestic business and residential customers, multinational corporations and other communications companies. These services include domestic 
and international voice, data communications using various protocols such as multi-protocol label switching, or MPLS, technologies, IP, 
asynchronous transfer mode, or ATM, and frame relay, and managed network services. We also provide switching and back office services to 
cable companies, which enable them to provide local and long distance telephone service over their cable facilities.  

We also provide regulated local exchange telephone services to approximately 7.4 million access lines in our local service territories in 18 states. 
We provide local and long distance voice and data services, including digital subscriber line, or DSL, services, and other telecommunications-
related services to customers in these service areas. We also operate a wholesale product distribution business. As discussed below, we plan to 
spin-off these operations to our shareholders in 2006.  

Our Series 1 voting common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, under the symbol “S”.  

Sprint-Nextel Merger  

On August 12, 2005, a subsidiary of ours merged with Nextel and, as a result, we acquired Nextel. The aggregate consideration paid for the 
merger was approximately $37.8 billion, which consisted of $969 million in cash and 1.452 billion shares of Sprint Nextel voting and non-voting 
common stock, or $0.84629198 in cash and 1.26750218 shares of Sprint Nextel stock in exchange for each then-outstanding share of Nextel 
stock.  

We merged with Nextel to secure a number of potential strategic and financial benefits, including:  
   

   

   

   

We expect to realize significant synergies associated with this merger, which include:  
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•   the combination of extensive network and spectrum assets, which enables us to offer consumers, businesses and government agencies a 

wide array of broadband wireless and integrated communications services; 

  
•   the combination of Nextel’s strength in business and government wireless services with our position in consumer wireless and data 

services, including services supported by our global IP network, which enables us to serve a broader customer base; 

  
•   the size and scale of the combined company, which is comparable to that of our two largest competitors, is expected to enable more 

operating efficiencies than either company could achieve on its own; and 

  •   the ability to position us strategically in the fastest growing areas of the communications industry. 

  
•   revenue and subscriber synergies primarily arising out of cross-selling opportunities and the accelerated deployment of new features and 

services; 

  
•   reduced capital spending due to the elimination of the need to build a data overlay network as had been planned by Nextel, reduced 

construction costs, expected volume discounts and benefits of increased purchasing capacity and reduced and consolidated facilities and 
back-office functions; 



   

   

We began to realize some synergies in 2005, and expect to realize additional synergies over a number of years. However, we believe that our 
operating results for at least the next several quarters will be negatively impacted by costs that will be incurred to achieve these synergies. The 
ability to achieve these synergies and the timing in which the benefits can be realized will depend in large part on the ability to integrate our 
networks, business operations, back-office functions and other support systems and infrastructure.  

Contemplated Spin-off of Local Telecommunications Business  

At the time that we announced the merger with Nextel, we also announced that we intend to spin-off our local communications business to our 
shareholders on a tax-free basis. The business being spun-off, which is the business reported as the local segment in our financial statements, will 
be known as Embarq Corporation, and we refer to this business as Embarq, or Local.  

We anticipate that the common stock of Embarq will trade on the NYSE under the symbol “EQ” and that the spin-off will be completed in the 
second quarter 2006.  

Nextel Partners Purchase Right and Acquisitions of PCS Affiliates  

As a result of the merger with Nextel, in October 2005, the shareholders of Nextel Partners exercised their right to require us to purchase, at fair 
market value, the 70% of the outstanding shares of Nextel Partners stock that we do not already own. In December 2005, we and Nextel Partners 
announced that the purchase price for each share of Nextel Partners stock under this right had been determined to be $28.50. As a result, the 
aggregate amount payable to shareholders of Nextel Partners will be about $6.5 billion, including amounts payable upon conversion of debt 
securities and settlement of options. The purchase is subject to customary regulatory approvals and is currently expected to be completed by the 
end of the second quarter 2006.  

In the second half of 2005, we acquired the following three PCS Affiliates for a total of $1.4 billion:  
   

   

   

In the first quarter 2006, we also acquired the following two PCS Affiliates for a total of $3.5 billion:  
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•   reduced network operating costs primarily arising out of co-location of cell sites, process efficiencies and migration of Nextel backhaul 

and other telecommunications traffic to our long distance network; 

  
•   reduced selling, general and administrative expenses primarily arising out of consolidation of customer care, billing and other 

information technology, or IT, functions, increased scale and volume discounts and reduced sales and marketing costs and general 
administrative expenses; and 

  
•   marketing, sales and fulfillment savings as a result of headcount savings, the rationalization of distribution channels, greater volume 

discounts on devices and other scale benefits. 

  
•   US Unwired, Inc., which, at the time of acquisition, provided wireless service to more than 500,000 direct subscribers in nine Southeast 

region states, for $968 million; 

  
•   Gulf Coast Wireless Limited Partnership, which, at the time of acquisition, provided wireless service to more than 95,000 direct 

subscribers in southern Louisiana and Mississippi, for $211 million, net of the 13.4% ownership interest held by us; and 

  
•   IWO Holdings, Inc., which, at the time of acquisition, provided wireless service to more than 240,000 direct subscribers in five 

Northeast region states, for $192 million. 

  
•   Alamosa Holdings, Inc., which, at the time of acquisition, provided wireless service to more than 1.5 million direct subscribers in 19 

states, for $3.4 billion of net cash paid; and 



We believe that the acquisitions of Nextel Partners and the PCS Affiliates we have acquired to date will give us control of the distribution of 
services under our Sprint and Nextel brands, and provide us with the strategic and financial benefits associated with a larger customer base and 
expanded network coverage, which include a number of markets with favorable growth and competitive characteristics. We believe that the 
acquisitions also will facilitate the integration relating to the Nextel merger by allowing us to provide consistent service offerings and customer 
experiences across a wider geographic area.  

Access to Public Filings and Board Committee Charters  

Our website address is www.sprint.com. Information contained on our website is not part of this annual report. We provide public access to our 
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These documents may be accessed free of charge on 
our website at the following address: www.sprint.com/sprint/ir. These documents are provided promptly after filing with the SEC. These 
documents also may be found at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.  

We also provide public access to our Code of Ethics, entitled the Sprint Nextel Code of Conduct, our Corporate Governance Guidelines and the 
charters of the following committees of our board of directors: the Audit Committee, the Human Capital and Compensation Committee, and the 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Code of Conduct, corporate governance guidelines and committee charters may be 
viewed free of charge on our website at the following address: www.sprint.com/governance. You may obtain copies of any of these documents 
free of charge by writing to: Sprint Nextel Investor Relations, 2001 Edmund Halley Drive, Reston, Virginia 20191. If a provision of the Code of 
Conduct required under the NYSE corporate governance standards is materially modified, or if a waiver of the Code of Conduct is granted to a 
director or executive officer, we will post a notice of such action on our website at the following address: www.sprint.com/governance . Only the 
board of directors or the Audit Committee may consider a waiver of the Code of Conduct for an executive officer or director.  

Certifications  

The certifications of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002 are attached as Exhibits 31(a), 31(b), 32(a) and 32(b) to this annual report. We also filed with the NYSE in 2005 the required certificate of 
our Chief Executive Officer certifying that he was not aware of any violation by Sprint Nextel of the NYSE corporate governance listing 
standards.  

Our Business Segments  

Wireless  

We offer a wide array of wireless mobile telephone and wireless data transmission services on networks that utilize CDMA and iDEN 
technologies.  

The financial performance of our Wireless segment for 2005, 2004 and 2003 is summarized as follows:  
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•   Enterprise Communications Partnership, which, at the time of acquisition, provided wireless service to more than 50,000 direct 

subscribers in Alabama and Georgia, for $77 million of net cash paid. 

     Year Ended December 31, 
     2005    2004    2003 
     (in millions) 
Net operating revenues     $     22,328    $     14,647    $     12,690 
Operating income (1)       2,173      1,552      634 

(1) See “Part II, Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Results of Operations – 
Segmental Results of Operations – Wireless”  for more information regarding the financial performance of our Wireless segment. 



Strategy  

Our strategy for the Wireless segment is to utilize state-of-the-art technology to provide differentiated wireless services and applications in order 
to acquire and retain high-quality wireless subscribers. To enable us to offer innovative applications and services, we are deploying high-speed 
EV-DO technology across our CDMA network. The services supported by this technology, marketed as PowerVision , give consumer and 
business subscribers with EV-DO-enabled devices access to numerous sophisticated data messaging, imaging, entertainment and location-based 
applications. On our iDEN network, we continue to develop features and services that are designed to meet the needs of business and 
government customers, with a particular focus on services that build upon our walkie-talkie features. To offer customers all of the benefits of 
PowerVision and our walkie-talkie features, we expect to introduce a dual-mode handset designed to operate on both our CDMA and iDEN 
network platforms. We also seek to realize operating efficiencies in our business, in part from merger-related synergies, and optimize the 
performance of our network while minimizing costs.  

Products and Services  

We offer a wide array of wireless mobile telephone and data transmission services and features in a variety of pricing plans, including prepaid 
service plans. Our wireless mobile voice communications services include basic local and long distance wireless voice services, as well as 
voicemail, call waiting, three way calling, caller identification, directory assistance, call forwarding, speakerphone and voice-activated dialing 
features. Through a variety of roaming arrangements, we provide roaming services to areas in over 170 countries outside the United States, 
including areas of Asia, including China, Guam, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Thailand, New Zealand, Canada, Central and South America, 
including Argentina, Bolivia, Chile, Ecuador, Guatemala, Mexico, Paraguay, Peru, Uruguay and Venezuela, and most major Caribbean islands.  

The data communications services include:  
   

   

   

   

We also offer walkie-talkie services, which give subscribers with iDEN-based devices the ability to communicate instantly across the continental 
United States and to and from Hawaii. Also, through agreements with third parties, subscribers with iDEN devices can communicate instantly 
with our walkie-talkie feature to and from selected areas in Canada, Latin America and Mexico. Our walkie-talkie features offer subscribers 
instant communications in a variety of other ways, including push-to-email applications that allow a user to send a streaming voice message to 
an email recipient, and off-network walkie-talkie communications available on certain handsets.  

Our services are provided using a wide variety of handsets and personal computer wireless data cards manufactured by various suppliers for use 
with our voice and data services. We generally sell our handsets at prices below our cost in response to competition, to attract new customers and 
as retention inducements for existing customers.  

We also sell accessories, such as carrying cases, hands-free devices, batteries, battery chargers and other items to consumers, and we sell 
handsets and accessories to agents and other third party distributors for resale.  
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  •   wireless imaging, including the ability to shoot and send digital still pictures and video clips from a wireless handset; 

  •   wireless data communications, including Internet access and messaging and email services; 

  

•   on our CDMA network, wireless entertainment, including the ability to view live television; listen to Sirius ® satellite radio; download 
and listen to music from our Sprint Music Store SM , a music catalogue with thousands of songs from virtually every music genre; and 
play games with full-color graphics and polyphonic sounds all from a wireless handset; and 

  •   location-based, asset and fleet management, and dispatch services. 



We also offer wholesale services on our CDMA network to resellers, commonly known as mobile virtual network operators, or MVNOs. 
MVNOs purchase wireless services from us at wholesale rates and resell the services to their customers under their own brand names. These 
companies bear the costs of acquisition, billing and customer service. We currently provide wholesale services, through multi-year, exclusive 
wholesale agreements, to a number to MVNOs, including Qwest Communications International, Inc., Disney and ESPN. We also provide 
wholesale services to Virgin Mobile USA, which offers prepaid wireless service targeted to the youth and prepaid markets, and is a joint venture 
between us and the Virgin Group. As of December 31, 2005, the number of subscribers served through resellers represented approximately 18% 
of the total subscribers served by our CDMA network.  

We offer customized design, development, implementation and support services for wireless services provided to large companies and 
government agencies. We also recently entered into a joint venture with several cable companies to develop converged next generation products 
for consumers designed to combine many of cable’s core products and interactive features with wireless technology to deliver a broad range of 
services, including video, wireless voice and data services, high speed Internet and cable phone service.  

Sales and Marketing  

We focus the marketing and sales of wireless services on two targeted groups of customers: individuals, and businesses and government 
agencies. We offer a variety of pricing options and plans, including plans designed specifically for business customers, and individuals and 
families. We use a variety of sales channels to attract new subscribers of wireless services, including:  
   

   

   

   

We market our post-paid services under the Sprint and Nextel brands. We offer these services on a contract basis typically for one or two year 
periods, with services billed on a monthly basis according to the applicable pricing plan. We market our prepaid services under the Boost Mobile 
brand, as a means to directly target the youth and prepaid wireless service markets.  

Although we market our services using traditional print and television advertising, we also provide exposure to our brand names and wireless 
services through various sponsorships. We are the title sponsor of the NASCAR NEXTEL Cup Series TM , the National Association for Stock Car 
Auto Racing, or NASCAR ® , premier national championship series. We are NASCAR’s official telecommunications sponsor, which entitles us 
to a variety of branding, advertising, merchandising and technology-related opportunities, many of which are exclusive with NASCAR, its 
drivers and teams, and the racetrack facilities. We also are the official telecommunications service provider of the National Football League, or 
NFL, and the provider of exclusive and original NFL-related content as part of our Sprint-branded wireless service. We also have been the 
exclusive sponsor of a number of NFL events, including the Super Bowl XL half-time show. The goal of these initiatives, together with our other 
marketing initiatives, which include affiliations with most major sports leagues, is to increase brand awareness in our targeted customer base and 
expand the use of our customer-convenient distribution channels: web sales, telesales and retail stores.  
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•   direct sales representatives whose efforts are focused on marketing and selling CDMA- and iDEN-based wireless services primarily to 

mid-sized to large businesses and government agencies that value our industry and technical expertise and extensive product and service 
portfolio, as well as our ability to develop custom communications capabilities that meet the specific needs of these larger customers; 

  
•   retail outlets that focus on sales to the consumer market, including Radio Shack, Best Buy, Target, Wal-Mart and Sprint Nextel retail 

stores; 

  
•   indirect sales agents that primarily consist of local and national non-affiliated dealers and independent contractors that market and sell 

services to small businesses and the consumer market, and are generally paid through commissions; and 

  •   customer-convenient channels, including web sales and telesales. 



Wireless Network Technologies  

CDMA Network  

We provide our Sprint-branded wireless services over our CDMA network, an all-digital wireless network with spectrum licenses that allow us 
to provide service to the entire United States population, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The CDMA network uses a single frequency 
band and a digital spread-spectrum wireless technology that allows a large number of users to access a single frequency band by assigning a code 
to all voice and data bits, sending a scrambled transmission of the encoded bits over the air and reassembling the voice and data into its original 
format. We supplement the CDMA network through commercial affiliation arrangements with the PCS Affiliates. Under these arrangements, the 
PCS Affiliates offer wireless services under the Sprint brand on CDMA networks built and operated at their own expense. In most instances, the 
PCS Affiliates use spectrum licensed to, and controlled by, us. Following the acquisitions of US Unwired, Gulf Coast Wireless, and IWO 
Holdings, completed in 2005, and the acquisitions of Alamosa and Enterprise Communications completed in early 2006, there are five remaining 
PCS Affiliates with networks that collectively serve markets where about 23.3 million people live or work.  

We, together with the PCS Affiliates, operate CDMA networks in over 400 metropolitan markets, including the 125 largest U.S. metropolitan 
areas, that reach where a quarter billion people live and work. We provide nationwide service through a combination of:  
   

   

   

   

CDMA subscribers can use their phones through roaming agreements in countries other than the United States, including areas of:  
   

   

   

   

   

We are in the process of deploying the high-speed EV-DO technology across our CDMA network. With peak rates of up to 2.4 megabits per 
second for downloads, EV-DO increases average mobile-device data speeds up to 10 times faster when compared to the prior generation 
technology. In addition, this technology delivers superior application and service performance on EV-DO-capable handsets and laptops equipped 
with EV-DO-enabled Sprint PCS Connection Cards ™ . The services supported by this technology, marketed as PowerVision, give consumer and 
business customers access to numerous sophisticated applications using EV-DO-enabled devices, including data messaging, imaging, 
entertainment and location-based applications. We first introduced EV-DO  
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•   operating our own digital network in both major and smaller U.S. metropolitan areas, and rural connecting routes using CDMA 

technology; 

  
•   affiliating under commercial arrangements with the remaining PCS Affiliates, each of which operates a CDMA network, mainly in and 

around smaller U.S. metropolitan areas; 

  •   roaming on other providers’  analog cellular networks using multi-mode and multi-band handsets; and 

  •   roaming on other providers’  digital networks that use CDMA. 

  •   Asia, including China, Guam, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Thailand; 

  •   New Zealand; 

  •   Canada; 

  
•   Central and South America, including Argentina, Bolivia, Chile, Ecuador, Guatemala, Mexico, Paraguay, Peru, Uruguay and 

Venezuela; and 

  •   most major Caribbean islands. 



commercially in the second quarter 2005, and at December 31, 2005 EV-DO was deployed in markets where about half of the U.S. population 
lives or works. We will continue to introduce EV-DO in additional markets in 2006.  

The cell site equipment used in the CDMA network resides on space on communications towers. Although we own many of these towers, in 
May 2005, we closed a transaction whereby we provided Global Signal Inc. with the exclusive rights to lease or operate more than 6,600 of our 
communication towers for a negotiated lease term that is the greater of the remaining terms of the underlying ground leases or up to 32 years, 
assuming successful re-negotiation of the underlying ground leases at the end of their current lease terms. We have committed to sublease space 
from Global Signal on approximately 6,400 of these towers for a minimum of ten years. We have erected additional communications towers to 
expand the capacity and coverage of our CDMA network. The acquisition of Nextel has given us access to cell site communications towers 
erected for use in connection with the Nextel iDEN network, which in many cases will enable us to co-locate CDMA cell site equipment on 
these towers, instead of requiring us to erect new towers or co-locate the equipment on towers owned by third parties, which we expect will 
reduce our costs. Similarly, we will also be able to co-locate iDEN cell site equipment on the CDMA communications towers.  

iDEN Network  

We provide our Nextel post-paid and Boost Mobile prepaid wireless services over our iDEN network. Our iDEN network is an all-digital packet 
data network based on iDEN wireless technology provided by Motorola, Inc. We, together with Nextel Partners, are the only national wireless 
service provider in the U.S. that utilizes iDEN technology, and, generally, the iDEN handsets that we currently offer are not enabled to roam 
onto wireless networks that do not utilize iDEN technology. We, together with Nextel Partners, operate iDEN networks that serve 297 of the top 
300 U.S. markets where about 270 million people live or work. Nextel Partners provides digital wireless communications services under the 
Nextel brand name in mid-sized and tertiary U.S. markets, and has the right to operate in 98 of the top 300 metropolitan statistical areas in the 
United States ranked by population. As discussed above, we will acquire Nextel Partners when the required regulatory approvals are obtained.  

We have roaming or interoperability agreements with iDEN-based wireless service providers that operate in Latin America and Canada. We 
have entered into interoperability agreements with NII Holdings, Inc., which provides for coordination of customer identification and validation 
necessary to facilitate roaming between our domestic markets and NII Holdings’ Latin American markets. We also have roaming agreements in 
effect with TELUS Mobility, Inc. in Canadian market areas where it offers iDEN-based services. With the i930 iDEN handset, subscribers can 
roam in areas of over 100 countries. In addition, any iDEN subscriber can remove the subscriber identity module cards found in each iDEN 
handset and place them in certain Motorola handsets that utilize global system for mobile communication, or GSM, technology, the network 
technology utilized by many wireless providers throughout Europe and other parts of the world.  

Although the iDEN technology offers a number of advantages over other technology platforms, including the ability to offer our walkie-talkie 
features, unlike other wireless technologies, it is a proprietary technology that relies solely on our and Motorola’s efforts for further research, and 
product development and innovation. We rely on Motorola to provide us with technology improvements designed to expand our iDEN-based 
wireless voice capacity and improve our services. Motorola provides all of the iDEN infrastructure equipment used in the iDEN network, and 
substantially all iDEN handset devices, under agreements that set the prices we must pay to purchase and license this equipment, as well as a 
structure to develop new features and make long-term improvements to our network. Motorola also provides integration services in connection 
with the deployment of iDEN network elements. We have also agreed to warranty and maintenance programs and specified indemnity 
arrangements with Motorola. Motorola is and is expected to continue to be our sole source supplier of iDEN infrastructure and iDEN handsets, 
except BlackBerry ® devices, which are manufactured by Research In Motion, or RIM. See “Item 1A. — Risk Factors — If Motorola is unable 
or unwilling to provide us with equipment and  
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handsets in support of our Nextel branded services, as well as anticipated handset and infrastructure improvements for those services, our 
operations will be adversely affected.”  

Competition  

We believe that the market for wireless services has been and will continue to be characterized by intense competition on the basis of price, the 
types of services offered and quality of service. We compete with a number of wireless carriers, including three other national wireless 
companies: Cingular Wireless, Verizon Wireless and T-Mobile. We also compete with regional providers of mobile wireless services, such as 
Alltel Corporation. Competition will increase to the extent that new firms enter the market as additional radio spectrum is made available for 
commercial wireless services. We also expect competition to increase as a result of other technologies and services that are developed and 
introduced in the future, including potentially those using unlicensed spectrum, including wireless fidelity, or WiFi. The continued addition of 
MVNOs also contributes to increased competition.  

Although pricing is an important factor in potential customers’ purchase decisions, we believe that our targeted customers are also likely to base 
their purchase decisions on quality of service and the availability of differentiated features and services that make it easier for them to get things 
done quickly and efficiently. We believe we compete based on our differentiated service offerings and products, including our PowerVision 
applications and push-to-talk walkie-talkie feature. Several of our competitors have introduced high-speed data, imaging, entertainment and 
location-based services and walkie-talkie-type features that are designed to compete with our differentiated products and services. Other 
competitors have announced plans to introduce similar services. If our competitors are able to provide applications and features that are 
comparable to ours, any competitive advantage from the differentiation of our services from those of our competitors would be reduced. To the 
extent that the competitive environment requires us to decrease prices or increase service and product offerings, our revenue could decline or our 
costs could increase. Competition in pricing and service and product offerings also may adversely impact customer retention. See “Item 1A. — 
Risk Factors — We face intense competition that may reduce our market share and harm our financial performance.”  

Long Distance  

Through our Long Distance segment, we provide a broad suite of wireline voice and data communications services targeted to domestic business 
and residential customers, multinational corporations and other communications companies. As one of the nation’s largest providers of long 
distance services, we operate all-digital long distance and Tier 1 IP networks.  

The financial performance for our Long Distance segment for 2005, 2004 and 2003 is summarized as follows:  
   

   

Strategy  

In order to maintain market share in an increasingly competitive long distance communications environment, our Long Distance segment focuses 
on expanding its presence in the data communications markets by utilizing our principal strategic assets: our high-capacity national fiber-optic 
network, our Tier 1 IP network, our base of  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
     2005    2004     2003   
     (in millions)   

Net operating revenues     $     6,834    $     7,327     $     8,005   
Operating income (loss) (1)       512      (3,589 )     (1,442 ) 

(1) See “ Part II, Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Results of Operations — 
Segmental Results of Operations – Long Distance” for more information regarding the financial performance of the Long Distance 
Segment. 



business and residential customers, our established national brand and offerings available from our other operating entities.  

Products and Services  

Through our Long Distance segment, we provide a broad suite of wireline voice and data communications services, including domestic and 
international voice and data communications using various protocols such as next generation MPLS technologies, as well as IP, ATM, frame 
relay and managed network services. We also provide services to cable companies that resell our long distance service and/or use our back office 
systems and network assets in support of their telephone service provided over cable facilities. Although we continue to provide voice services to 
consumers, we no longer actively market those services. In 2004, we sold our Dial IP business, a data service that was focused largely on the 
consumer market.  

Competition  

Our Long Distance segment competes with AT&T, Verizon, Level 3, other major local incumbent operating companies, cable operators and 
other telecommunications providers in all segments of the long distance communications market. Some competitors are targeting the high-end 
data market and are offering deeply discounted rates in exchange for high-volume traffic as they attempt to fill their networks. In addition, we 
face increasing competition from other wireless and IP-based service providers. Many carriers are competing in the residential and small 
business markets by offering bundled packages of both local and long distance services. Competition in long distance is based on price and 
pricing plans, the types of services offered, customer service, and communications quality, reliability and availability. Our ability to compete 
successfully will depend on our ability to anticipate and respond to various competitive factors affecting the industry, including new services that 
may be introduced, changes in consumer preferences, demographic trends, economic conditions and pricing strategies. See “Item 1A. — Risk 
Factors — We face intense competition that may reduce our market share and harm our financial performance.”  

Local  

Our Local segment primarily provides regulated incumbent local phone services in local service territories in 18 states. At December 31, 2005, 
we provided these services to approximately 7.4 million access lines, with our largest presence in Florida, North Carolina, Nevada and Ohio. 
Through this segment, we provide local voice, long distance and data services, including DSL, to customers located within our local service 
territories, access by consumers and other carriers to the local network, sales of telecommunications equipment, and other services within 
specified calling areas to residential and business customers. We also provide wireless and video services to customers in our local service 
territories through agency relationships. Our wholesale telecommunications product distribution business, known as Sprint North Supply 
Company, or North Supply, also is part of the Local segment. We plan to spin-off the Local segment to our shareholders on a tax-free basis in 
the second quarter 2006.  

The financial performance for our Local segment for 2005, 2004 and 2003 is summarized as follows:  
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     Year Ended December 31, 
     2005    2004    2003 
     (in millions) 
Net operating revenues     $     6,527    $     6,421    $     6,486 
Operating income (1)       1,758      1,736      1,820 

(1) See “Part II, Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Results of Operations – 
Segmental Results of Operations – Local”  for more information regarding the financial performance of the Local segment. 



Strategy  

The strategy of our Local segment is to sell a bundled package of products and services to meet the needs of our consumer and business and 
wholesale customers within our local service territories. To enable us to meet these needs, we offer a wide array of products and services that we 
bundle in a variety of packages.  

Products and Services  

We offer customers a wide array of voice, data and other services. Our voice services include local calling services to consumers and business 
customers within our local service territories, generally for a fixed monthly charge, and a variety of enhanced calling features, such as call 
forwarding, caller identification, voicemail and call waiting, for which we generally charge an additional monthly fee.  

We also offer switched access services to long distance carriers, wireless carriers and competitive local exchange carriers, known as CLECs, to 
enable them to connect their networks to customer locations. As required by regulations of the Federal Communications Commission, or FCC, 
we offer CLECs the use of unbundled network facilities and the ability to co-locate some of their equipment in our central offices.  

We offer high-speed Internet access, primarily using a DSL service delivery platform. We also offer large businesses, long distance carriers, 
wireless carriers and CLECs dedicated circuits to connect their sites or networks to our network, their customers’ locations or other network 
facilities.  

We offer customers within our local service territories long distance voice, data and wireless services using the networks and facilities of our 
Wireless and Long Distance segments. We also offer video services through a sales agency relationship with EchoStar Communications 
Corporation. In addition, we sell service communications equipment that resides at a business customer’s location for management of voice and 
data networks and applications. We also procure, configure and distribute equipment, materials and supplies to many communication service 
providers.  

Sales and Marketing  

We locally manage our service offerings in an effort to serve the needs of each customer, and have sales representatives with local market 
knowledge relevant to the service territories in which we operate. We operate approximately 20 retail stores and two wholesale call centers, 
located mainly in our local service territories. We also have automated many of our customer service functions, including Internet e-commerce 
systems, so that our customers can receive answers to many frequently asked questions regarding their communications services without 
speaking to a customer service representative.  

Local Network  

The network utilized by our Local segment consists of host and remote central office digital switches and digital loop carriers interconnected 
with copper, microwave and fiber facilities. Our equipment typically operates on the most current software in generally available release. The 
outside plant infrastructure connecting the customer with the core network also consists of a mix of copper and fiber optic cables.  

Competition  

There is widespread competition among wireline communications services providers. The traditional dividing lines between local, long distance, 
wireless, video and Internet services are becoming increasingly blurred. We face competition from alternative communication systems 
constructed by facilities-based CLECs. We also face increasing competition from cable operators providing high-speed Internet services, which 
can be used as a platform to support voice services utilizing voice over IP technology, or VoIP. Furthermore, wireless communications services 
increasingly constitute a significant source of competition, as some customers have  
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chosen to forgo use of traditional wireline phone service and instead rely solely on wireless services. We expect competition to intensify as a 
result of the entrance of new competitors and the rapid deployment of new technologies, products and services. See “Item 1A. — Risk Factors 
— We face intense competition that may reduce our market share and harm our financial performance.”  

Legislative and Regulatory Developments  

Overview  

Communications services are regulated both at the federal level by the FCC and at the state level by public utilities commissions, or PUCs. In 
general, incumbent local exchange carriers, or ILECs, such as Embarq, are subject to the most extensive regulation. Regulation covers not only 
rates and service terms, but also the terms on which ILECs provide connections and network elements to CLECs. Long distance providers, such 
as us with respect to our Long Distance segment, are subject to less regulation, but still must comply with various statutory requirements and 
regulations. The Communications Act of 1934, or Communications Act, preempts states from regulating the rates of commercial mobile radio 
service, or CMRS, providers, such as us with respect to our Wireless segment, but CMRS providers are subject to various licensing and technical 
requirements imposed by the FCC, including provisions related to the acquisition, assignment or transfer of radio licenses. The FCC also 
imposes mandates on CMRS providers, such as those that require CMRS providers to transmit the telephone number and certain location 
information of someone calling 911 to the appropriate 911 dispatch center, and to allow customers to retain existing telephone numbers when 
switching from one communications carrier to another. Although the Communications Act preempts state regulation of CMRS rates and entry of 
CMRS providers, CMRS providers are subject to state authority over terms and conditions of service, such as certain billing practices and other 
consumer-related matters.  

The following summary of the regulatory environment in which our business operates does not describe all present and proposed federal, state 
and local legislation and regulations affecting the communications industry. Some legislation and regulations are currently the subject of judicial 
proceedings, legislative hearings and administrative proceedings that could change the manner in which our industry operates. We cannot predict 
the outcome of any of these matters or their potential impact on our business. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors – Government regulation could 
adversely affect our prospects and results of operations; the FCC and state regulatory commissions may adopt new regulations or take other 
actions that could adversely affect our business prospects or results of operations.” Regulation in the communications industry is subject to rapid 
changes, any of which could have an adverse effect on us in the future. The following discussion describes some of the major communications-
related regulations that affect us, but numerous other substantive areas of regulation not discussed here may also influence our business.  

Wireline Operations  

Competitive Local Service  

The Telecommunications Act of 1996, or Telecom Act, the first comprehensive update of the Communications Act, was designed to promote 
competition, and it eliminated legal and regulatory barriers to entry into local and long distance communications markets. It also required ILECs 
to allow resale of specified local services at wholesale rates, negotiate interconnection agreements, provide nondiscriminatory access to 
unbundled network elements, or UNEs, and allow co-location of interconnection equipment by competitors. The rules implementing the 
Telecom Act remain subject to legal challenges. Thus, the scope of future local competition remains uncertain. These local competition rules 
impact us because we provide communications services as an ILEC to approximately 4% of the access lines in the United States, which 
represents the substantial part of the operations of our Local segment.  

In March 2005, the FCC implemented an order that terminated the obligation of ILECs to offer a platform of UNEs to CLECs after a one-year 
transition period. The order, which has been challenged, has led our Long Distance segment to discontinue its use of the unbundled element 
platforms. ILECs generally have benefited  
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from this order. Competitors in the service territories of our Local segment generally have not made extensive use of their unbundled element 
platforms.  

During 2005, we entered into agreements with major cable television companies to provide communications and back-office services to enable 
the cable companies to provide competitive local and long distance telephony services in a VoIP format to their end-user customers. Certain 
ILECs have taken steps that have impeded our ability to provide services to the cable companies in an efficient manner.  

Access Charge Reform and Universal Service Requirements  

Intercarrier compensation includes interstate and intrastate switched access charges that ILECs, including our Local segment, are entitled to 
receive from long distance carriers, including our Long Distance segment, for origination and termination of long distance calls, and reciprocal 
compensation that interconnected local carriers pay to each other for terminating interconnected local wireline and wireless calls. In addition, 
ILECs, including our Local segment, receive special access charges for providing dedicated facilities to other carriers and businesses. On 
average, intrastate switched access rates, which are currently regulated by PUCs, are substantially higher than interstate switched access charges, 
which are regulated by the FCC, and in turn interstate switched access charges are substantially higher than reciprocal compensation. Special 
access services are a significant cost for our Wireless and Long Distance segments.  

In 2001, the FCC began a proceeding to determine whether access charges, as well as reciprocal compensation for local interconnected calls, 
should be replaced. Proposals include a “bill-and-keep” system (under which intercarrier compensation would be eliminated and all carriers 
would recover their costs solely from end-user customers), a unified intercarrier compensation system, in which the same rates would apply to all 
forms of intercarrier compensation (i.e., interstate and intrastate switched access and reciprocal compensation), and phased reductions in 
intercarrier compensation charges to a low, uniform level, except in certain rural areas over three years. This proceeding remains pending with 
the FCC, and it is difficult to predict the changes that might result or their timing and impact.  

In January 2005, the FCC initiated a proceeding to examine the appropriate regulatory framework for the rates charged for special access 
services provided by ILECs to long distance, wireless and other carriers. These services typically connect large business customers to long 
distance carriers’ networks and are used by wireless carriers to connect their switches to their cell sites. The FCC is considering reforms to 
modify or eliminate special access pricing flexibility, and additional reforms to the price cap rules affecting special access pricing. This 
proceeding could affect the amount our Local segment charges for special access and the amount our Long Distance and Wireless segments pay 
for the special access services they use.  

In addition to the intercarrier compensation regime, many communications carriers receive revenues from the universal service funds, or USF, 
established by the FCC and many states. The federal USF program provides funding for services provided in high-cost areas, for reduced-rate 
services to low-income consumers, and for discounted communications and Internet services for schools, libraries and rural health care facilities. 
These programs impact all three of our business segments because the USF is funded largely from assessments on communications carriers, who 
must make contributions into the fund. We are a net payor into the federal USF, although we do receive some funding for both our Local and 
Wireless segments. The FCC is considering changing the way it distributes this support to carriers, and its actions could adversely affect our 
eligibility to receive support or reduce the amount of support we currently receive. In particular, FCC actions could make it more difficult for our 
Wireless segment, currently receiving support in 19 states as an Eligible Telecommunications Carrier, or ETC, to qualify for and to receive 
support. Further restrictions on our ETC status at the federal and state levels could result in the rescission of our ETC status.  

Our contributions to the federal USF are based on an FCC-prescribed percentage of our interstate and international end-user revenues from 
telecommunications services, including from our Wireless and wireline  
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segments. The FCC is considering changing the interstate revenue-based assessment in whole or in part with an assessment based on telephone 
numbers or connections to the public network.  

Voice over Internet Protocol  

With the increasing availability of VoIP services, the FCC has and continues to consider the regulatory status of various forms of VoIP. In 2004, 
the FCC issued an order finding that one form of VoIP, involving a specific form of computer-to-computer services for which no charge is 
assessed and conventional telephone numbers are not used, is an unregulated “information service,” rather than a telecommunications service, 
and preempted state regulation of this service. The FCC also ruled that long distance offerings in which calls begin and end on the ordinary 
public switched telephone network, but are transmitted in part through the use of IP, are “telecommunications services,” thereby rendering the 
services subject to all the regulatory obligations imposed on ordinary long distance services, including payment of access charges and 
contributions to universal service funds. In addition, the FCC preempted states from exercising entry and related economic regulation of VolP 
services that do not use conventional phone numbers and that originate through the use of broadband connections and specialized customer 
premises equipment. However, this ruling, which has been appealed in the courts, did not address specifically whether this form of VoIP is an 
“information service” or a “telecommunications service,” or what regulatory obligations, such as intercarrier compensation and USF 
contributions, should apply. These issues surrounding how retail VoIP offerings should be regulated (if at all), including whether they should pay 
access charges and/or contribute to the federal USF, remain pending. The FCC requires certain VoIP providers to offer enhanced 911, or E911, 
emergency calling capabilities to their subscribers.  

High-speed Internet Access Services  

Following a June 2005 U.S. Supreme Court decision affirming the FCC’s classification of cable modem Internet access service as an 
“information service” and declining to impose mandatory common carrier regulation on cable providers, the FCC issued an order in September 
2005 declaring the high-speed Internet access services, which are provided by ILECs, including our Local segment, are “information services” 
rather than “telecommunications services.” As a result, over time ILECs will be relieved of the obligations to provide the underlying broadband 
transmission to other Internet service providers. A decision on whether all high-speed Internet access services, regardless of the technology used, 
are subject to various FCC consumer protection regulations is pending, and the imposition of any such obligations could result in significant 
costs to us.  

Wireless Operations  

The FCC regulates the licensing, construction, operation, acquisition and sale of our business and wireless spectrum holdings. FCC requirements 
impose operating and other restrictions on our business that increase our costs. The FCC does not currently regulate rates for services offered by 
CMRS providers, and states are legally preempted from regulating such rates and entry into any market. The Communications Act and FCC 
rules also require the FCC’s prior approval of the assignment or transfer of control of an FCC license, although the FCC’s rules permit spectrum 
lease arrangements for a range of wireless radio service licenses, including our licenses, with FCC oversight. Approval from the Federal Trade 
Commission and the Department of Justice, as well as state or local regulatory authorities, also may be required if we sell or acquire spectrum 
interests. The FCC sets rules, regulations and policies to, among other things:  
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•   grant licenses in the 800 megahertz, or MHz, band, 900 MHz band, 1.9 gigahertz, or GHz, PCS band, and 2.5 GHz Broadband Radio 

Service, or BRS, and Educational Broadband Service, or EBS, bands, and license renewals, 

  
•   rule on assignments and transfers of control of FCC licenses, and leases covering our use of FCC licensees held by other persons and 

organizations, 

  •   govern the interconnection of our iDEN and CDMA networks with other wireless and wireline carriers, 



   

   

   

We hold several kinds of licenses to deploy our services: 1.9 GHz PCS licenses utilized in our CDMA network, and 800 MHz and 900 MHz 
licenses utilized in our iDEN network. We also hold 2.1 GHz BRS licenses, 2.5 GHz BRS licenses, and we lease use of others’ 2.5 GHz BRS 
and EBS licenses, for our first generation fixed wireless Internet access service. We also hold and lease 2.5 GHz, 1.9 GHz and other FCC 
licenses that we currently do not utilize in our networks or operations.  

1.9 GHz PCS License Conditions  

All PCS licenses are granted for ten-year terms. For purposes of issuing PCS licenses, the FCC utilizes major trading areas, or MTA, and basic 
trading areas, or BTA, with several BTAs making up each MTA. Licenses may be revoked if the FCC’s construction requirements are not met. 
We have met these requirements in all of our MTA and BTA markets.  

If applicable buildout conditions are met, these licenses may be renewed for additional ten-year terms. Renewal applications are not subject to 
auctions. If a renewal application is challenged, the FCC grants a preference commonly referred to as a license renewal expectancy to the 
applicant if it can demonstrate it has provided “substantial service” during the past license term and has substantially complied with applicable 
FCC rules and policies and the Communications Act. The licenses for the 10 MHz of spectrum in the 1.9 GHz band that we received as part of 
the FCC’s Report and Order, described below, have 10-year terms and are not subject to specific buildout conditions, but are subject to renewal 
requirements that are similar to those for our PCS licenses.  

800 MHz and 900 MHz License Conditions  

We hold licenses to deploy our iDEN services in the 800 MHz and 900 MHz bands. Because spectrum in the 800 MHz and 900 MHz bands was 
originally licensed in small groups of channels, we hold thousands of these licenses, which together allow us to provide coverage across much of 
the continental United States. Our 800 MHz and 900 MHz licenses are subject to requirements that we meet population coverage benchmarks 
tied to the initial license grant dates. To date, we have met all of the construction milestones applicable to these licenses, except in the case of 
licenses that are not material to our business. Our 800 MHz and 900 MHz licenses have 10-year terms, at the end of which each license is subject 
to renewal requirements that are similar to those for our 1.9 GHz licenses.  

BRS-EBS License Conditions  

We hold and lease FCC BRS and EBS licenses. We currently use this spectrum to provide fixed wireless Internet access services to homes and 
small businesses using “first generation” line-of-sight technology. This service operates across the country in 14 markets with approximately 
18,000 subscribers. We operate our network and a third party provides customer care. We intend to provide Wireless Interactive Multimedia 
Services, or WIMS, using this spectrum along with other services, such as fixed point-to-point communications. In 2004, the FCC ordered the 
2496-2690 MHz band, or the 2.5 GHz band, reconfigured into upper and lower-band segments for low-power operations, and a mid-band 
segment for high-power operations. Pending final FCC rules, no actual reconfiguration “transition” to the new band plan has begun, but planning 
for this work has commenced, and we expect field transition work will begin in 2006 and continue for several years. The FCC also affirmed its 
prohibition of commercial ownership on approximately 62% of the total 2.5 GHz spectrum band, which is held  
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  •   establish access and universal service funding provisions, 

  •   impose fines and forfeitures for violations of FCC rules, 

  •   regulate the technical standards governing wireless services, and 

  •   impose other obligations that it determines to be in the public interest. 



primarily by educational and non-profit institutions; however, these institutions are authorized to lease up to 95% of their licensed spectrum to 
commercial operators, such as us, subject to certain restrictions. In addition, the FCC adopted a band plan that requires the relocation of licensed 
BRS operations from the 2150-2162 MHz band, or the 2.1 GHz band, into the 2.5 GHz band. The FCC has sought comment on how to ensure 
that 2.1 GHz incumbents, such as us, receive reimbursement for their relocation costs. We and other parties intend to transition the 2.5 GHz band 
to its new configuration market-by-market in a process that may require several years to complete nationally. When the transition is completed, 
we believe that the 2.5 GHz band will be more suitable for fourth generation “4G” technology that will enable fixed, portable and mobile WIMS 
services.  

The FCC conditioned its approval of the Sprint-Nextel merger on two deployment milestones in the 2.5 GHz spectrum. Within four years 
following the August 8, 2005 effective date of the merger order, we must offer service in the 2.5 GHz band to a population of no less than 
15 million people. This deployment must include areas within a minimum of nine of the nation’s most populous 100 BTAs and at least one BTA 
less populous than the nation’s 200th most populous BTA. In these ten BTAs, the deployment must cover at least one-third of each BTA’s 
population. In addition, within six years from the effective date of the merger order, we must offer service in the 2.5 GHz band to at least 
15 million more people in areas within a minimum of nine additional BTAs in the 100 most populous BTAs, and at least one additional BTA 
less populous than the nation’s 200th most populous BTA. In these additional ten BTAs, the deployment must also cover at least one-third of 
each BTA’s population.  

800 MHz Band Spectrum Reconfiguration  

In recent years, a number of public safety communications systems operating on high-site systems in the 800 MHz block of spectrum have 
experienced interference that is believed to be a result of the low-site operations of CMRS providers operating on adjacent frequencies in the 
same geographic area.  

In 2001, we filed a proposal with the FCC that would result in a more efficient use of spectrum through the reconfiguration of spectrum licenses 
and spectrum allocations in the 700, 800 and 900 MHz bands and, thereby, resolve many of these interference problems. In 2004, following a 
rulemaking to consider proposals to solve the public safety interference issue, the FCC adopted a Report and Order that included new rules 
regarding interference in the 800 MHz band and a comprehensive plan to reconfigure the 800 MHz band. In February 2005, we accepted the 
Report and Order, which was necessary before the order became effective, because the Report and Order required us to undertake a number of 
obligations and accept modifications to our FCC licenses.  

The Report and Order provides for the exchange of a portion of our FCC spectrum licenses, which the FCC is implementing through 
modifications to these licenses. Specifically, the Report and Order modified a number of FCC licenses in the 800 MHz band, including many of 
our licenses, and implemented rules to reconfigure spectrum in the 800 MHz band in a 36-month phased transition process. It also obligated us to 
surrender all of our holdings in the 700 MHz spectrum band and certain portions of our holdings in the 800 MHz spectrum band, and to fund the 
cost incurred by public safety systems and other incumbent licensees to reconfigure the 800 MHz spectrum band. Under the Report and Order, 
we received licenses for 10 MHz of nationwide spectrum in the 1.9 GHz band, but we are required to relocate and reimburse the incumbent 
licensees in this band for their costs of relocation to another band designated by the FCC.  

The Report and Order requires us to complete the first phase of reconfiguration of the 800 MHz band in certain of our markets, including many 
of our larger markets, within an 18-month period. Completion of the reconfiguration process in any particular market involves reaching 
agreement and coordinating numerous processes with the incumbent licensees in that market, as well as vendors and contractors that will be 
performing much of the reconfiguration.  

We are permitted to continue to use the spectrum in the 800 MHz band that was surrendered under the Report and Order during the 
reconfiguration process. However, as part of the reconfiguration process in most markets,  
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we will cease use of a portion of the 800 MHz spectrum that we currently use before we are able to commence use of replacement 800 MHz 
spectrum in that market. To mitigate the temporary loss of the use of this spectrum, in many markets we will need to construct additional 
transmitter and receiver sites for use by our iDEN network or acquire additional spectrum in the 800 MHz or 900 MHz bands. In markets where 
we are unable to construct additional sites or acquire additional spectrum, the decrease in capacity may adversely affect the performance of our 
iDEN network, require us to curtail subscriber additions on the iDEN network in that market until the capacity limitation can be corrected, or 
both. Degradation in iDEN network performance in any market could result in increased subscriber churn in that market, the effect of which 
could be exacerbated if we are forced to curtail iDEN subscriber additions in that market. The reconfiguration process contemplated by the 
Report and Order may adversely affect our business and operations, which could adversely affect our future growth and operating results.  

The Report and Order requires us to make a payment to the United States Department of the Treasury at the conclusion of the band 
reconfiguration process to the extent that the value of the 1.9 GHz spectrum we received exceeds the total of the value of licenses for spectrum 
positions in the 700 MHz and 800 MHz bands that we surrendered under the decision, plus the actual costs that we incur to retune incumbents 
and our own facilities under the Report and Order. The FCC determined under the Report and Order that, for purposes of calculating that 
payment amount, the value of this 1.9 GHz spectrum is about $4,860 million and the aggregate value of the 700 MHz spectrum and the 800 MHz 
spectrum surrendered, net of 800 MHz spectrum received as part of the exchange, is about $2,059 million, which, because of the potential 
payment to the U.S. Treasury, results in minimum cash expenditures of about $2.8 billion by us under the Report and Order. The FCC has 
designated an independent Transition Administrator to monitor, facilitate and review the expenditures of the 800 MHz and 1.9 GHz band 
reconfigurations. A precise methodology for evaluating and confirming our internal costs has not yet been established by the Transition 
Administrator. Because the Transition Administrator may not agree that all of the costs we submit as external and internal costs are appropriate 
or are subject to credit, we may incur certain costs as part of the reconfiguration process for which we will not receive credit against the potential 
payment to the U.S. Treasury. In addition, we are obligated to pay the full amount of the costs relating to the reconfiguration plan, even if those 
costs exceed $2.8 billion. As of December 31, 2005 we had incurred, on a cash basis, approximately $338 million of costs under the Report and 
Order. Pursuant to the terms of the Report and Order, we have established an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of $2.5 billion to provide 
assurance that funds will be available to pay the relocation costs of the incumbent users of the 800 MHz spectrum.  

New Spectrum Opportunities and Spectrum Auctions  

Several FCC proceedings and initiatives are underway that may affect the availability of spectrum used or useful in the provision of commercial 
wireless services, which may allow new competitors to enter the wireless market. We cannot predict when or whether the FCC will conduct any 
spectrum auctions or if it will release additional spectrum that might be useful to the wireless industry or us in the future.  

Other FCC Requirements  

911 Services  

Pursuant to FCC rules, CMRS providers, including us, are required to provide E911 services in a two-tiered manner. Phase I requires wireless 
carriers to transmit to a requesting public safety answering point, or PSAP, both (a) the 911 caller’s telephone number and (b) the location of the 
cell site from which the call is being made. Phase II requires the transmission of more accurate location information using latitude and longitude. 
Implementation of Phase I or Phase II E911 service must be completed within six months of a PSAP request for service in its area, or longer, 
based on the agreement between the individual PSAP and carrier.  

We have deployed the necessary platforms and infrastructure to support Phase I and Phase II E911 service throughout our network. Actual 
availability of Phase I or Phase II E911 services in any particular market is dependent upon receipt of a request for service and completion of 
necessary upgrades by local governments,  
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local exchange carriers and third party database providers. These upgrades are not within our control and we cannot unilaterally deploy E911 
services. With respect to our iDEN and CDMA network services, the more accurate information delivered in Phase II can only be determined if 
the customer is using a handset with global positioning satellite, or GPS, capability.  

Because our Phase II E911 services can be accessed only with GPS capable handsets, the FCC has required that a certain percentage of new 
handset activations be GPS capable, and that 95% of our total subscriber base use GPS capable handsets by December 31, 2005. All new handset 
activations are currently GPS capable. However, we were unable to meet the December 31, 2005 deadline to convert our existing subscriber base 
to GPS enabled devices. We have filed a request for a waiver that seeks additional time to comply, on which the FCC has not yet ruled. Failure 
to comply with the FCC’s rules may result in FCC sanctions.  

The costs we may incur in an effort to accelerate our customers’ transition to GPS capable handsets to meet these requirements could be 
significant, and will be dependent on a number of factors, including the number of new subscribers added to our network who purchase GPS 
capable handsets, the number of existing subscribers who upgrade from non-GPS capable handsets to GPS capable handsets, the rate of our 
customer churn and the cost of GPS capable handsets.  

Truth in Billing and Consumer Protection  

The FCC’s Truth in Billing rules generally require CMRS licensees, such as us, to provide full and fair disclosure of all charges on their wireless 
bills, including brief, clear, and non-misleading plain language descriptions of the services provided. In response to a petition from the National 
Association of State Utility Consumer Advocates, the FCC found that state regulation of CMRS rates, including line items on consumer bills, is 
preempted by federal statute. However, many states continue to attempt to impose various regulations on the billing practices of wireless 
carriers, and the FCC is continuing to look at issues of consumer protection and the appropriate state and federal roles. If states gain such 
authority, or there are other changes in the Truth in Billing rules, our billing and customer service costs could increase.  

CALEA Requirements  

The Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act, or CALEA, requires telecommunications carriers, including us, to modify 
equipment, facilities and services to allow for authorized electronic surveillance based on either industry or FCC standards. In September 2005, 
the FCC extended CALEA obligations to facilities-based broadband Internet access providers and to interconnected VoIP providers, whether 
wireline or wireless. The FCC has pending a range of issues involving CALEA, including CALEA compliance extensions and exemptions, cost 
recovery issues, identification of future services and entities subject to CALEA, and enforcement matters. We build our networks to industry 
standards, and those standards include the ability for law enforcement to conduct authorized surveillance. Like other CMRS carriers, we have 
sought an extension of CALEA deadlines for packet-mode data services and this request remains pending. If the extension requests are not 
granted, we could be subject to fines if we are unable to comply with a surveillance request from a law enforcement agency.  

Homeland Security  

Homeland security issues are receiving attention at the FCC, from the states and in Congress. The FCC chairman has announced plans for a new 
FCC bureau devoted to this area. We expect that several initiatives, including the delivery of emergency alerts over wireless devices, and 
increased scrutiny of wireless carriers’ networks in the aftermath of last year’s natural disasters, could lead to new regulatory requirements 
regarding disaster preparedness, network reliability, and communications among first responders. We are unable to predict the impact of these 
initiatives on our business.  
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Privacy-Related regulations  

We comply with FCC-mandated rules that limit how carriers may use customer proprietary network information, or CPNI, for marketing 
purposes, and specify what carriers must do to safeguard CPNI held by third parties. It has recently been reported that the call detail records of 
both wireline and wireless telephone customers are available from certain Internet-based vendors. Both Congress and state legislatures are 
considering legislation to criminalize the sale of call detail records and to further restrict the manner in which carriers make such information 
available. The FCC is investigating these practices and is examining whether existing regulations with respect to CPNI require revision or 
expansion, which could result in additional costs to us, including administrative or operational burdens on our customer care, sales, marketing 
and IT systems.  

Tower Siting  

Wireless systems must comply with various federal, state and local regulations that govern the siting, lighting and construction of transmitter 
towers and antennas, including regulation promulgated by the FCC and Federal Aviation Administration, or FAA. FCC rules subject certain cell 
site locations to environmental and historic preservation statutory requirements. To the extent governmental agencies impose additional 
requirements on the tower siting process, the time and cost to construct cell towers could be negatively impacted.  

Environmental Compliance  

We have identified seven sites, not currently owned or operated by us, that formerly contained manufactured gas plants that may have been 
owned or operated by entities acquired by our subsidiary, Centel Corporation, before we acquired it. We and the current land owner of the site in 
Columbus, Nebraska are working with the Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, pursuant to an administrative consent order. Amounts 
expended pursuant to the order are not expected to be material. We are negotiating with the EPA as to whether clean up is required at two 
additional sites. In addition, Centel has entered into agreements with another potentially responsible party to share costs in connection with four 
of the sites, including two of those where the EPA is involved. We are working to assess the scope and nature of these sites and our potential 
responsibility. Other environmental compliance and remediation expenditures result mainly from the operation of standby power generators for 
our telecommunications equipment. These expenditures arise in connection with standards compliance, permits or occasional remediation, which 
are usually related to generators, batteries or fuel storage. Although we cannot assess with certainty the impact of any future compliance and 
remediation obligations, we do not believe that future environmental compliance and remediation expenditures will have a material adverse 
effect on our financial condition or results of operations.  

Patents, Trademarks and Licenses  

We own numerous patents, patent applications, service marks and trademarks in the United States and other countries. We have a program to file 
applications for trademarks, service marks and patents where we believe this protection is appropriate. “Sprint,” “PowerVision,” “Sprint PCS,” 
“Nextel” and “Boost Mobile” are our registered trademarks. Our services often use the intellectual property of others, such as licensed software, 
and we often license copyrights, patents and trademarks of others. In total, these licenses and our copyrights, patents, trademarks and service 
marks are of material importance to the business. Generally, our trademarks, trademark licenses and service marks have no limitation on 
duration. Our patents and licensed patents have remaining terms generally ranging from one to 19 years.  

We occasionally license our intellectual property to others, including licenses to others to use the trademarks “Sprint” and “Nextel.”  

We have received claims in the past, and may in the future receive claims, that we, or that third parties from whom we license intellectual 
property, have infringed on the intellectual property of others. These claims can be time-consuming and costly to defend, and divert management 
resources. If these claims are successful, we could be forced to pay significant damages or stop selling certain products or services, or the third 
parties from whom  
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we license intellectual property could be forced to pay significant damages, which could increase the cost of these products and services or force 
them to stop providing certain products or services to us. We also could enter into licenses with unfavorable terms, including royalty payments, 
which could adversely affect our business.  

Employee Relations  

As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately 79,900 active employees, an increase of about 20,000 since December 31, 2004 due primarily 
to the Sprint-Nextel merger. Approximately 7,000 of these employees were represented by unions. It is anticipated that Embarq will have 
approximately 20,000 employees at the time of the spin-off.  

In 2003 and continuing throughout 2004, we recognized charges from organizational realignment initiatives. The restructuring was a company-
wide effort to create a more customer-focused organization. These decisions included work force reductions in each segment and corporate 
functions.  

In 2003, we announced the wind-down of our web hosting services. Restructurings of other Long Distance operations also occurred in the 
continuing effort to create a more efficient cost structure. These decisions included work force reductions.  

Additional information regarding the impacts of these decisions can be found in note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K.  

Management  

For information concerning our executive officers, see “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in this document.  

Information as to Business Segments  

For information regarding our business segments, see “Part II, Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations” and also refer to note 20 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 
10-K.  

Item 1A.  Risk Factors  

Risks Related to the Sprint-Nextel Merger and the Spin-off of Embarq  

We may not be able to successfully integrate the businesses of Nextel with ours and realize the anticipated benefits of the merger.  

Significant management attention and resources are being devoted to integrating the Nextel wireless network and other wireless technologies 
with ours, as well as the business practices, operations and support functions of the two companies. The challenges we are facing and/or may 
face in the future in connection with these integration efforts include the following:  
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•   integrating our CDMA and iDEN wireless networks, which operate on different technology platforms and use different spectrum bands, 

and developing wireless devices and other products and services that operate seamlessly on both technology platforms; 

  •   developing and deploying next generation wireless technologies; 

  •   combining and simplifying diverse product and service offerings, subscriber plans and sales and marketing approaches; 

  •   preserving subscriber, supplier and other important relationships; 



   

   

The process of integrating Nextel’s operations with ours could cause interruptions of, or loss of momentum in, our business and financial 
performance. The diversion of management’s attention and any delays or difficulties encountered in connection with the integration of the two 
companies’ operations could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. We may also incur additional 
and unforeseen expenses in connection with the integration efforts. There can be no assurance that the expense savings and synergies that we 
anticipate from the merger will be realized fully or within our expected timeframe.  

We also recently acquired five PCS Affiliates (US Unwired, IWO Holdings, Gulf Coast Wireless, Alamosa Holdings and Enterprise 
Communications), and will acquire Nextel Partners when the required regulatory approvals are obtained. The process of integrating the business 
practices, operations and support functions of these companies could involve challenges similar to those identified above or add to those 
challenges by placing a greater strain on our management and employees.  

Operational challenges, proposed tax law changes and other uncertainties may make it difficult or less economical to complete the 
contemplated spin-off of Embarq on terms that are acceptable to us. Failure to complete the spin-off could adversely affect our growth.  

There are significant operational and technical challenges that need to be addressed in order to separate the assets and operations of Embarq from 
the rest of our business in connection with the planned spin-off of Embarq to our shareholders. The spin-off will require the creation of a new 
publicly traded company with a capital structure appropriate for that company, the creation and staffing of operational and corporate functional 
groups and the establishment of ongoing commercial arrangements and transition services arrangements between us and Embarq. The spin-off 
may result in additional and unforeseen expenses, and completion of the spin-off cannot be assured because it is conditioned upon, among other 
things, receipt of required consents and approvals from various federal and state regulatory agencies, including state PUCs. These consents and 
approvals, if received, may impose conditions and limitations that could jeopardize or delay completion of the spin-off and could reduce the 
anticipated benefits of the merger and the spin-off.  

The U.S. House of Representatives and the U.S. Senate have separately approved legislation either of which would, if enacted, make certain 
changes to Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, which governs the tax treatment of the spin-off. These 
bills, which are currently subject to conference negotiation between members of the House and Senate, contain similar, but not identical 
provisions. In addition, the U.S. Department of the Treasury has recommended a similar provision regarding spin-offs in its revenue proposals 
for the fiscal year 2007 budget. After consultation with our tax advisors, we believe that it is unlikely that any of the proposed legislation, as 
currently drafted, would prevent the contemplated spin-off of Embarq. However, if we are unable to obtain satisfactory opinions from counsel 
regarding the tax-free qualification of the spin-off, our Board of Directors would consider several options, including electing not to complete the 
spin-off.  

We expect to receive approximately $6.6 billion in the form of cash and senior notes of Embarq in exchange for the assets contributed to 
Embarq. We expect to sell the senior notes issued to us and intend to use the proceeds from any such sale and the proceeds paid to us by Embarq 
to repay various obligations. There can be no assurance of the final amount of indebtedness to be incurred by Embarq or the proceeds to be 
received by us.  

If the contemplated spin-off of Embarq is not completed, we may have slower rates of growth than currently expected because of the industry-
wide trends of increased competition and product substitution that are adversely  
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  •   consolidating and integrating duplicative facilities and operations, including back-office systems; 

  
•   addressing differences in business cultures, preserving employee morale and retaining key employees, while maintaining focus on 

providing consistent, high quality customer service and meeting our operational and financial goals; and 

  •   adequately addressing business integration issues while also planning and preparing for the contemplated spin-off of Embarq. 



affecting local communications businesses. Moreover, our strategy of developing our higher growth wireless business may conflict with the 
strategy and interests of Embarq, particularly as customers are increasingly choosing between wireline and wireless services.  

If the spin-off of Embarq does not qualify as a tax-free transaction, tax could be imposed on both our shareholders and us.  

We have received a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, that the spin-off of Embarq will qualify for tax-free treatment 
under Code Sections 355 and 361. In addition, we intend to obtain opinions of counsel from each of Cravath, Swaine & Moore LLP and Paul, 
Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP that the spin-off will so qualify. The IRS ruling relies, and the opinions will rely, on certain 
representations, assumptions and undertakings, including those relating to the past and future conduct of Embarq’s and our business, and neither 
the IRS ruling nor the opinions would be valid if such representations, assumptions and undertakings were incorrect. Moreover, the IRS private 
letter ruling does not address all the issues that are relevant to determining whether the distribution will qualify for tax-free treatment. 
Notwithstanding the IRS private letter ruling and opinions, the IRS could determine that the distribution should be treated as a taxable 
transaction if it determines that any of the representations, assumptions or undertakings that were included in the request for the private letter 
ruling are false or have been violated, or if it disagrees with the conclusions in the opinions that are not covered by the IRS private letter ruling. 
If the distribution fails to qualify for tax-free treatment, it will be treated as a taxable distribution to our shareholders in an amount equal to the 
fair market value of Embarq’s equity securities (i.e., Embarq’s common stock issued to our common shareholders) received by them. In addition, 
we would be required to recognize gain in an amount up to the fair market value of the Embarq equity securities that we distribute on the 
distribution date plus the fair market value of the senior notes received by us.  

Furthermore, subsequent events could cause us to recognize gain on the distribution. For example, even minimal acquisitions of our equity 
securities or Embarq’s equity securities that are deemed to be part of a plan or a series of related transactions that include the distribution and the 
Sprint-Nextel merger could cause us to recognize gain on the distribution.  

We will be subject to restrictions on acquisitions involving our stock and other stock issuances and possibly other corporate opportunities in 
order to enable the contemplated spin-off of Embarq to qualify for tax-free treatment.  

The contemplated spin-off of Embarq cannot qualify for tax-free treatment if 50% or more (by vote or value) of our stock, or the stock of 
Embarq, is acquired or issued as part of a plan, or series of related transactions, that includes the contemplated spin-off. Because the Nextel 
merger generally is treated as involving the acquisition of 49.9% of our stock (and the stock of Embarq) for purposes of this analysis, until the 
completion of the spin-off (and for some period thereafter), we will be subject to restrictions on certain acquisitions using our stock and other 
issuances of our stock in order to enable the spin-off to qualify for tax-free treatment. At this time, it is not possible to determine how long these 
restrictions will apply. In addition, it is not possible to determine whether these limitations will have a material impact on us.  

We are subject to exclusivity provisions and other restrictions under our arrangements with the remaining independent PCS Affiliates. 
Continued compliance with those restrictions may limit our ability to achieve synergies and fully integrate the operations of Nextel in the 
geographic areas served by those PCS Affiliates, and we could incur significant costs to resolve issues related to the merger under these 
arrangements. The manner in which these restrictions will be addressed is not currently known.  

The arrangements with the remaining five independent PCS Affiliates restrict our and their ability to own, operate, build or manage specified 
wireless communication networks or to sell certain wireless services within specified geographic areas. Several of these PCS Affiliates have 
commenced litigation against us asserting that actions that we have taken or may take in the future in connection with our integration efforts are 
inconsistent  
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with our obligations under our agreements with them, particularly with respect to the restrictions noted above. Continued compliance with those 
restrictions may limit our ability to achieve synergies and fully integrate the operations of Nextel and Nextel Partners, following its expected 
acquisition, in the areas served by those PCS Affiliates. We could incur significant costs to resolve these issues.  

Risks Related to our Business and Operations  

We face intense competition that may reduce our market share and harm our financial performance.  

Each of our three operating segments faces intense competition. Our ability to compete effectively depends on, among other things, the factors 
discussed below.  

The blurring of the traditional dividing lines between local, long distance, wireless, video and Internet services contribute to increased 
competition.  

The traditional dividing lines between long distance, local, wireless, cable and Internet services are increasingly becoming blurred. Through 
mergers, joint ventures and various service expansion strategies, major providers are striving to provide integrated services in many of the 
markets we serve. This trend is also reflected in changes in the regulatory environment that have encouraged competition and the offering of 
integrated services.  

We expect competition to intensify across all of our business segments as a result of the entrance of new competitors or the expansion of services 
offered by existing competitors, and the rapid development of new technologies, products, and services. We cannot predict which of many 
possible future technologies, products, or services will be important to maintain our competitive position or what expenditures we will be 
required to make in order to develop and provide these technologies, products or services. To the extent we do not keep pace with technological 
advances or fail to timely respond to changes in the competitive environment affecting our industry, we could lose market share or experience a 
decline in revenue, cash flows and net income. As a result of the financial strength and benefits of scale enjoyed by some of our competitors, 
they may be able to offer services at lower prices than we can, thereby adversely affecting our revenues, growth and profitability.  

If we are not able to attract and retain customers, our financial performance could be impaired.  

Our ability to compete successfully for new customers and to retain our existing customers will depend on:  
   

   

   

A key element in the economic success of communications carriers is the ability to retain customers as measured by the rate of subscriber churn. 
Our ability to retain customers and reduce our rate of churn is affected by a number of factors including, with respect to our wireless business, 
the actual or perceived quality and coverage of our network and the attractiveness of our service offerings. Our ability to retain customers in our 
businesses also is affected by competitive pricing pressures and the quality of our customer service. Our efforts to reduce churn may not be 
successful. A high rate of churn could impair our ability to increase the revenues of, or cause a deterioration in the operating margins of, our 
wireless operations or our operations as a whole.  

As the wireless market matures, we must increasingly seek to attract customers from competitiors and face increased credit risk from first 
time wireless subscribers.  

We increasingly must attract a greater proportion of our new customers from our competitors’ existing customer bases rather than from first time 
purchasers of wireless services. The higher market penetration also means that  
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  •   our marketing and sales and service delivery activities; 

  •   our ability to anticipate and develop new or enhanced services that are attractive to existing or potential customers; and 

  
•   our ability to anticipate and respond to various competitive factors affecting the industry, including new services that may be introduced 

by our competitors, changes in consumer preferences, demographic trends, economic conditions, and discount pricing and other 
strategies that may be implemented by our competitors. 



customers purchasing wireless services for the first time, on average, have a lower credit rating than existing wireless users, which generally 
results in both a higher churn rate due to involuntary churn and in a higher bad debt expense.  

Competition and technological changes in the market for wireless services could negatively affect our average revenue per user, 
subscriber churn, ability to attract new subscribers, and operating costs, which would adversely affect our revenues, growth and 
profitability.  

We compete with several other wireless service providers in each of the markets in which we provide wireless services. As competition among 
wireless communications providers has increased, we have created pricing plans that have resulted in declining average revenue per minute of 
use for voice services, a trend which we expect will continue. Competition in pricing and service and product offerings may also adversely 
impact customer retention, which would adversely affect our results of operations.  

The wireless communications industry is experiencing significant technological change, including improvements in the capacity and quality of 
digital technology such as the move to third generation, or 3G, wireless technology and the deployment of unlicensed spectrum devices. This 
causes uncertainty about future subscriber demand for our wireless services and the prices that we will be able to charge for these services. The 
rapid change in technology may lead to the development of wireless communications technologies or alternative services that exceed our levels 
of service or that consumers prefer over our services. If we are unable to meet future advances in competing technologies on a timely basis, or at 
an acceptable cost, we may not be able to compete effectively and could lose customers to our competitors.  

Mergers or other combinations involving our competitors and new entrants, including MVNOs, beginning to offer wireless services may also 
continue to increase competition. These wireless operators may be able to offer subscribers network features or products and services not offered 
by us, coverage in areas not served by either of our wireless networks or pricing plans that are lower than those offered by us, all of which would 
negatively affect our average revenue per user, subscriber churn, ability to attract new subscribers, and operating costs.  

One of the primary differentiating features of our Nextel-branded service is the two-way walkie-talkie service available on our iDEN network. A 
number of wireless equipment vendors, including Motorola, which supplies equipment for our Nextel branded service, have begun to offer 
wireless equipment that is capable of providing walkie-talkie services that are designed to compete with our walkie-talkie services. Several of 
our competitors have introduced handsets that are capable of providing walkie-talkie services. If these competitors’ services are perceived to be 
or become, or if any such services introduced in the future are, comparable to our Nextel branded walkie-talkie services, a key competitive 
advantage of our Nextel service would be reduced, which in turn could adversely affect our business.  

Failure to improve wireless subscriber service and to continue to enhance the quality and features of our wireless networks and meet 
capacity requirements of our subscriber growth could impair our financial performance and adversely affect our results of operations.  

We must continually make investments and incur costs in order to improve our wireless subscriber service and remain competitive. In 
connection with our continuing enhancement of the quality of our wireless networks and related services, we must:  
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  •   maintain and expand the capacity and coverage of our networks; 

  •   obtain additional spectrum in some or all of our markets, if and when necessary; 

  •   secure sufficient transmitter and receiver sites and obtain zoning and construction approvals or permits at appropriate locations; and 



Network enhancements may not occur as scheduled or at the cost that we have estimated. Delays or failure to add network capacity, or increased 
costs of adding capacity, could limit our ability to satisfy our wireless subscribers, resulting in decreased revenues. Even if we continuously 
upgrade our wireless networks, there can be no assurance that existing subscribers will not prefer features of our competitors and switch wireless 
providers.  

Consolidation and competition in the wholesale market for wireline services could adversely affect our revenues and profitability.  

Our Long Distance segment competes with AT&T (formerly known as SBC Communications, which recently acquired AT&T), Verizon 
Communications (which recently acquired MCI), BellSouth Corporation, Qwest Communications, Level 3 Communications, Inc., and cable 
operators, as well as a host of smaller competitors, in the provision of wireline services. Some of these companies have built high-capacity, IP-
based fiber-optic networks capable of supporting large amounts of voice and data traffic. These companies claim certain cost structure 
advantages which, among other factors, may allow them to maintain profitability while offering services at a price below that which we can offer 
profitably. Increased competition and the significant increase in capacity resulting from new technologies and networks may drive already low 
prices down further. Both AT&T and Verizon, as a result of their recent acquisitions, continue to be our two largest competitors in the domestic 
long distance communications market. We and other long distance carriers depend heavily on local access facilities obtained from ILECs to 
serve our long distance customers, and payments to ILECs for these facilities is a significant cost of service for our Long Distance segment. The 
acquisition of AT&T by SBC and MCI by Verizon could give those carriers’ long distance operations cost and operational advantages with 
respect to these access facilities because those carriers serve significant geographic areas, including many large urban areas, as the incumbent 
local carrier.  

In urban areas where Embarq operates, there is substantial competition from CLECs and cable operators, and competition is increasing in the 
suburban and rural areas that it serves. Cable companies selling cable modems continue to provide competition for high-speed data services to 
residential customers in Embarq’s service areas and are beginning to offer voice telephone service using their cable facilities in those areas. 
Competition from wireless services also affects Embarq, as e-mail and wireless services continue to grow as an alternative to the wireline 
services we offer.  

Failure to complete development, testing and deployment of new technology that supports new services could affect our ability to compete 
in the industry and the technology we use places us at a competitive disadvantage.  

We develop, test and deploy various new technologies and support systems intended both to enhance our competitiveness by supporting new 
services and features and reducing the costs associated with providing those services. Successful development and implementation of technology 
upgrades depend, in part, on the willingness of third parties to develop new applications in a timely manner. We may not successfully complete 
the development and rollout of new technology and related features or services in a timely manner, and they may not be widely accepted by our 
customers or may not be profitable, in which case we could not recover our investment in the technology. Deployment of technology supporting 
new service offerings may also adversely affect the performance or reliability of our networks with respect to both the new and existing services. 
Any resulting customer dissatisfaction could affect our ability to retain customers and have an adverse effect on our results of operations and 
growth prospects.  

Our wireless networks provide services utilizing CDMA and iDEN technologies. Wireless subscribers served by these two technologies 
represent a smaller portion of global wireless subscribers than the subscribers served by wireless networks that utilize GSM technology. As a 
result, our costs with respect to both CDMA and iDEN network equipment and handsets are generally higher than the comparable costs incurred 
by our competitors who use GSM technology.  
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  •   obtain adequate quantities of system infrastructure equipment and handsets, and related accessories to meet subscriber demand. 



If we are unable to meet our future capital needs relating to investment in our networks and other obligations, it may be necessary for us to 
curtail, delay or abandon our business growth plans. If we incur significant additional indebtedness to fund our plans, it could cause a 
decline in our credit rating and could increase our borrowing costs or limit our ability to raise additional capital.  

We have substantial indebtedness, and we will require capital to satisfy our debt service requirements and other obligations, such as the 
obligation to (i) purchase the shares of Nextel Partners common stock that we do not already own, (ii) pay debt that we will assume in 
connection with the acquisition of Nextel Partners, and (iii) pay debt that we have assumed in connection with the acquisitions of PCS Affiliates. 
We also will require additional capital to make the capital expenditures necessary to implement our business plans or support future growth of 
our wireless business. Continued declines in the ability of our Long Distance segment to generate cash from its operations requires us to increase 
cash generated from our other segments. A decrease in our ability to generate cash from operations, or to obtain funds from other sources, may 
require us to seek additional financing to expand our businesses and meet our other obligations or divert cash used for capital expenditures, 
which could detract from operations and limit our ability to increase, or cause a decline in, revenues and net income. In addition, any future 
acquisitions may be made with additional borrowings. We may not be able to arrange additional financing to fund our requirements on terms 
acceptable to us. Our ability to arrange additional financing will depend on, among other factors, our financial performance, general economic 
conditions and prevailing market conditions. Many of these factors are beyond our control. Failure to obtain suitable financing when needed 
could, among other things, result in the inability to continue to expand our businesses and meet competitive challenges. If we incur significant 
additional indebtedness, or if we do not continue to generate sufficient cash from our operations, our credit rating could be adversely affected. As 
a result, our future borrowing costs would likely increase and our access to capital could be adversely affected.  

We have entered into outsourcing agreements related to certain business operations. Any difficulties experienced in these arrangements 
could result in additional expense, loss of customers and revenue, interruption of our services or a delay in the roll-out of new technology.  

We have entered into outsourcing agreements for the development and maintenance of certain software systems necessary for the operation of 
our business. We have also entered into agreements with third parties to provide customer service and related support to our wireless subscribers 
and outsourced many aspects of our customer care and billing functions to third parties. We also have entered into an agreement whereby a third 
party has leased or operates a significant number of our communications towers, and we sublease space on these towers. As a result, we must 
rely on third parties to perform certain of our operations and, in certain circumstances, interface with our customers. If these third parties are 
unable to perform to our requirements, we would have to pursue alternative strategies to provide these services and that could result in delays, 
interruptions, additional expenses and loss of customers.  

The intellectual property rights utilized by us and our suppliers and service providers may infringe on intellectual property rights owned by 
others.  

Some of our products and services use intellectual property that we own. We also purchase products from suppliers, including handset device 
suppliers, and outsource services to service providers, including billing and customer care functions, that incorporate or utilize intellectual 
property. We and some of our suppliers and service providers have received, or may receive in the future, assertions and claims from third 
parties that the products or software utilized by us or our suppliers and service providers infringe on the patents or other intellectual property 
rights of these third parties. These claims could require us or an infringing supplier or service provider to cease certain activities or to cease 
selling the relevant products and services. Such claims and assertions also could subject us to costly litigation and significant liabilities for 
damages or royalty payments, or require us to cease certain activities or to cease selling certain products and services.  
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If Motorola is unable or unwilling to provide us with equipment and handsets in support of our Nextel branded services, as well as 
anticipated handset and infrastructure improvements for those services, our iDEN operations will be adversely affected.  

Motorola is our sole source for most of the equipment that supports the iDEN network and for all of the handsets we offer under the Nextel 
brand except BlackBerry devices. Although our handset supply agreement with Motorola is structured to provide competitively priced handsets, 
the cost of iDEN handsets is generally higher than handsets that do not incorporate a similar multi-function capability. This difference may make 
it more difficult or costly for us to offer handsets at prices that are attractive to potential customers. In addition, the higher cost of iDEN handsets 
requires us to absorb a larger part of the cost of offering handsets to new and existing customers. These increased costs and handset subsidy 
expenses may reduce our growth and profitability. Also, we must rely on Motorola to develop handsets and equipment capable of supporting the 
features and services we plan to offer to subscribers of services on our iDEN network, including a dual-mode handset. A decision by Motorola to 
discontinue manufacturing, supporting or enhancing our iDEN-based infrastructure and handsets would have a material adverse effect on us. In 
addition, because iDEN technology is not as widely adopted and has fewer subscribers than other wireless technologies and because we expect 
that over time more of our customers will utilize service offered on our CDMA network, it is less likely that manufacturers other than Motorola 
will be willing to make the significant financial commitment required to license, develop and manufacture iDEN infrastructure equipment and 
handsets. Further, our ability to timely and efficiently implement the spectrum reconfiguration plan in connection with the FCC’s Report and 
Order is dependent, in part, on Motorola.  

The reconfiguration process contemplated by the FCC’s Report and Order may adversely affect our business and operations, which could 
adversely affect our future growth and operating results.  

As part of an ongoing FCC proceeding to eliminate interference with public safety operations in the 800 MHz band, the FCC released the Report 
and Order, which provides for the exchange of a portion of the FCC licenses used in our iDEN network for other licenses, including 10 MHz of 
spectrum in the 1.9 GHz band. In order to accomplish the reconfiguration of the 800 MHz spectrum band that is contemplated by the Report and 
Order, in most cases we will need to cease our use of a portion of the 800 MHz spectrum on our iDEN network in a particular market before we 
are able to commence use of replacement 800 MHz spectrum in that market. To mitigate the temporary loss of the use of this spectrum, in many 
markets we will need to construct additional transmitter and receiver sites or acquire additional spectrum in the 800 MHz or 900 MHz bands. 
This spectrum may not be available to us on acceptable terms. In markets where we are unable to construct additional sites or acquire additional 
spectrum as needed, the decrease in capacity may adversely affect the performance of our iDEN network, require us to curtail subscriber 
additions in those markets until the capacity limitation can be corrected, or a combination of the two. Degradation in network performance in any 
market could result in higher subscriber churn in that market, the effect of which could be exacerbated if we are forced to curtail subscriber 
additions in that market. A resulting loss of a significant number of subscribers could adversely affect our results of operations. We expect that 
the reconfiguration process will have at least some adverse impact on the capacity and performance of our iDEN network, particularly in some of 
our more capacity constrained markets. In addition, the Report and Order gives the FCC the authority to suspend our use of the 1.9 GHz 
spectrum that we received under the Report and Order if we do not comply with our obligations under the Report and Order.  

Government regulation could adversely affect our prospects and results of operations; the FCC and state regulatory commissions may adopt 
new regulations or take other actions that could adversely affect our business prospects or results of operations.  

The FCC and other federal, state and local governmental authorities have jurisdiction over our business and could adopt regulations or take other 
actions that would adversely affect our business prospects or results of operations.  
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Wireless Operations. The licensing, construction, operation, sale and interconnection arrangements of wireless telecommunications systems are 
regulated by the FCC and, depending on the jurisdiction, state and local regulatory agencies. In particular, the FCC imposes significant 
regulation on licensees of wireless spectrum with respect to:  
   

   

   

The Communications Act preempts state and local regulation of market entry by, and the rates charged by, CMRS providers, except that states 
may exercise authority over such things as certain billing practices and consumer-related issues. The California PUC has imposed rules designed 
to impose consumer protections. Several other states are considering similar initiatives. These regulations could increase the costs of our wireless 
operations.  

The FCC grants wireless licenses for terms of generally ten years that are subject to renewal and revocation. FCC rules require all wireless 
licensees to meet certain buildout requirements and substantially comply with applicable FCC rules and policies and the Communications Act of 
1934 in order to retain their licenses. Failure to comply with FCC requirements in a given license area could result in revocation of the PCS 
license for that license area. There is no guarantee that our licenses will be renewed.  

The FCC has initiated a number of proceedings to evaluate its rules and policies regarding spectrum licensing and usage. For example, it is 
considering new concepts that might permit unlicensed users to “share” our licensed spectrum to the extent the FCC believes harmful 
interference will not occur. These new uses could adversely impact our utilization of our licensed spectrum and our operational costs.  

CMRS providers must implement E911 capabilities in accordance with FCC rules. Failure to deploy E911 service consistent with FCC 
requirements could subject us to significant fines. We were unable to satisfy the requirement that 95% of our subscriber base have Assisted-GPS 
capable handsets by December 31, 2005. We have filed a request for a waiver with the FCC seeking an extension of the December 31, 2005 
handset penetration deadline to December 31, 2007, on which the FCC has not yet ruled.  

The FCC, together with the FAA, also regulates tower marking and lighting. In addition, tower construction is affected by federal, state and local 
statutes addressing zoning, environmental protection and historic preservation. The FCC adopted significant changes to its rules governing 
historic preservation review of projects, which makes it more difficult and expensive to deploy antenna facilities. The FCC is also considering 
changes to its rules regarding environmental protection as related to tower construction, which, if adopted, could make it more difficult to deploy 
facilities.  

Wireline Operations. The FCC order released in February 2005 on UNEs has largely eliminated the ability of our Long Distance segment to use 
the unbundled network element platform to offer competing local services to small business and residential customers in areas outside the 
Embarq local service areas, and the FCC’s pending re-examination of pricing guidelines for UNEs could limit our future ability to use high-
capacity loop and transport UNEs to offer competing local services to medium and large business customers.  

The continued regulatory uncertainty regarding VoIP may result in a reduction in access revenues for our Local segment and may adversely 
affect the competitive position of our Long Distance segment to the extent it makes less use of VoIP than our competitors. While clarification of 
VoIP’s status as either an “information service” or a “telecommunications service” will provide greater certainty regarding the payment structure 
for VoIP traffic, the resulting decision could adversely impact access revenues for our Local segment. Adoption by the FCC of  
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  •   how radio spectrum is used by licensees; 

  •   the nature of the services that licensees may offer and how such services may be offered; and 

  •   resolution of issues of interference between spectrum bands. 



intercarrier compensation reform also may provide more regulatory certainty regarding charges applicable to VoIP traffic, but it could also 
reduce the revenues of our Local segment unless the plan provides a mechanism to replace those revenues with revenues from other sources.  

Depending upon its outcome, the FCC’s proceedings regarding regulation of special access rates could affect the rates paid by our Long Distance 
segment and revenues received by our Local segment for special access services in the future.  

Concerns about health risks associated with wireless equipment may reduce the demand for our services.  

Portable communications devices have been alleged to pose health risks, including cancer, due to radio frequency emissions from these devices. 
Purported class actions and other lawsuits have been filed against numerous wireless carriers, including us, seeking not only damages but also 
remedies that could increase our cost of doing business. We cannot be sure of the outcome of those cases or that our business and financial 
condition will not be adversely affected by litigation of this nature or public perception about health risks. The actual or perceived risk of mobile 
communications devices could adversely affect us through a reduction in subscribers, reduced network usage per subscriber or reduced financing 
available to the mobile communications industry. Further research and studies are ongoing, and we cannot be sure that additional studies will not 
demonstrate a link between radio frequency emissions and health concerns.  

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments.  

Not applicable.  

Item 2.  Properties  

We currently lease our corporate headquarters offices in Reston, Virginia. These facilities total about 801,000 square feet and the related 
operating leases have initial terms expiring in 2009, 2010 and 2014. None of the expiration dates includes potential extensions related to the 
exercise of renewal options. Our operational headquarters campus is located in Overland Park, Kansas and consists of about 4 million square 
feet, which is carried on our consolidated balance sheets.  

Our gross property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2005 totaled $55.9 billion, distributed among the business segments as follows:  
   

Properties utilized by our Wireless segment consist of base transceiver stations, switching equipment and towers, as well as leased and owned 
general office facilities and retail stores. We lease space for base station towers and switch sites for our wireless network. At December 31, 2005, 
we had approximately 51,500 cell sites on air.  

In May 2005, we closed a transaction with Global Signal under which Global Signal has exclusive rights to lease or operate approximately 6,560 
communication towers owned by us for a negotiated lease term which is the greater of the remaining terms of the underlying ground leases or up 
to 32 years, assuming successful re-negotiation of the underlying ground leases at the end of their current lease terms. We have committed to 
sublease space on approximately 6,350 of the towers from Global Signal. We will maintain ownership of the towers and will continue to reflect 
the towers on our consolidated balance sheet.  
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     2005 
     (in billions) 
Wireless     $     31.2 
Long Distance       2.7 
Local       19.8 
Other       2.2 

       

Total     $ 55.9 
       



Properties utilized by our Long Distance segment generally consist of land, buildings, switching equipment, digital fiber-optic network and other 
transport facilities. We have been granted easements, rights-of-way and rights-of-occupancy by railroads and other private landowners for our 
fiber-optic network. MCI (now owned by Verizon) provides network facilities to us that comprise approximately 11% of our Long Distance fiber 
network under various long-term lease and service agreements. Portions of the MCI-provided network facilities are also shared or utilized by 
MCI.  

Properties utilized by our Local segment mainly consist of land, buildings, metallic cable and wire facilities, fiber-optic cable facilities, 
switching equipment and other electronics. We have been granted easements, rights-of-way and rights-of-occupancy, mainly by municipalities 
and private landowners. Most cable facilities are buried, but some metallic and fiber cable is above-ground on telephone poles. We own some of 
our own telephone poles, but we also contract with other utilities, mainly electric companies, for the right to connect cable and wire to their 
poles.  

As of December 31, 2005, $628 million of our outstanding debt represented first mortgage debt and other capital lease obligations and is secured 
by $14.0 billion of gross property, plant and equipment.  

Additional information regarding our commitments related to operating leases can be found in note 15 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K.  

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings  

In 2005, several PCS Affiliates filed lawsuits in various courts, alleging that our merger with Nextel would result in breaches of exclusivity 
provisions in their management agreements with our subsidiaries. Suits were brought by UbiquiTel and UbiquiTel Operating Company, iPCS 
Wireless, Inc., Horizon Personal Communications Inc. and Bright Personal Communications Services LLC, which are both subsidiaries of iPCS 
Wireless, Enterprise Digital PCS LLC, Enterprise Wireless LLC and Enterprise Communications Partnership, Airgate PCS, Inc. and Northern 
PCS Services, LLC.  

The lawsuits seek, among other things, to enjoin us from engaging in certain post-merger business conduct in the respective service areas of the 
PCS Affiliates. UbiquiTel, Horizon Personal Communications, Inc. and Bright Personal Communications Services have all entered into 
forbearance agreements with us governing certain business practices addressed by the litigation until a decision is rendered by the trial court in 
the lawsuits. We intend to defend all of these lawsuits vigorously.  

The lawsuit filed by Enterprise Digital PCS LLC, Enterprise Wireless LLC and Enterprise Communications Partnership was withdrawn 
following our acquisition of those companies, and the lawsuit filed by Airgate, Inc. was withdrawn following our acquisition of its parent 
corporation, Alamosa Holdings.  

In March 2004, eight purported class action lawsuits relating to the recombination of the tracking stocks were filed against us and our directors 
by holders of PCS common stock. Seven of the lawsuits were consolidated in the District Court of Johnson County, Kansas. The eighth, pending 
in New York, was voluntarily stayed. The consolidated lawsuit alleges breach of fiduciary duty in connection with allocations between the 
wireline operations and the wireless operations before the recombination of the tracking stocks and breach of fiduciary duty in the 
recombination. The lawsuit seeks to rescind the recombination and monetary damages. In early 2005, the court denied defendants’ motion to 
dismiss the complaint and discovery is proceeding. All defendants have denied plaintiffs’ allegations and intend to defend this matter vigorously. 

In 2003, certain participants in the Sprint Nextel Retirement Savings Plan and the Sprint Nextel and Centel Retirement Savings Plans for 
Bargaining Unit Employees filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the District of Kansas against us, the committees that administer the plans, the 
plan trustee, and various of our current and former directors and officers. The consolidated lawsuit alleges that defendants breached their 
fiduciary duties to the plans and violated the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA, by making the  
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company matching contribution in company stock and by including company stock among the thirty investment options offered to plan 
participants. The lawsuit seeks to recover any decline in the value of our FON common stock and PCS common stock, or together, our tracking 
stocks, during the class period. A settlement agreement has been filed with the court and is subject to final court approval. The settlement calls 
for us to make certain changes to the savings plans, to allow for vesting of certain Sprint Nextel stock in the accounts of certain former 
employees, and to distribute $4 million in cash to former employees who no longer have accounts in the savings plans. We have insurance 
coverage for the cash component of the settlement.  

In September 2004, the U.S. District Court for the District of Kansas denied a motion to dismiss a shareholder lawsuit alleging that our 2001 and 
2002 proxy statements were false and misleading in violation of federal securities laws to the extent they described new employment agreements 
with certain senior executives without disclosing that, according to the allegations, replacement of those executives was inevitable. These 
allegations, made in an amended complaint in a lawsuit originally filed in 2003, are asserted against us and certain of our current and former 
officers and directors, and seek to recover any decline in the value of our tracking stocks during the class period. The parties have stipulated that 
the case can proceed as a class action. All defendants have denied plaintiffs’ allegations and intend to defend this matter vigorously. Allegations 
in the original complaint, which asserted claims against the same defendants and our former independent auditor, were dismissed by the court in 
April 2004.  

Various other suits, proceedings and claims, including purported class actions, typical for a business enterprise of our size and complexity, are 
pending against us or our subsidiaries.  

Although it is not possible to determine the ultimate disposition of each of these proceedings and whether they will be resolved consistent with 
our beliefs, we expect that the outcome of such proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our 
financial condition or results of operations.  

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders  

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter 2005.  

Executive Officers of the Registrant  

The following people are serving as our executive officers as of February 28, 2006. These executive officers were elected to serve until their 
successors have been elected. There is no familiar relationship between any of our executive officers and directors.  
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Office     Name     Age 

Chairman     Timothy M. Donahue (1)    57 
Chief Executive Officer and President     Gary D. Forsee (2)    55 
Chief Operating Officer     Len J. Lauer (3)    48 
Chief Financial Officer     Paul N. Saleh (4)    49 
General Counsel     Leonard J. Kennedy (5)    54 
Chief Information Officer     Richard LeFave (6)    54 
Chief Network Officer     Kathryn A. Walker (7)    46 
Chief Technology Officer     Barry West (8)    60 
President—Business Solutions     Mark Angelino (9)    49 
President—Consumer Solutions     Timothy E. Kelly (10)    47 
Chief Executive Officer, Local Telecommunications Division     Dan Hesse (11)    52 
Executive Vice President, Transition Integration     Thomas N. Kelly, Jr. (12)    58 
Senior Vice President & Controller     William G. Arendt (13)    48 
Senior Vice President—Human Resources     James G. Kissinger (14)    49 
Vice President & Treasurer     Richard S. Lindahl (15)    42 

(1) Mr. Donahue was elected Chairman at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He was Chief Executive Officer of Nextel from 
July 1999 to August 2005. 
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(2) Mr. Forsee has been our Chief Executive Officer and one of our directors since March 2003. He was our Chairman from May 2003 until 
August 2005. He served as Vice Chairman—Domestic Operations of BellSouth Corporation from January 2002 to March 2003, President 
of BellSouth International from 2001 to 2002, during which time he also served as Chairman of Cingular Wireless from 2001 to January 
2002, and Executive Vice President and Chief Staff Officer of BellSouth from 1999 to 2001. 

(3) Mr. Lauer has been our Chief Operating Officer since September 2003. He also served as President from September 2003 until the Sprint-
Nextel merger in August 2005, and as President—Sprint PCS from October 2002 until October 2004. He had served as President—Long 
Distance (formerly called Global Markets Group) from September 2000 until October 2002. 

(4) Mr. Saleh was elected Chief Financial Officer at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as Executive Vice 
President and Chief Financial Officer of Nextel from September 2001 to August 2005. From June 1999 to August 2001, he served as 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Disney International, a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company. 

(5) Mr. Kennedy was elected General Counsel at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as Senior Vice President and 
General Counsel of Nextel from January 2001 to August 2005. He was a member of the law firm Dow, Lohnes & Albertson, PLLC, 
specializing in telecommunications law and regulatory policy, from 1995 until January 2001. 

(6) Mr. LeFave was elected Chief Information Officer at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as Senior Vice 
President, Chief Information Officer of Nextel from February 1999 to August 2005. 

(7) Ms. Walker was elected Chief Network Officer at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. She served as our Executive Vice 
President-Network Services from October 2003 to August 2005. She served as Senior Vice President-Network Operations of the Long 
Distance segment from 2002 to October 2003. She served as a Vice President in the Long Distance segment from 1998 to 2002. 

(8) Mr. West was elected Chief Technology Officer at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as Executive Vice 
President and Chief Technology Officer of Nextel from March 1996 until August 2005. 

(9) Mr. Angelino was elected President, Business Solutions at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as Senior Vice 
President at Nextel from September 2001 until August 2005. He served as Vice President, Organizational Transformation at International 
Business Machines Corporation from April 2001 until September 2001. He served as Vice President, Worldwide Sales-AS400 at IBM from 
January 1999 until April 2001. 

(10) Mr. Kelly was elected President, Consumer Solutions at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as our President-
Sprint Consumer Solutions from October 2004 until August 2005. He served as Senior Vice President—Consumer Solutions Marketing 
from October 2003 until October 2004. He served as President—Sprint Business from 2002 to October 2003, President—Mass Markets in 
2002 and President—National Consumer Organization in 2001. From 1999 to 2001, he served as President of Tickets.com, an Internet-
based ticket software and distribution firm. 

(11) Mr. Hesse was elected Chief Executive Officer, Local Telecommunications Division in June 2005. From 2000 to June 2004, he served as 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Terabeam Corp., a Seattle-based communications company. From 1997 until March 
2000, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of AT&T Wireless Services. 

(12) Mr. Kelly was elected Executive Vice President, Transition Integration in December 2005. He was our Chief Strategy Officer from August 
2005 until December 2005. He served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer at Nextel from February 2003 until 
August 2005. He served as Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer at Nextel from 1996 until February 2003. 
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(13) Mr. Arendt was elected Senior Vice President & Controller at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as Senior 
Vice President of Nextel from February 2004 until August 2005 and as Controller of Nextel from May 1997 until August 2005. He also 
served as Vice President of Nextel from May 1997 until February 2004. 

(14) Mr. Kissinger was elected Senior Vice President- Human Resources in April 2003. He served as Vice President-HR Operations for 
Sprint/United Management Company from 1996 until April 2003. 

(15) Mr. Lindahl was elected Vice President & Treasurer at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. He served as Vice President 
and Treasurer of Nextel from May 2002 until August 2005. He served in various capacities at Nextel, including Assistant Treasurer and 
Director, Financial Planning & Analysis, from August 1997 until May 2002. 



Part II  

Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters  

Common Stock Data  
   

   

   

Number of Shareholders of Record  

As of February 28, 2006, we had approximately 65,000 common stock, Series 1 record holders, 12 common stock, Series 2 record holders, and 
two non-voting common stock record holders. The principal trading market for our common stock, Series 1 is the New York Stock Exchange. 
The common stock, Series 2 and the non-voting common stock are not publicly traded.  

Dividends  

We paid a dividend of $0.025 per share on the common stock, Series 1, the common stock, Series 2, and the non-voting common stock in the 
third and fourth quarters 2005. The non-voting common stock was issued in the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. We paid a dividend of 
$0.125 per share on the common stock, Series 1 in the first two quarters of 2005 and in each of the quarters of 2004 and a dividend of $0.125 per 
share on the common stock, Series 2 in the first two quarters of 2005 and in each of the last three quarters of 2004. The common stock, Series 2 
was issued at the time of the recombination of the PCS common stock and the FON common stock in April 2004.  

Sale of Unregistered Equity Securities  

In December 2005, we issued to certain of our directors and current and former executive officers an aggregate of 872 unregistered restricted 
stock units relating to shares of common stock, Series 1. These restricted stock units  
   

34  

     2005 Market Price 

     High    Low    

End  
of  

Period  
Common Stock, Series 1 (1)           

First quarter     $     25.16    $     21.80    $     22.75 
Second quarter       25.87      21.57      25.09 
Third quarter       27.20      23.10      23.78 
Fourth quarter       26.86      22.15      23.36 

     2004 Market Price 

     High    Low    

End  
of  

Period  
Common Stock, Series 1 (1)           

First quarter     $ 19.51    $ 15.74    $ 18.43 
Second quarter       19.99      16.83      17.60 
Third quarter       20.54      17.10      20.13 
Fourth quarter       25.80      19.81      24.85 

PCS Common Stock, Series 1           

First quarter       10.70      5.51      9.20 
Second quarter (2)       9.99      9.16      9.56 

  
(1) Until August 12, 2005, when it was redesignated in connection with the Sprint-Nextel merger, our common stock, Series 1, was 

designated as FON common stock, Series 1. 

  
(2) On April 23, 2004, we recombined our two tracking stocks. Each share of the PCS common stock, Series 1 tracking stock 

automatically converted into 0.5 shares of FON common stock, Series 1. 



were the result of dividend equivalent rights attached to restricted stock units granted to these directors and officers in 2003. Each restricted 
stock unit represents the right to one share of common stock, Series 1, once the unit vests. The restricted stock units are scheduled to vest in 2006 
and 2007. Delivery of the shares may be delayed under certain circumstances.  

Neither these restricted stock units nor the common stock issuable once the units vest were registered under the Securities Act of 1933, or 
Securities Act. The issuance of the restricted stock units was exempt from registration under the Securities Act in reliance on the exemption 
provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act because the restricted stock units were issued in transactions not involving a public offering.  

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities  
   

   

   

No options may be granted pursuant to the Management Incentive Stock Option Plan after April 18, 2005; no awards may be granted pursuant to 
the 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program after April 15, 2007; and no awards may be granted pursuant to the Nextel Incentive Equity Plan 
after July 13, 2015. Options, restricted stock awards and restricted stock unit awards outstanding on those dates may continue to be outstanding 
after those dates. We cannot estimate how many shares will be acquired in the manner described in footnote (1) to the table above pursuant to the 
terms of these plans.  
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Period     

Total  
Number of  

Shares  

Purchased (1) 
   

Average Price 
Paid  

Per Share (2)     

Total  
Number of  

Shares  
Purchased  
as Part of  
Publicly  

Announced  
Plans or  

Programs    

Maximum  
Number (or  

Approximate  
Dollar Value)  
of Shares that 
May Yet Be  
Purchased  
Under the  
Plans or  

Programs  
October 1 through October 31  

common stock, Series 1     7,674    $     22.999    —   —

November 1 through November 30  
common stock, Series 1     12,327    $ 24.807    —   —

December 1 through December 31  
common stock, Series 1     3,199    $ 24.185    —   —

                  

Total         23,200    $ 24.123                —               —
                  

(1) Acquisitions of equity securities during the fourth quarter 2005 were pursuant to the terms of our equity compensation plans (the 
Management Incentive Stock Option Plan, the 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program, and the Nextel Incentive Equity Plan) and the 
terms of the equity-based awards made under those plans. Acquisitions consist of the following: the forfeiture of restricted stock; the 
surrender of restricted stock to pay required minimum income, Medicare and FICA tax withholding on the vesting of restricted stock; the 
delivery of previously owned shares owned by the grantee to pay the exercise price of options; and the delivery of previously owned shares 
owned by the grantee to pay additional income tax withholding on (i) the vesting of restricted stock, (ii) the delivery of shares underlying 
restricted stock units and deferred shares, and (iii) the exercise of options. Excludes shares used for required minimum tax withholding on 
the exercise of options and the delivery of shares underlying restricted stock units and deferred shares since only the net shares are issued. 

(2) Excludes forfeited restricted stock since the purchase price was zero. The purchase price of a share of stock used for the exercise price of 
options is the market price of the stock on the date of the exercise of the option. The purchase price of a share of stock used for tax 
withholding is the amount of withholding paid per share used for that purpose, which is the market price of the stock on the date of vesting 
of the restricted stock, the delivery date of the stock underlying restricted stock units, and the date of the exercise of the option. 



Item 6.  Selected Financial Data  

The 2005 data presented below is not comparable to that of the prior periods as a result of our acquisitions during the year, particularly the 
acquisition of Nextel, which closed in August 2005. The acquired companies’ financial results subsequent to their acquisition dates are included 
in our consolidated financial statements.  
   

The tables above set forth selected consolidated financial data for the periods or as of the dates indicated and should be read in conjunction with 
the consolidated financial statements, related notes and other financial information appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K. 
Highlighted below are certain transactions and factors that may be significant to an understanding of our financial condition and comparability of 
results of operations.  
   

In 2004, we recorded charges reducing our operating income by $3.7 billion to an operating loss and reducing income from continuing 
operations by $2.3 billion to an overall loss from continuing operations. The charges related primarily to restructurings and a Long 
Distance network impairment, partially offset by recoveries of fully reserved MCI (now Verizon) receivables.  

In 2003, we recorded net charges reducing our operating income by $1.9 billion and reducing income from continuing operations by $1.2 
billion, resulting in an overall loss from continuing operations. The charges related primarily to restructurings, asset impairments, and 
executive separation agreements, offset by recoveries of fully reserved MCI (now Verizon) receivables.  

   
36  

    Year Ended December 31,   
    2005   2004     2003     2002   2001   
    (in millions, except per share amounts)   

Results of Operations            

Net operating revenues    $     34,680   $     27,428     $     26,197     $     26,679   $     25,562   
Depreciation      4,933     4,713       4,972       4,886     4,194   
Amortization      1,336     7       1       4     382   
Operating income (loss) (1)(2)      3,826     (303 )     1,007       2,096     (910 ) 
Income (loss) from continuing operations (1)(2)      1,801     (1,012 )     (292 )     451     (1,599 ) 

Earnings (Loss) per Share and Dividends            

Basic earnings (loss) per common share from continuing 
operations (1)(2)(3)(4)      0.88     (0.71 )     (0.21 )     0.32     (1.16 ) 

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share from continuing 
operations (1)(2)(3)(4)      0.87     (0.71 )     (0.21 )     0.32     (1.16 ) 

Dividends per common share (5)(6)      0.30     Note 7       Note 7       Note 7     Note 7   

Financial Position            

Total assets    $ 102,580   $ 41,321     $ 42,675     $ 45,113   $ 45,619   
Property, plant and equipment, net      31,133     22,628       27,101       28,565     28,786   
Intangible assets, net      49,334     7,836       7,815       9,045     9,060   
Total debt and capital lease obligations (including equity 

unit notes)      25,679     17,204       19,160       22,017     22,627   
Redeemable preferred stock      247     247       247       256     256   
Shareholders’  equity      51,937     13,521       13,113       12,108     12,450   

Cash Flow Data            

Net cash from operating activities    $ 10,678   $ 6,625     $ 6,535     $ 6,332   $ 4,663   
Capital expenditures      5,057     3,980       3,797       4,821     8,982   

(1) In 2005, we recorded net charges reducing our operating income by $844 million and income from continuing operations by $520 million. 
These charges related to merger and integration costs, asset impairments, restructurings, and hurricane - related costs. 



In 2002, we recorded charges reducing our operating income by $402 million and reducing income from continuing operations by $253 
million. The charges related primarily to restructurings, asset impairments and expected loss on WorldCom (now Verizon) receivables.  

In 2001, we recorded charges reducing our operating income by $1.8 billion to an operating loss and increasing the loss from continuing 
operations by $1.2 billion. The charges related primarily to restructuring and asset impairments.  
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(2) We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, on January 1, 
2002. Accordingly, amortization of goodwill, spectrum licenses and trademarks ceased as of that date because they are indefinite life 
intangibles. 

(3) As the effects of including the incremental shares associated with options, restricted stock units and employees stock purchase plan shares 
are antidilutive, both basic loss per share and diluted loss per share reflect the same calculation for the years ended December 31, 2004, 
2003, and 2001. 

(4) All per share amounts have been restated, for all periods before 2004, to reflect the recombination of our common stock and PCS common 
stock as of the earliest period presented at an identical conversion ratio (0.50 shares of our common stock for each share of PCS common 
stock). The conversion ratio was also applied to dilutive PCS securities (mainly stock options, employees stock purchase plan shares, 
convertible preferred stock, and restricted stock units) to determine diluted weighted average shares on a consolidated basis. 

(5) In the first and second quarter 2005, a dividend of $0.125 per share was paid. In the third and fourth quarter 2005, the dividend was 
$0.025 per share. 

(6) Before the recombination of our two tracking stocks, shares of PCS common stock did not receive dividends. For each of the four years 
ended December 31, 2004 and prior, shares of our common stock (before the conversion of shares of PCS common stock) received 
dividends of $0.50 per share. In the first quarter 2004, shares of our common stock (before the conversion of shares of PCS common stock) 
received a dividend of $0.125 per share. In the second, third and fourth quarter 2004, shares of our common stock, which included shares 
resulting from the conversion of shares of PCS common stock, received quarterly dividends of $0.125 per share. 



Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  

Forward-Looking Statements  

We include certain estimates, projections and other forward-looking statements in this annual report and in our quarterly and current reports, and 
in other publicly available material. Statements regarding expectations, including performance assumptions and estimates relating to capital 
requirements, as well as other statements that are not historical facts, are forward-looking statements.  

These statements reflect management’s judgments based on currently available information and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that 
could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. With respect to these forward-looking statements, 
management has made assumptions regarding, among other things, customer and network usage, customer growth and retention, pricing, 
operating costs, the timing of various events and the economic environment.  

Future performance cannot be assured. Actual results may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. Some factors that 
could cause actual results to differ include:  
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•   the uncertainties related to the benefits of the Sprint-Nextel merger, including anticipated synergies and cost savings and the timing 

thereof; 

  •   the uncertainties related to, and the impact of, the contemplated spin-off of Embarq; 

  
•   the effects of vigorous competition and the overall demand for our service offerings in the markets in which we operate and the impact 

of new, emerging and competing technologies on our business; 

  •   the costs and business risks associated with providing new services and entering new markets; 

  •   the impact of potential adverse change in the ratings afforded our debt securities by ratings agencies; 

  •   the ability of our Wireless segment to continue to grow and improve profitability; 

  •   the ability of our Local and Long Distance segments to achieve expected revenues; 

  
•   the effects of mergers and consolidations in the telecommunications industry and unexpected announcements or developments from 

others in the telecommunications industry; 

  •   the uncertainties related to our investments in networks, systems and other businesses; 

  •   the uncertainties related to the implementation of our business strategies; 

  •   unexpected results of litigation filed against us; 

  
•   a significant adverse change in Motorola’s ability or willingness to provide handsets and related equipment and software applications or 

to develop new technologies or features for our iDEN network; 

  
•   the impact of adverse network performance, including any performance issues resulting from the reconfiguration of the 800 MHz band 

of our iDEN network contemplated by the Report and Order; 

  
•   the costs of compliance with regulatory mandates, particularly requirements related to the FCC’s Report and Order and deployment of 

E911 services on the iDEN network; 

  •   equipment failure, natural disasters, terrorist acts, or other breaches of network or information technology security; 



   

   

The words “estimate,” “project,” “forecast,” “intend,” “expect,” “believe,” “target,” “providing guidance” and similar expressions are intended 
to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are found throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and elsewhere in this report. The reader should not place undue reliance on forward-looking 
statements, which speak only as of the date of this report. We are not obligated to publicly release any revisions to forward-looking statements to 
reflect events after the date of this report, including unforeseen events.  

Overview  

We are a global communications company offering a comprehensive suite of wireless and wireline communications products and services that 
are designed to meet the needs of our targeted customer groups: individuals and business and government customers. Although our operations 
are divided into three lines of business, wireless, long distance and local, we have organized our sales and distribution efforts to focus on the 
needs of two distinct customer types – individuals, and businesses and government agencies, which enable us to create customer-focused 
communications solutions that can incorporate any of our wireless and wireline services. We are one of the three largest wireless companies in 
the United States based on the number of wireless subscribers. We own extensive wireless networks and a global long distance, Tier 1 Internet 
backbone. We also provide regulated local exchange telephone services to approximately 7.4 million access lines in our local service territories 
in 18 states.  

Nextel Merger and Contemplated Local Spin-off  

On August 12, 2005, a subsidiary of our company merged with Nextel. In connection with the Nextel merger, we changed our name to Sprint 
Nextel Corporation. The aggregate consideration paid for the merger was approximately $37.8 billion. At the time that we announced the merger 
with Nextel, we also announced that we intend to spin-off our local communications business to our shareholders on a tax-free basis. The 
business being spun-off, which is the business reported as the Local segment in our financial statements, will be known as Embarq Corporation, 
and we refer to this business as Embarq. To mitigate the risk that the stock we issued in the Sprint-Nextel merger would preclude the tax-free 
treatment of the spin-off of Embarq, and to ensure that Sprint was treated as the acquiring entity for accounting purposes, the merger agreement 
provided for an allocation of cash and shares of our common stock, determined as of the date of the merger, that would result in the original 
Sprint shareholders maintaining at least 50.1% of the outstanding voting power upon closing of the merger. Pursuant to this allocation, Nextel 
common shareholders received $969 million in cash and 1.452 billion shares of our voting and non-voting common stock in the aggregate, or 
$0.84629198 and 1.26750218 shares of our stock in exchange for each then outstanding share of Nextel stock. It is anticipated that the common 
stock of Embarq will trade on the NYSE and that the spin-off will be completed in the second quarter 2006.  

We merged with Nextel to secure a number of potential strategic and financial benefits including, but not limited to, the following:  
   

   
39  

  •   inability of third parties to perform to our requirements under agreements related to business operations; 

  
•   one or more of the markets in which we compete being impacted by changes in political or other factors such as monetary policy, legal 

and regulatory changes or other external factors over which we have no control; and 

  
•   other risks referenced in this annual report on Form 10-K and from time to time in other filings of ours with the SEC including in Part I, 

Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”  

  
•   the combination of extensive network and spectrum assets, which enables us to offer consumers, businesses and government agencies a 

wide array of broadband wireless and integrated communications services; 



   

   

We expect to recognize significant synergies associated with this merger, which include:  
   

   

   

   

   

We began to realize some synergies in 2005, and expect to realize additional synergies over a number of years. However, we believe that our 
operating results for at least the next several quarters will be negatively impacted by costs that will be incurred to achieve these synergies. Such 
costs are generally not expected to be recurring in nature, and will include costs associated with the spin-off of Embarq, costs associated with 
integrating back office systems, severance costs associated with the termination of the employment of certain employees, and lease and other 
contract termination costs. In addition, our results will be negatively impacted by significant additional non-cash amortization charges associated 
primarily with the value of the customer relationships that were acquired in the merger, as well as additional non-cash charges for stock-based 
compensation associated with the Nextel employees. The ability to achieve these synergies and the timing in which the benefits can be realized 
will depend in large part on the ability to integrate our networks, business operations, back-office functions and other support systems and 
infrastructure.  

Business  

We offer a comprehensive suite of wireless and wireline communications products and services that are designed to meet the needs of our two 
targeted customer groups: individuals, and businesses and government agencies. We conduct our operations through three segments referred to 
as: Wireless, Long Distance and Local.  

We, together with the PCS Affiliates and Nextel Partners, offer digital and wireless services in all 50 states, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin 
Islands and provide wireless coverage to a total domestic population of about 277 million. The PCS Affiliates, through commercial arrangements 
with us, provide wireless services under the Sprint brand name in certain mid-sized and tertiary U.S. markets on wireless networks built and 
operated at their expense, in most instances using spectrum licensed to, and controlled by, us. Nextel Partners provides digital wireless 
communications services under the Nextel brand name in certain mid-sized and tertiary U.S. markets on  
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•   the combination of Nextel’s strength in business and government wireless services with our position in consumer wireless and data 

services, including services supported by our global IP network, which enables us to serve a broader customer base; 

  
•   the size and scale of the combined company, which is comparable to that of our two largest competitors, is expected to enable more 

operating efficiencies than either company could achieve on its own; and 

  •   the ability to position us strategically in the fastest growing areas of the communications industry. 

  
•   revenue and subscriber synergies primarily arising out of cross-selling opportunities and the accelerated deployment of new features and 

services; 

  
•   reduced capital spending due to the elimination of the need to build a data overlay network as had been planned by Nextel, reduced 

construction costs, expected volume discounts and benefits of increased purchasing capacity and reduced and consolidated facilities and 
back-office functions; 

  
•   reduced network operating costs primarily arising out of co-location of cell sites, process efficiencies and migration of Nextel backhaul 

and other telecommunications traffic to our long distance network; 

  
•   reduced selling, general and administrative expenses primarily arising out of consolidation of customer care, billing and other IT 

functions, increased scale and volume discounts and reduced combined sales and marketing costs and general administrative expenses; 
and 

  
•   marketing, sales and fulfillment savings as a result of headcount savings, the rationalization of distribution channels, greater volume 

discounts on devices and other scale benefits. 



wireless networks built and operated at its expense. During 2005 and the first quarter 2006, we acquired five PCS Affiliates and we expect to 
acquire Nextel Partners in the second quarter 2006.  

We also are one of the nation’s largest providers of long distance services and are one of the largest carriers of Internet traffic. In addition, we 
provide regulated local exchange telephone services to approximately 7.4 million access lines in our local service territories in 18 states.  

We believe the communications industry has been and will continue to be highly competitive on the basis of price, the types of services offered 
and quality of service. Although competitive pricing is often an important factor in potential customers’ purchase decisions, we believe that our 
targeted customer base of individuals and businesses and government agencies will also base their purchase decisions on quality of service and 
the availability of differentiated features and services.  

We operate in an industry that has been and continues to be subject to consolidation and dynamic change. To maintain our operating margins in 
an environment of intense competition that could put pressure on customer pricing, we continually seek ways to create or improve capital and 
operating efficiencies in our business. Consequently, we routinely reassess our business strategies and their implications on our operations and 
these assessments may continue to impact the future valuation of our long-lived assets. As part of our overall business strategy, we regularly 
evaluate opportunities to expand and complement our business and may at any time be discussing or negotiating a transaction that, if 
consummated, could have a material effect on our business, financial condition, liquidity and/or results of operations.  

The FCC regulates the licensing, operation, acquisition and sale of the licensed spectrum that is essential to our business. The FCC and state 
PUCs also regulate the provision of telecommunications services. Future changes in regulations or legislation related to spectrum licensing or 
other matters related to our business could impose significant additional costs on us either in the form of direct out-of-pocket costs or additional 
compliance obligations.  

Statements contained in this annual report relating to business strategies, operating plans, planned expenditures, expected capital requirements 
and other forward-looking statements regarding our business generally do not take into account the contemplated spin-off of Embarq.  

Management Overview  

Wireless  

Through our Wireless segment, we, together with the remaining PCS Affiliates and Nextel Partners, offer digital wireless service in all 50 states, 
Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands, and provide wireless coverage in over 300 metropolitan markets, including the 125 largest U.S. 
metropolitan areas, to more than 277 million people. Including subscribers who purchase services from the PCS Affiliates, Nextel Partners and 
our MVNOs, we served more than 49.6 million subscribers at the end of 2005. We offer a wide array of wireless mobile telephone and wireless 
data transmission services on networks that utilize CDMA and iDEN technology. Our strategy is to utilize state-of-the-art technology to provide 
differentiated wireless services and applications in order to acquire and retain high-quality wireless subscribers. To enable us to offer innovative 
applications and services, we are deploying high-speed EV-DO technology across our CDMA network. The services supported by this 
technology, marketed as PowerVision, give consumer and business subscribers with EV-DO-enabled devices access to numerous sophisticated 
data messaging, imaging, entertainment and location-based applications. On our iDEN network, we continue to develop features and services 
that are designed to meet the needs of business and government customers with a particular focus on services that build upon our unique walkie-
talkie features. We also seek to realize operating efficiencies in our business, largely from merger-related synergies, and optimize the 
performance of our network while minimizing costs.  
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We offer wireless mobile telephone and data transmission services and features in a variety of pricing plans, including prepaid service plans. 
Excluding prepaid service plans, we offer these services on a contract basis, typically for one or two year periods, with services billed on a 
monthly basis according to the applicable pricing plan. We market our prepaid services under the Boost Mobile brand, as a means to directly 
target the youth and prepaid wireless service markets. We also offer wholesale services to MVNOs, which purchase wireless services from us at 
wholesale rates and resell the services to their customers under their own brand names. These companies bear the costs of acquisition, billing and 
customer service. We also recently entered into a joint venture with several cable companies to develop converged next generation products for 
consumers designed to combine many of cable’s core products and interactive features with wireless technology to deliver a broad range of 
services, including video, wireless voice and data services, high speed Internet and cable phone service.  

Our Wireless segment generates revenues from the provision of wireless services, the sale of wireless equipment and the provision of wholesale 
and other services. The ability of our Wireless segment to generate service revenues is primarily a function of:  
   

   

The ability of our Wireless segment to generate equipment revenues is primarily a function of the number of new and existing subscribers who 
purchase handsets and other accessories. The ability of our Wireless segment to generate wholesale revenues is primarily a function of the 
number and type of MVNOs that resell our wireless service and the number of subscribers to whom they provide service.  

We increasingly must attract a greater proportion of our new customers from our competitors’ existing customer bases rather than from first time 
purchasers of wireless services. The higher market penetration also means that customers purchasing wireless services for the first time, on 
average, have a lower credit rating than existing wireless users, which generally results in both a higher churn rate due to involuntary churn and 
in a higher bad debt expense.  

Although many of the costs relating to the operation of our wireless networks are fixed in the short-term, other costs, such as interconnection 
fees, fluctuate based on the utilization of the networks. Sales and marketing expenses are largely dependent on the number of subscriber 
additions and the nature and extent of our marketing and promotional activities. General and administrative expenses consist of corporate 
overhead costs and other costs to operate the Wireless segment.  

In February 2005, Nextel accepted the terms and conditions of the Report and Order of the FCC, which implemented a spectrum reconfiguration 
plan designed to eliminate interference with public safety operators in the 800 MHz band. Under the terms of the Report and Order, prior to the 
August 12, 2005 merger date, Nextel surrendered certain spectrum rights and received certain other spectrum rights, and undertook to pay the 
costs incurred by Nextel and third parties in connection with the reconfiguration plan, which is required to be completed within a 36-month 
period, subject to certain exceptions particularly with respect to markets that border Mexico and Canada. If, as a result of events within our 
control, we fail to complete the reconfiguration plan within the 36-month period, we could be subject to actions, which could be material.  

Based on the FCC’s determination of the values of the spectrum rights received and surrendered by Nextel, the minimum obligation to be 
incurred under the Report and Order is $2.8 billion. The Report and Order also provides that qualifying costs we incur as part of the 
reconfiguration plan, including costs to reconfigure our own infrastructure and spectrum positions, can be used to offset the minimum obligation 
of $2.8 billion; however, we are obligated to pay the full amount of the costs relating to the reconfiguration plan, even if those costs exceed that 
amount.  
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  •   the number of subscribers that we serve, which in turn is a function of our ability to acquire new and retain existing subscribers; and 

  •   the revenue generated by each subscriber, which in turn is a function of the types and amount of services utilized by each subscriber. 



In addition, a financial reconciliation is required to be completed in 2008 at the end of the reconfiguration implementation, at which time we are 
required to make a payment to the U.S. Department of the Treasury to the extent that the value of the spectrum rights received exceeds the total 
of (i) the value of spectrum rights that are surrendered and (ii) the qualifying costs referred to above.  

As required under the terms of the Report and Order, we have delivered a $2.5 billion letter of credit to provide assurance that funds will be 
available to pay the relocation costs of the incumbent users of the 800 MHz spectrum. Although the Report and Order provides for periodic 
reductions in the amount of the letter of credit, no reductions had been made at December 31, 2005.  

Long Distance  

Through our Long Distance segment, we provide a broad suite of wireline voice and data communications services targeted to domestic business 
and residential customers, multinational corporations and other communications companies. These services include domestic and international 
voice, data communications using various protocols such as next generation MPLS technologies, as well as IP, ATM and frame relay, and 
managed network services. We also provide services to the cable companies that resell our long distance service and/or use our back office 
systems and network assets in support of their telephone service provided over cable facilities. We are one of the nation’s largest providers of 
long distance services and operate all-digital long distance and Tier 1 IP networks.  

For several years, our long distance voice services have experienced an industry-wide trend of lower revenue from lower prices and competition 
from other wireline and wireless communications companies, as well as cable companies and Internet service providers. In addition to increased 
emphasis on selling IP services, we are converting existing customers from ATM and frame relay to more advanced IP technologies through a 
data simplification initiative. Over time, this will result in decreasing revenue from frame relay and ATM service offset by increases in IP and 
other data revenues.  

Local  

Our Local segment consists mainly of regulated incumbent local phone companies serving approximately 7.4 million access lines in our local 
service territories in 18 states. We provide local and long distance voice and data services, including DSL services to customers in these service 
areas. We also operate a wholesale telecommunications product distribution business.  

For several years, we have experienced declines in the number of access lines that we serve in our local service territories, as a result of 
competition from cable operators, which provide high-speed Internet services that can be used as a platform to support VoIP and wireless 
providers, as customers completely forego the use of traditional wireline phone service and instead rely solely on wireless service. The strategy 
of our Local segment to offset the decline in access lines is to sell a bundled package of products and services to meet the needs of our 
consumers and business and wholesale customers within our local service territories.  

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates  

We consider the following accounting policies and estimates to be the most important to our financial position and results of operations, either 
because of the significance of the financial statement item or because they require the exercise of significant judgment and/or use of significant 
estimates. While management believes that the estimates used are reasonable, actual results could differ from those estimates.  

Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Policies  

Operating revenues primarily consist of wireless service revenues, revenues generated from handset and accessory sales and revenues from 
arrangements with our wholesale operators and PCS Affiliates, as well as long distance and local voice, data and Internet revenues.  
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Revenues consist of fixed monthly recurring charges, variable usage charges, equipment charges, miscellaneous fees such as activation fees, 
directory assistance, operator-assisted calling, equipment protection and late payment charges, and certain regulatory fees. We recognize 
operating revenues as services are rendered or as products are delivered to customers in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, 
Revenue Recognition , and Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. We 
recognize revenue for access charges and other services charged at fixed amounts ratably over the service period, net of credits and adjustments 
for service discounts, billing disputes and fraud or unauthorized usage. We recognize excess usage and long distance revenue at contractual rates 
per minute as minutes are used. As a result of the cutoff times of our multiple billing cycles each month, we are required to estimate the amount 
of subscriber revenues earned but not billed from the end of each billing cycle to the end of each reporting period. These estimates are based 
primarily on rate plans in effect and our historical usage and billing patterns, and represented less than 10% of our accounts receivable balance as 
of December 31, 2005.  

Certain of our bundled-products and services, primarily plans for our Wireless segment, are considered to be revenue arrangements with multiple 
deliverables. Total consideration received in these arrangements is allocated and measured using units of accounting within the arrangement 
based on relative fair values. We classify revenue from sales of handsets as equipment revenue. We recognize revenue from handset sales when 
title to the handset passes to the dealer or end-user customer.  

Wireless offerings include wireless phones and service contracts sold together in our company-operated stores. The activation fee revenue 
associated with these direct sales channels is recognized at the time the related wireless phone is sold, and is classified as equipment sales. 
Wireless activation fees earned prior to the 2003 adoption of EITF Issue No. 00-21 are being deferred and amortized over the estimated average 
life of the end user customer.  

Certain activation fees associated with unbundled sales in our wireless segment are deferred and amortized over the estimated average life of the 
end-user customer. We defer the recognition of certain installation fees related to services provided by our Local segment and recognize the 
revenue over the estimated average life of the customer.  

We establish an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable sufficient to cover probable and reasonably estimable losses. Because of the number 
of accounts that we have, it is not practical to review the collectibility of each account individually when we determine the amount of our 
allowance for doubtful accounts each period. Our estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts considers a number of factors, including 
collection experience, current economic trends, estimates of forecasted write-offs, aging of the accounts receivable portfolios, industry norms, 
regulatory decisions, and other factors. If our allowance for doubtful accounts estimate at December 31, 2005 were to change by ten percent, it 
would represent a change in bad debt expense of $20 million for the Wireless segment and $6 million each for the Long Distance and Local 
segments.  

The accounting estimates related to the recognition of revenue and the allowance for doubtful accounts in the results of operations require us to 
make assumptions about future billing adjustments for disputes with customers, unauthorized usage, future returns on asset sales and future 
access adjustments for disputes with CLECs and inter-exchange carriers, as well as the future economic viability of our customer base.  

Management believes the allowance amounts recorded, in each instance, represents its best estimate of future outcomes, but the actual outcomes 
could differ from the estimate selected, and the impact that changes in actual performance versus these amounts recorded would have on the 
accounts receivable reported on the balance sheet and the results reported in the statements of operations could be material to our financial 
condition.  
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Valuation and Recoverability of Long-lived Assets  

A significant portion of our total assets are long-lived assets, consisting primarily of property, plant and equipment and definite life intangibles. 
Changes in technology or in our intended use of these assets, as well as changes in economic or industry factors, may cause the estimated period 
of use or the value of these assets to change.  

Long-lived assets consisting of property, plant and equipment represented $31 billion of our $103 billion in total assets as of December 31, 2005. 
We generally calculate depreciation on these assets using the straight-line method based on estimated economic useful lives as follows:  
   

The accounting estimate related to the establishment of depreciable lives requires us to make assumptions about technology evolution and 
competitive uses of assets. Our assumptions about technology and its future development require significant judgment because the timing and 
impacts of technology advances are difficult to predict, and actual experience has varied from previous assumptions and could do so in the 
future. The impact of changes in these assumptions could be material to our financial position, as well as our results of operations. We continue 
to assess the estimated useful life of the iDEN network assets following our merger with Nextel and our future plans for this network. Changes in 
our estimate of the useful life of the iDEN network assets could cause depreciation charges in future periods to change in amounts that could be 
material.  

We perform annual internal studies to confirm the appropriateness of depreciable lives for most categories of property, plant and equipment. 
These studies utilize models that take into account actual usage, physical wear and tear, replacement history, and assumptions about technology 
evolution, and in certain instances use actuarially determined probabilities to calculate the remaining life of our asset base.  

If our studies had resulted in a depreciable rate that was 5% higher or lower than those used in the preparation of our consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2005, recorded depreciation expense would have been impacted by approximately $260 million.  

We review our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. A significant amount of judgment is involved in determining the occurrence of a “triggering event” that requires an evaluation of 
the recoverability of our long-lived assets. If the total of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of our 
assets, a loss, if any, is recognized for the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the assets. Impairment analyses, when 
performed, are based on our current business and technology strategy, our views of growth rates for our business, anticipated future economic 
and regulatory conditions and expected technological availability.  

In 2005, we recorded $127 million in asset impairment charges primarily related to write-downs of various software applications. In 2004, we 
determined that business conditions and events impacting our Long Distance operations constituted an indicator of possible impairment requiring 
an evaluation of the recoverability of the Long Distance long-lived assets, which resulted in a non-cash asset impairment charge of $3.5 billion, 
reducing the net carrying value of Long Distance property, plant and equipment by about 60% to $2.3 billion at September 30, 2004. 
Additionally, we recognized a non-cash charge of $21 million in 2004 to adjust the carrying value of our wholesale Dial IP assets to fair value. 
These impairments represented 54% of Long Distance’s property, plant and equipment, net and 13% of the consolidated property, plant and 
equipment, net at December 31, 2003. In 2003, we recorded $303 million associated with the termination of our web hosting service and $349 
million associated with the terminated development of a new billing platform and a software development project.  
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Long-lived Assets     Estimated Useful Life 

Buildings and improvements     3 to 31 years 
Network equipment and software     3 to 31 years 
Non-network internal use software, office equipment and other     3 to 30 years 



Valuation and Recoverability of Intangible Assets  

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives represented $40 billion of our $103 billion in total assets as of December 31, 2005. Goodwill and 
indefinite life intangibles, which primarily consist of our spectrum licenses, are reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently if 
indicators of impairment exist. We test goodwill for impairment by comparing the net book value of assets of each of our reporting units, 
identified as our operating segments, to estimates of its respective fair values. We test indefinite life intangibles for impairment by comparing an 
asset’s respective carrying value to estimates of fair value. Fair value is determined using the direct value method, which requires the use of 
estimates, judgments and projections. We performed our annual impairment test of FCC spectrum licenses and goodwill in the fourth quarter 
2005 and concluded that there was no impairment, as the estimates of fair value of these intangible assets exceeded their carrying values.  

The accounting estimates related to goodwill and indefinite life intangibles require us to make assumptions about fair values. The impact of 
recognizing an impairment could be material to our financial position and results of operations. Our assumptions about fair values require 
significant judgment because economic factors, industry factors and technology considerations can result in variable and volatile fair values. In 
addition, a significant amount of judgment is involved in determining the occurrence of a “triggering event” that requires an evaluation of the 
recoverability of our goodwill or intangible assets.  

In 2003, we decided to end pursuit of a residential fixed wireless strategy using certain of our BRS spectrum, which resulted in an impairment 
analysis in which we determined that there had been a decline in our estimate of the fair value of our BRS spectrum. As a result, we recorded a 
non-cash charge of $1.2 billion, which reduced the carrying value to $300 million. We continue to invest in additional 2.5 GHz spectrum rights, 
test new technology that could be used to provide services using this spectrum, monitor industry developments and participate in FCC 
proceedings in an effort to obtain favorable regulatory rulings with respect to this spectrum.  

Valuation of Acquired Assets and Liabilities  

In connection with the Sprint-Nextel merger in the third quarter 2005, as required by SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations , we allocated the 
purchase price to the assets acquired, including goodwill and spectrum licenses, and liabilities assumed from Nextel based on their respective 
fair values at the merger date. The approach to the estimation of the fair values of the Nextel goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets was 
primarily based on the income approach valuation technique.  

We are in the process of finalizing internal studies of the assets acquired in the Sprint-Nextel merger and the acquisitions of US Unwired, Gulf 
Coast Wireless, and IWO Holdings, including investments, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and certain liabilities relevant to the 
allocation of the purchase price. The fair values recorded as of December 31, 2005, are based on preliminary valuations and are subject to 
adjustment as additional information is obtained. Such additional information includes, but may not be limited to, the following: valuations and 
physical counts of property, plant and equipment, plans relative to the disposition of certain assets acquired, exit from certain contractual 
arrangements and the involuntary termination of employees. When finalized, we may be required to make adjustments that could impact our 
results of operations and financial position, some of which could be material.  

Employee Benefit Plan Assumptions  

Retirement benefits are a significant cost of doing business for us, yet represent obligations that will be settled far in the future. Retirement 
benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of the future benefit costs over the employee’s expected tenure with us based on the 
terms of the plans and the investment and funding decisions made by us. The accounting requires that management make assumptions regarding 
such variables as the discount rate, return on assets, and future health care costs. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significant impact 
on the projected benefit obligation and periodic benefit cost incurred by us.  
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In determining pension obligations, we are required to develop assumptions for the discount rate and return on plan assets. These assumptions 
are subject to market performance, which has fluctuated in the recent past and could have continued volatility in the future. In selecting our 
discount rate, our third party actuaries construct a hypothetical portfolio of bonds rated AA- or better that produces a cash flow matching the 
projected benefit payments of the plan. For the December 31, 2005 measurement date, this exercise produced a range of 5.67% - 5.87%, and our 
discount rate was set at 5.75%, a 25 basis point decrease from December 31, 2004. An increase in the discount rate would reduce the reported 
projected benefit obligation. In contrast, if the discount rate used in 2005 in determining the projected benefit obligation was 25 basis points 
lower, it would generate a $179 million increase in the projected benefit obligation reported on the balance sheet, and a $27 million increase in 
the benefit costs.  

Our return on asset assumption is 8.75% and has not changed since late 2003. To determine our assumption for the return on assets, we consider 
forward-looking estimates of the expected long-term returns for a portfolio invested according to our target investment policy. This assumption 
was initially developed from estimates provided by two investment consulting firms in late 2003 when we revised our target asset allocation 
policy, and is validated each year against estimates provided by our third party actuaries. If the expected return on assets assumption was 25 
basis points lower, it would generate a $9 million increase in current year benefit costs. This assumption is not used in the calculation of the 
pension projected benefit obligation.  

In determining post-retirement medical and life insurance benefit obligations, assumptions are made concerning the cost of health care, including 
medical inflation and discount rates. A one-percentage point increase in the assumed medical inflation rate would generate a $37 million increase 
in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation reported on the balance sheet, and a $2 million increase in benefit costs. An increase in the 
discount rate would reduce the reported accumulated postretirement benefit obligation. In contrast, if the discount rate used in 2005 in 
determining the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 25 basis points lower, it would generate a $16 million increase in the 
obligation as of December 31, 2005 and an immaterial impact on benefit costs.  

Tax Valuation Allowances  

We are required to estimate the amount of tax payable or refundable for the current year and the deferred income tax liabilities and assets for the 
future tax consequences of events that have been reflected in our financial statements or tax returns for each taxing jurisdiction in which we 
operate. This process requires our management to make assessments regarding the timing and probability of the ultimate tax impact. We record 
valuation allowances on deferred tax assets if we determine it is more likely than not that the asset will not be realized. Additionally, we 
establish reserves when, despite our belief that our tax return positions are fully supportable, certain positions could be challenged, and the 
positions may not be fully sustained. Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates due to future changes in income tax law, the expected 
spin-off of Embarq, significant changes in the jurisdictions in which we operate, our inability to generate sufficient future taxable income or 
unpredicted results from the final determination of each year’s liability by taxing authorities. These changes could have a significant impact on 
our financial position.  

The accounting estimate related to the tax valuation allowance requires us to make assumptions regarding the timing of future events, including 
the probability of expected future taxable income and available tax planning opportunities. These assumptions require significant judgment 
because actual performance has fluctuated in the past and may do so in the future. The impact that changes in actual performance versus these 
estimates could have on the realization of tax benefits as reported in our results of operations could be material.  

We carried an income tax valuation allowance of $1.1 billion as of December 31, 2005. This amount includes a valuation allowance for the total 
tax benefits related to net operating loss carryforwards, subject to utilization restrictions, acquired in connection with certain acquisitions. The 
remainder of the valuation allowance relates to capital loss, state net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Assumption changes that result 
in a reduction of expected benefits from realization of capital loss, state net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards by 10% would increase 
our valuation allowance by $55 million.  
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Significant New Accounting Pronouncements  

SFAS No. 123R  

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment . This statement 
requires an entity to recognize the cost of employee services received in share-based payment transactions, through the use of fair-value-based 
methods of recognizing cost. This statement is effective for us as of January 1, 2006.  

We voluntarily adopted fair value accounting for share-based payments effective January 1, 2003, under SFAS No. 123 as amended by SFAS 
No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure , using the prospective method. Upon adoption, we began 
expensing the fair value of stock-based compensation for all grants, modifications or settlements made on or after January 1, 2003. In connection 
with the conversion of the PCS common stock into our common stock in the tracking stock recombination, as required by SFAS No. 123, we 
accounted for the conversion of options to purchase PCS stock into options to purchase our common stock as a modification and, accordingly, 
applied stock option expensing to the options to acquire our common stock resulting from the conversion of PCS stock options granted before 
January 1, 2003. Further, in connection with the Nextel merger, we accounted for the conversion of Nextel stock options to our stock options as 
a modification and, accordingly, applied stock option expensing to the unvested stock options beginning on the merger date.  

The revised standard will require us to begin to recognize compensation cost for unvested common stock options granted to our employees 
before January 1, 2003, which are outstanding as of January 1, 2006. The requirement to recognize expense on these unvested grants is expected 
to be immaterial to us.  

SFAS No. 151  

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs — an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin, or ARB, No. 43, 
Chapter 4 . This statement requires that items such as idle facility expense, excessive spoilage, double freight, and rehandling costs be 
recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether they meet the definition of “abnormal” provided in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, 
Inventory Pricing . The statement is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not expect 
the adoption of this standard to have a material impact on our financial statements.  

Results of Operations  

Consolidated  
   

The discussion of our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005 includes the financial results of Nextel for the last 141 days of 
the year, consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. The inclusion of these results renders direct comparisons with 
results for prior periods less meaningful. Accordingly, the discussion below addresses, where appropriate, trends we believe are significant, 
separate and apart from the impact of the merger with Nextel.  

Net operating revenues increased 26% in 2005, reflecting growth in revenues of our Wireless and Local segments, partially offset by declining 
revenues of our Long Distance segment.  

Operating expenses increased 11% in 2005 primarily due to increases in the operating expenses of our Wireless segment, partially offset by a 
decrease in the operating expenses of our Long Distance segment.  
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     Year Ended December 31, 
     2005    2004     2003 
     (in millions) 
Net operating revenues     $     34,680    $     27,428     $     26,197 
Net income (loss)       1,785      (1,012 )     1,290 



In 2005, we recorded merger and integration costs of $608 million. Merger and integration costs are generally non-recurring in nature and 
primarily include charges for costs to adopt and launch a new branding strategy and logos, including costs to re-brand company-owned stores 
and facilities, costs to train customer-facing employees and prepare systems for the launch of the common customer interfacing systems, 
processes and other integration planning and execution costs, and costs related to employee retention and involuntary separations of employees. 
These merger and integration costs were primarily related to our merger with Nextel and the planned spin-off of Embarq. Merger and integration 
costs have primarily been reflected as unallocated corporate selling, general and administrative expenses and, therefore, are excluded from 
segment results.  

In 2005, we recorded net restructuring and asset impairment charges of $125 million. Asset impairment charges primarily related to the write-
down of various software applications, including a $77 million impairment charge related to the write-off and removal from service of certain 
internal-use software systems that are no longer utilized by our Local segment. We also incurred asset impairments arising from the hurricanes in 
the Gulf Coast region, but these asset impairments were substantially offset by insurance recoveries.  

In 2005, we also recorded hurricane-related charges of $111 million exclusive of the asset impairment charges. Approximately $85 million, $15 
million and $11 million of these charges were reflected on the Wireless, Long Distance and Local segments, respectively.  

In 2005, we recorded income of $154 million related to activities associated with various equity method investments and marketable securities 
transactions. This income is primarily the result of our recording $137 million of equity in earnings associated with our ownership interest in 
Nextel Partners, the majority of which related to a release by Nextel Partners of a significant portion of its deferred tax valuation allowance in 
the third quarter 2005.  

In 2004, we recorded net restructuring and asset impairment charges of $3.7 billion primarily related to the impairment of our Long Distance 
property, plant and equipment and severance costs associated with our organizational realignment initiatives and the termination of the web 
hosting service.  

In 2003, we recorded net restructuring charges and asset impairments of $2.0 billion, which consisted of: impairment charges associated with the 
decline in our estimates of fair value of certain of our BRS spectrum; other asset impairments, facilities and severance charges associated with 
the termination of our web hosting service; impairment charges associated with the termination of development of a new billing platform; 
impairment charges associated with the termination of software development projects; and severance costs associated with our transformation to 
a customer-focused organizational design; partially offset by the finalization of all 2001 and 2002 restructuring liabilities.  

Segmental Results of Operations  

Certain prior-period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. In 2005, we determined that recategorization 
of certain costs from costs of services and products to selling, general and administrative would be more consistent with current industry 
practices, and accordingly reclassified $1.1 billion of expenses in each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. These costs primarily 
consist of certain customer care and information technology costs for the Wireless and Long Distance segments.  

Wireless  

Through our Wireless segment, we, together with the remaining PCS Affiliates and Nextel Partners, offer digital wireless service in all 50 states, 
Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands and provide wireless coverage in over 300 metropolitan markets, including the 125 largest U.S. 
metropolitan areas, to more than 277 million people. Combined with the PCS Affiliates, Nextel Partners and our MVNO wholesale resellers, we 
served more than 49.6 million subscribers at the end of 2005.  

We provide a comprehensive suite of advanced wireless services, including digital wireless mobile telephone service, instant national and 
international walkie-talkie capabilities and wireless data transmission services.  
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These services are provided using two networks, the CDMA technology-based network that was operated by us prior to the Nextel merger and 
the iDEN technology-based network that was operated by Nextel prior to the merger. We plan to develop handsets that are capable of operating 
on both of these networks, which is expected to enhance the services available to our customers. We expect to take other actions to capture 
capital and operating efficiencies as the network operations are combined.  

We offer wireless international voice roaming around the globe. International roaming is available with a PCS tri-mode (CDMA/analog) phone 
in areas of more than 40 countries, including countries in the Asia-Pacific, South American and Caribbean regions, as well as Canada and 
Mexico. International roaming is also available with a GSM-capable phone in over 140 countries in Europe, the Middle East, Africa and the 
South Pacific rim. We also have roaming or interoperability agreements with iDEN-based wireless service providers that operate in Latin 
America and Canada.  

We are continuing to execute our plans that will enable us to offer faster wireless data speeds by deploying EV-DO technology across the 
CDMA network. With peak rates of up to 2.4 megabits per second for downloads, EV-DO will accelerate average mobile-device data speeds up 
to 10 times when compared to the prior generation technology. This technology is expected to deliver superior application and service 
performance on EV-DO-capable handsets and laptops equipped with EV-DO-enabled Sprint PCS Connection Cards™. Our first commercial 
rollout of EV-DO was in the second quarter 2005 and subsequent rollouts will continue to expand our footprint to provide coverage to more 
people and markets.  
   

NM:  Not Meaningful  
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Wireless  
   

Year Ended  
December 31, 

2005  
   

% of  
Operating 
Revenues   

  
Year Ended  

December 31, 
2004  

   
% of  

Operating 
Revenues   

  Change from Previous Year   

                 Dollars             Percent       
     (dollars in millions)   

Net operating revenues                 

Service     $     19,289    86 %   $     12,529    86 %   $     6,760     54 % 
Equipment       2,147    10 %     1,510    10 %     637     42 % 
Wholesale, affiliate and other       892    4 %     608    4 %     284     47 % 

            
  

           
  

      
  

  

Total net operating revenues       22,328    100 %     14,647    100 %     7,681     52 % 
            

  
           

  
      

  
  

Operating expenses                 

Costs of services and products       8,604    39 %     6,091    42 %     2,513     41 % 
Selling, general and administrative       6,838    30 %     4,411    30 %     2,427     55 % 
Restructuring and asset impairment       20    NM       30    NM       (10 )   (33 )% 
Depreciation       3,358    15 %     2,557    17 %     801     31 % 
Amortization       1,335    6 %     6    NM       1,329     NM   

            
  

           
  

      
  

  

Total operating expenses       20,155    90 %     13,095    89 %     7,060     54 % 
            

  
           

  
      

  
  

Operating income     $ 2,173    10 %   $ 1,552    11 %   $ 621     40 % 
            

  

           

  

      

  

  

Capital expenditures     $ 3,545      $ 2,559      $ 986     39 % 
                         

  

  



NM:  Not Meaningful  

The following results are included in the results of our Wireless segment through December 31, 2005: the results of Nextel from the August 12, 
2005 date of completion of the merger; the results of US Unwired from the August 12, 2005 date of the acquisition; the results of Gulf Coast 
Wireless from the October 3, 2005 date of acquisition; and the results of IWO Holdings from the October 20, 2005 date of acquisition.  

Net Operating Revenues  
   

Net operating revenues primarily consist of direct wireless service revenues, revenues from handset and accessory sales and revenues from 
arrangements with wholesale operators and PCS Affiliates. Service revenues consist of fixed monthly recurring charges, variable usage charges, 
charges related to the use of specified features and miscellaneous fees such as directory assistance, operator-assisted calling, equipment 
protection, late payment charges, and certain regulatory fees. Wholesale, affiliate and other revenues consist primarily of net revenues retained 
from wireless subscribers residing in PCS Affiliate territories and revenues from the sale of wireless services to companies that resell those 
services to their subscribers.  

Service revenues increased $6,760 million or 54% from 2004 to 2005 primarily due to the merger with Nextel and the increase in the number of 
our direct subscribers, while our average monthly service revenue per user remained flat. We had 3.0 million direct net subscriber additions in 
2005, excluding Nextel or PCS Affiliate subscriber additions that occurred prior to the Sprint-Nextel merger and the acquisitions of US Unwired, 
Gulf Coast Wireless and IWO Holdings, and ended the year with 39.7 million direct subscribers. We believe that the growth in direct 
subscribers, separate from the growth attributable to subscribers gained as part of the Sprint-Nextel merger and PCS Affiliate acquisitions, is the 
result of a number of factors, principally:  
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Wireless  
  

Year Ended  
December 31, 

2004  
  

% of  
Operating 
Revenues   

  
Year Ended  

December 31, 
2003  

  
% of  

Operating 
Revenues   

  Change from Previous Year   

              Dollars             Percent       
    (dollars in millions)   

Net operating revenues              

Service    $     12,529   86 %   $     11,217   88 %   $     1,312     12 % 
Equipment      1,510   10 %     1,143   9 %     367     32 % 
Wholesale, affiliate and other      608   4 %     330   3 %     278     84 % 

          
  

          
  

      
  

  

Total net operating revenues      14,647   100 %     12,690   100 %     1,957     15 % 
          

  
          

  
      

  
  

Operating expenses              

Costs of services and products      6,091   42 %     5,162   41 %     929     18 % 
Selling, general and administrative      4,411   30 %     4,078   32 %     333     8 % 
Restructuring and asset impairment      30   NM       362   3 %     (332 )   (92 )% 
Depreciation      2,557   17 %     2,454   19 %     103     4 % 
Amortization      6   NM       —  —      6     NM   

          
  

          
  

      
  

  

Total operating expenses      13,095   89 %     12,056   95 %     1,039     9 % 
          

  
          

  
      

  
  

Operating income    $ 1,552   11 %   $ 634   5 %   $ 918     145 % 
          

  

          

  

      

  

  

Capital expenditures    $ 2,559     $ 2,123     $ 436     21 % 
                      

  

  

     For the Year Ended December 31,   
         2005             2004             2003       

Direct subscribers, end of period (millions)       39.7       17.8       15.9   
Direct net subscriber additions (millions)       3.0       1.9       1.1   
Customer churn rate       2.3 %     2.6 %     2.7 % 
Average monthly service revenue per user     $ 62     $ 62     $ 61   

  
•   our differentiating products and services, particularly data-related services such as nationwide walkie-talkie services, Sprint 

PowerVision, instant messaging and emails, sending and receiving pictures, playing games with full-color graphics and polyphonic 
sounds and browsing the Internet wirelessly; 



   

   

   

   

Our average monthly service revenue per user remained stable at $62 in 2004 and 2005 as:  
   

   

   

   

We expect that service revenues will increase in absolute terms in the future as a result of an increasing subscriber base. As competition among 
wireless communications providers has increased, we and our competitors have decreased prices while the average per subscriber utilization of 
wireless voice services has increased, resulting in both declining average monthly revenue per subscriber in the wireless industry overall and in 
declining average revenue per minute of use for voice services, and we expect these trends will continue. See “—Forward Looking Statements.”  

Revenues from sales of handsets and accessories, generated from both new subscribers and upgrades, were approximately 10% of net operating 
revenues in both 2005 and 2004. These revenues increased $637 million or 42% from 2004 to 2005 primarily due to the merger with Nextel. The 
remainder of the increase was due to a 6% increase in the number of CDMA handsets sold in 2005, largely offset by a 4% decrease in the 
average sales price of the CDMA handsets. We continued to lower our handset retail prices in 2005 as costs of handsets declined, and we also 
changed our third party compensation plan in 2005 from one that was based on discounted handsets to one that is commissions-based. 
Additionally, we continued offering rebates on handsets as new promotional programs were rolled out. Consistent with industry practice, our 
marketing plans assume that handsets, net of rebates, will continue to be sold at prices below cost in most instances. Our retention efforts, which 
often include providing incentives in the form of new handsets, may cause our handset subsidies to increase as our customer base continues to 
grow. In addition, we may increase handset subsidies in response to the competitive environment. See “—Forward Looking Statements.”  

Wholesale, affiliate and other revenues increased $284 million or 47% from 2004 to 2005, reflecting the net subscriber additions in the 
wholesale and PCS Affiliate bases. Wholesale operators added 1.5 million subscribers  
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  •   the introduction of more competitive service pricing plans which are targeted at meeting more of our customers’  needs; 

  •   selected handset pricing promotions and improved handset choices; 

  
•   increased brand name recognition as a result of increased advertising and marketing campaigns, including advertising and marketing 

related to our sponsorship of NASCAR and our agreement with the NFL that began in 2005; 

  •   increased market penetration as a result of opening additional retail stores and selling efforts targeted at specific vertical markets; and 

  
•   the improvement in subscriber retention, which we believe is attributable to the impact of competitive rate plans, as well as our focus on 

delivering high quality and differentiated service. 

  •   we integrated Nextel subscribers, who have a higher average monthly service revenue, in the third quarter 2005; 

  
•   we saw an increase in revenues from data services, as subscribers used more short message service, or SMS, text messaging and took 

advantage of our wider array of premium services; and 

  •   we experienced a full year of increased equipment protection plan rates that were restructured in 2004; these increases were offset as 

  
•   we continued to offer more competitive service pricing plans, including lower priced plans, plans with a higher number of bundled 

minutes included in the fixed monthly charge for the plan, plans that offer the ability to share minutes among a group of related 
customers, or a combination of these features. 



in 2005, ending the year with 5.2 million subscribers. The PCS Affiliates ended 2005 with 2.8 million subscribers, which has been adjusted for 
the subscriber transfers resulting from the acquisition of three PCS Affiliates during the year. We expect revenue from the remaining PCS 
Affiliates in 2006 to be significantly lower than 2005 because of the five PCS Affiliates that we purchased in 2005, and the first quarter 2006. 
Wholesale revenues are expected to increase year over year due to continued subscriber growth of existing resellers as well as the addition of 
new resellers, during 2006. See “—Forward Looking Statements.”  

Service revenues increased $1.3 billion or 12% in 2004 compared to 2003, mainly reflecting an increase in the number of direct subscribers, 
increased revenue from data services and subscriber elections to add services to their base plans. These increases were partially offset by lower 
overage charges from usage-based plans. We had 1.9 million direct net subscriber additions in 2004, including 91,000 subscribers acquired from 
a PCS Affiliate, and we ended 2004 with 17.8 million direct subscribers.  

Revenues from sales of handsets and accessories increased $367 million or 32% in 2004 compared to 2003 mainly due to higher subscriber 
additions and higher retail prices, which were partially offset by higher rebates.  

Wholesale, affiliate and other service revenues represented 4% of net operating revenues in 2004 and 3% in 2003. The $278 million increase in 
2004 mainly reflects the net additions in the wholesale and PCS Affiliate bases. Wholesale operators added 2.1 million subscribers in 2004, 
increasing their subscriber base to 3.7 million from 1.6 million in 2003, principally driven by Virgin Mobile USA and Qwest Communications. 
The PCS Affiliates added 374,000 subscribers in 2004, ending the year with 3.2 million subscribers.  

Costs of Services and Products  

Costs of services and products consist of our cost of providing wireless service and cost of our handset and accessory revenues. Cost of 
providing wireless service consists primarily of:  
   

   

   

Cost of handset and accessory revenues consists primarily of the cost of the handsets and accessories sold, order fulfillment related expenses and 
write-downs of handset and related accessory inventory for shrinkage. We recognize the cost of handset revenues, including the handset costs in 
excess of the revenues generated from handset sales and accessory revenues when title to the handset or accessory passes to the dealer or end-
user customer.  

Cost of service was 58% of total costs of services and products in 2005 compared to 54% in 2004. These costs increased $1,688 million or 52% 
from 2004 to 2005 primarily due to the merger with Nextel as well as increased costs relating to the expansion of our network and increased 
minutes of use on our networks. Specifically we experienced:  
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•   costs to operate and maintain our CDMA and iDEN networks, primarily including direct switch and transmitter and receiver site costs, 

such as rent, utilities, property taxes and maintenance; payroll and facilities costs associated with our network engineering employees; 
frequency leasing costs; and roaming fees paid to other carriers; 

  

•   fixed and variable interconnection costs, the fixed component of which consists of monthly flat-rate fees for facilities leased from local 
exchange carriers based on the number of transmitter and receiver sites and switches in service in a particular period and the related 
equipment installed at each site; and the variable component of which generally consists of per-minute use fees charged by wireline and 
wireless providers for calls terminating on their networks, which fluctuates in relation to the level and duration of those terminating 
calls; and 

  •   costs to activate service for new subscribers. 

  
•   an increase in transmitter and receiver and switch related operational costs due to the increase in transmitter and receiver sites and 

capacity enhancements placed into service during 2005; 



   

   

   

We expect the aggregate amount of cost of service to increase as customer usage of our networks increases and we add more sites and other 
equipment to expand the coverage and capacity of our CDMA and iDEN networks. See “—Forward Looking Statements”, “—Liquidity and 
Capital Resources” and “—Future Capital Needs and Resources — Capital Needs — Capital Expenditures.”  

Handset and accessory costs were 42% of total costs of services and products in 2005 compared to 46% in 2004. These costs increased $825 
million or 29% from 2004 to 2005 due to the merger with Nextel. Excluding this impact, handset and accessory costs actually decreased from 
2004 to 2005. The 6% increase in volume of CDMA handsets sold during 2005 was more than offset by an 8% decrease in the average cost per 
handset. Additionally, equipment refurbishment costs have declined since 2004 due to operational improvements in the handset exchange and 
insurance programs as well as increased insurance deductibles implemented in early 2005 to offset a portion of our costs.  

Costs of services and products increased 18% from 2003 to 2004, primarily due to network support of a larger subscriber base, higher minutes of 
use, expanded market coverage and increased handset costs. Handset and accessory costs were 46% of total costs of services and products in 
2004 and 2003, and costs of services and products were 42% of net operating revenues in 2004 and 41% in 2003.  

Selling, General and Administrative Expense  

Selling and marketing costs primarily consist of customer acquisition costs, including commissions earned by our indirect dealers, distributors 
and our direct sales force for new handset activations, residual payments to our indirect dealers, payroll and facilities costs associated with our 
direct sales force, retail stores and marketing employees, telemarketing, advertising, media programs and sponsorships, including costs related to 
branding. General and administrative costs primarily consist of fees paid for billing, customer care and information technology operations, bad 
debt expense and back office support activities, including customer retention, collections, legal, finance, human resources, strategic planning and 
technology and product development, along with the related payroll and facilities costs. Selling, general and administrative expense was 30% of 
net operating revenues in 2005 and 2004.  

Sales and marketing expense increased $1,266 million or 56% from 2004 to 2005 primarily due to the merger with Nextel including the launch 
of new branding initiatives and advertising campaigns in connection with the merger. The remaining increase in selling and marketing expense 
reflects:  
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  •   increased long distance and roaming costs due to the increase in our direct subscriber base; 

  •   higher PCS Affiliate and wholesale costs as the related subscriber bases increased throughout 2005; 

  •   an increase in premium service fees resulting from increased subscriber data usage; and 

  •   an increase in EV-DO backhaul costs driven by the increased capacity required to support the launch of this service in 2005. 

  
•   increased sales and distribution costs to support a larger direct subscriber base, as well as a shift in the compensation of our third party 

dealers from a discounted handset-based plan to a commissions-based plan that was implemented in 2005; and 

  
•   increased advertising and marketing costs, focusing on the customer experience, more corporate sponsorships including the NFL and 

more media advertising associated with the merger and the launch of our new “Yes You Can”  brand campaign. 



General and administrative costs increased $1,161 million or 54% from 2004 to 2005 primarily due to the merger with Nextel, as well as:  
   

   

   

We expect the aggregate amount of selling, general and administrative expenses to continue increasing in absolute terms in the future primarily 
as a result of increased costs to support a growing customer base, including costs associated with billing, collection, customer retention and 
customer care activities. See “—Forward Looking Statements.”  

Selling, general and administrative expense increased 8% from 2003 to 2004, reflecting an increase in sales and distribution costs primarily 
driven by higher gross additions and an increase in the number of direct retail stores. Selling and marketing costs also contributed to the increase 
as a significant campaign was launched to reposition the Sprint PCS brand in 2004. Selling, general and administrative expense was 30% of net 
operating revenues in 2004 and 32% in 2003. Bad debt expense as a percentage of net operating revenues was 1.4% in 2004 and 2.3% in 2003. 
The reserve for bad debt as a percent of outstanding accounts receivable was 7% in both 2004 and 2003. The stability of the 2004 percentage 
mainly reflects sales of previously written-off subscriber receivables and reductions in reserves because number portability churn did not occur 
as anticipated.  

Restructuring and Asset Impairment  

In 2005, asset impairment charges of $27 million were recorded primarily related to the write-down of various software applications. 
Restructuring credits of $7 million were the result of an analysis and finalization of original estimates related to our organizational realignment 
initiated in 2003. We have completed substantially all activities related to this realignment.  

In 2004, we recorded a $30 million restructuring charge related to severance costs associated with our organizational realignment.  

In 2003, we recorded asset impairments of $349 million primarily related to the termination of development of a new billing platform. We also 
recorded restructuring charges of $13 million for severance costs associated with our organizational realignment, and contractual obligations 
related to the termination of the development of the billing platform, partially offset by the finalization of all 2001 and 2002 restructuring 
activities.  

Additional information regarding our asset impairments can be found in note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing 
at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K.  

Depreciation and Amortization Expense  

Estimates and assumptions are used both in setting depreciable lives and testing for recoverability. Assumptions are based on internal studies of 
use, industry data on lives, recognition of technological advancements and understanding of business strategy. Depreciation expense consists 
mainly of depreciation of network assets. Amortization expense consists mainly of amortization of customer relationship intangible assets.  
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•   an increase in bad debt expense. The reserve for bad debt requires our judgment and is based on historical trending, industry norms and 
recognition of current market indicators about general economic conditions. Bad debt expense as a percentage of net operating revenues 
was 1.5% in 2005 and 1.4% in 2004. The reserve for bad debt as a percent of outstanding accounts receivable was 6% in 2005 and 7% 
in 2004; and 

  
•   an increase in information technology and billing expenses to support a larger subscriber base in addition to an increase in credit card 

fees as more subscribers submit invoice payments through credit cards; partially offset by 

  
•   a decrease in our customer care costs as we outsourced more of our customer care calls to less expensive service centers, which more 

than offset the increase in volume. 



Depreciation expense increased $801 million or 31% from 2004 to 2005 primarily due to the merger with Nextel. Excluding this impact, 
depreciation expense increased as a result of an increase in transmitter and receiver sites in service and the costs to modify existing switches and 
transmitter and receiver sites in existing markets primarily to enhance the capacity of our networks.  

Amortization expense increased $1,329 million from 2004 to 2005 due primarily to amortization expense related to the customer contracts 
acquired with the Sprint-Nextel merger and acquisition of five PCS Affiliates.  

Depreciation expense increased 4% in 2004 mainly reflecting depreciation of the network assets placed in service during that year.  

Long Distance  

Through our Long Distance segment, we provide a broad suite of wireline voice and data communications services targeted to domestic business 
and residential customers, multinational corporations and other communications companies. These services include domestic and international 
voice, data communications using various protocols such as MPLS, IP, ATM, and frame relay and managed network services. We are one of the 
nation’s largest providers of long distance services and operate all-digital long distance and Tier 1 IP networks. We also provide services to the 
cable telephony market through arrangements with cable companies that resell our long distance service, local services such as 911, directory 
and basic local features, and/or use our back office systems and network assets in support of their local telephone service provided over cable 
facilities.  

We determined that business conditions and events that occurred in 2004 and impacted our operations constituted a “triggering event” requiring 
an evaluation of the recoverability of our long-lived assets pursuant to SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived 
Assets . We reevaluated our strategy and financial forecasts in 2004 resulting in a $3.5 billion pre-tax non-cash impairment charge to the Long 
Distance long-lived assets. Additional information regarding our asset impairments can be found in note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K.  
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Long Distance  
  

Year Ended  
December 31, 

2005  
  

% of  
Operating 
Revenues   

  
Year Ended  

December 31, 
2004    

  
% of  

Operating 
Revenues   

  Change from Previous Year   

              Dollars             Percent       
    (dollars in millions)   

Net operating revenues              

Voice    $     4,213   61 %   $ 4,560     62 %   $ (347 )   (8 )% 
Data      1,632   24 %     1,722     24 %     (90 )   (5 )% 
Internet      736   11 %     793     11 %     (57 )   (7 )% 
Other      253   4 %     252     3 %     1     NM   

          
  

      
  

    
  

      
  

  

Total net operating revenues      6,834   100 %     7,327     100 %     (493 )   (7 )% 
          

  
      

  
    

  
      

  
  

Operating expenses              

Costs of services and products      4,378   64 %     4,249     58 %     129     3 % 
Selling, general and administrative      1,440   21 %     1,935     26 %     (495 )   (26 )% 
Restructuring and asset impairment      15   1 %     3,661     50 %     (3,646 )   (100 )% 
Depreciation      488   7 %     1,070     15 %     (582 )   (54 )% 
Amortization      1   NM       1     NM       —    0 % 

          
  

      
  

    
  

      
  

  

Total operating expenses      6,322   93 %         10,916     149 %     (4,594 )   (42 )% 
          

  
      

  
    

  
      

  
  

Operating income (loss)    $ 512   7 %   $ (3,589 )   (49 )%   $     4,101     114 % 
          

  

      

  

    

  

      

  

  

Capital expenditures    $ 384     $ 282       $ 102     36 % 
              

  

        

  

  



NM:  Not Meaningful  

Net Operating Revenues  

Net operating revenues decreased 7% in 2005 and 8% in 2004. Lower pricing associated with voice services, the decline in the unbundled 
network element platform as we exited that market, and migration from legacy data products played a large role in the declines for both years. 
Additionally, the termination of a large Dial IP contract during 2004 and the sale of our wholesale Dial IP business in 2004 further contributed to 
the decreasing revenues. Partially offsetting these declines in revenue were incremental revenues from selling services to the cable companies.  

In October 2004, we completed the sale of our wholesale Dial IP business for $34 million. These assets were classified as held for sale on 
September 30, 2004, and an associated pre-tax non-cash charge of $21 million was included in the 2004 impairment charge.  

In 2006, we expect to see continued revenue declines in Long Distance due to lower pricing on commercial contracts and continued pressures in 
the consumer long distance market. Increased competition and the significant increase in capacity resulting from new technologies and networks 
may drive already low prices down further. See “—Forward Looking Statements.”  

Voice Revenues  

Voice revenues decreased 8% in 2005 and 9% in 2004. Intense competition from the cable industry and the major local exchange carriers for 
consumer and small business customers, as well as wireless, e-mail and instant messaging substitution continue to erode the retail base and drive 
lower prices per minute, despite an 11% increase in call volume in 2005 and a 13% increase in 2004. These declines were partially offset by an 
increase in lower-yielding affiliate and wholesale revenue primarily from our relationships with certain cable providers. Voice revenues 
generated from the provision of services to Wireless and Local represented 15% of total voice revenues in 2005 compared to 13% in 2004.  

Data Revenues  

Data revenues reflect sales of current-generation data services, including ATM, managed network services, private line, and frame relay services. 
Data revenues decreased 5% in 2005 and 7% in 2004. In 2005, frame relay  
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Long Distance  
  

Year Ended  
December 31, 

2004    

  
% of  

Operating 
Revenues   

  
Year Ended  

December 31, 
2003    

  
% of  

Operating 
Revenues   

  Change from Previous Year   

              Dollars             Percent       
    (dollars in millions)   

Net operating revenues              

Voice    $     4,560     62 %   $     4,999     63 %   $ (439 )   (9 )% 
Data      1,722     24 %     1,853     23 %     (131 )   (7 )% 
Internet      793     11 %     973     12 %     (180 )   (18 )% 
Other      252     3 %     180     2 %     72     40 % 

      
  

    
  

      
  

    
  

      
  

  

Total net operating revenues      7,327     100 %     8,005     100 %     (678 )   (8 )% 
      

  
    

  
      

  
    

  
      

  
  

Operating expenses              

Costs of services and products      4,249     58 %     4,180     52 %     69     2 % 
Selling, general and administrative      1,935     26 %     2,271     28 %     (336 )   (15 )% 
Restructuring and asset impairment      3,661     50 %     1,564     20 %     2,097     134 % 
Depreciation      1,070     15 %     1,431     18 %     (361 )   (25 )% 
Amortization      1     NM       1     NM       —    —  

      
  

    
  

      
  

    
  

      
  

  

Total operating expenses      10,916     149 %     9,447     118 %         1,469     16 % 
      

  
    

  
      

  
    

  
      

  
  

Operating loss    $ (3,589 )   (49 )%   $ (1,442 )   (18 )%   $ (2,147 )   149 % 
      

  

    

  

      

  

    

  

      

  

  

Capital expenditures    $ 282       $ 339       $ (57 )   (17 )% 
      

  

        

  

        

  

  



and ATM declined due to customers migrating to IP-based technologies. These declines were partially offset by growth in managed network 
services. In 2004, the decrease in frame relay and private line services was partially offset by an increase in ATM and managed network 
services.  

Internet Revenues  

Internet revenues decreased 7% in 2005 and 18% in 2004. The 2005 decline was primarily due to the loss of the Dial IP revenues due to the sale 
of our Dial IP business in October 2004. These revenues were partially replaced by an increase in dedicated IP revenue as customers migrated 
from ATM and frame relay technologies to next generation MPLS technologies. The decline in 2004 was the result of a decrease in Dial IP 
revenues and the discontinuation of our web hosting service, partially offset by an increase in dedicated IP revenue .  

Other Revenues  

Other revenues remained flat in 2005 after increasing 40% in 2004. The 2004 increase was primarily due to higher equipment sales.  

Costs of Services and Products  

Costs of services and products include access costs paid to local phone companies (including our Local segment), other domestic service 
providers and foreign phone companies to complete calls made by our domestic customers, costs to operate and maintain our networks, and costs 
of equipment. Costs of services and products increased 3% in 2005 and 2% in 2004. The 2005 increase was driven by access volume and 
international access costs, somewhat offset by renegotiated access rate agreements and initiatives to reduce access unit costs. These costs were 
partially offset by the recognition of a portion of the deferred gain from the sale of the conferencing business, which was sold in June 2005. The 
2004 increase was primarily attributable to higher access volume, somewhat offset by renegotiated access rate agreements and initiatives to 
reduce access unit costs.  

Costs of services and products were 64% of net operating revenues in 2005, 58% in 2004 and 52% in 2003. These increases occurred as a result 
of the overall reductions in net operating revenues.  

Selling, General and Administrative Expense  

Selling, general and administrative expense decreased 26% in 2005 and 15% in 2004. The 2005 decline was due primarily to continued 
restructuring efforts, headcount reductions, aggressive cost savings initiatives, reduced rent costs and lower bad debt expense in the wholesale 
markets. The 2004 decline was due to restructuring efforts and general cost controls.  

Selling, general and administrative expense includes charges for estimated bad debt expense. The reserve for bad debt requires management’s 
judgment and is based on customer-specific indicators, as well as historical trending, industry norms and recognition of current market indicators 
about general economic conditions. Bad debt expense as a percentage of net operating revenues was less than 1% in 2005, 2% in 2004, and 1% 
in 2003. The reserve for bad debt as a percentage of outstanding accounts receivable was 8% in 2005, 12% in 2004 and 11% in 2003.  

Total selling general and administrative expense was 21% of net operating revenues in 2005, 26% in 2004, and 28% in 2003.  

Restructuring and Asset Impairments  

In 2005, we recorded restructuring and asset impairment charges of $15 million, of which $9 million related to the write-off of certain internal-
use software systems that are no longer being utilized. The remaining  
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charges are costs associated with the wind down of our web hosting service. Activities related to this wind down are substantially complete; 
however, we continue to be obligated under facility leases that expire from 2007 through 2014.  

In 2004, we recorded asset impairments of $3.5 billion related to our property, plant and equipment. We also recorded charges of $121 million 
related to severance costs and termination of facility leases associated with our transformation initiatives and the ongoing wind down of our web 
hosting service.  

In 2003, we recorded asset impairments of $1.2 billion related to a decline in the fair value of our BRS spectrum. The decision to wind down the 
web hosting service resulted in a $316 million asset impairment charge, and associated restructuring charges of $60 million related to severance 
and facility lease terminations.  

Additional information regarding our asset impairments can be found in note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing 
at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K.  

Depreciation Expense  

Depreciation expense decreased 54% in 2005 and 25% in 2004. The decrease in both years was primarily driven by the reduction in value of 
assets associated with the impairment of our property, plant and equipment in 2004, as well as a decreased asset base due to the wind-down of 
the web hosting service in 2003. Additionally, in 2004, we extended the depreciable life of certain high-capacity transmission equipment from 
eight years to twelve years due to slower anticipated evolution of technology. This extension in life decreased the 2004 depreciation expense by 
approximately $74 million. Depreciation expense was 7% of net operating revenues in 2005, 15% in 2004, and 18% in 2003.  

Local  

Our Local segment consists mainly of regulated incumbent local phone companies serving approximately 7.4 million access lines in 18 states. 
We provide local and long distance voice and data services, including DSL, access by customers and other carriers to the local network, sales of 
telecommunications equipment and other telecommunications related services. We provide wireless and video services through agency 
relationships. Our wholesale telecommunications product distribution business, known as North Supply, is also part of the Local segment.  
   

NM:  Not Meaningful  
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Local  
  

Year Ended  
December 31, 

2005  
  

% of  
Operating 
Revenues   

  
Year Ended  

December 31, 
2004  

  
% of  

Operating 
Revenues   

  Change from Previous Year   

              Dollars             Percent       
    (dollars in millions)   

Net operating revenues              

Voice    $     4,335   66 %   $     4,498   70 %   $ (163 )   (4 )% 
Data      983   15 %     833   13 %     150     18 % 
Other      1,209   19 %     1,090   17 %     119     11 % 

          
  

          
  

      
  

  

Total net operating revenues      6,527   100 %     6,421   100 %     106     2 % 
          

  
          

  
      

  
  

Operating expenses              

Costs of services and products      2,407   37 %     2,198   34 %     209     10 % 
Selling, general and administrative      1,190   18 %     1,358   21 %     (168 )   (12 )% 
Restructuring and asset impairment      82   1 %     40   1 %     42     105 % 
Depreciation      1,090   17 %     1,089   17 %     1     NM   

          
  

          
  

      
  

  

Total operating expenses      4,769   73 %     4,685   73 %     84     2 % 
          

  
          

  
      

  
  

Operating income    $ 1,758   27 %   $ 1,736   27 %   $         22     1 % 
          

  

          

  

      

  

  

Capital expenditures    $ 857     $ 1,018     $ (161 )   (16 )% 
                      

  

  



NM:  Not Meaningful  

Net Operating Revenues  

Net operating revenues increased 2% in 2005 compared to a decrease of 1% in 2004. The 2005 increase was driven by growth in North Supply 
product sales and data revenue partially offset by lower voice revenue. In 2004, the increase in data revenue and North Supply product sales was 
more than offset by declines in voice revenue and other telecom equipment sales. We ended 2005 with 7.4 million switched access lines, a 
decrease of 4% from the prior year. Access lines decreased 3% in 2004. The decreases in 2005 and 2004 were driven principally by losses to 
wireless and cable providers, along with broadband substitution.  

Voice Revenues  

Voice revenues, consisting of revenue from local exchange services, long distance revenue and switched access revenue, decreased 4% in 2005 
and 3% in 2004 due to the decreases in access lines and access minutes of use. The declines in both years were also impacted by the ending of 
FCC-allowable cost recoveries associated with local number portability and recoveries for the cost of pooling telephone numbers in 2004.  

Data Revenues  

Data revenues are mainly derived from DSL, local data transport services, and special access. Data revenues increased 18% in 2005 and 14% in 
2004 mainly as a result of strong growth in DSL lines and special access sales primarily to wireless companies. We ended 2005 with 693,000 
DSL lines in service, an increase of 41% compared to 2004.  

Other Revenues  

Other revenues increased 11% in 2005 after decreasing 1% in 2004. The 2005 increase was principally driven by higher product sales due to a 
significant contract entered into by North Supply. The 2004 decrease was driven by a decline in telecom equipment sales resulting from both a 
planned shift in focus to selling higher margin products and a reduction in customer demand for equipment somewhat offset by an increase in 
North Supply product sales.  
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Local  
  

Year Ended  
December 31, 

2004  
  

% of  
Operating 
Revenues   

  
Year Ended  

December 31, 
2003  

  
% of  

Operating 
Revenues   

  Change from Previous Year   

              Dollars             Percent       
    (dollars in millions)   

Net operating revenues              

Voice    $     4,498   70 %   $     4,654   72 %   $ (156 )   (3 )% 
Data      833   13 %     730   11 %     103     14 % 
Other      1,090   17 %     1,102   17 %     (12 )   (1 )% 

          
  

          
  

      
  

  

Total net operating revenues      6,421   100 %     6,486   100 %     (65 )   (1 )% 
          

  
          

  
      

  
  

Operating expenses              

Costs of services and products      2,198   34 %     2,227   34 %     (29 )   (1 )% 
Selling, general and administrative      1,358   21 %     1,325   20 %     33     2 % 
Restructuring and asset impairment      40   1 %     25   1 %     15     60 % 
Depreciation      1,089   17 %     1,089   17 %     —    0 % 

          
  

          
  

      
  

  

Total operating expenses      4,685   73 %     4,666   72 %             19     NM   
          

  
          

  
      

  
  

Operating income    $ 1,736   27 %   $ 1,820   28 %   $ (84 )   (5 )% 
          

  

          

  

      

  

  

Capital expenditures    $ 1,018     $ 1,201     $ (183 )   (15 )% 
                      

  

  



Costs of Services and Products  

Costs of services and products include costs to operate and maintain the local network and costs of equipment sales. These costs increased 10% 
in 2005 and decreased 1% in 2004. The 2005 increase was primarily driven by the increase in North Supply product sales, higher costs 
associated with our increase in DSL, somewhat offset by a decline in hurricane-related expenses. In 2004, general expense controls and lower 
costs associated with telecom equipment sales were partially offset by an increase in North Supply product costs, higher pension costs and 
approximately $30 million of hurricane-related expenses. Costs of services and products were 37% of net operating revenues in 2005 and 34% in 
both 2004 and 2003.  

Selling, General and Administrative Expense  

Selling, general and administrative expense decreased 12% in 2005 and increased 2% in 2004. The 2005 decrease was primarily driven by 
reduced business selling and information technology costs. The 2004 increase was primarily driven by higher pension costs and stock-based 
compensation, somewhat offset by general cost controls.  

Selling, general and administrative expense includes charges for estimated bad debt expense. The reserve for bad debt requires management’s 
judgment and is based on historical trending, industry norms and recognition of current market indicators about general economic conditions. 
Bad debt expense as a percentage of net revenues was 1% in 2005, 2004, and 2003. The reserve for bad debt expense as a percentage of 
outstanding accounts receivable was 8% in 2005 and 9% in both 2004 and 2003.  

Selling, general and administrative expense was 18% of net operating revenues in 2005, and 21% in 2004 and 20% in 2003.  

Restructuring and Asset Impairment  

In 2005, we recorded restructuring and asset impairment charges of $82 million, of which $77 million related to the write-off of certain internal-
use software systems that are no longer being utilized.  

In 2004, we recorded a $40 million restructuring charge related to severance costs associated with our organizational realignment.  

In 2003, we recorded restructuring charges of $25 million related to severance costs associated with our organizational realignment, offset by the 
finalization of all 2001 and 2002 restructuring liabilities.  

Additional information regarding our restructuring and asset impairments can be found in note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K.  

Depreciation Expense  

Depreciation expense was flat in 2005 as well as in 2004. Depreciation expense was 17% of net operating revenues in 2005, 2004, and 2003.  
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Nonoperating Items  
   

NM:  Not Meaningful  
   

NM:  Not Meaningful  

Interest Expense  

The effective interest rates in the following table reflect interest expense on long-term debt only. Interest costs on short-term borrowings, 
deferred compensation plans and amortization of debt costs have been excluded so as not to distort the effective interest rates on long-term debt. 
See “—Liquidity and Capital Resources” for more information on our financing activities.  
   

The effective interest rate includes the effect of interest rate swap agreements. Additional information regarding our interest rate swaps can be 
found in note 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K. Although 
interest expense increased $69 million in 2005 compared to 2004 due to the additional indebtedness assumed in connection with the Nextel 
merger and the PCS Affiliate acquisitions, the effective interest rate on long-term debt decreased in 2005 from 6.9% to 6.8%. This decrease is 
primarily due to lower effective interest rates on the assumed Nextel long-term debt. As of December 31, 2005, the average floating rate of 
interest on the swapped debt was 7.0%, while the weighted average coupon on the underlying debt was 7.2%. Our effective interest rate on long-
term debt decreased in 2004 as compared to 2003, primarily due to fair value interest rate swaps on $1 billion of long-term debt that were 
entered into during 2003.  
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     Year Ended December 31,     Change from Previous Year   
         2005               2004               Dollars             Percent       
     (dollars in millions)   

Interest expense     $ (1,351 )   $ (1,282 )   $ (69 )   (5 )% 
Interest income       238       61       177     NM   
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated subsidiaries       110       (39 )     149     NM   
Loss on retirement of debt       —      (60 )     60     100 % 
Other, net       83       20       63     NM   
Income tax (provision) benefit       (1,105 )     591       (1,696 )   NM   
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles, net       (16 )             —      (16 )   (100 )% 
Income (loss) available to common shareholders     $     1,778     $ (1,028 )   $     2,806     NM   

     Year Ended December 31,     Change from Previous Year   
         2004               2003               Dollars             Percent       
     (dollars in millions)   

Interest expense     $ (1,282 )   $ (1,437 )   $ 155     11 % 
Interest income       61       51       10     20 % 
Equity in losses of unconsolidated subsidiaries       (39 )     (77 )     38     49 % 
Loss on retirement of debt       (60 )     (21 )     (39 )   NM   
Other, net       20       (27 )     47     NM   
Income tax benefit               591       212               379     NM   
Discontinued operations, net       —      1,324       (1,324 )   (100 )% 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles, net       —      258       (258 )   (100 )% 
(Loss) income available to common shareholders     $ (1,028 )   $     1,283     $ (2,311 )   NM   

     Year Ended December 31,   
         2005             2004             2003       

Effective interest rate on long-term debt     6.8 %   6.9 %   7.0 % 



Interest Income  

Interest income for 2005, 2004 and 2003 includes dividends received from our investments in equity securities and interest earned on marketable 
debt securities. The $177 million increase in interest income from 2004 to 2005 is primarily due to the increase in the average cash and cash 
equivalents balances due to the Sprint-Nextel merger. Interest income also benefited from a 200 - basis point increase in Federal funds rates 
during 2005.  

Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries  

Under the equity method of accounting, we record our proportional share of the losses of the company in which we have invested, up to the 
amount of our investment. We recorded $110 million of net equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries in 2005, primarily the result of 
recording $137 million of equity in earnings associated with our ownership interest in Nextel Partners, the majority of which related to a release 
by Nextel Partners of a significant portion of its deferred tax valuation allowance in the third quarter 2005.  

We recorded $39 million and $77 million of equity in losses of unconsolidated subsidiaries during 2004 and 2003, respectively, primarily driven 
by our investments in Virgin Mobile. Our equity in losses of unconsolidated subsidiaries decreased from 2003 to 2004 because, during 2004, our 
recorded losses from Virgin Mobile reached the amount of our investment and we suspended the recognition of our equity in Virgin Mobile’s 
losses at that time. Additional information regarding our equity method investments can be found in note 5 of the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K.  

Loss on Retirement of Debt  

We recorded charges of $60 million and $21 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively, to expense the carrying value of debt premiums due to the 
early retirement of debt. We did not incur any charges due to the early retirement of debt during 2005. Additional information regarding our 
long-term debt can be found in note 9 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 
10-K.  

Other, net  

We recognized $71 million of gains on the sale of investments during 2005. During the year, we realized a gain of $15 million from our sale of 
5 million shares of our investment in NII Holdings Inc. We also used 10.5 million shares of our investment in Earthlink, Inc. to settle certain 
variable prepaid forward contracts for a gain of $9 million. Additionally, during 2005, Rogers Communications, Inc. acquired Call-Net 
Enterprises, Inc., in which we held an equity method investment. This acquisition resulted in a gain of $18 million. In December 2005, we sold 
our remaining investment in Barak I.T.C. (1995) – The International Telecommunications Services Corp. Ltd. for a nominal amount, and 
reversed previously-recognized losses of $28 million.  

We recognized $15 million of gains on the sale of investments during 2004. These gains were primarily attributable to transactions involving our 
investment in Earthlink. We used 5.6 million shares to settle certain variable prepaid forward contracts and sold an additional 1 million shares of 
this investment for gains totaling $11 million.  

During 2003, we sold 10.8 million shares of our investment in Earthlink for a loss of $3 million.  

Our derivative transactions are used principally for hedging purposes. However, we entered into several derivative instruments during 2005 that 
did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. As a result, all changes in the fair values of these instruments were reflected in our results of 
operations in the period in which the change occurred. During 2005, we recognized approximately $27 million of losses due to the change in fair 
values of these instruments. Additional information regarding our derivative instruments and hedging activities can be found in note 12 of Notes 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K.  
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Other increases in nonoperating income during 2005 included favorable foreign exchange rates used in foreign currency transactions and 
favorable terms in certain customer contracts. During 2004, we realized losses due to unfavorable foreign exchange transactions and charges of 
$15 million in advisory fees related to the recombination of our tracking stocks. During 2003, we recorded a $50 million charge, net of insurance 
settlements, to settle shareholder litigation. We also incurred losses related to foreign exchange transactions.  

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit  

Our consolidated effective tax rates were 38.0% in 2005, 36.9% in 2004, and 42.1% in 2003. Information regarding the differences that caused 
the effective income tax rates to vary from the statutory federal rate for income taxes related to continuing operations can be found in note 13 of 
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K.  

Discontinued Operations, net  

In 2003, we completed the sale of our directory publishing business to R.H. Donnelley for $2.2 billion in cash. The pretax gain was $2.1 billion.  

Financial Condition  

Our consolidated assets of $102.6 billion as of December 31, 2005 reflect an increase of $61.3 billion from 2004. This increase was primarily 
due to business combination activity, $56.4 billion of which reflects the fair value of Nextel’s assets, net of cash paid, and $555 million of which 
reflects the fair value of US Unwired’s assets, net of cash paid, both of which were acquired in the third quarter 2005, $93 million of which 
reflects the fair value of Gulf Coast Wireless’ assets, net of cash paid, and $239 million of which reflects the fair value of IWO Holding’s assets, 
net of cash paid, both of which were acquired in fourth quarter 2005. Additional information regarding the impact of business combinations on 
consolidated assets can be found in note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on 
Form 10-K. The remainder of the increase in consolidated assets is primarily driven by cash and equivalents. Excluding net cash paid of $188 
million in the Sprint-Nextel merger and the acquisitions of US Unwired, Gulf Coast Wireless and IWO Holdings, cash and equivalents increased 
$4.9 billion. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for additional information on the increase in cash.  

In August 2005, all three major credit rating agencies upgraded our debt ratings. Standard and Poor’s Corporate Ratings upgraded our long-term 
senior unsecured debt to A- from BBB- and changed our credit rating outlook to stable from positive. Moody’s Investor Service upgraded our 
long-term senior unsecured debt rating to Baa2 from Baa3 and changed the credit rating outlook to stable from positive. Fitch Ratings upgraded 
our senior unsecured debt rating to BBB+ from BBB and changed our credit rating outlook to stable from positive.  

Liquidity and Capital Resources  
   

During December 2005, we entered into a new unsecured bank credit facility, consisting of a five year $6.0 billion revolving credit facility and a 
364-day $3.2 billion term loan, for a total financing capacity of $9.2 billion.  
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Year Ended  

December 31,     

Change From 
 

Previous Year   
         2005            2004            
     (dollars in billions)   

Cash and equivalents     $ 8.9    $ 4.2    $ 4.7   
Marketable securities       1.8      0.4      1.4   

                     
  

     10.7      4.6      6.1   
Undrawn bank credit facility       4.5      1.0      3.5   
Undrawn and available accounts receivable asset securitization facilities       —     0.7      (0.7 ) 

                     
  

Total liquidity     $     15.2    $     6.3    $     8.9   
                     

  



This facility replaced the existing Nextel credit agreement, which included a $4.0 billion revolving credit facility, $1.0 billion of which was 
drawn, and a $2.2 billion term loan, all of which was outstanding. The new $3.2 billion term loan was used to refinance the outstanding 
revolving credit and term loans under the existing Nextel credit agreement. The $2.5 billion letter of credit required by the FCC Report and 
Order that was outstanding under the Nextel credit agreement remains outstanding under the new $6.0 billion revolving credit facility and 
reduces the available revolving loan commitments by an equivalent amount, leaving $3.5 billion of borrowing capacity available under the new 
credit facility at December 31, 2005. The full revolving loan commitment under our existing $1.0 billion bank credit facility was also available 
as of December 31, 2005.  

The credit agreements described above provide for interest rates equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, or Prime Rate plus a 
spread that varies depending on the applicable borrower’s or guarantor’s credit ratings. None of these facilities includes rating triggers that 
would allow the lenders involved to terminate the facilities in the event of a credit rating downgrade.  

We had letters of credit of $125 million as of December 31, 2005, in addition to the $2.5 billion letter of credit related to the Report and Order.  

As of December 31, 2005, we were in compliance with all debt covenants, including all financial ratio tests, associated with our borrowings.  

Our ability to fund our capital needs is ultimately impacted by the overall capacity and terms of the bank and securities markets. Given the 
volatility in these markets, we continue to monitor them closely and to take steps to maintain financial flexibility and a reasonable capital 
structure cost.  

As of December 31, 2005, we had working capital of $5.0 billion compared to $3.1 billion as of December 31, 2004. In addition to cash, cash 
equivalents and current marketable securities, a significant portion of our working capital consists of accounts receivable, handset inventory, 
prepaid expenses, deferred tax assets and other current assets, net of accounts payable, accrued expenses and the current portion of long-term 
debt and capital lease obligations. The increase in working capital is primarily due to the approximately $2.6 billion of working capital acquired 
as a result of the Nextel merger.  

Cash Flows  
   

Operating Activities  

Net cash provided by operating activities of $10.7 billion increased $4.1 billion in 2005 from 2004. Cash received from customers increased by 
approximately $7.4 billion, which was partially offset by a $4.6 billion increase in cash paid to suppliers and employees. These increases were 
primarily the result of the operations of Nextel being included with our operations beginning on August 12, 2005, as well as continued growth in 
the Wireless customer base, partially offset by merger-related costs. Additionally, cash flows provided by operating activities for 2005 include 
the receipt of $1.2 billion in prepaid tower rentals from Global Signal in exchange for granting Global Signal the exclusive rights to lease or 
operate more than 6,600 communications towers owned by us.  

Investing Activities  

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $4.7 billion in 2005 compared to $4.1 billion in 2004. Capital expenditures, which accounted for 
$5.1 billion of our investing activities in 2005, increased from $4.0 billion in  
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Year Ended  

December 31,      
Change from  
Previous Year    

     2005     2004     Dollars     Percent   
     (dollars in millions)   

Cash provided by operating activities     $     10,678     $     6,625     $     4,053     61 % 
Cash used in investing activities       (4,724 )     (4,056 )     (668 )   16 % 
Cash used in financing activities       (1,228 )     (680 )     (548 )   81 % 



2004 due primarily to higher spending related to our Wireless segment, partially offset by spending reductions related to our Local segment. We 
invested in our Wireless segment primarily to maintain and enhance network reliability and upgrade capabilities for providing new products and 
services, including the deployment of EV-DO technology, as well as to maintain the iDEN network reliability as we fulfill our obligations under 
the Report and Order. We invested in our Local segment primarily to accommodate voice grade equivalent growth, convert the network from 
circuit to packet switching and continue the build-out of high-speed DSL services, and to meet regulatory requirements. We invested in our Long 
Distance segment to maintain network reliability, upgrade capabilities for providing new products and services and meet capacity demands.  

Investing activities also reflect $1.2 billion of net cash acquired in the merger with Nextel, offset by $968 million of net cash paid to acquire US 
Unwired, $211 million of net cash paid to acquire Gulf Coast Wireless and $192 million of net cash paid to acquire IWO Holdings. Additionally, 
investing activities include proceeds from the sale of assets, including the receipt of $376 million from the sale of shares of NII Holdings 
common stock in the third quarter 2005, and the receipt of $200 million from the sale of the Long Distance conferencing business in the second 
quarter 2005. The $200 million received from Virgin Mobile in the third quarter 2005 is reflected in the distribution from affiliates activity.  

Financing Activities  

Net cash used in financing activities totaled $1.2 billion in 2005 compared to $680 million in 2004. Debt-related financing activities consisted of 
the retirement of almost $1.2 billion of senior notes and capital lease obligations and the retirement of a $2.2 billion term loan and a $1.0 billion 
revolving credit loan with a new $3.2 billion term loan. Financing activities for 2005 also include $432 million in proceeds from common stock 
issuances, primarily resulting from exercises of employee stock options. Proceeds from common stock issuances of $1.9 billion in 2004 were 
mainly from the settlement of equity unit forward contracts.  

We paid cash dividends of $525 million in 2005 compared with $670 million in 2004. The decrease in cash dividends paid is due to a decrease in 
the dividend rate in the third quarter 2005 to 2.5 cents per share from 12.5 cents per share in prior quarters. This was partially offset by an 
increase in the number of shares of common stock outstanding in 2005, primarily as a result of the Nextel merger, compared to 2004.  

Capital Requirements, Contractual Obligations and Funding Sources  

Capital Requirements  

We currently anticipate that future funding needs in the near term will principally relate to:  
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  •   operating expenses relating to our networks; 

  
•   capital expenditures, particularly with respect to the expansion of the coverage and capacity of our wireless networks and the 

deployment of new technologies in those networks; 

  •   interest and scheduled principal payments related to our debt and any purchases or redemptions of our debt or other securities; 

  •   dividend payments as declared by our board of directors, which we plan to continue following the spin-off of Embarq; 

  
•   amounts required to fund pending acquisition transactions, including the purchase of all outstanding shares of common stock of Nextel 

Partners that we do not own for about $6.5 billion; 

  
•   amounts required to be expended in connection with the FCC’s Report and Order, and other potential investments in new business 

opportunities and spectrum purchases; 



   

Future Contractual Obligations  

The following table sets forth our best estimates as to the amounts and timing of contractual payments for our most significant contractual 
obligations as of December 31, 2005. The information in the table reflects future unconditional payments and is based upon, among other things, 
the terms of the relevant agreements, appropriate classification of items under GAAP currently in effect and certain assumptions, such as future 
interest rates. Future events, including additional purchases of our securities and refinancing of those securities, could cause actual payments to 
differ significantly from these amounts. See “— Forward-Looking Statements.”  
   

The table above does not include the costs to be paid in connection with the Report and Order over the next approximately two and one half 
years. The total minimum cash obligation is approximately $2.8 billion. Costs incurred under the Report and Order associated with the 
reconfiguration of the 800 MHz band may be applied against the $2.8 billion obligation, subject to approval by the Transition Administrator 
under the Report and Order. In addition, costs associated with the reconfiguration of the 1.9 GHz spectrum are not fully approved for credit until 
the completion of the entire reconfiguration process. Because the final reconciliation and audit of the entire reconfiguration obligation outlined in 
the Report and Order will not take place until after the completion of all aspects of the reconfiguration process, there can be no assurance that we 
will be given full credit for the expenditures that we have incurred under the Report and Order. Additionally, since we, the Transition 
Administrator and the FCC have not yet reached an agreement on our methodology for calculating certain amounts of property, plant and 
equipment to be submitted for credit, we cannot provide assurance that we will be granted full credit for certain of these network costs. As of 
December 31, 2005, we had incurred, on a cash basis, approximately $338 million of costs under the Report and Order.  
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  •   potential costs of compliance with regulatory mandates, including E911; and 

  •   other general corporate expenditures. 

Future Contractual Obligations    Total   2006   2007   2008   2009   2010   
2011 and  

Thereafter  
    (in millions) 

Long-term debt (1) (2)    $     42,393   $ 6,595   $ 3,053   $ 2,719   $ 1,867   $ 1,969   $ 26,190 
Redeemable preferred stock (3)      266     7     7     252     —    —    —
Capital leases      207     112     12     18     6     6     53 
Operating leases      16,379     1,475     1,423     1,325     1,237     1,105     9,814 
Acquisitions (4)(5)      10,178     10,178     —    —    —    —    —
Purchase obligations and other      8,090     2,428     1,886     1,413     1,181     604     578 

                                          

Total    $ 77,513   $     20,795   $     6,381   $     5,727   $     4,291   $     3,684   $     36,635 
                                          

(1) Includes principal maturities and estimated interest payments for the bank credit facility based on management’s expectation as to future 
interest rates, assume the current payment schedule and exclude any additional drawdown under the revolving loan commitment. 

(2) Includes the effect of our fourth quarter 2005 decision to defease and redeem the entire outstanding aggregate principal amount of our 
9.5% senior notes. 

(3) Amounts do not reflect the impact of our February 28, 2006 notice to redeem our Seventh series preferred stock, which we expect to take 
place on March 31, 2006. 

(4) Includes amounts that we are required to pay to purchase the remaining equity interest in Nextel Partners that we do not currently own, 
including amounts payable upon conversion of debt securities and upon settlement of options; as of December 31, 2005, we held 
approximately 30% of the common stock equity interest in Nextel Partners. Amounts do not include any debt to be assumed as part of this 
transaction. 

(5) Includes obligations related to our 2006 acquisitions of Alamosa, Enterprise Communications and Velocita that we announced in the fourth 
quarter 2005. Amounts associated with our Alamosa acquisition do not include any debt assumed as part of the transaction. 



The above table excludes amounts that may be paid or will be paid in connection with spectrum acquisitions. We have committed, subject to 
certain conditions, which may not be met, to pay up to about $393 million for pending spectrum acquisitions.  

In addition, we had about $5 billion of open purchase orders for goods or services as of December 31, 2005 that are enforceable and legally 
binding and that specify all significant terms, but were not recorded as liabilities as of December 31, 2005 or included in the table above. We 
expect substantially all of these commitments to become due in the next twelve months. Included in the “Purchase obligations and other” caption 
are minimum amounts due under some of our service contracts, including agreements for telecommunications and customer billing services, 
advertising services and contracts related to information technology and customer care outsourcing arrangements. Amounts actually paid under 
some of these “other” agreements will likely be higher due to variable components of these agreements. The more significant variable 
components that determine the ultimate obligation owed include items such as hours contracted, subscribers, and other factors. In addition, we 
are party to various arrangements that are conditional in nature and create an obligation to make payments only upon the occurrence of certain 
events, such as the delivery of functioning software or products. Because it is not possible to predict the timing or amounts that may be due 
under these conditional arrangements, no such amounts have been included in the table above.  

Expected pension contributions are disclosed in note 18 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing at the end of this annual 
report on Form 10-K and have not been included in unconditional purchase obligations.  

Funding Sources  

As of December 31, 2005, our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities totaled $10.7 billion.  

We have two credit agreements, each with a syndicate of banks. The first, a $9.2 billion unsecured credit agreement entered into in December 
2005, is comprised of a 5-year $6.0 billion revolving credit facility and a 364-day $3.2 billion term loan. The full $3.2 billion term loan was 
borrowed at closing and used to refinance an existing Nextel credit facility. As of December 31, 2005, about $2.5 billion of letters of credit are 
outstanding under the new $6.0 billion revolving credit facility. As a result, approximately $3.5 billion is available under the new facility. The 
second credit agreement is a $1.0 billion unsecured facility, structured as a 364-day revolving credit facility expiring in June 2006, with a 
subsequent one-year, $1.0 billion term-out option, none of which has been drawn.  

The credit agreements described above provide for interest rates equal to the LIBOR or the prime rate plus a spread that varies depending on the 
applicable borrower’s or guarantor’s credit ratings. None of these facilities includes rating triggers that would allow the lenders involved to 
terminate the facilities in the event of a credit rating downgrade.  

We had letters of credit of $125 million as of December 31, 2005, in addition to the $2.5 billion letter of credit related to the Report and Order.  

As of December 31, 2005, we were in compliance with all debt covenants, including all financial ratio tests, associated with our borrowings.  

Our ability to fund our capital needs is ultimately impacted by the overall capacity and terms of the bank and securities markets. Given the 
volatility in these markets, we continue to monitor them closely and take steps to maintain financial flexibility and a reasonable capital structure 
cost.  

Off-Balance Sheet Financing  

We do not participate in, or secure, financings for any unconsolidated, special purpose entities. We do have bankruptcy-remote entities that are 
included in our accompanying consolidated financial statements.  
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Future Outlook  

We expect to be able to meet our currently identified funding needs for at least the next 12 months by using  
   

   

   

In making this assessment, we have considered:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

If there are material changes in our business plans, or currently prevailing or anticipated economic conditions in any of our markets or 
competitive practices in the mobile wireless telecommunications industry, or if other presently unexpected circumstances arise that have a 
material effect on our cash flow or profitability, anticipated cash needs could change significantly.  

The conclusion that we expect to meet our funding needs for at least the next 12 months as described above does not take into account:  
   

   

   

Any of these events or circumstances could involve significant additional funding needs in excess of anticipated cash flows from operating 
activities and the identified currently available funding sources, including existing cash on hand, borrowings available under existing credit 
facilities and funding anticipated to be received in connection with the spin-off of the local telecommunications business. If existing capital 
resources are not sufficient to meet these funding needs, it would be necessary to raise additional capital to meet those needs. Our ability to raise 
additional capital, if necessary, is subject to a variety of additional factors that cannot currently be predicted with certainty, including:  
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  •   our anticipated cash flows from operating activities as well as our cash, cash equivalents, and marketable debt securities on hand; 

  •   cash expected to be received by us in connection with the spin-off of Embarq; and/or 

  •   cash available under our existing credit facilities. 

  •   anticipated levels of capital expenditures; 

  
•   obligations related to pending acquisition transactions, including the outstanding shares of common stock of Nextel Partners that we do 

not own for about $6.5 billion; 

  •   anticipated payments under the FCC’s Report and Order; 

  •   declared and anticipated dividend payments and scheduled debt service requirements; 

  •   costs associated with the Sprint-Nextel merger and spin-off of Embarq; and 

  •   other future contractual obligations. 

  
•   any significant acquisition transactions or the pursuit of any significant new business opportunities or spectrum other than those 

currently being pursued by us; 

  •   potential material purchases or redemptions of our outstanding debt and equity securities for cash; and 

  •   potential material increases in the cost of compliance with regulatory mandates, including regulations related to E911 service. 

  •   the commercial success of our operations; 

  •   the volatility and demand of the capital markets; 



   

We have in the past and may in the future have discussions with third parties regarding potential sources of new capital to satisfy actual or 
anticipated financing needs. At present, other than the existing arrangements that have been consummated or are described in this report, we 
have no legally binding commitments or understandings with any third parties to obtain any material amount of additional capital.  

The entirety of the above discussion is subject to the risks and other cautionary and qualifying factors set forth under “—Forward-Looking 
Statements” and Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors.”  

Financial Strategies  

General Risk Management Policies  

We use derivative instruments only for hedging and risk management purposes. Hedging activity may be done for purposes of mitigating the 
risks associated with an asset, liability, committed transaction or probable forecasted transaction. We seek to minimize counterparty credit risk 
through stringent credit approval and review processes, the selection of only the most creditworthy counterparties, continual review and 
monitoring of all counterparties, and thorough legal review of contracts. We also control exposure to market risk by regularly monitoring 
changes in hedge positions under normal and stress conditions to ensure they do not exceed established limits.  

Our board of directors has authorized us to enter into derivative transactions, and all transactions comply with our risk management policies. We 
do not purchase or hold any derivative financial instrument for speculative purposes.  

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk  

We are primarily exposed to the market risk associated with unfavorable movements in interest rates, foreign currencies, and equity prices. The 
risk inherent in our market risk sensitive instruments and positions is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in those factors.  

Interest Rate Risk  

The communications industry is a capital intensive, technology driven business. We are subject to interest rate risk primarily associated with our 
borrowings. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates could adversely affect earnings and cash flows. Specific interest rate risk 
include: the risk of increasing interest rates on short-term debt; the risk of increasing interest rates for planned new fixed rate long-term 
financings; and the risk of increasing interest rates for planned refinancing using long-term fixed rate debt.  

Cash Flow Hedges  

We enter into interest rate swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges to reduce the impact of interest rate movements on future interest 
expense by effectively converting a portion of our floating-rate debt to a fixed-rate. As of December 31, 2005, we had no outstanding interest 
rate cash flow hedges.  

Fair Value Hedges  

We enter into interest rate swap agreements to manage exposure to interest rate movements and achieve an optimal mixture of floating and 
fixed-rate debt while minimizing liquidity risk. The interest rate swap agreements  
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  •   the market prices of our securities; and 

  •   tax law restrictions related to the spin-off of Embarq that may limit our ability to raise capital from the sale of our equity securities. 



designated as fair value hedges effectively convert our fixed-rate debt to a floating-rate by receiving fixed rate amounts in exchange for floating 
rate interest payments over the life of the agreement without an exchange of the underlying principal amount. As of December 31, 2005, we had 
outstanding interest rate swap agreements that were designated as fair value hedges.  

Approximately 80% of our debt as of December 31, 2005 was fixed-rate debt excluding interest rate swaps. While changes in interest rates 
impact the fair value of this debt, there is no impact to earnings and cash flows because we intend to hold these obligations to maturity unless 
market and other conditions are favorable.  

As of December 31, 2005, we held fair value interest rate swaps with a notional value of $1 billion. These swaps were entered into as hedges of 
the fair value of a portion of our senior notes. These interest rate swaps have maturities ranging from 2008 to 2012. On a semiannual basis, we 
pay a floating rate of interest equal to the six-month LIBOR plus a fixed spread and receive an average interest rate equal to the coupon rates 
stated on the underlying senior notes. On December 31, 2005, the rate we would pay averaged 7.0% and the rate we would receive was 7.2%. 
Assuming a one percentage point increase in the prevailing forward yield curve, the fair value of the interest rate swaps and the underlying 
senior notes would change by $36 million. These interest rate swaps met all the requirements for perfect effectiveness under derivative 
accounting rules as all of the critical terms of the swaps perfectly matched the corresponding terms of the hedged debt; therefore, there is no 
impact to earnings and cash flows for any fair value fluctuations.  

We perform interest rate sensitivity analyses on our variable rate debt including interest rate swaps. These analyses indicate that a one percentage 
point change in interest rates would have an annual pre-tax impact of $45 million on our statements of operations and cash flows as of 
December 31, 2005. While our variable-rate debt may impact earnings and cash flows as interest rates change, it is not subject to changes in fair 
values.  

We also perform a sensitivity analysis on the fair market value of our outstanding debt. A 10% decline in market interest rates would cause a 
$987 million increase in fair market value of our debt to $29 billion. This analysis includes the hedged debt.  

We have entered into a series of interest rate collars associated with the anticipated issuance of debt by Embarq at the time of its expected spin-
off in 2006. These collars have been designated as cash flow hedges in Embarq’s financial statements against the variability in interest payments 
that would result from a change in interest rates before the debt is issued at the time of spin-off. However, because the forecasted interest 
payments of debt will occur after the subsidiary is spun-off, the derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment in our 
consolidated financial statements, and so any changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognized in earnings during the period of 
change. Based on market prices on December 31, 2005, a one percentage point change in interest rates would result in a decrease in the fair 
value of these instruments by approximately $179 million.  

Foreign Currency Risk  

We also enter into forward contracts and options in foreign currencies to reduce the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates. Our foreign 
exchange risk management program focuses on reducing transaction exposure to optimize consolidated cash flow. We use foreign currency 
derivatives to hedge our foreign currency exposure related to settlement of international telecommunications access charges and the operation of 
our international subsidiaries. The dollar equivalent of our net foreign currency payables from international settlements was $20 million and net 
foreign currency receivables from international operations was $24 million as of December 31, 2005. The potential immediate pre-tax loss to us 
that would result from a hypothetical 10% change in foreign currency exchange rates based on these positions would be less than $1 million.  

Equity Risk  

We are exposed to market risk as it relates to changes in the market value of our investments. We invest in equity instruments of public and 
private companies for operational and strategic business purposes. These securities are  
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subject to significant fluctuations in fair market value due to volatility of the stock market and industries in which the companies operate. These 
securities, which are classified in investments and marketable securities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, include equity 
method investments, investments in private securities, available-for-sale securities and equity derivative instruments.  

We entered into a series of option contracts associated with our investment in NII Holdings in order to hedge the price risk associated with this 
security. The first of these contracts did not qualify for hedge accounting and the changes in fair value of the derivative instrument are 
recognized in earnings during the period of change. Based on these contracts and market prices on December 31, 2005, a 10% increase or 
decrease in NII Holdings’ market price would result in a decrease or increase of approximately $7 million. Changes in the market price will also 
affect the fair value of our holdings in NII Holdings; however, we will not recognize such gains or losses unless the investment is sold. See note 
12 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements appearing at the end of this annual report on Form 10-K for further detail of these 
derivative instruments.  

In certain business transactions, we are granted warrants to purchase the securities of other companies at fixed rates. These warrants are 
supplemental to the terms of the business transaction and are not designated as hedging instruments.  

During 2002 and 2003, we entered into variable prepaid forward contracts to monetize equity securities held as available for sale. The 
derivatives have been designated as cash flow hedges to reduce the variability in expected cash flows related to the forecasted sale of the 
underlying equity securities. These prepaid contracts were settled between the fourth quarter 2004 and fourth quarter 2005.  

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data  

The consolidated financial statements required by this item begin on page F-1 of this annual report on Form 10-K and are incorporated herein by 
reference. The financial statement schedule required under Regulation S-X is filed pursuant to Item 15 of this annual report on Form 10-K and is 
incorporated herein by reference.  

Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure  

Not applicable.  

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures  

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

Disclosure controls are procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required to be disclosed in our reports under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, such as this Form 10-K, is reported in accordance with the SEC’s rules. Disclosure controls are also 
designed with the objective of ensuring that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  

In connection with the preparation of this Form 10-K as of December 31, 2005, under the supervision and with the participation of our 
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design 
and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer each 
concluded that the design and operation of the disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2005 in providing 
reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is 
accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow 
timely decisions regarding required disclosure and in providing reasonable assurance that the information is recorded, processed, summarized 
and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.  
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No changes were made in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2005 that have materially affected, 
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.  

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Our internal control system 
was designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and board of directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes.  

Our management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005. This 
assessment was based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, or COSO, in 
Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment, management believes that, as of December 31, 2005, our internal control 
over financial reporting was effective.  

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued a report on management’s assessment of our internal control over financial 
reporting. This report appears on page F-4.  
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Part III  

Item 10.  Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant  

The information required by this item regarding our directors is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the captions 
“Election of Directors — Nominees for Director” and “— Board Committees and Director Meetings — The Audit Committee” in the proxy 
statement relating to our 2006 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC, and with respect to family relationships, to Part 
I of this report under “Executive Officers of the Registrant”. The information required by this item regarding our executive officers is 
incorporated by reference to Part I of this report under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.” The information required by this item 
regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by our directors, executive officers and holders of ten percent 
of a registered class of our equity securities is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial 
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the proxy statement relating to our 2006 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC. 

We have adopted the Sprint Nextel Code of Conduct, which applies to all of our directors, officers and employees. The Code of Conduct is 
publicly available on our website at http://www.sprint.com in the “Company Info — Corporate Governance” section of the “About Us” tab. If 
we make any amendment to our Code of Conduct, other than a technical, administrative or non-substantive amendment, or we grant any waiver, 
including any implicit waiver, from a provision of the Code of Conduct, that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, 
principal accounting officer or controller, we will disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver on our website at the same location. Also, we 
may elect to disclose the amendment or waiver in a report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC.  

Item 11.   Executive Compensation  

The information required by this item regarding compensation of executive officers and directors is incorporated by reference to the information 
set forth under the captions “Election of Directors—Compensation of Directors” and “Executive Compensation” in our proxy statement relating 
to our 2006 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC. No information is required by this item regarding compensation 
committee interlocks.  

Item 12.   Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters  

The information required by this item, other than the equity compensation plan information below, is incorporated by reference to the 
information set forth under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners” and “Security Ownership of Directors and 
Executive Officers” in our proxy statement relating to our 2006 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC.  

Equity Compensation Plan Information  

We have several equity compensation plans under which we may issue awards of shares of our common stock, Series 1, or grant securities 
exercisable for or convertible into shares of our common stock, Series 1, to employees and directors. These plans consist of the 1997 Long-Term 
Stock Incentive Program, or the 1997 Program, the Employees Stock Purchase Plan, or ESPP, and the Nextel Incentive Equity Plan, or Nextel 
Equity Plan. The 1997 Program and the ESPP were approved by our shareholders, and the Nextel Equity Plan had been approved by Nextel’s 
shareholders. Before April 18, 2005, options could also be granted pursuant to the terms of the Management Incentive Stock Option Plan, or 
MISOP, which was also approved by our shareholders. Options remain outstanding under the MISOP.  
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The following table provides information about the shares of common stock, Series 1, that may be issued upon exercise of awards as of 
December 31, 2005.  
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Plan Category     

Number of Securities 
to be Issued  

Upon Exercise of  
Outstanding Options, 
Warrants and Rights 

(1)      

Weighted-average  
Exercise Price of  

Outstanding Options, 
Warrants and Rights 

(1)      

Number of Securities  
Remaining Available for  
Future Issuance Under  

Equity Compensation Plans 
(Excluding Securities  

Reflected in Column (1)    

Equity compensation plans approved by 
shareholders Common stock, Series 1    125,652,494 (2)   $     27.30 (3)   86,605,084 (4)(5)(6)(7) 

Equity compensation plans not approved 
by shareholders Common stock, 
Series 1     84,435,111 (8)   $     21.20 (9)   48,487,836 (10) 

     
  

      
  

Total     210,087,605       135,092,920   
     

  

      

  

(1) In connection with the spin-off of our local telecommunications business, it is anticipated that options to purchase shares of common stock, 
Series 1, held by an employee who becomes an employee of Embarq will be replaced with new options to purchase shares of the common 
stock of Embarq, and that options to purchase shares of common stock, Series 1, held by other current or former employees will be 
adjusted (both the number of shares subject to the options and the exercise price) to maintain the aggregate intrinsic value of the options 
(i.e., the difference, at the time of the spin-off, between the value of the stock underlying the options and the aggregate exercise price of the 
options). 

(2) Includes 75,856,542 options and 9,084,933 restricted stock units outstanding under the 1997 Program and 39,984,772 options outstanding 
under the MISOP. Also includes 3,885 shares of common stock, Series 1, issuable under the 1997 Program as a result of the purchase of 
those shares by directors with fourth quarter 2005 fees and purchase rights to acquire 722,362 shares of common stock, Series 1, accrued 
at December 31, 2005 under the ESPP. Under the ESPP, each eligible employee may purchase common stock, Series 1, at quarterly 
intervals at a purchase price per share equal to 90% of the market value on the last business day of the offering period. 

(3) The weighted average exercise price does not take into account the shares of common stock, Series 1, issuable upon vesting of restricted 
stock units issued under the 1997 Program. These restricted stock units have no exercise price. The weighted average price also does not 
take into account the 3,885 shares of common stock, Series 1, issuable as a result of the purchase of those shares by directors with fourth 
quarter 2005 fees; the purchase price of these shares was $23.455 for each share. The weighted average purchase price also does not take 
into account the 722,362 shares of common stock, Series 1, issuable as a result of the purchase rights accrued under the ESPP; the 
purchase price of these shares was $21.11 for each share. 

(4) Of these shares, 61,049,969 shares of common stock, Series 1, were available under the 1997 Program. Although it is not our intention to 
do so, all of the shares, plus any shares that become available due to forfeiture of outstanding awards, could be issued in a form other than 
options, warrants, or rights. 

(5) Includes 25,555,115 shares of common stock, Series 1, available for issuance under the ESPP after issuance of the 722,362 shares 
purchased in the fourth quarter 2005 offering. See note 2 above. 

(6) Under the 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program, the number of shares increases on January 1 of each year by 1.5% of the common 
stock, Series 1 and 2, outstanding on that date. No awards may be granted after April 15, 2007. 

(7) No new options may be granted under the MISOP and therefore this figure does not include any shares of our common stock, Series 1, that 
may be issued under the MISOP. Most options outstanding under the MISOP, however, grant the holder the right to receive additional 
options to purchase our common stock,  



   

   

   

Item 13.   Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.  

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Certain Relationships and 
Related Transactions” in our proxy statement relating to our 2006 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed with the SEC.  

Item 14.   Principal Accountant Fees and Services.  

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Ratification of Independent 
Registered Public Accounting Firm for 2006” in the proxy statement relating to our 2006 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be filed 
with the SEC.  
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Series 1, if the holder, when exercising a MISOP option, makes payment of the purchase price using shares of previously owned stock. The 
additional option gives the holder the right to purchase the number of shares of our common stock, Series 1, utilized in payment of the 
purchase price and tax withholding. The exercise price for this option is equal to the market price of the stock on the date the option is 
granted, and this option becomes exercisable one year from the date the original option is exercised. This option does not include a right 
to receive additional options.  

(8) Consists of 83,403,778 options and 1,031,333 deferred shares outstanding under the Nextel Equity Plan. 

(9) The weighted average exercise price does not take into account the shares of common stock, Series 1, issuable upon vesting of deferred 
shares issued under the Nextel Equity Plan. These restricted stock units have no exercise price. 

(10) Under NYSE rules, awards of these shares may not be granted to employees who were employed by Sprint before the Sprint-Nextel merger. 
Although it is not our intention to do so, all of the shares, plus any shares that become available due to forfeiture of outstanding awards, 
could be issued in a form other than options, warrants, or rights. No awards may be granted pursuant to the Nextel Equity Plan after 
July 13, 2015. 



Part IV  

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules  
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(a) 
  

1. 
  

The consolidated financial statements of Sprint Nextel filed as part of this report are listed in the Index to Financial Statements, Financial 
Statement Schedule and Exhibits. 

  

2. 

  

The consolidated financial statement schedule of Sprint Nextel filed as part of this report is listed in the Index to Financial Statements, 
Financial Statement Schedule and Exhibits. All other financial statement schedules are not required under the related instructions, or are 
inapplicable and therefore have been omitted. 

  3.   The following exhibits are filed as part of this report: 

    (2)  Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization, Arrangement, Liquidation or Succession 

    

2.1.1          Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 15, 2004, by and among Sprint Corporation, Nextel 
Communications, Inc. and S-N Merger Corp. (filed as Exhibit 2 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
December 17, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

2.1.2          First Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 20, 2005, by and among Sprint Corporation, Nextel 
Communications, Inc. and S-N Merger Corp. (filed as Exhibit 2.2 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
May 20, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    (3)  Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws: 

    

3.1             Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
August 18, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

3.2             Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 18, 2005 
and incorporated herein by reference).  

    (4)  Instruments defining the Rights of Sprint Nextel Security Holders: 

    

4.1             The rights of Sprint Nextel’s equity security holders are defined in the Fifth, Sixth, Seventh and Eighth Articles of Sprint 
Nextel’ s Articles of Incorporation. See Exhibit 3.1.  

    

4.2             Provision regarding Kansas Control Share Acquisition Act is in Article II, Section 5 of the Bylaws. Provisions regarding 
Stockholders’  Meetings are set forth in Article III of the Bylaws. See Exhibit 3.2.  

    

4.3.1          Second Amended and Restated Rights Agreement between Sprint Corporation and UMB Bank, n.a., as Rights Agent, dated 
as of March 16, 2004 and effective as of April 23, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 5 to Sprint Nextel’s 
Registration Statement on Form 8-A relating to Sprint Nextel’s Rights, filed April 12, 2004, and incorporated herein by 
reference).  

    

4.3.2          Amendment dated June 17, 2005 to Second Amended and Restated Rights Agreement between Sprint Corporation and 
UMB Bank, n.a., as Rights Agent, effective August 12, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 4(d) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).  
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4.4             Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1998, among Sprint Capital Corporation, Sprint Corporation and Bank One, N.A., as 
Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4(b) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 
1998, and incorporated herein by reference), as supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 
15, 1999, among Sprint Capital Corporation, Sprint Corporation and Bank One, N.A., as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4(b) to 
Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 3, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference), and as 
supplemented by the Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 15, 2001, among Sprint Capital Corporation, 
Sprint Corporation and Bank One, N.A. as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 99 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A 
filed October 29, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    (10)  Material Agreements: 

    

10.1           Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 23, 1998, among Sprint Corporation, TCI Telephony Services, 
Inc., Cox Communications, Inc., and Comcast Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Amendment No. 1 to Sprint Nextel’s 
Registration Statement No. 333-64241 on Form S-3 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.2.1       Letter Agreement between Motorola, Inc. and Nextel dated November 4, 1991 (filed November 15, 1991 as Exhibit 10.47 
to Nextel’s Registration Statement No. 33-43415 on Form S-1 and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    

10.2.2       iDEN Infrastructure {*} Supply Agreement between Motorola and Nextel dated April 13, 1999 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to 
Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    

10.2.3       Term Sheet for Subscriber Units and Services Agreement dated December 31, 2003 between Nextel and Motorola (filed as 
Exhibit 10.1.2 to Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 and incorporated herein 
by reference).*  

    

10.2.4       Second Extension Amendment to the iDEN Infrastructure 5-Year Supply Agreement, dated December 14, 2004, between 
Motorola, Inc. and Nextel Communications, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.1.20 to Nextel’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the year ended December 31, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.2.5       Amendment Seven to the Term Sheet for Subscriber Units and Services Agreement, dated December 14, 2004, between 
Motorola, Inc. and Nextel Communications, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.1.21 to Nextel’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the year ended December 31, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).*  

    

10.3           Credit Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2005, among Sprint Nextel Corporation, Sprint Capital Corporation and, 
Nextel Communications, Inc., the lenders named therein, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative Agent 
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 21, 2005 and incorporated herein 
by reference).  

    (10)  Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements: 

    10.4           Sprint Nextel 2006 Short-Term Incentive Plan.  

    

10.5           Sprint Nextel 2006-2007 Integration Overachievement Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed February 22, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.6           Sprint Nextel 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program, as amended (filed as exhibit 10(aa) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly 
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).  
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10.7           Form of 2003 Award Agreement (awarding restricted stock units) with Directors (filed as Exhibit 10(g) to Sprint Nextel’s 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.8           Form of 2003 Award Agreement (awarding restricted stock units and stock options) with Executive Officers (filed as 
Exhibit 10(h) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 and incorporated 
herein by reference).  

    

10.9           Form of Election relating to 2003 Executive restricted stock unit awards (filed as Exhibit 10(f) to Sprint Nextel’s 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.10        Form of 2004 Award Agreement (awarding stock options and restricted stock units) with Messrs. Forsee and Lauer (filed 
as Exhibit 10(a) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 and 
incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.11        Form of 2004 Award Agreement (awarding stock options and restricted stock units) with other Executive Officers (filed as 
Exhibit 10(b) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 and 
incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.12        Form of 2004 Award Agreement (awarding restricted stock units) with Directors (filed as Exhibit 10(c) to Sprint Nextel’s 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.13        Form of 2005 Award Agreement (awarding restricted stock units) with Directors (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Sprint Nextel’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 14, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.14        Form of 2005 Award Agreement (awarding stock options and restricted stock units) with Messrs. Forsee and Lauer (filed 
as exhibit 10(dd) to Sprint Nextel’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 
incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.15        Form of 2005 Award Agreement (awarding stock options and restricted stock units) with other Executive Officers (filed as 
exhibit 10(ff) to Sprint Nextel’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 and incorporated 
herein by reference).  

    

10.16        Form of Award Agreement (awarding stock options and restricted stock units) with Messrs. Forsee and Lauer (filed as 
exhibit 10.2 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 15, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.17        Form of 2006 Award Agreement (awarding stock options) with Mr. Donahue (filed as exhibit 10.1 to Sprint Nextel’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 10, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.18        Form of 2006 Award Agreement (awarding stock options) with Messrs. Forsee and Lauer (filed as exhibit 10.2 to Sprint 
Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 10, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.19        Nextel Amended and Restated Incentive Equity Plan (filed as Annex J to the joint proxy statement/prospectus included as 
part of Sprint Nextel’s Registration Statement No. 333-123333 on Form S-4, as filed on June 10, 2005, and incorporated 
herein by reference).  

    

10.20        Form of Deferred Share Agreement—Recognition Award under the Nextel Amended and Restated Incentive Equity Plan 
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Nextel’ s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 2, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference). 

    

10.21        Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (Employee Form) under the Nextel Amended and Restated Incentive 
Equity Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 
and incorporated herein by reference).  
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10.22        Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (Non-Affiliate Director Form) under the Nextel Amended and Restated 
Incentive Equity Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.23        Management Incentive Stock Option Plan, as amended (filed as Exhibit 10(d) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.24        Summary of Interim Incentive Opportunity Program (filed as exhibit 10(cc) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.25.1     Employment Agreement dated as of March 19, 2003, by and among Sprint Corporation, Sprint/United Management 
Company and Gary D. Forsee (filed as Exhibit 10(c) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended March 31, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)  

    

10.25.2     Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 15, 2004, to the Employment Agreement dated as of March 19, 2003 by and 
among Sprint Corporation, Sprint/United Management Company and Gary D. Forsee (filed as Exhibit 10 to Sprint 
Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.25.3     Amendment No.2, dated as of March 15, 2005, to the Employment Agreement dated as of March, 2003, as amended by 
Amendment No. 1, by and among Sprint Corporation, Sprint/United Management Company and Gary D. Forsee (filed as 
exhibit 10(c) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 and incorporated 
herein by reference).  

    

10.26.1     Employment Agreement, effective as of July 1, 2003, by and between Nextel Communications, Inc. and Timothy M. 
Donahue (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 and 
incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.26.2     Letter dated December 15, 2004, from Timothy M. Donahue to Nextel Communications, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to 
Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.26.3     Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 15, 2005, to the Employment Agreement dated as of July 1, 2003, by and among 
Nextel Communications, Inc. and Timothy M. Donahue (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Nextel’s Current Report of Form 8-K 
filed March 15, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.27        Executive Agreement dated as of July 30, 2001 by and among Sprint Nextel, Sprint/United Management Company, and 
Len Lauer (filed as Exhibit 10(bb) to Sprint Nextel Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 
2001 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.28        Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004, between Paul N. Saleh and Nextel Communications, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 
10.2.2 to Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 and incorporated herein by 
reference).  

    

10.29        Employment Agreement between Sprint Corporation and Timothy E. Kelly (filed as Exhibit 10(h) to Sprint Nextel’s 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.30        Employment Agreements with certain Executive Officers (James G. Kissinger and Kathryn A. Walker) (filed as Exhibit 
10(x) to Sprint Nextel’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and incorporated herein by 
reference).  
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10.31        Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004, between Barry J. West and Nextel Communications, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 
10.2.3 to Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 and incorporated herein by 
reference).  

    10.32        Employment Agreement dated as of March 15, 2005, by and among Nextel Communications, Inc. and Richard LeFave.  

    

10.33        Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004, between Leonard J. Kennedy and Nextel Communications, Inc. (filed as 
Exhibit 10.2.4 to Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 and incorporated herein 
by reference).  

    

10.34        Employment Agreement dated as of March 15, 2005, by and among Nextel Communications, Inc. and William G. Arendt 
(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 15, 2005 and incorporated herein by 
reference).  

    

10.35        Employment Agreement dated as of June 2, 2005, by and among Sprint Corporation, Sprint/United Management 
Company and Daniel R. Hesse (filed as exhibit 10.1 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 10, 2005 
and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.36        Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004, between Thomas N. Kelly, Jr. and Nextel Communications, Inc. (filed as 
Exhibit 10.2.1 to Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 and incorporated herein 
by reference).  

    10.37        Sprint Nextel Deferred Compensation Plan.  

    

10.38        Sprint Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended, including summary of certain Amendments to the Executive 
Deferred Compensation Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 11, 
2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.39        Amended and Restated Centel Directors Deferred Compensation Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(c) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly 
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.40        Director’s Deferred Fee Plan, as amended (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
February 14, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.41        Nextel Amended and Restated Cash Compensation Deferral Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Nextel’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed December 13, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.42        Summary of Sprint Retention Program (filed as exhibit 10(v) to Sprint Nextel’ s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.43.1     Nextel Change of Control Retention Bonus and Severance Pay Plan dated July 14, 1999 (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to Nextel’ s 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.43.2     First Amendment, dated September 19, 2002, to Nextel’s Change of Control Retention Bonus and Severance Pay Plan 
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002 and 
incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.43.3     Second Amendment, dated August 12, 2005, to Nextel’s Change of Control Retention Bonus and Severance Pay Plan 
(filed as Exhibit 99.6 to Sprint Nextel’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 18, 2005 and incorporated herein by 
reference).  



   

Sprint Nextel will furnish to the SEC, upon request, a copy of the instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt that does not 
exceed 10% of the total assets of Sprint Nextel.  
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10.44        Nextel 2004/2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.6.9 to Nextel’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.45        Sprint Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended (filed as Exhibit 10(l) to Sprint Nextel’s Annual Report on 
Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference). Summary of Amendments to 
the Sprint Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (filed as exhibit 10(ee) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.46        Retirement Plan for Directors, as amended (filed as Exhibit 10(u) to Sprint Nextel’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
year ended December 31, 1996 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    10.47        Summary of Executive Officer Benefits and Board of Directors Benefits and Fees.  

    

10.48        Key Management Benefit Plan, as amended (filed as Exhibit 10(g) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for 
the quarter ended September 30, 1996 and incorporated herein by reference).  

    

10.49        Form of Indemnification Agreements between Sprint Nextel and its Directors and Officers (filed as Exhibit 10(e) to Sprint 
Nextel’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference).  

    (12)  Computation of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends.  

    (21)  Subsidiaries of Registrant.  

    (23)(a)  Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 

    (23)(b)  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 

    (31)(a)  Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-14(a).  

    (31)(b)  Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-14(a).  

    

(32)(a)  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  

    

(32)(b)  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  

* Portions of this exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the SEC pursuant to a request for confidential treatment. 



SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
   

Date:  March 7, 2006  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the 
registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 7 th day of March, 2006.  
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  SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
  (Registrant)  

By    /s/    Gary D. Forsee  

  

Gary D. Forsee  
Chief Executive Officer  

/s/    Gary D. Forsee  
Gary D. Forsee  
Chief Executive Officer  

/s/    Paul N. Saleh  
Paul N. Saleh  
Chief Financial Officer  

/s/    William G. Arendt  
William G. Arendt  
Senior Vice President & Controller  
Principal Accounting Officer  



SIGNATURES  

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  

(Registrant)  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the 
registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 7 th day of March, 2006.  
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/s/    Timothy M. Donahue      /s/    V. Janet Hill  
   

Timothy M. Donahue, Chairman      V. Janet Hill, Director 

/s/    Keith J. Bane  
       /s/    Irvine O. Hockaday, Jr.  

   

Keith J. Bane, Director      Irvine O. Hockaday, Jr., Director  

       /s/    William E. Kennard  
   

Gordon M. Bethune, Director      William E. Kennard, Director  

/s/    William E. Conway      /s/    Linda K. Lorimer  
   

William E. Conway, Director      Linda K. Lorimer, Director  

/s/    Frank M. Drendel  
          
Frank M. Drendel, Director      Stephanie M. Shern, Director  

/s/    Gary D. Forsee  
       /s/    William H. Swanson  

   

Gary D. Forsee, Director      William H. Swanson, Director  

/s/    James H. Hance, Jr.  
       

James H. Hance, Jr., Director      
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MANAGEMENT REPORT  

Our management is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the information contained in this document. Management is responsible for 
the consistency of reporting this information and for ensuring that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States are used.  

In discharging this responsibility, management maintains a comprehensive system of internal controls and supports an extensive program of 
internal audits, has made organizational arrangements providing appropriate divisions of responsibility and has established communication 
programs aimed at assuring that its policies, procedures and principles of business conduct are understood and practiced by its employees.  

The 2005 and 2004 consolidated financial statements included in this document have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent registered public 
accounting firm. The 2003 consolidated financial statements included in this document have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent 
registered public accounting firm. All audits were conducted using standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States) and KPMG’s and Ernst & Young’s reports and consents are included herein.  

The Board of Directors’ responsibility for these consolidated financial statements is pursued mainly through its Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee, composed entirely of directors who are not officers or employees of Sprint Nextel, meets periodically with the Company’s internal 
auditors and independent registered public accounting firm, both with and without management present, to assure that their respective 
responsibilities are being fulfilled. The internal auditors and independent registered public accounting firm have full access to the Audit 
Committee to discuss auditing and financial reporting matters.  
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/s/ Gary D. Forsee  
Gary D. Forsee  
President and Chief Executive Officer  

/s/ Paul N. Saleh  
Paul N. Saleh  
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

The Board of Directors and Shareholders  
Sprint Nextel Corporation:  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sprint Nextel Corporation, formerly known as Sprint Corporation, and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows, 
and shareholders’ equity, for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial 
statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule, Schedule II – Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years 
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the 
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule 
based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Sprint 
Nextel Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years 
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial 
statement schedule for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements 
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.  

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 47, Accounting 
for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, in the fourth quarter of 2005.  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of 
Sprint Nextel Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated 
March 7, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over financial 
reporting.  
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/s/ KPMG LLP 
   

McLean, Virginia     

March 7, 2006     



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

The Board of Directors and Shareholders  
Sprint Nextel Corporation:  

We have audited management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, appearing in 
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures, that Sprint Nextel Corporation, formerly known as Sprint Corporation, maintained effective internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) . Sprint Nextel Corporation’s management is responsible for 
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was 
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating 
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Sprint Nextel Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Sprint Nextel Corporation maintained, 
in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated 
balance sheets of Sprint Nextel Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of 
operations, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows, and shareholders’ equity, for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related 
financial statement schedule for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, and our report dated March 7, 2006 expressed an unqualified 
opinion on those consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement schedule.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

The Board of Directors and Shareholders  
Sprint Nextel Corporation:  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows and shareholders’ equity of 
Sprint Nextel Corporation (formerly Sprint Corporation) for the year ended December 31, 2003. Our audit also included the financial statement 
schedule for the year ended December 31, 2003 listed in the Index to Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedule and Exhibits. These 
financial statements and the schedule are the responsibility of the management of Sprint Nextel Corporation. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements and the schedule based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects the consolidated results of operations and cash 
flows of Sprint Nextel Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule for the year ended December 31, 2003, when considered in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.  

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 

Kansas City, Missouri  
February 3, 2004, except for  
    Note 3, as to which the date is April 23, 2004, and  
    Note 23, as to which the date is November 2, 2004  
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003  

   

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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     2005     2004     2003   
     (in  millions, except per share amounts)   

Net operating revenues     $     34,680     $     27,428     $     26,197   

Operating expenses         

Costs of services and products (exclusive of depreciation included below)       14,384       11,576       10,592   
Selling, general and administrative       10,076       7,704       7,674   
Restructuring and asset impairments       125       3,731       1,951   
Depreciation       4,933       4,713       4,972   
Amortization       1,336       7       1   

       
  

      
  

      
  

     30,854       27,731       25,190   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Operating income (loss)       3,826       (303 )     1,007   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Other income (expense)         

Interest expense       (1,351 )     (1,282 )     (1,437 ) 
Interest income       238       61       51   
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated subsidiaries, net       110       (39 )     (77 ) 
Loss on retirement of debt       —      (60 )     (21 ) 
Other, net       83       20       (27 ) 

       
  

      
  

      
  

     (920 )     (1,300 )     (1,511 ) 
       

  
      

  
      

  

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes       2,906       (1,603 )     (504 ) 
Income tax (expense) benefit       (1,105 )     591       212   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Income (loss) from continuing operations       1,801       (1,012 )     (292 ) 
Discontinued operations, net       —      —      1,324   
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net       (16 )     —      258   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net income (loss)       1,785       (1,012 )     1,290   
Earnings allocated to participating securities       —      (9 )     —  
Preferred stock dividends       (7 )     (7 )     (7 ) 

       
  

      
  

      
  

Income (loss) available to common shareholders     $ 1,778     $ (1,028 )   $ 1,283   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Basic earnings (loss) per common share         

Continuing operations     $ 0.88     $ (0.71 )   $ (0.21 ) 
Discontinued operations       —      —      0.94   
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle       (0.01 )     —      0.18   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total     $ 0.87     $ (0.71 )   $ 0.91   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding       2,033       1,443       1,415   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share         

Continuing operations     $ 0.87     $ (0.71 )   $ (0.21 ) 
Discontinued operations       —      —      0.94   
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle       —      —      0.18   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total     $ 0.87     $ (0.71 )   $ 0.91   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding       2,054       1,443       1,415   
       

  

      

  

      

  



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)  
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003  

   

   
See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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     2005     2004     2003   
     (in millions)   

Net income (loss)     $     1,785     $ (1,012 )   $     1,290   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Other comprehensive income (loss)         

Unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities       101                 33       78   
Income tax expense       (37 )     (12 )     (30 ) 

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities       64       21       48   

Reclassification adjustment for realized gains on available-for-sale securities included in net 
income (loss)       (26 )     (28 )     (7 ) 

Income tax benefit       10       10       3   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net reclassification adjustment for realized gains on available-for-sale securities included in net 
income (loss)       (16 )     (18 )     (4 ) 

Unrealized gains (losses) on qualifying cash flow hedges       2       (11 )     (60 ) 
Income tax (expense) benefit       (2 )     4       23   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net unrealized losses on qualifying cash flow hedges       —      (7 )     (37 ) 

Reclassification adjustment for losses on cash flow hedges included in net income (loss)       15       15       —  
Income tax expense       (5 )     (5 )     —  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net reclassification adjustment for losses on cash flow hedges included in net income (loss)       10       10       —  

Net foreign currency translation adjustment       (9 )     20       (2 ) 

Additional minimum pension obligation       (98 )     (38 )     (37 ) 
Income tax benefit       39       17       12   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net additional minimum pension obligation       (59 )     (21 )     (25 ) 
       

  
      

  
      

  

Total other comprehensive (loss) income       (10 )     5       (20 ) 
       

  
      

  
      

  

Comprehensive income (loss )     $ 1,775     $ (1,007 )   $ 1,270   
       

  

      

  

      

  



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004  
   

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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    2005     2004   
    (in millions, except share data)   

ASSETS   
Current assets      

Cash and cash equivalents    $ 8,902     $ 4,176   
Marketable securities      1,763       445   
Accounts receivable, net      4,827       3,107   
Inventories      950       651   
Deferred tax asset      1,811       1,049   
Prepaid expenses and other current assets      839       547   

      
  

      
  

Total current assets      19,092       9,975   
Investments      2,369       277   
Property, plant and equipment, net      31,133       22,628   
Intangible assets      

Goodwill      21,315       4,401   
FCC licenses      18,023       3,376   
Customer relationships, net      8,651       29   
Other intangible assets, net      1,345       30   

Other assets      652       605   
      

  
      

  

  $ 102,580     $ 41,321   
      

  

      

  

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ’ EQUITY   
Current liabilities      

Accounts payable    $ 3,827     $ 2,671   
Accrued expenses and other      5,176       2,943   
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations      5,047       1,288   

      
  

      
  

Total current liabilities      14,050       6,902   
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations      20,632       15,916   
Deferred income taxes      11,687       2,176   
Postretirement and other benefit obligations      1,385       1,445   
Other liabilities      2,642       1,114   

      
  

      
  

Total liabilities      50,396       27,553   
      

  
      

  

Seventh series redeemable preferred stock      247       247   

Shareholders’  equity      

Common stock      

Voting, par value $2.00 per share, 6.500 billion and 3.000 billion shares authorized, 2.923 billion and 
1.475 billion shares issued and outstanding      5,846       2,950   

Non-voting, par value $0.01 per share, 100 million and 0 shares authorized, 38 million and 0 shares 
issued and outstanding      —      —  

Paid-in capital      46,136       11,873   
Retained earnings (deficit)      681       (586 ) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (726 )     (716 ) 

      
  

      
  

Total shareholders’  equity      51,937       13,521   
      

  
      

  

  $     102,580     $     41,321   
      

  

      

  



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003  

   

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  
   

F-9  

     2005     2004     2003   

                 
(revised  

see note 14)   
     (in millions)   

Cash flows from operating activities         

Net income (loss)     $     1,785     $ (1,012 )   $ 1,290   
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:         

Discontinued operations, net       —      —      (1,324 ) 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net       16       —      (258 ) 
Provision for losses on accounts receivable       441       386       422   
Depreciation and amortization       6,269       4,720       4,973   
Equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated subsidiaries, net       (110 )     39       77   
Deferred income taxes       830       (576 )     439   
Gain on sale of assets, net       (43 )     (14 )     (4 ) 
Losses on impairment of assets       127       3,540       1,873   
Other, net       436       281       161   
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:         

Accounts receivable       (442 )     (617 )     (347 ) 
Inventories and other current assets       11       (22 )     204   
Accounts payable and other current liabilities       299       (117 )     (856 ) 
Proceeds from communications towers lease transaction       1,195       —      —  
Noncurrent assets and liabilities, net       (136 )     17       (115 ) 

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash provided by operating activities       10,678       6,625       6,535   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Cash flows from investing activities         

Capital expenditures       (5,057 )     (3,980 )     (3,797 ) 
Cash acquired in Nextel merger, net of cash paid       1,183       —      —  
Purchase of PCS Affiliates, net of cash acquired       (1,371 )     —      —  
Proceeds from divestiture of directory business       —      —      2,213   
Purchases of marketable securities       (821 )     (542 )     (439 ) 
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities       808       444       —  
Proceeds from sales of assets and investments       648       77       101   
Distributions from (investments in) unconsolidated subsidiaries, net       167       (20 )     (32 ) 
Other, net       (281 )     (35 )     —  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash used in investing activities       (4,724 )     (4,056 )     (1,954 ) 
       

  
      

  
      

  

Cash flows from financing activities         

Borrowings under bank credit facility       3,200       —      44   
Repayments under bank credit facility       (3,200 )     —      —  
Purchase and retirements of debt securities       (1,170 )     (1,884 )     (2,952 ) 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock       432       1,874       12   
Dividends paid       (525 )     (670 )     (457 ) 
Other, net       35       —      24   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash used in financing activities       (1,228 )     (680 )     (3,329 ) 
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents       4,726       1,889       1,252   
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period       4,176       2,287       1,035   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period     $ 8,902     $     4,176     $     2,287   
       

  

      

  

      

  



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003  
(in millions)  

   

   

   

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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Voting  

Common Stock     
Non-voting  

Common Stock     

Class A  
FT  

Common Stock      
PCS  

Common Stock      Paid-in  
Capital    

  

Retained 
 

Earnings 
(Deficit)   

  

Accumulated  
Other  

Comprehensive 
Income (Loss) 

(1)    

  

Total        Shares    Amount    Shares    Amount    Shares     Amount     Shares     Amount           
Balance, January 1, 2003     895    $   1,790       $ —   43     $ 22     1,000     $   1,000     $ 9,931     $ 66     $ (701 )   $   12,108   

Net income                                 1,290         1,290   
Common stock dividends                             (450 )       (450 ) 
Preferred stock dividends                           (7 )         (7 ) 
Conversion of PCS common stock underlying 

Class A common stock                     (22 )   22       22             —  
Cancellation of Class A FT common stock                 (43 )                 —  
Common stock issued     9      19              13       13       160           192   
Stock-based compensation expense                           52           52   
Additional minimum pension liability                               (25 )     (25 ) 
Other, net                           (52 )       5       (47 ) 

                             
  

      
  

    
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Balance, December 31, 2003     904      1,809    —     —   —      —    1,035       1,035       10,084       906       (721 )     13,113   
Net loss                             (1,012 )       (1,012 ) 

Common stock dividends (2)                           (183 )     (480 )       (663 ) 
Preferred stock dividends                           (7 )         (7 ) 
Common stock issued     52      104              2       2       1,855           1,961   
Stock-based compensation expense                           129           129   
Additional minimum pension liability                               (21 )     (21 ) 
Conversion of PCS common stock into FON 

or voting common stock     519      1,037              (1,037 )     (1,037 )           —  
Other, net                           (5 )               26       21   

                             
  

      
  

    
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Balance, December 31, 2004     1,475      2,950    —     —   —      —    —      —      11,873       (586 )     (716 )     13,521   
Net income                             1,785         1,785   
Common stock dividends                             (518 )       (518 ) 
Preferred stock dividends                           (7 )         (7 ) 
Common stock issued to Nextel shareholders     1,414      2,829    38                 32,816           35,645   
Common stock issued     34      67                    458           525   
Conversion of Nextel vested stock-based 

awards upon merger                           639           639   
Stock-based compensation expense                           302           302   
Tax benefit from stock compensation                           38           38   
Additional minimum pension liability                               (59 )     (59 ) 
Other, net                           17       —      49       66   

                             
  

      
  

    
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Balance, December 31, 2005     2,923    $ 5,846    38    $   —   —    $   —    —    $ —    $   46,136     $ 681     $ (726 )   $ 51,937   
                             

  

      

  

    

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

  (1) As of December 31, 2005, accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of $(818) additional minimum pension liability, offset by $80 of unrealized net gains related to 
investments and derivatives and $12 of foreign currency translation adjustment. 

  (2) In 2004, voting common stock dividends were paid out of paid-in capital in the quarterly period in which retained earnings were in a deficit position. 



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Note 1.    Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies  

Operations  

We are a global communications company offering a comprehensive suite of wireless and wireline communications products and services that 
are designed to meet the needs of our targeted customer groups: individuals and business and government customers. Although our operations 
are divided into three lines of business: Wireless, Long Distance and Local, we have organized our sales and distribution efforts to focus on the 
needs of two distinct customer types – individuals and businesses and government agencies, which enable us to create customer-focused 
communications solutions. We are one of the three largest wireless companies in the United States based on the number of wireless subscribers. 
We own extensive wireless networks and a global long distance, Tier 1 Internet backbone. Our Series 1 voting common stock trades on the New 
York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, under the symbol “S.”  

We, together with third party affiliates, each referred to as a PCS Affiliate, and Nextel Partners, Inc., offer digital wireless service in all 50 states, 
Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The PCS Affiliates, through commercial arrangements with us, provide wireless personal 
communication services, or PCS, under the Sprint ® brand name in certain mid-sized and tertiary U.S. markets on wireless networks built and 
operated at their expense using spectrum licensed to and controlled by us. Nextel Partners provides digital wireless communications services 
under the Nextel brand name in certain mid-sized and tertiary U.S. markets on wireless networks built and operated at its expense.  

We offer a wide array of wireless mobile telephone and wireless data transmission services on networks that utilize code division multiple 
access, or CDMA, and integrated Digital Enhanced Network, or iDEN ® , technologies. We market wireless services provided on our CDMA 
network under the Sprint brand. We are deploying high-speed evolution data optimized, or EV-DO, technology across our CDMA network. We 
first introduced EV-DO commercially in the second quarter 2005, and we will continue to expand EV-DO into additional markets. We operate 
an all-digital long distance and Tier 1 Internet protocol, or IP, network, over which we provide a broad suite of wireline communications services 
targeted to domestic business and residential customers, multinational corporations and other communications companies.  

We also provide regulated local exchange telephone services and long distance voice and data services, including digital subscriber line, or DSL, 
services, and other telecommunications-related services to customers in our local service areas. We also operate a wholesale product distribution 
business. This entire business is expected to be spun-off to our shareholders in the second quarter 2006 and will be known as Embarq 
Corporation. See note 25 for more information.  

Basis of Consolidation and Presentation  

On August 12, 2005, a subsidiary of ours merged with Nextel Communications, Inc. for aggregate consideration of $37.8 billion. In connection 
with the Nextel merger, we changed our name to Sprint Nextel Corporation, or Sprint Nextel. On August 12, 2005, we acquired US Unwired Inc. 
for $968 million in cash. We also acquired Gulf Coast Wireless Limited Partnership for $211 million in cash on October 3, 2005 as well as IWO 
Holdings, Inc. for $192 million in cash on October 20, 2005. Each of these companies is now a wholly owned subsidiary of Sprint Nextel. Each 
transaction was accounted for as a purchase. See note 2 for further discussion of these transactions.  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our accounts, and those of our wholly owned subsidiaries, and subsidiaries we 
control, as well as variable interest entities where we are the primary  
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SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (C ontinued)  

   
beneficiary. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. We use the equity method to account 
for equity investments in unconsolidated entities in which we exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies but do not 
control. We recognize all changes in our proportionate share of the unconsolidated subsidiaries’ equity resulting from their equity transactions as 
adjustments to our investment and shareholders’ equity balances. We use the cost method to account for equity investments in all other 
unconsolidated entities. See note 5 for additional information.  

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, which require 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Due to the 
inherent uncertainty involved in making those estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.  

Certain prior-period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. In 2005, we determined that recategorization 
of certain costs from costs of services and products to selling, general and administrative would be more consistent with current industry 
practices, and accordingly reclassified $1.1 billion of expenses in each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. These costs primarily 
consist of certain customer care and information technology costs for the Wireless and Long Distance segments.  

Revenue Recognition  

Operating revenues primarily consist of wireless service revenues, revenues generated from handset and accessory sales and revenues from 
wholesale operators and PCS Affiliates, as well as long distance and local voice, data and internet revenues.  

We recognize operating revenues as services are rendered or as products are delivered to customers in accordance with Securities and Exchange 
Commission, or SEC, Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition , and the Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 00-21, 
Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. Revenues consist of fixed monthly recurring charges, variable usage charges, equipment 
charges and miscellaneous fees such as activation fees, directory assistance, operator-assisted calling, equipment protection, late payment 
charges and certain regulatory fees. We recognize revenue for access charges and other services charged at fixed amounts ratably over the 
service period, net of credits and adjustments for service discounts, billing disputes and fraud or unauthorized usage. We recognize excess usage 
and long distance revenue at contractual rates per minute as minutes are used. As a result of the cutoff times of our multiple billing cycles each 
month, we are required to estimate the amount of subscriber revenues earned but not billed from the end of each billing cycle to the end of each 
reporting period. These estimates are based primarily on rate plans in effect and our historical usage and billing.  

Certain of our bundled products and services, primarily in Wireless, have been determined to be revenue arrangements with multiple 
deliverables. Total consideration received in these arrangements is allocated and measured using units of accounting within the arrangement 
based on relative fair values. We recognize revenue from handset sales when title to the handset passes to the dealer or end user customer. We 
classify handset sales as equipment revenue.  

Wireless offerings include wireless phones and service contracts sold together in our company-operated stores. The activation fee revenue 
associated with these direct channel sales is recognized at the time the related wireless phone is sold and is classified as equipment sales. 
Wireless activation fees earned prior to the 2003 adoption of EITF Issue No. 00-21 are being deferred and amortized over the estimated average 
life of the end user customer.  

Certain activation fees associated with unbundled sales in our Wireless segment are deferred and amortized over the estimated average life of the 
end user customer. Certain installation fees associated with our Local segment are deferred and amortized over the estimated average life of the 
customer.  
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Advertising Expense  

We recognize advertising expense as incurred. These expenses include production, media and other promotional and sponsorship costs. 
Advertising expenses totaled $1.4 billion in 2005, $989 million in 2004, and $946 million in 2003.  

Research and Development  

We recognize research and development expense as incurred. Research and development expenses totaled $47 million in 2005, $32 million in 
2004, and $16 million in 2003.  

Income Taxes  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and 
liabilities, applying enacted statutory tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Future tax benefits, such as 
net operating loss carryforwards, are recognized to the extent that realization of these benefits is considered to be more likely than not. See note 
13 for more information.  

Earnings (Loss) per Common Share  

Basic earnings (loss) per common share is calculated by dividing income (loss) available to common shareholders by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per common share adjust basic earnings per common share for the 
effects of potentially dilutive common shares. Potentially dilutive common shares primarily include the dilutive effects of shares issuable under 
our equity plans computed using the treasury stock method, and the dilutive effects of shares issuable upon the conversion of our convertible 
senior notes computed using the if-converted method.  

Dilutive securities consisting of shares issuable under our equity plans used in calculating earnings per common share were 20.5 million shares 
for 2005. All 10.3 million shares issuable upon the assumed conversion of our convertible senior notes could potentially dilute earnings per 
common share in the future but were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per common share for 2005 due to their antidilutive 
effects. Additionally, about 65.6 million shares issuable under the equity plans that could also potentially dilute earnings per common share in 
the future were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per common share in 2005 as the exercise prices exceeded the average market 
price during this period.  

Shares issuable under our equity plans were antidilutive in 2004 because we incurred net losses from continuing operations. Although not used 
in the determination of earnings per common share for 2004, our dilutive securities totaled 12.3 million shares in 2004. About 88 million shares 
issuable under the equity plans could potentially dilute earnings per common share in the future, but were excluded from the calculation of 
diluted earnings per common share in 2004 as the exercise prices exceeded the average market price during this period.  

Shares issuable under our equity plans were antidilutive in 2003 because we incurred net losses from continuing operations. Although not used 
in the determination of earnings per common share for 2003, our dilutive securities totaled 3.0 million shares in 2003. About 103 million shares 
issuable under the equity plans could potentially dilute earnings per common share in the future, but were excluded from the calculation of 
diluted earnings per common share in 2003 as the exercise prices exceeded the average market price during this period.  
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Stock-based Compensation  

Effective January 1, 2003, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation , as amended by SFAS No. 148 , Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure , using the prospective 
method. Upon adoption we began expensing the fair value of stock-based compensation of all grants, modifications or settlements made on or 
after January 1, 2003 using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and earnings per 
common share of stock-based compensation included in net income (loss) and the effect on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per common 
share for grants issued on or before December 31, 2002, had we applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123.  

Compensation costs are expensed over the vesting period of the award using the straight-line method. The amount of compensation cost 
recognized at any date is at least equal to the vested portion of the award.  
   

We recognized pre-tax charges of $234 million, $81 million, and $37 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003 related to stock-based grants issued after 
December 31, 2002.  

In 2005, we recognized pre-tax charges of $32 million of non-cash compensation expense in connection with Sprint employee separations as a 
result of the Nextel merger. The charges were associated with accounting for modifications, which accelerated vesting and extended exercise 
periods of stock options granted in prior periods, as required by SFAS No. 123.  

Prior to April 23, 2004, we had two tracking stocks. The FON tracking stock represented all of the operations and assets of our Long Distance 
and Local operations. The PCS tracking stock represented the operations and assets of our Wireless operations. On April 23, 2004, we 
recombined these two tracking stocks. As a result, in 2004, we recognized pre-tax charges of $48 million of non-cash compensation expense 
related to the recombination of FON common stock and PCS common stock. As required by SFAS No. 123, we accounted for the conversion of 
PCS stock options to FON stock options as a modification and accordingly applied stock option expensing to FON stock options resulting from 
the conversion of PCS stock options granted before January 1, 2003. In connection with this, we recognized pre-tax charges of $37 million in 
2005.  

In 2003, we recognized pre-tax charges of $15 million for non-cash expense in connection with separation agreements between us and former 
executives. The charges were associated with accounting for modifications, which accelerated vesting and extended vesting and exercise periods 
of stock options granted in prior periods, as required by SFAS No. 123.  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
         2005             2004             2003       
     (in millions, except per share data)   

Net income (loss), as reported     $     1,785     $ (1,012 )   $     1,290   
Add: stock-based compensation expense included in reported net income (loss), net of income tax of 

$111, $47 and $19       192               82       33   
Deduct: total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value based method for all 

awards, net of income tax of $117, $64 and $61       (204 )     (111 )     (106 ) 
       

  
      

  
      

  

Pro forma net income (loss)     $ 1,773     $ (1,041 )   $ 1,217   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Earnings (loss) per common share:         

Basic – as reported     $ 0.87     $ (0.71 )   $ 0.91   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Basic – pro forma     $ 0.87     $ (0.73 )   $ 0.85   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Diluted – as reported     $ 0.87     $ (0.71 )   $ 0.91   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Diluted – pro forma     $ 0.86     $ (0.73 )   $ 0.85   
       

  

      

  

      

  



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (C ontinued)  

   
Cash and Cash Equivalents  

Cash equivalents generally include highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. These investments include money 
market funds, U.S. government and government-sponsored debt securities, corporate debt securities, municipal securities, repurchase 
agreements, and bank-related securities. All securities meet our investment policy guidelines and are stated at cost, which approximates market 
value. As of December 31, 2005, we have $93 million of restricted cash, which is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the 
consolidated balance sheets. See note 9 for more information.  

Our prior year amounts for auction rate securities have been reclassified from cash and cash equivalents to marketable securities.  

Supplemental Cash Flow Information  
   

Our non-cash activities included the following:  
   

Investments in Debt Securities  

We classify our investments in marketable debt securities as available-for-sale and, therefore, report them at fair value, based on quoted market 
prices. Interest on investments in debt securities is reinvested and recorded in interest income in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations. We record unrealized holding gains and losses as other comprehensive income (loss), net of related income taxes.  

Investments in Equity Securities  

We classify our investments in marketable equity securities as available-for-sale and, therefore, report them at fair value, based on available 
market information. We record unrealized holding gains and losses as other comprehensive income (loss), net of related income taxes. Realized 
gains or losses are recorded in earnings and calculated using average cost. We assess declines in the value of individual investments to determine 
whether the decline is other-than-temporary and thus the investment is impaired. We make this assessment by considering available evidence, 
including changes in general market conditions, specific industry and individual company data, the length of time and the extent to which the 
market value has been less than cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the individual company and our intent and ability to hold 
the investment. We record  
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     Year Ended December 31, 
     2005    2004     2003 
     (in millions) 
Interest paid, net of capitalized interest     $     1,291    $     1,279     $     1,424 
Interest received       231      61       51 
Income taxes paid       138      (39 )     83 

     Year Ended December 31, 
     2005    2004    2003 
     (in millions) 
Common stock issued:           

Acquisition of Nextel     $     35,645    $     —   $     —
Vested stock option awards exchanged in acquisition of Nextel       639      —     —
Employee benefit stock plans       90      53      51 
Settlement of shareholder suit       —     5      —

Earthlink common stock used to extinguish debt       90      48      —



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (C ontinued)  

   
impairment losses on investments in equity securities in other income (expense) in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations 
when our investment’s market value declines below our cost basis on an other-than-temporary basis.  

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts  

We establish an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable sufficient to cover probable and reasonably estimable losses. Because it is not 
practical to review the collectibility of each account individually when we determine the amount of our allowance for doubtful accounts 
receivable each period, our reserve reflects an estimate of accounts receivable that we believe to be uncollectible. We consider a number of 
factors in establishing the allowance for our portfolio of customers, including historical collection experience, current economic trends, estimates 
of forecasted write-offs, agings of the accounts receivable portfolio and other factors.  

Inventories  

Inventories of handsets in Wireless are stated at the lower of cost or market. We determine cost by the first-in, first-out, or FIFO, method. 
Handset costs in excess of the revenues generated from handset sales, or handset subsidies, are expensed at the time of sale. We do not recognize 
the expected handset subsidies prior to the time of sale because the promotional discount decision is made at the point of sale and/or because we 
expect to recover the handset subsidies through service revenues.  

Inventories in Long Distance and Local are stated at the lower of cost or market.  

Property, Plant and Equipment  

We record property, plant and equipment, including improvements that extend useful lives, at cost. The cost of property, plant and equipment is 
generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over estimated economic useful lives. Amortization of assets recorded under capital leases is 
recorded in depreciation expense. We amortize leasehold improvements over the shorter of the lease terms or the estimated useful lives of the 
assets. We depreciate buildings and network equipment and software over estimated useful lives of up to 31 years, with approximately 70% 
being between 5 and 15 years, and office equipment and depreciable property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives of up to 30 years 
with approximately 70% being between 3 and 5 years. Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. We calculate depreciation on 
certain of our assets using the group life method; accordingly, ordinary asset retirements and disposals are charged against accumulated 
depreciation with no gain or loss recognized.  

We capitalize costs for network and non-network software developed or obtained for internal use during the application development stage. 
These costs are included in property, plant and equipment, and when the software is placed in service, are amortized over estimated useful lives 
of up to 10 years. Costs incurred during the preliminary project stage, as well as maintenance and training costs, are expensed as incurred. For 
those software projects that are under development, we periodically assess the probability of deployment into the business to determine if an 
impairment charge is required.  

Since changes in technology or in our intended use of these assets, as well as changes in broad economic or industry factors, may cause the 
estimated period of use or the value of these assets to change, we perform annual internal studies to confirm the appropriateness of depreciable 
lives for most categories of property, plant and equipment. These studies utilize models, which take into account actual usage, physical wear and 
tear, replacement history, and assumptions about technology evolution, and use in certain instances actuarially determined probabilities to 
calculate the remaining life of our asset base. When these factors indicate property,  
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plant and equipment assets may not be useful for as long as originally anticipated, we depreciate the remaining book values over the remaining 
estimated useful lives. In 2004, we extended the depreciable life of certain high-capacity transmission equipment from eight years to twelve 
years due to slower anticipated evolution of technology. This extension in life decreased the 2004 depreciation expense in Long Distance by 
approximately $74 million.  

Network equipment and software includes switching equipment and cell site towers, base transceiver stations, other radio frequency equipment, 
internal use software, metallic cable and wire facilities, digital fiber-optic cable, conduit, poles, other central office and transport facilities, and 
transmission-related equipment. Buildings and improvements principally consists of owned general office facilities, leasehold improvements and 
retail stores.  

Non-network internal use software, office equipment and other principally consists of furniture, information technology equipment and vehicles.  

Network asset inventory and construction in progress primarily includes materials, transmission and related equipment, labor, engineering, site 
development, interest and other costs relating to the construction and development of our network. Assets under construction are not depreciated 
until placed into service.  

Our gross property, plant and equipment aggregated by business segment was as follows:  
   

We review our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. If the total of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of our assets, a loss, if any, is recognized 
for the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the assets. Impairment analyses, when performed, are based on our current 
business and technology strategy, our views of growth rates for our business, anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions and expected 
technological availability.  

Asset Retirement Obligations  

In accordance with SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations , we record an asset retirement obligation and an associated 
asset retirement cost when we have a legal obligation in connection with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets.  

Adoption of SFAS No. 143 on January 1, 2003, affected the cost of removal historically recorded by the Local segment. Consistent with 
regulatory requirements and industry practice, our Local segment historically accrued costs of removal in its depreciation reserves. These costs 
of removal do not meet the SFAS No. 143 definition of an asset retirement obligation. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 143, we recorded a reduction 
in our historical depreciation reserves of approximately $420 million to remove the accumulated excess cost of removal, resulting in a 
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle credit, net of tax, in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations of $258 
million.  
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     December 31, 
     2005    2004 
     (in millions) 
Wireless     $     31,203    $     19,376 
Long Distance       2,692      2,356 
Local       19,784      19,496 
Other       2,180      2,334 

              

Gross property, plant and equipment     $ 55,859    $ 43,562 
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Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, Interpretation No. 47, or FIN 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations 
was issued in 2005, interpreting the application of SFAS No. 143. FIN 47 requires the recognition of a liability for legal obligations to perform 
an asset retirement activity in which the timing and (or) method of the settlement are conditional on a future event. We adopted FIN 47 in the 
fourth quarter 2005 resulting in the recognition of asset retirement obligations in our Local segment for environmental remediation requirements 
and contractual obligations for which estimated settlement dates can be determined. The asset retirement obligations are comprised of removal 
and disposal of the asbestos in company buildings, removal and environmental cleanup of fuel storage tanks used in standby power supply 
systems and decommissioning of leased building spaces. An asset retirement obligation exists, but will not be recognized, in situations where 
Local has been granted easements and rights-of-way by municipalities and private landowners to route its cable facilities. Most cable facilities 
are buried; however, some metallic and fiber cable are above-ground on company-owned poles. Local also contracts with other utilities to 
connect cable and wire to their poles. An estimated settlement date for these obligations is indeterminate. Upon adoption in the fourth quarter 
2005, an asset retirement obligation of $33 million, a related asset of $6 million and a cumulative adjustment due to change in accounting 
principle, net of tax, of $16 million were recorded.  

Capitalized Interest  

Capitalized interest totaled $55 million in 2005, $57 million in 2004, and $59 million in 2003. Capitalized interest is incurred in connection with 
the construction of capital assets. SFAS No. 34, Capitalization of Interest Costs , requires that assets under construction be incurring interest cost 
through the payment of cash or incurrence of an interest-bearing liability in order to qualify for interest capitalization.  

Intangible Assets  

Goodwill and Other Indefinite Life Intangibles  

In conformity with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, we do not amortize our indefinite life intangibles, which consist of our 
Federal Communications Commission, or FCC, licenses, goodwill, and the Sprint and Boost Mobile trade names. We are required to test these 
assets for impairment at least annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. We perform our annual review for impairment in the fourth quarter of each year using the direct value method.  

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in business combinations accounted for as 
purchases. Virtually all of our goodwill is allocated to the Wireless segment. We determine impairment of goodwill by comparing the net assets 
of the reporting unit, identified as our operating segments, to their respective fair values. In the event a unit’s net assets exceed its fair value, an 
implied fair value of goodwill must be determined by assigning the unit’s fair value to each asset and liability of the unit. The excess of the fair 
value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairment loss is 
measured by the difference between the goodwill carrying value and the implied fair value.  

For FCC licenses and other indefinite lived intangibles, we determine impairment by comparing an asset’s respective carrying value to estimates 
of fair value using the direct value method, which requires the use of estimates, judgments and projections. In the event impairment exists, a loss 
is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. In accordance with EITF Issue No. 02-07, 
Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment of Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets , our FCC licenses are combined as a single unit of accounting 
for impairment testing purposes.  

In 2005, we were assisted in our annual impairment review by an independent third party valuation firm and we concluded that as of 
December 31, 2005, no impairments existed.  
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Definite Life Intangibles  

Definite life intangibles include the value associated with acquired Wireless subscriber bases, or customer relationships, the Nextel and Direct 
Connect SM trade names and the value of our patents. We evaluate the recoverability of definite life intangible assets when events or 
circumstances indicate that these assets might be impaired. We determine impairment by comparing an asset’s respective carrying value to 
estimates of the sum of the future cash flows expected to result from our asset, undiscounted and without interest charges. If the carrying amount 
is more than the recoverable amount, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. 
Customer relationships are amortized over the estimated customer lives using the sum of the years’ digits method, which we believe best reflects 
the estimated pattern in which the economic benefits will be consumed. All other definite life intangibles are amortized over their estimated 
useful lives, using the straight line method.  

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities  

We recognize derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and measure those instruments at fair value 
in accordance with SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities , as amended. Changes in the fair value of 
derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income (loss) depending on the use of the derivative and 
whether it qualifies for hedge accounting.  

We use derivative instruments only for hedging and risk management purposes. Hedging activity may be done for purposes of mitigating the 
risks associated with an asset, liability, committed transaction or probable forecasted transaction. We are primarily exposed to the market risk 
associated with unfavorable movements in interest rates, equity prices and foreign currencies. We do not enter into derivative transactions for 
speculative or trading purposes.  

At inception and on an on-going basis, we assess whether each derivative that qualifies for hedge accounting continues to be highly effective in 
offsetting changes in the cash flows or fair value of the hedged item. If and when a derivative instrument is no longer expected to be highly 
effective, hedge accounting is discontinued. Hedge ineffectiveness, if any, is included in current period earnings.  

We formally document all hedging relationships between the hedging instrument and the hedged item as well as our risk management objectives 
and strategies for undertaking various hedge transactions.  

Restructuring and Employee Severance Costs  

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities . This standard provides 
accounting guidance on when a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity is incurred. We adopted this standard effective 
January 1, 2003 for restructuring activities occurring after that date.  

Employee termination benefits to be paid that are not directly associated with restructuring activities are recorded in accordance with SFAS 
No. 112, Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits . Liabilities for termination benefits to be provided to employees are recognized 
under SFAS No. 112 when such costs are probable and estimable.  

Debt Financing Costs  

We amortize our debt financing costs as interest expense over the terms of the underlying obligations using the effective interest method.  
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Note 2.    Business Combinations  

In 2005, we acquired Nextel Communications, US Unwired, Gulf Coast Wireless and IWO Holdings in transactions accounted for under the 
purchase method as required by SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations.  

SFAS No. 141 requires that the total purchase price of each of the acquired entities be allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
based on their fair values at the respective merger dates. The allocation process requires an analysis of customer relationships, acquired 
contractual rights and assumed contractual commitments and legal contingencies to identify and record the fair value of all assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed. In valuing acquired assets and assumed liabilities, fair values are based on, but are not limited to: quoted market prices, 
where available; our intent with respect to whether the assets purchased are to be held, sold or abandoned; expected future cash flows; current 
replacement cost for similar capacity for certain fixed assets; market rate assumptions for contractual obligations; and appropriate discount rates 
and growth rates.  

Nextel Communications, Inc.  

On August 12, 2005, a subsidiary of Sprint Corporation merged with Nextel and, as a result, Sprint acquired 100% of the outstanding common 
shares of Nextel. Nextel, now a wholly owned subsidiary of Sprint Nextel, provides wireless voice and data services in the United States. This 
transaction was consummated as part of our overall strategy to offer the most comprehensive selection of voice, data and multimedia products 
and services. The results of Nextel’s operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements since the merger date.  

The aggregate consideration paid for the merger is as follows:  
   

We expect to spin off our local telecommunications business to our shareholders on a tax-free basis. To mitigate the risk that the Sprint Nextel 
stock that was issued in the merger would preclude this tax-free treatment and to ensure that Sprint Corporation would be treated as the acquiring 
entity for accounting purposes, the merger agreement provided for an allocation of cash and shares of Sprint Nextel common stock, determined 
as of the date of the merger, to ensure that former Nextel shareholders would own slightly less than 50% of the equity interests of Sprint Nextel. 
Pursuant to this allocation, Nextel common shareholders received $969 million in cash and 1.452 billion shares of Sprint Nextel voting and non-
voting common stock in the aggregate, or $0.84629198 and 1.26750218 shares of our stock in exchange for each share of Nextel stock. In 
connection with the merger, we amended our articles of incorporation to increase to 6.5 billion the number of shares of common stock authorized 
for issuance.  

The value of the newly issued shares was calculated using the average of the per share closing sales prices of Sprint Corporation Series 1 
common stock on the NYSE for the period two business days before and through the two business days after the December 15, 2004 
announcement of the merger.  
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Aggregate  

Consideration 
     (in millions) 
Payment to Nextel shareholders in cash     $ 969 
Payment to Nextel shareholders in stock       35,645 
Conversion of Nextel stock-based awards     

Vested stock-based awards       639 
Unvested stock-based awards       485 

Direct acquisition costs       78 
       

Total     $     37,816 
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In addition, Nextel stock-based awards were converted into Sprint Nextel stock-based awards with the shares issuable under the employee stock 
option plan and exercise prices of the awards adjusted based on an exchange ratio of 1.3 shares of Sprint Nextel common stock for each share of 
Nextel common stock, which represents approximately 104 million shares of Sprint Nextel common stock in the aggregate. The value of these 
awards was calculated by applying the fair value method under SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, and resulted in $1.1 billion in 
stock-based awards. The fair value was calculated on the stock-based awards outstanding on the date of completion of the merger, which include 
options to purchase our shares and deferred shares.  

We incurred approximately $78 million of direct acquisition costs associated with financial advisory, legal and other services, which were 
included in the total purchase price.  

We paid a premium (i.e., goodwill) over the fair value of the net tangible and identified intangible assets of Nextel for a number of potential 
strategic and financial benefits that are expected to be realized as a result of the merger, including, but not limited to, the following:  
   

   

   

   

Allocation of Purchase Price  

The approach to the estimation of the fair values of the Nextel intangible assets was primarily based on the income approach valuation technique 
and involved the following:  
   

   

   

   

Under the purchase method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of Nextel were recorded at their respective fair values as of the date of the 
merger. We are in the process of finalizing valuations of assets, including investments, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and 
certain liabilities. Given the size of the merger, the fair values set forth below are based on preliminary valuations and are subject to adjustment 
as additional information is obtained. Such additional information includes, but may not be limited to, the following: valuations of property, 
plant and equipment, plans relative to the disposition of certain assets acquired, exit from certain contractual arrangements and the expected 
involuntary termination of employees in connection with our integration activities and rationalization of the combined work force. When 
finalized, adjustments to goodwill  
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•   the combination of extensive network and spectrum assets, which enables us to offer consumers, businesses and government agencies a 

wide array of broadband wireless and integrated communications services; 

  
•   the combination of Nextel’s strength in business and government wireless services with our position in consumer wireless and data 

services, including services supported by our global IP network, which enables us to serve a broader customer base; 

  
•   the size and scale of the combined company, which is comparable to that of our two largest competitors, is expected to enable more 

operating efficiencies than either company could achieve on its own; and, 

  •   the ability to position us strategically in the fastest growing areas of the communications industry. 

  •   preparation of discounted cash flow analyses; 

  •   determination of the fair value of identified significant intangible assets; 

  •   reconciliation of the individual assets’  returns with the weighted average cost of capital; and 

  •   allocation of the excess purchase price over the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired to goodwill. 
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may result. The following table summarizes the preliminary estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and related 
deferred income taxes as of the acquisition date. The amounts reported as of September 30, 2005 reflect the estimated fair values as of the 
acquisition date of August 12, 2005, plus adjustments made during the third quarter of 2005. The adjustments listed in the table below include 
purchase price allocation adjustments made during the fourth quarter of 2005.  
   

In the fourth quarter 2005, a net increase was made to goodwill in the amount of $24 million primarily due to adjustments to liabilities in 
connection with the merger, which includes the recognition of involuntary termination benefits, costs associated with the termination of contracts 
and exit activities, the rationalization of property plant and equipment, and identification of loss contingencies that were in existence prior to 
consummation of the merger. Prior to the end of the purchase price allocation period, if information becomes available with respect to any 
material pre-merger contingencies where the related asset, liability or impairment is probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated, such 
items will be included in the purchase price allocation.  

Management continues to finalize its plans for rationalizing certain redundant assets and activities, such as facilities, software and infrastructure 
assets, and to integrate the combined companies. These plans affect many areas of the combined company, including sales and marketing, 
network, information technology, customer care and general and administrative functions. In connection with these activities, we expect to incur 
significant costs over the next several years associated with dispositions and integration activities. Management is in the process of finalizing 
these plans and expects to execute these plans over the next few years. We expect that the finalization of certain integration plans will result in 
adjustments to the purchase price allocation for the acquired assets and assumed liabilities of Nextel and may also result in the need to adjust the 
useful lives of certain network and other property, plant and equipment.  

In 2005, we recorded $197 million of costs recognized under EITF Issue No. 95-3, Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase 
Business Combination , as well as other purchase accounting guidance, as liabilities assumed in the purchase business combination. These costs 
are primarily associated with Nextel employee retention bonuses earned on the date of the merger and severance benefits for involuntary 
separations of Nextel employees. Additional liabilities for termination benefits to be provided to involuntarily separated Nextel employees are 
expected to be recognized as liabilities assumed in the purchase business combination.  
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     Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation   

     
As of  

September 30, 2005     Adjustments     
As of  

December 31, 2005   
     (in millions)   

Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents of $2,152     $ 5,501     $ 4     $ 5,505   
Property, plant and equipment       8,454       (80 )     8,374   
Goodwill       15,549       24       15,573   
Spectrum licenses       14,240       —      14,240   
Other indefinite life intangibles       400       —      400   
Customer relationships and other definite life intangibles       10,448       —      10,448   
Investments       2,680       (2 )     2,678   
Other assets       111       —      111   
Current liabilities       (2,910 )     (10 )     (2,920 ) 
Long-term debt       (8,984 )     —      (8,984 ) 
Deferred income taxes, net       (7,865 )     (70 )     (7,935 ) 
Other long-term liabilities       (334 )     175       (159 ) 
Deferred compensation included in shareholders’  equity       518       (33 )     485   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net assets acquired     $     37,808     $       8     $     37,816   
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Property, Plant and Equipment Acquired  

The fair values preliminarily allocated to property, plant and equipment acquired in the merger are as follows:  
   

The weighted average remaining useful lives are 6 years for network assets, 3 years for building and improvements and 2 years for non-network 
internal use software, office equipment and other assets.  

Goodwill and Intangibles Acquired  

Goodwill resulting from the merger with Nextel is allocated to the Wireless segment. Goodwill includes a portion of value for assembled 
workforce, which is not separately classified from goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 141. Goodwill, spectrum licenses and the Boost 
Mobile trademark are considered to have indefinite lives. They are not amortized, but rather are reviewed annually for impairment, or more 
frequently if indicators of impairment exist.  

Definite life intangibles include $9.5 billion associated with Nextel’s customer relationships, which will be amortized over five years using the 
sum of the years’ digits method, which we believe approximately reflects the estimated pattern in which the economic benefits will be 
consumed. Other definite life intangibles primarily include the Nextel and Direct Connect SM trademarks, which will be amortized over 10 years 
on a straight-line basis. See note 7 for information regarding the amortization expense of these assets.  

In accordance with SFAS No. 109 , Accounting for Income Taxes , a deferred income tax liability was not recorded on the goodwill since it is not 
tax deductible. Deferred income tax liabilities were recorded on the net assets acquired and will reverse as a tax benefit in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations in proportion to and over the amortization period of the related intangibles or upon their write-off or 
disposition, if any.  

Long-term Debt Assumed  

The fair value of long-term debt assumed as of the merger date is as follows:  
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Preliminary 
Fair Value  

     (in millions) 
Network equipment and software     $     7,370 
Buildings and improvements       239 
Non-network internal use software, office equipment and other       765 

       

Total     $ 8,374 
       

     
Preliminary 
Fair Value  

     (in millions) 
5.25% convertible senior notes due 2010, principal amount of $607 including a deferred  

premium of $3     $ 610 
9.5% senior serial redeemable notes due 2011, principal amount of $85 including a deferred premium of $5       90 
6.875% senior serial redeemable notes due 2013, principal amount of $1,473 including a deferred premium of $96       1,569 
5.95% senior serial redeemable notes due 2014, principal amount of $1,170 including a deferred premium of $38       1,208 
7.375% senior serial redeemable notes due 2015, principal amount of $2,137 including a deferred premium of $158       2,295 
Bank credit facility, including a deferred premium of $6       3,206 
Other       6 

       

Total     $     8,984 
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Pro Forma Financial Information  

The following pro forma consolidated results of operations assume that the merger with Nextel was completed as of January 1, 2005 and 2004 
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  
   

The pro forma amounts represent the historical operating results of Sprint and Nextel with adjustments for purchase accounting and to conform 
accounting policies that affect net operating revenues, costs of services and products, selling, general and administrative expenses, depreciation 
and amortization, interest expense, other income (expense), income taxes, and the elimination of intercompany activity.  

Affiliate Acquisitions  

During 2005, we acquired three PCS Affiliates. We believe that the acquisitions of Nextel Partners and the PCS Affiliates we have acquired to 
date will give us control of the distribution of services under our Sprint and Nextel brands, and provide us with the strategic and financial 
benefits associated with a larger customer base and expanded network coverage, which include a number of markets with favorable growth and 
competitive characteristics.  

US Unwired Inc.  

On August 12, 2005, we acquired US Unwired, a PCS Affiliate, for a purchase price of $968 million in cash. As of December 31, 2005, the 
majority of the purchase price has been preliminarily allocated to goodwill in the amount of $872 million and customer relationships in the 
amount of $276 million. See note 7 for information regarding amortization expense for customer relationships. We are in the process of 
completing our valuation of US Unwired’s assets and liabilities, as well as internal studies of assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible 
assets, certain liabilities, and commercial contracts, which when final, may result in additional adjustments to the purchase price allocation for 
the acquired assets and assumed liabilities of US Unwired.  

Gulf Coast Wireless, Limited Partnership  

On October 3, 2005, we acquired Gulf Coast Wireless, a PCS Affiliate, for $211 million in cash, net of the 13.4% ownership interest held by US 
Unwired, Inc. As of December 31, 2005, the majority of the purchase price has been preliminarily allocated to intangible assets including 
goodwill in the amount of $220 million and customer relationships of $48 million. See note 7 for information regarding the amortization expense 
for customer relationships. We are in the process of completing our valuation of Gulf Coast Wireless’ assets and liabilities, as well as internal 
studies of assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, certain liabilities, and commercial contracts, which when final, may result in 
additional adjustments to the purchase price allocation for the acquired assets and assumed liabilities of Gulf Coast Wireless.  

IWO Holdings, Inc.  

On October 20, 2005, we acquired IWO Holdings, a PCS Affiliate, for $192 million in cash. As of December 31, 2005, the excess purchase price 
over the fair value of the net assets acquired has been preliminarily allocated to  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
     2005    2004   

     
(in millions except  

per share data)    

Net operating revenues     $     44,069    $     40,902   
              

  

Net income (loss)     $ 1,593    $ (1,404 ) 
              

  

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share     $ 0.54    $ (0.50 ) 
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intangible assets including goodwill in the amount of $249 million and customer relationships of $94 million. See note 7 for information 
regarding the amortization expense for customer relationships. We are in the process of completing our valuation of IWO Holdings’ assets and 
liabilities, as well as internal studies of assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, certain liabilities, and commercial contracts, 
which when final, may result in additional adjustments to the purchase price allocation for the acquired assets and assumed liabilities of IWO 
Holdings.  

The results of operations of these 2005 affiliate purchase acquisitions are included in our consolidated financial statements from the respective 
dates of acquisition. Pro forma information has not been provided for any of the 2005 affiliate acquisitions, as the impact to prior periods would 
have been immaterial.  

Acquisitions Subsequent to December 31, 2005  

On January 31, 2006, we completed the acquisition of Enterprise Communications Partnership, a PCS Affiliate, for $77 million in cash.  

On February 1, 2006, we completed the acquisition of Alamosa Holdings Inc., the largest PCS Affiliate, for $3.4 billion in cash.  

On February 21, 2006, we acquired 94% of the voting stock of Velocita Wireless Holding Corporation for $157 million in cash. We expect to 
acquire the remaining 6% of Velocita Wireless in May 2006 for an additional $7 million in cash. Velocita Wireless owns and operates a 
nationwide digital packet-switched wireless data network in the 900 MHz frequency band.  

Note 3.    Recombination of Tracking Stock  

On April 23, 2004, we recombined our two tracking stocks. Each share of PCS common stock automatically converted into 0.50 shares of FON 
common stock. The conversion of PCS common stock into FON common stock resulted in an increase in FON common stock outstanding of 
518.5 million shares as of April 23, 2004. As of April 23, 2004, the FON Group and the PCS Group ceased to exist. Our common stock now 
represents all of our operations and assets, including Wireless, Long Distance and Local operations. The financial statements are shown as if the 
recombination had occurred as of the earliest period presented.  

Earnings Per Common Share  

For 2003, all per share amounts have been restated to reflect the recombination of the FON common stock and PCS common stock at an 
identical conversion ratio of 0.50. The conversion ratio was also applied to dilutive PCS securities (mainly stock options, employee stock 
purchase plan shares, convertible preferred stock and restricted stock units) to determine diluted weighted average shares on a consolidated basis. 
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Following is previously reported earnings per common share information for the FON Group and the PCS Group:  
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     2003   

     
FON  

Group     
PCS  

Group    

     
(in millions, except earnings and  

dividends per common share)   

Income (loss) from continuing operations     $ 360    $ (652 ) 
Discontinued operations, net       1,324      —  
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net       258      —  

              
  

Net income (loss)       1,942      (652 ) 
Preferred stock dividends received (paid)       8      (15 ) 

              
  

Income (loss) available to common shareholders     $     1,950    $ (667 ) 
              

  

Basic earnings (loss) per common share (2)        

Continuing operations     $ 0.41    $ (0.65 ) 
Discontinued operations, net       1.47      —  
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net       0.29      —  

              
  

Total     $ 2.16    $ (0.65 ) 
              

  

Basic weighted average common shares       901          1,029   
              

  

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share (1)(2)        

Continuing operations     $ 0.41    $ (0.65 ) 
Discontinued operations, net       1.47      —  
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net       0.29      —  

              
  

Total     $ 2.16    $ (0.65 ) 
              

  

Diluted weighted average common shares       903      1,029   
              

  

Dividends per common share        

FON common stock     $ 0.50    $ —  
              

  

(1) As the effects of including potentially dilutive PCS securities were antidilutive, they were not included in the diluted weighted average 
common shares outstanding for the PCS Group, nor were they included in the calculation of diluted earnings per common share. 

(2) Earnings per common share amounts may not add due to rounding. 



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (C ontinued)  

   
Note 4.    Supplemental Balance Sheet Information  
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     December 31,   
     2005     2004   
     (in millions)   

Accounts receivable, net       

Trade     $ 5,065     $ 3,372   
Other       78       28   
Less allowance for doubtful accounts       (316 )     (293 ) 

       
  

      
  

   $ 4,827     $ 3,107   
       

  

      

  

Prepaid expenses and other current assets       

Prepaid expenses     $ 484     $ 303   
Deferred charges       103       106   
Other       252       138   

       
  

      
  

   $ 839     $ 547   
       

  

      

  

Property, plant and equipment, net       

Land     $ 333     $ 334   
Network equipment and software       41,192       32,138   
Buildings and improvements       6,873       6,182   
Non-network internal use software, office equipment and other       3,785       3,120   
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization       (24,726 )     (20,934 ) 

       
  

      
  

     27,457       20,840   
Network asset inventory and construction in progress       3,676       1,788   

       
  

      
  

   $     31,133     $     22,628   
       

  

      

  

Accounts payable       

Trade     $ 2,558     $ 1,535   
Accrued interconnection costs       449       410   
Construction obligations       407       361   
Other       413       365   

       
  

      
  

   $ 3,827     $ 2,671   
       

  

      

  

Accrued expenses and other       

Deferred revenues     $ 1,439     $ 737   
Payroll and related       814       428   
Accrued taxes       695       404   
Accrued interest       448       335   
Other       1,780       1,039   

       
  

      
  

   $ 5,176     $ 2,943   
       

  

      

  

Other liabilities       

Deferred rental income-communication towers     $ 1,097     $ —  
Deferred revenue       95       52   
Other       1,450       1,062   

       
  

      
  

   $ 2,642     $ 1,114   
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Note 5.    Investments  

Specific investment types and the related carrying amounts include:  
   

Investments in Debt Securities  

Our investments in debt securities, including auction rate securities, with original or remaining maturities at purchase of greater than 90 days but 
less than one year, are classified in current assets as marketable securities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. We also invested in 
debt securities with original or remaining maturities at purchase of 90 days or less. These securities were included in cash and cash equivalents 
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  

Interest on debt securities is reinvested and recognized in interest income in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. We 
recognized approximately $96 million of interest income on these investments in 2005 compared to $11 million in 2004. Accumulated 
unrealized holding gains and losses were immaterial in both 2005 and 2004.  

Investments in Equity Securities  

As of December 31, 2005, $617 million of our marketable equity securities relates to our investment in NII Holdings Inc. common stock and is 
reflected in current assets as marketable securities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. We acquired this investment as part of the 
merger with Nextel in the third quarter 2005 at a fair value of $892 million. In 2005, we received approximately $376 million in cash and 
recognized a $15 million gain on the sale of a portion of our holdings in NII Holdings common stock. We continue to hold 14.7 million shares, 
following a two-for-one stock split in November 2005, or less than 10% of the outstanding common stock of NII Holdings. We have entered into 
a series of option contracts associated with the planned sale of our remaining investment in NII Holdings, which will mature during the fourth 
quarter 2006. See note 12 for additional information.  

In 2005, in connection with the maturity of the remaining EarthLink variable prepaid forward contracts, 10.5 million shares of EarthLink 
common stock were used to settle approximately $90 million of the forward contracts recorded in outstanding long-term debt. We recognized a 
$9 million gain on these transactions. In 2004, in connection with the maturity of certain EarthLink variable prepaid forward contracts, 
5.6 million shares were used to settle approximately $48 million of the forward contracts recorded in outstanding long-term debt. We sold an 
additional 1.0 million shares in the open market upon settlement of the contracts. We recognized an $11 million gain on these transactions. As of 
December 31, 2005, we held 1.8 million shares of EarthLink common stock, valued at $20 million. See note 12 for additional information.  
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     December 31,   
         2005             2004       
     (in millions)   

Investments in debt securities     $     1,172     $     536   
Investments in equity securities       734       157   
Equity method investments       

Nextel Partners       2,346       —  
Virgin Mobile USA, LLC       (180 )     20   

Other investments       60       9   
       

  
      

  

     4,132     $ 722   
Less amounts included as marketable securities       (1,763 )     (445 ) 

       
  

      
  

   $ 2,369     $ 277   
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We hold approximately $97 million in other investments at December 31, 2005 which are included in investments on the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets.  

Accumulated unrealized holding gains, net of tax, resulting from our investments in equity securities of $90 million as of December 31, 2005 
and $42 million as of December 31, 2004 were included in accumulated other comprehensive loss on the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets.  

Equity Method Investments  

As of December 31, 2005, investments accounted for using the equity method consisted primarily of our investments in Nextel Partners and 
Virgin Mobile USA, LLC. These investments were reflected in investments on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  

Nextel Partners, Inc.  

We owned approximately 30% of the outstanding common stock of Nextel Partners with a carrying value of $2.3 billion as of December 31, 
2005. In 2005, we recorded $137 million of equity in earnings associated with our ownership interest in Nextel Partners, the majority of which 
related to a release by Nextel Partners of a significant portion of its deferred tax valuation allowance.  

As a result of the merger with Nextel, the shareholders of Nextel Partners in October 2005, exercised their right to require us to purchase, at fair 
market value, the 70% of the outstanding shares of Nextel Partners stock that we do not already own. In December 2005, we and Nextel Partners 
announced that the purchase price for each share of Nextel Partners stock under this right had been determined to be $28.50. As a result, the 
aggregate amount payable to shareholders of Nextel Partners at closing will be about $6.5 billion including amounts payable upon conversion of 
debt securities and settlement of options. The purchase is subject to customary regulatory approvals and is currently expected to be completed by 
the end of the second quarter 2006.  

Virgin Mobile USA, LLC  

As of December 31, 2005, we held a 49% ownership interest in Virgin Mobile USA. Since Virgin Mobile USA’s inception, we have contributed 
approximately $180 million to the venture in the form of cash and discounted network services, thereby satisfying 100% of our original 
commitments. In 2004, we advanced $10 million to Virgin Mobile USA in the form of a loan to be repaid in 2005. An additional $10 million 
was advanced in the form of a loan in January 2005. Applying equity method accounting, we have recognized losses to the extent of our 
investment, except that under the terms of the joint venture agreement, we were guaranteed a $20 million distribution in the event of liquidation.  

In July 2005, we received approximately $200 million from Virgin Mobile USA representing a loan repayment of $20 million and a return of 
capital of $180 million resulting in a negative investment balance of $180 million as of December 31, 2005. Virgin Mobile USA funded the 
distribution with proceeds from a loan. Although we have no obligation to provide future funding to the joint venture or to return the distribution, 
we have accounted for the return of capital as a negative investment. As a result of this repayment, under the terms of the joint venture 
agreement, we no longer hold any right to a guaranteed distribution in liquidation. Our investment in Virgin Mobile USA was $20 million as of 
December 31, 2004.  

Rogers Communications, Inc.  

In July 2005, Rogers Communications, Inc., or RCI, acquired Call-Net Enterprises, Inc. in a stock for stock transaction, including the common 
shares and Class B shares of Call-Net owned by us. Prior to Call-Net’s  
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acquisition by RCI, we accounted for our investment in Call-Net as an equity method investment carried at a zero basis with previously 
recognized carry-over losses. The RCI stock received in exchange was recorded at fair value as an equity security investment and a gain of $18 
million was recognized. Subsequent changes in the value of this investment have been recorded in other comprehensive income.  

Combined, unaudited, summarized financial information as reported by the investees accounted for using the equity method was as follows:  
   

The carrying amount of our investment in Nextel Partners exceeds the amount of the underlying equity in net assets by $2.1 billion due to 
purchase price accounting applied at the time of the Sprint-Nextel merger. This difference is principally related to customer relationships, 
spectrum licenses and goodwill. The customer relationship portion is being amortized over seven years, using the sum of the years digits’ 
method. The portion related to spectrum licenses and goodwill is not being amortized.  

Note 6.    Fair Value of Financial Instruments  

We have determined the estimated fair values of financial instruments using available market information and appropriate valuation 
methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop fair value estimates. As a result, the estimates 
presented below are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that we could realize or be required to pay in a current market exchange. The use 
of different market assumptions, as well as estimation methodologies, may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
         2005            2004             2003       
     (in millions)   

Results of operations          

Net operating revenues     $ 3,238    $     1,244     $ 831   
Operating income (loss)       349      (181 )     (279 ) 
Net income (loss)       502      (206 )     (255 ) 

Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated subsidiaries     $ 110    $ (39 )   $ (77 ) 
Financial position          

Current assets     $ 845    $ 239     $ 260   
Other assets       1,712      465       480   

              
  

      
  

Total assets     $     2,557    $ 704     $ 740   
              

  

      

  

Current liabilities     $ 568    $ 448     $ 294   
Other liabilities       1,742      267       337   

              
  

      
  

Total liabilities     $ 2,310    $ 715     $     631   
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The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our financial instruments at year-end were as follows:  
   

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Marketable Securities, Restricted Cash, Accounts Receivable, Deposits, Accounts Payable and Accrued 
Expenses  

Due to the short term nature of these items, the carrying amounts are reasonable estimates of fair value.  

Marketable Debt and Equity Securities  

We estimate the fair value of these securities based on quoted market prices. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, marketable debt and equity 
securities included within marketable securities and investments consist of the following:  
   

Long-Term Debt  

The fair value of our long-term debt, including the current portion, is estimated based on available market prices of our senior notes and loans 
under our bank credit facility.  

Derivative Instruments  

The fair value of these instruments is based on estimates using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. See note 
12 for additional information.  

Redeemable Preferred Stock  

We estimate the fair value of these securities by using available market data to value a debt instrument with embedded optionality.  

Letters of Credit  

Outstanding letters of credit totaled $2.6 billion as of December 31, 2005 and $123 million as of December 31, 2004. Pursuant to the terms of the 
Report and Order described in note 15 below, we were required to establish a  
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     December 31, 
     2005    2004 

     
Carrying  
Amount     

Estimated 
Fair Value    

Carrying  
Amount     

Estimated  
Fair Value  

     (in millions) 
Cash and cash equivalents     $ 8,902    $ 8,902    $ 4,176    $ 4,176 
Investments in securities       1,906      1,906      693      693 
Restricted cash and deposits       174      174      148      148 
Total debt, including current portion           25,679      27,999          17,204          19,568 
Redeemable preferred stock       247      261      247      284 

     
Amortized 

Cost     

Gross  
Unrealized 

Gain     

Gross  
Unrealized 

Loss     
Fair  

Value  
     (in millions) 
2005              

Available-for-sale marketable debt and equity securities     $     1,763    $     143    $     —   $     1,906 
2004              

Available-for-sale marketable debt and equity securities     $ 627    $ 67    $ 1    $ 693 
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letter of credit in the amount of $2.5 billion to provide assurance that funds will be available to pay the relocation costs of the incumbent users of 
the 800 MHz spectrum in connection with the band reconfiguration process. We obtained the letter of credit using borrowing capacity under 
Nextel’s then existing revolving credit facility and it continues to be supported by the new credit facility entered into in December 2005. The 
letter of credit reflects fair value as a condition of its underlying purpose and is subject to fees competitively determined in the market place. We 
also use letters of credit to provide credit support for various financial obligations.  

Concentrations of Risk  

Our accounts receivable are not subject to any concentration of credit risk. We are exposed to the risk of loss that would occur if a counterparty 
defaults on a derivative transaction used for hedging and risk management purposes. This exposure is controlled through credit approvals, 
continual review and monitoring of all counterparties and legal review of contracts. In the event of nonperformance by the counterparties, our 
accounting loss would be limited to the net amount we would be entitled to receive under the terms of the applicable interest rate swap 
agreement or foreign currency contract. However, we do not anticipate nonperformance by any of the counterparties to these contracts.  

We rely on Motorola, Inc. to provide us with technology improvements designed to expand our iDEN-based wireless voice capacity and improve 
our services. Motorola provides all of the iDEN infrastructure equipment used in the iDEN network, and substantially all iDEN handset devices. 
Motorola is and is expected to continue to be our sole source supplier of iDEN infrastructure and iDEN handsets, except BlackBerry ® devices, 
which are manufactured by Research in Motion, or RIM. Further, our ability to timely and efficiently implement the spectrum reconfiguration 
plan in connection with the FCC’s Report and Order is dependent, in part, on Motorola.  

Note 7.    Intangible Assets  
   

Indefinite Life Intangibles  

We have identified goodwill, spectrum licenses and our Sprint and Boost Mobile trademarks as indefinite life intangibles after considering the 
expected use of the assets, the regulatory and economic environment within which they are being used, and the effects of obsolescence on their 
use.  
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        December 31, 2005   December 31, 2004 

      Useful Lives   

Gross  
Carrying  

Value    
Accumulated 
Amortization     

Net  
Carrying  

Value    

Gross  
Carrying  

Value    
Accumulated 
Amortization     

Net  
Carrying  

Value  
    (in millions) 
Indefinite life intangible assets                

Goodwill    Indefinite   $     21,315   $           —    $ 21,315   $ 4,401   $     —    $ 4,401 
FCC licenses    Indefinite     18,023     —      18,023     3,376     —      3,376 
Trademarks    Indefinite     416     —      416     16     —      16 

              
  

                  
  

      

      39,754     —      39,754     7,793     —      7,793 
              

  
                  

  
      

Definite life intangible assets                

Customer relationships    3 to 5 years   $ 9,953   $ (1,302 )   $ 8,651   $ 35   $ (6 )   $ 29 
Trademarks    10 years     900     (34 )     866     —    —      —
Other  

  

Up to 5  
years     73     (10 )     63     19     (5 )     14 

              
  

                  
  

      

      10,926     (1,346 )     9,580     54     (11 )     43 
              

  
                  

  
      

Total intangible assets      $ 50,680   $ (1,346 )   $     49,334   $     7,847   $ (11 )   $     7,836 
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Substantially all of the goodwill is allocated to the wireless segment. Goodwill includes a portion of value for assembled workforce, which is not 
separately classified from goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 141.  

The changes in the carrying value of goodwill are as follows:  
   

We hold several kinds of licenses to deploy our services: 1.9 gigahertz, or GHz, PCS licenses utilized in our CDMA network, 800 megahertz, or 
MHz, and 900 MHz licenses utilized in our iDEN network, and 2.5 GHz licenses that we use for first generation wireless internet access 
services. We also hold 2.5 GHz, 1.9 GHz and other FCC licenses that we currently do not utilize in our networks or operations. As long as we 
act within the requirements and constraints of the regulatory authorities, the renewal and extension of our licenses is reasonably certain at 
minimal cost. Spectrum licenses authorize wireless carriers to use radio frequency spectrum. That spectrum is a renewable, reusable resource 
that does not deplete or exhaust over time. At present there is no competing technology on the horizon that would render spectrum obsolete. 
Currently, there are no changes in the competitive or legislative environments that would put in question the future need for spectrum licenses.  

The Sprint and Boost Mobile trademarks are highly respected brands with positive connotations. We have no legal, regulatory or contractual 
limitations associated with our trademarks. We cultivate and protect the use of our brands.  

Definite Life Intangibles  

Definite life intangibles consist primarily of customer relationships of which $9.5 billion was acquired through our merger with Nextel. 
Customer relationships are amortized over three to five years using the sum of the years’ digits method, which we believe best reflects the 
estimated pattern in which the economic benefits will be consumed. Other definite life intangibles primarily include the Nextel and Direct 
Connect SM trade names, which will be amortized over 10 years on a straight-line basis. Based on the definite life intangibles as of December 31, 
2005, amortization expense will be $3.2 billion in 2006, $2.5 billion in 2007, $1.8 billion in 2008, $1.1 billion in 2009 and $0.5 billion in 2010.  

Spectrum Reconfiguration Obligations  

On February 7, 2005, Nextel accepted the terms and conditions of the Report and Order of the FCC, which implemented a spectrum 
reconfiguration plan designed to eliminate interference with public safety operators in the 800 MHz band. Under the terms of the Report and 
Order, prior to the August 12, 2005 merger date, Nextel surrendered its spectrum rights in the 700 MHz spectrum band and certain portions of its 
spectrum rights in the 800 MHz band, and received spectrum rights in the 1.9 GHz band and spectrum rights in a different part of the 800 MHz 
band and undertook to pay the costs incurred by Nextel and third parties in connection with the reconfiguration plan. Based on the FCC’s 
determination of the values of the spectrum rights received and relinquished by Nextel, the minimum obligation incurred under the Report and 
Order is $2.8 billion. The Report and Order also provides that qualifying costs we incur as part of the reconfiguration plan, including costs to 
reconfigure our own infrastructure and spectrum positions, can be used to offset the minimum obligation of $2.8 billion; however, we are 
obligated to pay the full amount of the costs relating to the reconfiguration plan, even if those costs exceed that amount.  
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     (in millions ) 
Balance, December 31, 2004     $ 4,401   

Goodwill acquired through Nextel merger       15,573   
Goodwill acquired through PCS Affiliate acquisitions       1,341   

       
  

Balance, December 31, 2005     $ 21,315   
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The Report and Order requires us to complete the reconfiguration plan within a 36-month period, subject to certain exceptions particularly with 
respect to markets that border Mexico and Canada. If, as a result of events within our control we fail to complete the reconfiguration plan within 
the 36-month period, we could be subject to actions, which could be material. In addition, a financial reconciliation is required to be completed 
in 2008 at the end of the reconfiguration implementation, at which time we are required to make a payment to the U.S. Department of the 
Treasury to the extent that the value of the spectrum rights received exceeds the total of (i) the value of spectrum rights that are surrendered and 
(ii) the qualifying costs referred to above.  

At August 12, 2005, we had recorded a liability of $403 million associated with the then-estimated portion of the reconfiguration costs that 
represented our best estimate of amounts to be paid under the Report and Order that would not benefit our infrastructure or spectrum positions. 
As of December 31, 2005, we reduced that estimate by $137 million, through a reduction in goodwill, to reflect updated estimates of these costs. 
All other costs incurred pursuant to the Report and Order that relate to the spectrum and infrastructure, when expended, are accounted for either 
as property, plant and equipment or as additions to the spectrum license intangible asset, consistent with our accounting and capitalization policy. 

Certain of our reconfiguration costs which we will submit to an FCC appointed Transition Administrator seeking credit against our $2.8 billion 
obligation are based on estimated allocations between reconfiguration activity and our normal network growth. These estimated allocations may 
vary depending on key assumptions including subscribers, call volumes and other factors over the life of the reconfiguration program. As a 
result, the amount allocated to reconfiguration activity is subject to change based on final assessments made at the conclusion of the 
reconfiguration program process. Since we, the Transition Administrator and the FCC have not yet reached an agreement on our methodology 
for calculating the amount to be submitted for credit, we cannot provide assurance that we will be granted full credit for certain of these network 
costs.  

Note 8.    Restructuring and Asset Impairments  

Organizational Realignment  

In late 2003, we initiated a company-wide effort to create a more efficient cost structure by realigning internal resources to enhance our focus on 
the needs and preferences of two distinct consumer types–businesses and individuals. In conjunction with the market-facing realignment, we also 
undertook initiatives to improve productivity.  

We recognized related pre-tax charges of $59 million in 2003 and $130 million in 2004 primarily associated with severance benefits associated 
with the involuntary employee separation of approximately 5,400 employees. We have completed substantially all activities related to this 
realignment, and in the fourth quarter 2005, we completed an analysis to finalize original estimates. This analysis resulted in an $11 million 
reduction in liabilities. The remaining $6 million commitment has been reclassified as other current liabilities.  

Web Hosting Wind-down  

In 2003, we announced the wind-down of web hosting services offered by Long Distance. This decision resulted in a $316 million pre-tax charge 
for asset impairments. This wind-down, along with related restructurings in other Long Distance operations, also resulted in pre-tax charges of 
$60 million in 2003, $63 million in 2004 and $9 million in 2005, primarily related to facility lease terminations. As of December 31, 2005, 
substantially all activities associated with this wind-down have been completed; however, we continue to be obligated under facility leases that 
expire from 2007 through 2014.  

Wireless Billing Platform Termination  

In 2003, we announced the termination of the development of a new billing platform in Wireless. This decision resulted in pre-tax charges of 
$351 million, consisting of $339 million for asset impairments and $12 million for  
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other contractual obligations. In 2004, we recorded an expense reduction of $2 million as a result of finalizing the contractual obligations 
associated with this action.  

The 2005, 2004 and 2003 restructuring activity is summarized as follows:  
   

   

   

Note – during 2003, we also finalized estimates related to prior years’ restructuring activities, resulting in a $52 million reduction in liabilities, 
and reclassification of remaining liabilities to other current liabilities.  
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     2005 Activity 

     

December 31, 2004 
 

Liability Balance    

Total  
Restructuring 

 
Charge      

Cash  
Payments     

Reclasses to 
 

Other  
Liabilities     

December 31, 2005 
Liability Balance  

     (in millions) 
Restructuring Events              

Organizational Realignment              

Severance     $ 67    $ (8 )   $ (55 )   $ (4 )   $ —
Other exit costs       8      (3 )     (3 )     (2 )     —

Web Hosting Wind-down              

Other exit costs       93          9       (24 )     —      78 
              

  
      

  
      

  
      

Total     $     168    $ (2 )   $ (82 )   $ (6 )   $     78 
              

  

      

  

      

  

      

     2004 Activity 

     

December 31, 2003 
 

Liability Balance    

Total  
Restructuring 

 
Charge      

Cash  
Payments     

December 31, 2004 
Liability Balance  

     (in millions) 
Restructuring Events            

Organizational Realignment            

Severance     $ 54    $ 122     $ (109 )   $ 67 
Other exit costs       —     8       —      8 

Web Hosting Wind-down            

Severance       6      (2 )     (4 )     —
Other exit costs       45      65       (17 )     93 

Wireless Billing Platform Termination            

Other exit costs       12      (2 )     (10 )     —
              

  
      

  
      

Total     $     117    $     191     $ (140 )   $     168 
              

  

      

  

      

     2003 Activity 

       

December 31, 2002 
 

Liability Balance    

Total  
Restructuring 

 
Charge     

Cash  
Payments     

December 31, 2003 
Liability Balance  

     (in millions) 
Restructuring Events             

Organizational Realignment             

Severance     $ —   $ 59    $ (5 )   $ 54 
Web Hosting Wind-down             

Severance       —     15      (9 )     6 
Other exit costs       —     45      —      45 

Wireless Billing Platform Termination             

Other exit costs       —     12      —      12 
                     

  
      

Total     $     —   $     131    $ (14 )   $     117 
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Other Asset Impairments  

In 2005, we incurred a $77 million asset impairment related to the write-off and removal from service of certain internal-use software systems 
that are no longer being utilized by Local. We also incurred $19 million in asset impairments related to hurricane damage, which were 
substantially recovered from insurance carriers. Also in 2005, we recorded $50 million in asset impairments related to the write-down of various 
software applications.  

In 2004, we determined that business conditions and events occurring in 2004 and impacting our Long Distance operations constituted a 
“triggering event” requiring an evaluation of the recoverability of the Long Distance long-lived assets pursuant to SFAS No. 144, Accounting for 
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets .  

The industry-wide business conditions and events included the continuing impacts of the highly-competitive Long Distance market, the related 
aggressive pricing, recent changes in the regulatory climate negatively impacting the long-term ability of Long Distance to bridge the last mile in 
the consumer and small business market segments, product substitution and customers’ accelerated demands for cost-effective, advanced, IP-
driven telecommunications solutions requiring transparent wireline and wireless connectivity. In light of these industry-wide business conditions 
and events, we reevaluated our strategy and financial forecasts in 2004.  

Evaluations of asset recoverability are performed at the lowest asset or asset group level for which identifiable cash flows are largely 
independent of the cash flows of other assets or asset groups. Due to the integrated nature of the long distance network, we conducted our testing 
of the asset group at the Long Distance entity level (excluding assets held for sale), as this is the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows 
are available. Further, it was concluded that the fiber-optic backbone constituted the primary asset of the Long Distance asset group. 
Accordingly, cash flows were projected over the remaining useful life of the fiber-optic backbone. These cash flow projections reflect estimated 
future operating results, considering all relevant circumstances and events, and estimated capital expenditures required to maintain, but not to 
increase, the service potential of the asset group. The resulting undiscounted future cash flows were less than the carrying value of the Long 
Distance asset group, requiring that the asset group be reduced to fair value.  

The fair value of the asset group was determined by discounting the cash flow projections at a 10% discount rate, reflecting a risk-adjusted 
weighted average cost of capital. The resulting fair value of the asset group required a $3.52 billion pre-tax non-cash impairment charge, 
reducing the net carrying value of Long Distance property, plant and equipment by about 60%, to $2.29 billion at September 30, 2004.  

Also in 2004, we completed the sale of our wholesale Dial IP business for $34 million, resulting in a pre-tax non-cash charge of $21 million.  

In 2003, we recorded a pre-tax, non-cash charge of $1.2 billion related to the write-down in the carrying value of our BRS spectrum. Our 
evaluation of our business use for this asset resulted in a decision to end pursuit of a residential fixed wireless strategy. This decision required an 
impairment analysis of the asset. As a result of our merger, we have increased our BRS spectrum holdings, and intend to use this spectrum in 
combination with other spectrum holdings to offer wireless interactive multimedia services.  
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Note 9.    Long-term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations  

Our long-term debt and capital lease obligations at year-end were as follows:  
   

Senior Notes  

As of December 31, 2005, we have $21.4 billion in principal amount of convertible and senior serial redeemable notes. This balance primarily 
consists of newly acquired debt from the merger with Nextel of $5.8 billion, the acquisition of PCS Affiliates of $659 million and the existing 
debt of one of our subsidiaries of $14.9 billion. Cash interest on these notes is payable semiannually in arrears. We may choose to redeem some 
or all of these notes at the then applicable redemption price, plus accrued and unpaid interest. The $607 million in aggregate principal amount of 
our 5.25% notes are convertible at the option of the holders into our Series 1 common stock at any time prior to redemption, repurchase or 
maturity at an effective conversion price of $57.23 per share. As of December 31, 2005, senior notes also included $130 million of debt 
associated with a consolidated variable interest entity.  

Our weighted average effective interest rate related to these borrowings was 7.0% for the year-ended December 31, 2005 and 7.1% for the year-
ended 2004. The effective interest rate includes the effect of interest rate swap agreements accounted for as fair value hedges. See note 12 for 
more details regarding interest rate swaps.  

In February 2006, we completed the redemption of all of our outstanding 9.5% senior redeemable notes due 2011, of which $85 million in 
aggregate principal amount was outstanding as of December 31, 2005. As of December 31, 2005, we have recorded $93 million of restricted 
cash in prepaid expenses and other current assets to satisfy this obligation.  
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    December 31, 2004     

Acquired Debt 
 

and  
Borrowings    

Retirements and 
Repayments of  

Principal  
and Other      December 31, 2005   

    (in millions)   

Senior notes due 2007 to 2032          

4.78% to 9.50%, including fair value hedge 
adjustments of $19 and $(17), and deferred 
premiums of $0 and $332 net of unamortized 
discounts of $31 and $65    $ 15,919     $ 6,559   $ (1,039 )   $ 21,439   

Bank credit facilities due 2006 and 2010          

4.775%, including deferred premium of $0 and 
$15 net of an unamortized discount of $0 and 
$9      —      6,406     (3,200 )     3,206   

Debentures and notes due 2013 to 2022          

6.75% to 9.25%      400       —              —      400   
First mortgage bonds due 2008 to 2025          

6.75% to 9.79%, net of unamortized discounts of 
$2 and $2      579       —    (114 )     465   

Capital lease obligations          

4.11% to 11.174%      215       43     (95 )     163   
Other      91       6     (91 )     6   

      
  

            
  

      
  

    17,204     $     13,014   $ (4,539 )     25,679   
              

  

  

Current maturities of long-term debt      (1,288 )         (5,047 ) 
      

  
          

  

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations    $     15,916         $     20,632   
      

  

          

  



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (C ontinued)  

   
Bank Credit Facilities  

As of December 31, 2005, our bank credit facilities provide for total unsecured financing capacity of $10.2 billion, of which we have borrowed 
$3.2 billion and have $2.5 billion of outstanding letters of credit, resulting in $4.5 billion of available revolving credit.  

On December 19, 2005, we entered into a new bank credit facility, consisting of a five year $6.0 billion revolving credit facility and a 364 day 
$3.2 billion term loan, for a total unsecured financing capacity of $9.2 billion. Under the terms of this new loan, the interest rate equates to the 
London Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, or the prime rate plus a spread that varies depending on the applicable borrower’s or guarantor’s 
credit ratings. The $6.0 billion revolving credit facility is also subject to a facility fee on the total facility which is payable quarterly. Facility fees 
can vary between 4 to 15 basis points based upon our credit ratings. This facility replaces the existing Nextel credit agreement, which included a 
$4.0 billion revolving credit facility and a $2.2 billion term loan. In connection with the execution of the new credit agreement, the $3.2 billion 
term loan was used to refinance the outstanding term loan and revolving credit loans under the existing Nextel credit agreement, which was 
terminated in connection with entering into the new credit agreement.  

The transaction related to the term loan was accounted for as a modification of debt in accordance with EITF Issue No. 96-19, Debtor’s 
Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Debt Instruments , because the terms of the new loan were not substantially different from the 
terms of the original loan. Thus, the $15 million unamortized premium associated with the original $2.2 billion loan will be amortized over the 
remaining life of the new loan.  

The refinancing of the revolving credit facility was accounted for in accordance with EITF Issue No. 98-14, Debtor’s Accounting for Changes in 
Line-of-Credit or Revolving-Debt Arrangements . Because the borrowing capacity of the new facility is greater than the borrowing capacity of 
the original facility, any unamortized discount plus any debt issue costs are deferred and amortized over the remaining term of the new facility. 
Thus, $9 million of unamortized discount and $4 million of debt issue costs will be amortized over the remaining life of the new facility.  

The $2.5 billion of letters of credit that were outstanding under the Nextel credit agreement remain outstanding under the new $6.0 billion 
revolving credit facility. We also have an additional $118 million of outstanding letters of credit as of December 31, 2005 used for various 
financial obligations.  

Our credit facility requires compliance with a financial ratio test as defined under the credit agreement. The maturity dates of the loans may 
accelerate if we do not comply with the financial ratio test. As of December 31, 2005, we were in compliance with the financial ratio test under 
our credit facility. We are also obligated to repay the loans if certain change of control events occur. Borrowings under the facility are unsecured. 

Our ability to borrow additional amounts under the credit facility may be restricted by provisions included in some of our public notes that limit 
the incurrence of additional indebtedness in certain circumstances. The availability of borrowings under this facility also is subject to the 
satisfaction or waiver of specified borrowing conditions. As of December 31, 2005, we have satisfied the conditions under this facility.  

The credit facility also contains covenants which limit our ability and the ability of some of our subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, 
including guaranteeing obligations of other entities, creating liens, consolidating, merging or selling all or substantially all of our and their assets 
and entering into transactions with affiliates. Although these covenants are similar to those contained in our previous credit facility, they have 
been revised under the new credit facility to provide us with greater operating flexibility.  
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In June 2005, we entered into a revolving credit facility of $1.0 billion. This facility is unsecured and is structured as a 364-day credit line with a 
subsequent one-year, $1.0 billion term-out option. In connection with the execution of the new credit agreement, on December 16, 2005, we 
amended this facility to allow Nextel to participate in the new facility. We had no outstanding borrowings against this facility as of 
December 31, 2005.  

Debentures  

As of December 31, 2005, we have $400 million in principal amount of debentures. This balance is comprised of $50 million in principal 
amount of our 6.75% debentures due 2013, $150 million in principal amount of our 9.00% debentures due 2019 and $200 million in principal 
amount of our 9.25% debentures due 2022. Cash interest on these debentures is payable semiannually in arrears. These debentures are not 
redeemable prior to maturity.  

Mortgage Bonds  

As of December 31, 2005, we have $465 million in first mortgage bonds. Cash interest on these bonds is payable semiannually in arrears. These 
bonds are made up of redeemable and non-redeemable bonds and are secured by $13.6 billion of gross property, plant and equipment.  

Capital Lease Obligations  

As of December 31, 2005, we have $163 million in capital lease obligations primarily for the use of communication switches, which are secured 
by $415 million of gross property, plant and equipment.  

Other  

In December 2005, we terminated two accounts receivable asset securitization facilities that provided us with up to $1.2 billion of additional 
liquidity. Neither facility had an outstanding balance when it was terminated, and both were scheduled to expire during 2006.  

The indentures and financing agreements of certain of our subsidiaries contain provisions limiting cash dividend payments on subsidiary 
common stock held by us. As a result, $432 million of those subsidiaries’ $2.7 billion total retained earnings were restricted as of December 31, 
2005. The flow of cash in the form of advances from the subsidiaries to us is generally not restricted.  

We are currently in compliance with all restrictive and financial covenants associated with our borrowings. There is no provision under any of 
our indebtedness that requires repayment in the event of a downgrade by any ratings service.  

2004 Retirements  

In 2004, we purchased and retired a total of $1.4 billion of our senior notes before their scheduled maturities in exchange for cash. As a result, 
we recorded a loss due to the premium paid of $60 million and wrote-off $12 million of unamortized debt costs associated with this repayment. 
We also paid $13 million in cash to complete an early buy out on certain capital lease obligations.  

2003 Retirements  

In 2003, we purchased and retired $1.5 billion of our long-term debt before scheduled maturities. The prepayments consisted of current 
maturities of a $300 million Export Development Canada loan with an interest rate of 2.8% and $34 million of our senior notes with interest 
rates ranging from 5.7% to 5.9%. The prepayments  
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also included $84 million of Local’s first mortgage bonds with interest rates ranging from 9.1% to 9.3% and maturity dates ranging from 2019 to 
2021. We recorded a loss due to a premium paid of $2 million associated with these prepayments. We also completed a tender offer to purchase 
$1.1 billion principal amount of our senior notes before their scheduled maturities. The notes had interest rates ranging from 5.7% to 5.9% and 
maturity dates ranging from 2003 to 2004. A loss was recorded due to a premium paid of $19 million associated with these prepayments.  

Future Maturities of Long-term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations  

For the years subsequent to December 31, 2005, scheduled annual principal payments of long-term debt, including our bank credit facility and 
capital lease obligations outstanding, as of December 31, 2005 are as follows:  
   

Included in the above schedule are payments to be made in connection with various capital lease obligations. A substantial portion of the capital 
lease payments will be in Japanese yen and we already satisfied this obligation by depositing the present value of the future yen payment 
obligations at various banks. These amounts are included on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in other assets.  

Note 10.    Equity Unit Notes  

In 2001, we completed a registered offering of 69 million equity units, each with a stated amount of $25. Each equity unit initially consisted of a 
corporate unit. Each corporate unit consisted of a forward purchase contract and $25 principal amount of senior notes, or Notes, of our wholly-
owned subsidiary, Sprint Capital Corporation. The corporate unit could be converted by the holder into a treasury unit consisting of the forward 
purchase contract and a treasury portfolio of zero-coupon U.S. treasury securities by substituting the treasury securities for the Notes. The 
underlying Notes, or treasury portfolio, were pledged to us to secure the holder’s obligations under the forward purchase contract.  

Forward Purchase Contract  

As a component of the equity units, the forward purchase contracts originally obligated the holders to purchase, and obligated us to sell, on 
August 17, 2004, a variable number of newly issued shares of PCS common stock, which became FON common stock as a result of the 
recombination. These forward purchase contracts included a provision permitting the equity unit holders to benefit from or “participate” in any 
dividends declared on the common stock during the contract period. On August 17, 2004 the forward purchase contracts were settled by the 
issuance of approximately 35 million shares of FON common stock in exchange for $1.7 billion in cash.  
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     (in millions) 

2006     $ 5,027 
2007       1,650 
2008       1,368 
2009       608 
2010       748 
Thereafter       16,007 

       

     25,408 
Add net deferred premium       271 

       

   $     25,679 
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Notes  

The Notes were originally issued as part of the equity units and had an interest rate of 6.0% for a notional amount of $1.7 billion. In May 2004, 
we purchased $750 million principal amount of the Notes before their scheduled maturity. As a result, we recognized a $29 million loss in other 
income due to the premium paid and the write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs.  

The interest rate on the Notes was reset to 4.8% on May 24, 2004, after a successful remarketing, and after the remarketing the Notes were no 
longer pledged to secure the obligations under the original forward purchase contracts.  

As of December 31, 2005, $880 million of the remarketed Notes, which are due in August 2006, are included in current portion of long-term 
debt and capital lease obligations on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  

Note 11.    Seventh Series Redeemable Preferred Stock  

The redeemable preferred stock outstanding at year-end is as follows:  
   

The Seventh series preferred stock is currently convertible into approximately 32.5 shares of voting common stock for each Seventh series share. 
The Seventh series preferred stock is mandatorily redeemable in November 2008 at the stated value plus any accrued but unpaid dividends. On 
February 28, 2006, notices were sent out to holders of our Seventh series preferred stock with our intent to redeem the preferred stock. We 
expect to close on March 31, 2006 for a redemption price of $1,000 per outstanding share plus accumulated unpaid dividends.  

Note 12.    Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities  

Risk Management Policies  

Our derivative instruments typically include interest rate swaps, stock warrants, option contracts, and foreign currency forward and option 
contracts. We primarily use our derivative transactions to hedge our exposure to the market risks associated with unfavorable movements in 
interest rates, equity prices, and foreign currencies. Our board of directors has authorized us to enter into derivative transactions, and all 
transactions comply with our risk management policies.  

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates could adversely affect earnings or cash flows. Specific interest rate risks include the risk 
of increasing interest rates on short-term debt, the risk of increasing interest rates for planned new fixed rate long-term financing and the risk of 
increasing interest rates for planned refinancings using long-term fixed rate debt.  

Exposure to strategic investments in other companies includes the risk that unfavorable changes in market prices could adversely affect earnings 
and cash flows. We may also obtain equity rights in other companies, usually in the form of warrants to purchase common stock of the 
companies. These equity rights are typically obtained in connection with commercial agreements or strategic investments.  
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     December 31, 
     2005    2004 
     (in millions) 
Seventh series preferred stock – stated value $1,000 per share, 300,000 shares authorized, 246,766 shares outstanding, 

voting, cumulative $6.73 quarterly dividend rate     $     247    $     247 
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Our foreign exchange risk management program focuses on reducing transaction exposure to optimize consolidated cash flow. We enter into 
forward and option contracts in foreign currencies to reduce the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates. Our primary transaction exposure 
results from net payments made to and received from overseas telecommunications companies for completing international calls made by our 
domestic customers and the operations of our international subsidiaries.  

Interest Rate Swaps  

As of December 31, 2005, we held fair value interest rate swaps with a notional value of $1 billion. These swaps were entered into as hedges of 
the fair value of a portion of our senior notes. These interest rate swaps have maturities ranging from 2008 to 2012. On a semiannual basis, we 
pay a floating rate of interest equal to the six-month LIBOR plus a fixed spread and receive an average interest rate equal to the coupon rates 
stated on the underlying senior notes. On December 31, 2005, the rate we would pay averaged 7.0% and the rate we would receive was 7.2%.  

Our interest rate swaps meet all the required criteria under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities , as 
amended, in order to apply the shortcut method in accounting for these instruments. Under the shortcut method we can assume that our interest 
rate swaps are perfectly effective in hedging our interest rate risk. As a result, we recognize all changes in the fair values of these instruments in 
accumulated other comprehensive loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, with no impact on earnings during the life of the swap. We held only 
fair-value hedges during 2005 and 2004.  

Our interest rate swap activity generated a net liability of $18 million at December 31, 2005 compared to a net asset of $19 million as of 
December 31, 2004, resulting from changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps. As the swaps have been deemed perfectly effective, an 
offset was recorded to the underlying long-term debt.  

During the fourth quarter 2005 we entered into a series of interest rate collars associated with the anticipated issuance of debt by Local at the 
time of its expected spin-off in 2006. These collars have been designated as cash flow hedges in Local’s standalone financial statements against 
the variability in interest payments that would result from a change in interest rates before the debt is issued at the time of the spin-off. However, 
because the forecasted interest payments of debt will occur after the subsidiary is spun-off, the derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge 
accounting treatment in our consolidated financial statements, and so changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognized in earnings 
during the period of change. During the fourth quarter 2005, the fair value of these derivatives decreased, resulting in a pre-tax loss of $18 
million as of December 31, 2005.  

Stock Warrants  

The stock warrants are not designated as hedging instruments and changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are recognized in 
earnings during the period of change. Our net derivative gains on stock warrants were immaterial in all periods presented.  

Equity Options  

We have also entered into a series of option contracts associated with our investment in NII Holdings, Inc. The first of these contracts was not 
designated as a hedging instrument, and changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument are recognized in earnings during the period of 
change. The change in fair value of this instrument resulted in a pre-tax loss of $9 million as of December 31, 2005. The remaining instruments 
are designated as cash flow hedges and meet all the required criteria under SFAS No. 133 and the Derivative Implementation Group Issue No. 
G-20, Assessing and Measuring the Effectiveness of a Purchased Option Used in a Cash Flow Hedge , in order to assume that these option 
contracts are perfectly effective in hedging the market risk associated with our investment in NII Holdings. As a result, we recognize all changes 
in the fair values of these remaining  
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instruments in accumulated other comprehensive loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, with no impact on earnings during the life of the 
hedging relationship. Changes in fair value of these instruments resulted in an unrealized loss of $16 million at December 31, 2005. These 
unrealized losses were included in accumulated other comprehensive loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These derivative instruments will 
be settled by December 31, 2006.  

The net purchased equity options embedded in variable prepaid forward contracts are designated as cash flow hedges. During 2005, we used 
10.5 million shares of EarthLink common stock to settle the prepaid forward contracts, which resulted in a $9 million pre-tax gain. There are no 
variable prepaid forward contracts outstanding at December 31, 2005.  

Foreign Currency Forward and Option Contracts  

Foreign currency forward and option contracts held during 2005 and 2004 were not designated as hedges as defined in SFAS No. 133, 
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities , as amended, and changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are 
recognized in earnings during the period of change. The activity associated with these contracts was immaterial in all periods presented.  

Note 13.    Income Taxes  

Income tax expense (benefit) allocated to continuing operations consists of the following:  
   

The differences that caused our effective income tax rates to vary from the 35% federal statutory rate for income taxes related to continuing 
operations were as follows:  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
     2005     2004     2003   
     (in millions)   

Current income tax expense (benefit)         

Federal     $ 115     $ 15     $ (672 ) 
State       160       (30 )     21   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total current       275       (15 )     (651 ) 
       

  
      

  
      

  

Deferred income tax expense (benefit)         

Federal       856       (562 )     494   
State       (26 )     (14 )     (55 ) 

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total deferred       830       (576 )     439   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Foreign income tax expense       —      —      —  
       

  
      

  
      

  

Total     $     1,105     $     (591)     $     (212)   
       

  

      

  

      

  

     Year Ended December 31,   
     2005     2004     2003   
     (in millions)   

Income tax expense (benefit) at the federal statutory rate     $ 1,017     $ (562 )   $ (176 ) 
Effect of:         

State income taxes, net of federal income tax effect       88       (28 )     (23 ) 
Credit for research activities       (8 )     (2 )     (27 ) 
Other, net       8       1       14   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Income tax expense (benefit)     $     1,105     $     (591)     $     (212)   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Effective income tax rate       38.0 %     36.9 %     42.1 % 
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Income tax expense (benefit) allocated to other items was as follows:  
   

   

   

We recognize deferred income taxes for the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of our assets and liabilities for financial 
statement purposes and their tax bases. The sources of the differences that give rise to the deferred income tax assets and liabilities at year-end 
2005 and 2004, along with the income tax effect of each, were as follows:  
   

The foreign income (loss) included in income (loss) from continuing operations totaled $27 million in 2005, $(203) million in 2004 and $(141) 
million in 2003. We have no material un-remitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries.  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
         2005             2004             2003       
     (in millions)   

Discontinued operations     $     —    $     —    $     820   
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle       (10 )     —      162   
Additional minimum pension liability (1)       (39 )     (17 )     (12 ) 
Gains on securities (1)       27       2       27   
Gains (losses) on qualifying cash flow hedges (1)       7       1       (23 ) 
Stock ownership, purchase and option arrangements (2)       (38 )     (25 )     (4 ) 

(1) These amounts have been recorded directly to shareholders’  equity—accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) on the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

(2) These amounts have been recorded directly to shareholders’  equity—paid-in capital on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

     December 31, 2005     December 31, 2004   
     Current     Long-Term     Current     Long-Term   
     (in millions)   

Deferred tax assets           

Net operating loss carryforwards     $ 1,835     $ 1,186     $ 1,050     $ 1,269   
Capital loss carryforwards       354       77       —      —  
Accruals and other liabilities       473       335       219       150   
Tax credit carryforwards       —      556       —      397   
Postretirement and other benefits       —      871       —      842   

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

     2,662       3,025       1,269       2,658   
Valuation allowance       (556 )     (515 )     (220 )     (450 ) 

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

     2,106       2,510       1,049       2,208   
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Deferred tax liabilities           

Property, plant and equipment       —      3,769       —      3,735   
Intangibles       —      9,594       —      649   
Investments       225       834       —      —  
Other       70       —      —      —  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

     295       14,197       —      4,384   
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Current deferred tax asset     $     1,811       $     1,049     
       

  

        

  

  

Long-term deferred tax liability       $     11,687       $     2,176   
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In 2005, we acquired approximately $2.8 billion of potential income tax benefits related to net operating loss carryforwards, capital loss 
carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards in the Nextel and PCS Affiliates acquisitions. In 1999 we acquired approximately $193 million of 
potential tax benefits related to net operating loss carryforwards in the acquisitions of broadband fixed wireless companies. In 1998, we acquired 
approximately $229 million of potential tax benefits related to net operating loss carryforwards in the controlling interest acquisition of our 
wireless joint venture, which we call the PCS Restructuring. The benefits from these acquisitions are subject to certain realization restrictions 
under various tax laws. As of December 31, 2005, a valuation allowance of $820 million remains on these deferred tax benefits. If the benefits 
for which a valuation allowance has been provided are subsequently recognized, they will first reduce goodwill or intangibles resulting from the 
application of the purchase method of accounting for these transactions. If goodwill and intangibles related to the acquisition are reduced to zero, 
any additional tax benefits recognized would reduce tax expense.  

In connection with the PCS Restructuring, we are required to reimburse the former cable company partners of the joint venture for net operating 
loss and tax credit carryforward benefits generated before the PCS Restructuring if realization by us produces a cash benefit that would not 
otherwise have been realized. The reimbursement will equal 60% of the net cash benefit received by us and will be made to the former cable 
company partners in shares of our stock. The unexpired carryforward benefits subject to this requirement total $202 million.  

As of December 31, 2005, we had federal operating loss carryforwards of approximately $7.0 billion and state operating loss carryforwards of 
approximately $12.7 billion. Related to these loss carryforwards are federal tax benefits of $2.5 billion and state tax benefits of $872 million. In 
addition, we had available, for income tax purposes, federal alternative minimum tax net operating loss carryforwards of $5.5 billion and state 
alternative minimum tax net operating loss carryforwards of $1.1 billion. The loss carryforwards expire in varying amounts through 2025. We 
also had available capital loss carryforwards of approximately $1.2 billion. Related to these capital loss carryforwards are tax benefits of $431 
million. Included in the capital loss carryforward amount is $966 million which expires in 2006. The remaining capital loss carryforward expires 
in varying amounts through 2009.  

We also had available $556 million of federal and state income tax credit carryforwards as of December 31, 2005. Included in this amount are 
$350 million of income tax credits which expire in varying amounts through 2025. The remaining $206 million do not expire.  

The valuation allowance related to deferred income tax assets increased $401 million in 2005 and increased $50 million in 2004. The 2005 
increase is primarily related to the Nextel and PCS Affiliate acquisitions.  

Management believes it is more likely than not that these deferred income tax assets, net of the valuation allowance, will be realized based on 
current income tax laws and expectations of future taxable income stemming from the reversal of existing deferred tax liabilities or ordinary 
operations. Uncertainties surrounding income tax law changes, shifts in operations between state taxing jurisdictions and future operating income 
levels may, however, affect the ultimate realization of all or some of these deferred income tax assets. When we evaluated these and other 
qualitative factors and uncertainties concerning our industry, we found that they provide continuing evidence requiring the valuation allowance 
which we currently recognize related to the realization of the tax benefit of our net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards as of 
December 31, 2005. Additionally, we establish reserves when, despite our belief that our tax return positions are fully supportable, certain 
positions could be challenged, and the positions may not be fully sustained.  

Note 14.    Discontinued Operations  

In 2002, we reached a definitive agreement to sell our directory publishing business, held in the Local segment, to R.H. Donnelley for $2.2 
billion in cash. The sale closed on January 3, 2003. The pretax gain recognized in 2003 was $2.1 billion, $1.3 billion after tax. In accordance 
with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or  
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Disposal of Long-Lived Assets , we have presented the results of operations of the directory publishing business as a discontinued operation in 
the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Summary financial information is as follows:  
   

In prior years, we reported the cash flows attributable to these discontinued operations on a combined basis as a single amount. In 2005, these 
cash flows are no longer reported as a single amount, and have been combined with the cash flows of our continuing operations.  

Note 15.    Commitments and Contingencies  

Litigation, Claims and Assessments  

In 2005, several PCS Affiliates filed lawsuits in various courts, alleging that the merger between Sprint and Nextel would result in breaches of 
exclusivity provisions in their management agreements with our subsidiaries. Suits were brought by UbiquiTel and UbiquiTel Operating 
Company, iPCS Wireless, Inc., Horizon Personal Communications Inc. and Bright Personal Communications Services LLC, which are both 
subsidiaries of iPCS Wireless and Northern PCS Services, LLC. The lawsuits seek, among other things, to enjoin us from engaging in certain 
post-merger business conduct in the respective service areas of the PCS Affiliates, and unspecified damages caused by the alleged breach. 
UbiquiTel, Horizon Personal Communications and Bright Personal Communications Services have all entered into forbearance agreements with 
us governing certain business practices addressed by the litigation until a decision is rendered by the trial court in the lawsuits. We and our 
subsidiaries intend to defend all of these lawsuits vigorously.  

In March 2004, eight purported class action lawsuits relating to the recombination of the tracking stocks were filed against us and our directors 
by holders of PCS common stock. Seven of the lawsuits were consolidated in the District Court of Johnson County, Kansas. The eighth, pending 
in New York, has been voluntarily stayed. The consolidated lawsuit alleges breach of fiduciary duty in connection with allocations between the 
wireline operations and the wireless operations before the recombination of the tracking stocks and breach of fiduciary duty in the 
recombination. The lawsuit seeks to rescind the recombination and monetary damages. In early 2005, the court denied defendants’ motion to 
dismiss the complaint and discovery is proceeding. All defendants have denied plaintiffs’ allegations and intend to defend this matter vigorously. 

In 2003, certain participants in the Sprint Nextel Retirement Savings Plan and the Sprint Nextel and Centel Retirement Savings Plans for 
Bargaining Unit Employees filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the District of Kansas against us, the committees that administer the plans, the 
plan trustee, and various current and former directors and officers. The consolidated lawsuit alleges that defendants breached their fiduciary 
duties to the plans and violated the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA, statutes by making the company matching 
contribution in company stock and by including company stock among the thirty investment options offered to plan participants. The lawsuit 
seeks to recover any decline in the value of our tracking stocks during the class period. A settlement agreement has been filed with the court and 
is subject to final court approval. The settlement calls for us to make certain changes to the savings plans, to allow for vesting of certain Sprint 
Nextel stock in the accounts of certain former employees, and to distribute $4 million in cash to former employees who no longer have accounts 
in the savings plans. We have insurance coverage for the cash component of this settlement.  
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Year Ended  
December 31, 

 
2003  

     (in millions) 
Net operating revenues     $     5 
Income before income taxes       5 
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In September 2004, the U.S. District Court for the District of Kansas denied a motion to dismiss a shareholder lawsuit alleging that our 2001 and 
2002 proxy statements were false and misleading in violation of federal securities laws to the extent they described new employment agreements 
with certain senior executives without disclosing that, according to the allegations, replacement of those executives was inevitable. These 
allegations, made in an amended complaint in a lawsuit originally filed in 2003, are asserted against us and certain current and former officers 
and directors, and seek to recover any decline in the value of our tracking stocks during the class period. The parties have stipulated that the case 
can proceed as a class action. All defendants have denied plaintiffs’ allegations and intend to defend this matter vigorously. Allegations in the 
original complaint, which asserted claims against the same defendants and our former independent auditor, were dismissed by the court in April 
2004.  

A number of putative class action cases that allege Sprint Communications Company LP failed to obtain easements from property owners during 
the installation of its fiber optic network in the 1980’s have been filed in various courts. Several of these cases sought certification of nationwide 
classes, and in one case, a nationwide class has been certified. In 2002, a nationwide settlement of these claims was approved by the U.S. District 
Court for the Northern District of Illinois, but objectors appealed the preliminary approval order to the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals, which 
overturned the settlement and remanded the case to the trial court for further proceedings. The parties now are proceeding with litigation and/or 
settlement negotiations on a state by state basis. In 2001, we accrued an expense reflecting the estimated settlement costs of these suits.  

Various other suits, proceedings and claims, including purported class actions, typical for a business enterprise, are pending against us or our 
subsidiaries. While it is not possible to determine the ultimate disposition of each of these proceedings and whether they will be resolved 
consistent with our beliefs, we expect that the outcome of such proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse 
effect on our financial condition or results of operations or our business segments.  

Spectrum Reconfiguration Obligations  

On February 7, 2005, Nextel accepted the terms and conditions of the Report and Order of the FCC which implemented a spectrum 
reconfiguration plan designed to eliminate interference with public safety operators in the 800 MHz band. Under the terms of the Report and 
Order, prior to the August 12, 2005 merger date, Nextel surrendered its spectrum rights in the 700 MHz spectrum band and certain portions of its 
spectrum rights in the 800 MHz band, and received spectrum rights in the 1.9 GHz band and spectrum rights in a different part of the 800 MHz 
band and undertook to pay the costs incurred by Nextel and third parties in connection with the reconfiguration plan. Based on the FCC’s 
determination of the values of the spectrum rights received and relinquished by Nextel, the minimum obligation incurred under the Report and 
Order will be $2.8 billion. The Report and Order also provides that qualifying costs we incur as part of the reconfiguration plan, including costs 
to reconfigure our own infrastructure and spectrum positions, can be used to offset the minimum obligation of $2.8 billion; however, we are 
obligated to pay the full amount of the costs relating to the reconfiguration plan, even if those costs exceed that amount. See note 7 for further 
information.  

Operating Leases  

We lease various equipment, office facilities, retail outlets and kiosks, switching facilities, transmitter and receiver sites and spectrum under 
operating leases. The non-cancelable portion of these leases ranges from monthly up to 25 years. These leases, with few exceptions, provide for 
automatic renewal options and escalations that are either fixed or based on the consumer price index. Any rent abatements, along with rent 
escalations, are included in the computation of rent expense calculated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Our lease term for most leases 
includes the initial non-cancelable term plus at least one renewal period, as the exercise of the  
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related renewal option or options is reasonably assured. Our cell site leases generally provide for an initial non-cancelable term of 5 to 7 years 
with up to 5 renewal options for 5 years each.  

As of December 31, 2005, our rental commitments for operating leases, including lease renewals that are reasonably assured, consisted mainly of 
leases for cell and switch sites, real estate, data processing equipment and office space were as follows (in millions):  
   

Total rental expense was $1.4 billion in 2005, $1.1 billion in 2004, and $1.2 billion in 2003.  

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, including renewal option 
periods that are reasonably assured.  

Commitments  

We are a party to service and other contracts in connection with conducting our business. Minimum amounts due under some of the more 
significant agreements are $2,427 million in 2006, $1,885 million in 2007, $1,412 million in 2008, $1,180 million in 2009, $603 million in 2010 
and $577 million thereafter. Amounts actually paid under some of these agreements will likely be higher due to variable components of these 
agreements. The more significant variable components that determine the ultimate obligation owed include such items as hours contracted, 
subscribers and other factors. In addition, we are party to various arrangements that are conditional in nature and obligate us to make payments 
only upon the occurrence of certain events, such as the delivery of functioning software or a product.  

We had about $5 billion of open purchase orders for goods or services as of December 31, 2005 that are enforceable and legally binding and that 
specify all significant terms, but were not recorded as liabilities as of December 31, 2005. These outstanding commitments consist primarily of 
network equipment and maintenance, access commitments, advertising and marketing, information technology services and customer support 
provided by third parties, handset purchases and other expenses related to normal business operations. We expect substantially all of these 
commitments to become due in the next twelve months as services are rendered or goods are received. Certain of these service and other 
contracts are in the process of being re-negotiated as a result of our merger with Nextel, and could result in changes to these minimum 
commitments, which could be material.  

Environmental Compliance  

We have identified seven sites, not currently owned or operated by us, that formerly contained manufactured gas plants that may have been 
owned or operated by entities acquired by one of our subsidiaries before we acquired it. We and the current land owner of the site in Columbus, 
Nebraska are working with the Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, pursuant to an administrative consent order. Amounts expended 
pursuant to the order are not expected to be material. We are negotiating with the EPA as to whether clean up is required at two additional sites. 
In addition, our subsidiary has entered into agreements with another potentially responsible party to share costs in connection with four of the 
sites, including two of those where the EPA is involved. We are  
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2007       1,423 
2008       1,325 
2009       1,237 
2010       1,105 
Thereafter       9,814 



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (C ontinued)  

   
working to assess the scope and nature of these sites and our potential responsibility. Other environmental compliance and remediation 
expenditures result mainly from the operation of standby power generators for our telecommunications equipment. These expenditures arise in 
connection with standards compliance, permits or occasional remediation, which are usually related to generators, batteries or fuel storage. 
Although we cannot assess with certainty the impact of any future compliance and remediation obligations, we do not believe that future 
environmental compliance and remediation expenditures will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.  

Note 16.    Capital Stock and Stock Rights  

We have the authority to issue 6,620,000,000 shares of capital stock as follows:  
   

   

   

   

Classes of Common Stock  

Series 1 Common Stock  

The holders of our Series 1 common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted for action by the shareholders.  

Series 2 Common stock  

The holders of our Series 2 common stock are entitled to 10% of one vote per share, but otherwise have rights that are substantially identical to 
those of the Series 1 common stock.  

We paid a dividend of $0.025 per share on the common stock, Series 1, the common stock, Series 2, and the non-voting common stock in the 
third and fourth quarters 2005. The non-voting common stock was issued in the Sprint-Nextel merger in August 2005. We paid a dividend of 
$0.125 per share on the common stock, Series 1 in the first two quarters of 2005 and in each of the quarters of 2004 and 2003 and a dividend of 
$0.125 per share on the common stock, Series 2 in the first two quarters of 2005 and in each of the last three quarters of 2004. The common 
stock, Series 2 was issued at the time of the recombination of the PCS common stock and the FON common stock in April 2004.  
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  •   6,000,000,000 shares of Series 1 voting common stock, par value $2.00 per share; 

  •   500,000,000 shares of Series 2 voting common stock, par value $2.00 per share; 

  •   100,000,000 shares of non-voting common stock, par value $0.01 per share; and 

  •   20,000,000 shares of preferred stock, no par value per share 
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Common Stock Reserved for Future Grants  

As of December 31, 2005, Series 1 common stock reserved for future grants under plans providing for the grant of stock options and other 
equity-based awards, future grants under the employees stock purchase plan or future issuances under various other arrangements included:  
   

Note 17.    Stock Plans  

Management Incentive Stock Option Plan  

Under the Management Incentive Stock Option Plan, or MISOP, before 2003 we granted stock options to employees eligible to receive annual 
incentive compensation. Eligible employees could elect to receive stock options in lieu of a portion of their target incentive under our annual 
incentive compensation plans. The options generally became exercisable on December 31 of the year granted and have a maximum term of 10 
years. Under the MISOP, we also granted stock options to executives in lieu of long-term incentive compensation, or LTIP-MISOP options. The 
LTIP-MISOP options generally became exercisable on the third December 31 following the grant date and have a maximum term of 10 years. 
MISOP options were granted with exercise prices equal to the market price of the underlying common stock on the grant date. No new options 
may be granted under this plan after April 2005. As of December 31, 2005, options to buy approximately 40.0 million common shares were 
outstanding.  

Long-Term Stock Incentive Program  

Under the 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Program, or the 1997 Program, we can grant stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units 
and other equity based awards to directors and employees. In the 1997 Program the number of shares available for grant increases each year until 
2007. No awards may be granted under the plan after April 2007. On January 1, 2006, the number of shares authorized by the 1997 Program 
increased by approximately 43.8 million shares. As of December 31, 2005, this plan authorized equity-based awards for approximately 
146.0 million common shares, and 61.0 million common shares remained available.  

Employees and directors who are granted restricted stock units are not required to pay for the shares but must remain employed with us, or 
continue to serve as a member of our board of directors, until the restrictions on the shares lapse. In addition, beginning with the 2005 awards, 
the number of restricted stock units granted is based on performance criteria as well. The 2005 awards vest 100% three years from the date of 
grant.  

The 2005 stock option awards for executives holding titles of Senior Vice President or above, including our Chief Executive Officer, have a 
strike price equal to 110% of the market value of the underlying stock on the grant date. All other executives received stock options with a strike 
price equal to 100% of fair market value on the grant date. The 2005 stock option award for all participants will vest 25% per year on each of the 
anniversaries of the date of grant and will have a maximum term of 10 years.  
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     Shares 
     (in millions) 
Employee stock purchase plan     25.6 
Employee savings plans     22.4 
Automatic dividend reinvestment plan     2.3 
Officer and key employees’  and directors’  stock options and other equity-based awards     109.5 
Conversion of mandatorily redeemable preferred stock     8.0 
5.25% convertible debt conversion rights     10.3 
Conversion of non-voting common stock     37.6 
Other     0.1 

     

       215.8 
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Under our Restricted Stock Plan, we granted restricted stock to officers and key employees. Employees granted restricted stock are not required 
to pay for the shares but must remain employed with us until the restrictions on the shares lapse. The restricted stock vests at a rate of 33.3% per 
year on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date. No restricted stock was granted in 2005.  

Under the Sprint Retention Program, if the employment of a holder of an equity award is involuntarily terminated other than for cause within one 
year of the Nextel merger, then unvested equity awards held by that holder for at least one year at the end of the holders’ severance period will 
fully vest at that time.  

Nextel Incentive Equity Plan  

As a result of the Sprint-Nextel merger, outstanding Nextel deferred shares, which constitute an agreement to transfer shares upon the 
performance of service over a defined period of time, and grants of options to purchase shares of Nextel common stock were converted into 
Sprint Nextel Series 1 deferred shares or options to purchase a number of shares of Sprint Nextel Series 1 common stock equal to the number of 
shares of Nextel common stock subject to the corresponding Nextel options or deferred shares multiplied by 1.3, with a corresponding 
adjustment to the option strike price.  

The Nextel Incentive Equity Plan, or Nextel Equity Plan, was approved by Nextel’s shareholders before the Nextel merger. This plan provides 
for the issuance to directors, officers, employees and consultants of our common stock (giving effect to the conversion ratio in the merger) upon 
the exercise or issuance of a variety of forms of equity rights, including grants of options to purchase stock and deferred shares. As of December 
31, 2005, this plan authorized equity-based awards for approximately 132.9 million common shares and 48.5 million common shares remained 
available. Typically, nonqualified stock options to purchase stock were granted under the Nextel Equity Plan, and such options that currently are 
outstanding generally:  
   

   

   

If an option holder’s employment is involuntarily terminated within one year after the effective date of a change of control of Nextel, or, in the 
case of specified executives, if the employee terminates their employment for “good reason” as defined in the plan, then that holder’s unvested 
options immediately vest or otherwise become payable, subject to some limits. A change of control was deemed to have occurred as a result of 
the Sprint-Nextel merger.  

The Nextel Equity Plan also provides for the grant of deferred shares at no cost to selected employees generally in consideration of future 
services. These deferred shares generally vest over a service period ranging from several months to four years. An accelerated vesting schedule 
may be triggered in the event of a change in control. Accelerated vesting was triggered with respect to certain deferred shares granted prior to the 
Sprint-Nextel merger as a result of the Sprint-Nextel merger.  

Employee Stock Purchase Plan  

Under our Employees Stock Purchase Plan, or ESPP, eligible employees may subscribe quarterly to purchase shares of Series 1 common stock 
through payroll deductions of up to 20% of eligible compensation. The purchase price is equal to 90% of market value on the last trading day of 
each quarter. The aggregate number of shares purchased by an employee may not exceed 9,000 shares or $25,000 of fair market value in any 
calendar year, subject to limitations imposed by Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code.  
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  •   have been granted at prices equal to or exceeding the market value of the stock on the grant date; 

  •   vest on a monthly basis over periods up to four years; and 

  •   expire ten years from date of grant. 
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As of December 31, 2005, this plan authorized for purchase approximately 25.6 million shares, net of elections made in 2005 by employees 
participating in the fourth quarter 2005 offering under the ESPP to purchase approximately 720,000 common shares in the first quarter 2006. 
Employees purchased these shares for $21.11.  

Fair Value Disclosures  

In connection with the Nextel merger, Nextel stock options were converted into Sprint Nextel stock options with the shares issuable and exercise 
prices of the options adjusted based on an exchange ratio of 1.3 shares of Sprint Nextel common stock for each share of Nextel common stock. 
The value of these awards was calculated by applying the fair value method under SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148. The fair value 
was calculated on the stock options outstanding on the date of completion of the merger.  

The following table reflects the weighted average fair value per option granted, as well as the significant weighted average assumptions used in 
determining those fair values using the Black-Scholes pricing model for the converted Nextel stock options, as well as the stock options issued 
under the 1997 Program. The following information related to PCS common stock has not been adjusted to reflect the recombination of our 
tracking stocks.  
   

Restricted Stock Units  

We granted 3.5 million restricted stock units in 2005, which vest after three years, and 1.1 million of these restricted stock units are performance 
based. The weighted average fair value per unit was $24.76.  

Employees Stock Purchase Plan  

Prior to the Sprint-Nextel merger, Nextel employees elected, under the Nextel Associate Stock Purchase Plan, to purchase approximately 
244,000 shares of common stock. As a result of the Sprint-Nextel merger, we issued these shares to the former Nextel employees. Using the 
Black-Scholes pricing model, the weighted average fair value was $3.42 per share.  

During the 2004 ESPP offering that ended in June 2005, employees elected to purchase approximately 3.6 million common shares. Using the 
Black-Scholes pricing model, the weighted average fair value was $3.19 per share.  

During the 2003 ESPP offering that ended in June 2004, employees elected to purchase approximately 1.8 million FON and 7.2 million PCS 
shares. Using the Black-Scholes pricing model, the weighted average fair value was $4.11 per share for each FON election and $2.52 per share 
for each PCS election. Because of the recombination of the tracking stocks, the elections to purchase PCS shares were converted into elections to 
purchase FON shares.  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
     2005     2004     2003   

     

Issued in  
Nextel  
Merger      Other     

FON  
Common 

Stock      

PCS  
Common 

Stock      

FON  
Common 

Stock      

PCS  
Common 

Stock    

Fair value on grant date     $     12.60     $     9.28     $     6.43     $     6.56     $     3.58     $     3.16   
Risk-free interest rate       4.07 %     3.70 %     3.13 %     3.13 %     2.93 %     2.93 % 
Expected volatility       44.8 %     44.9 %     45.1 %     83.30 %     45.0 %     87.20 % 
Expected dividend yield       0.40 %     2.06 %     2.78 %     —      4.23 %     —  
Expected life (years)       3.4       6       6       6       6       6   
Options granted (millions)       102.8       7.1       5.1       5.1       10.5       10.5   



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
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Stock Options  

Activity under our stock option plans was as follows:  
   

The following is a summary of the status of employees’ stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2005:  
   

The number of shares exercisable and their weighted average exercise prices were 145.6 million shares at $27.10 in 2005, 101.4 million shares at 
$29.04 in 2004, and 103.3 million shares at $29.36 in 2003.  

Note 18.    Employee Benefit Plans  

Defined Benefit Pension Plan  

Most of our legacy Sprint employees are participants in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan. Benefits for plan participants belonging 
to unions are based on negotiated schedules. For non-union participants, pension benefits are based on years of service and the participants’ 
compensation.  
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Shares  
Under  
Option     

Weighted  
Average per 

 
Share  

Exercise  
Price 

     (in millions)       

Outstanding December 31, 2002         135.2     $ 28.04 
Granted     15.8       10.73 
Exercised     (1.2 )     12.38 
Forfeited/expired     (9.2 )     27.84 

     
  

  

Outstanding December 31,2003     140.6       26.25 
Granted     7.7       18.08 
Exercised     (10.9 )     14.43 
Forfeited/expired     (10.0 )     31.39 

     
  

  

Outstanding December 31,2004     127.4       26.35 
Nextel option exchange     102.8       21.08 
Granted     7.1       25.30 
Exercised     (28.6 )     15.32 
Forfeited/expired     (9.5 )     34.74 

     
  

  

Outstanding December 31, 2005     199.2       24.75 
     

  

  

     Option Outstanding    Option Exercisable 

Range of Exercise Prices     Shares    

Weighted  
Average  

Remaining 
Contractual 

 
Life    

Weighted  
Average  

Exercise Price    Shares    

Weighted  
Average  

Exercise Price 
     (in millions)    (years)         (in millions)      

$2.00 - $9.99     20.2    5.98    $ 6.79    14.4    $ 6.41 
10.00 - 19.99     58.3    6.36      15.47    36.3      15.20 
20.00 - 29.99     74.0    6.17      22.98    48.3      23.02 
30.00 - 39.99     15.4    3.08      36.84    15.3      36.84 
40.00 - 49.99     24.9    4.22      47.93    24.9      47.93 
50.00 - 79.99     5.3    3.70      58.92    5.3      58.92 
80.00 - 139.99     1.1    2.99          107.22    1.1          107.22 
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At the time of the merger with Nextel, we did not extend plan participation to former Nextel employees. Additionally, as of December 31, 2005, 
the pension plan was amended to freeze benefit accruals for plan participants not designated to work for Embarq. This amendment was treated as 
a curtailment under SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for 
Termination Benefits. We recognized a $4 million curtailment loss. This amendment also resulted in a $233 million reduction in the projected 
benefit obligation, which is offset against existing unrecognized losses.  

We use a December 31 measurement date for our pension plan.  

The following table shows the changes in the projected benefit obligation:  
   

The plan’s accumulated benefit obligation was $4.6 billion as of December 31, 2005 and $4.1 billion as of December 31, 2004.  

The following table shows the changes in plan assets:  
   

The funded status and amounts recognized on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets for the plan were as follows:  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
           2005                 2004         
     (in millions)   

Benefit obligation at beginning of year     $     4,466     $     4,038   
Service cost       134       133   
Interest cost       264       250   
Amendments       8       12   
Curtailment       (233 )     —  
Actuarial loss       252       223   
Benefits paid       (208 )     (190 ) 

       
  

      
  

Benefit obligation at end of year     $ 4,683     $ 4,466   
       

  

      

  

     Year Ended December 31,   
           2005                 2004         
     (in millions)   

Beginning balance     $     3,678     $     3,176   
Employer contributions       300       300   
Investment return       363       392   
Benefits paid       (208 )     (190 ) 

       
  

      
  

Ending balance     $ 4,133     $ 3,678   
       

  

      

  

     As of December 31,   
         2005             2004       
     (in millions)   

Projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets     $ (550 )   $ (788 ) 
Unrecognized net losses           1,424           1,551   
Unrecognized prior service cost       80       92   
Unamortized transition asset       (1 )     (2 ) 

       
  

      
  

Net amount recognized     $ 953     $ 853   
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Amounts recognized on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets consist of:  
   

In accordance with SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions , as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 we recorded an additional minimum 
pension liability representing the excess of the unfunded accumulated benefit obligation over plan assets and accrued pension costs. Recognition 
of the additional pension liability also resulted in an intangible asset equal to the unrecognized prior service costs and a charge to equity through 
other comprehensive income (loss).  

The following table sets forth these amounts:  
   

The tax effect for the charge to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) was $38 million for 2005, $10 million for 2004, and $12 million 
for 2003.  

This resulted in a net charge to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) of $58 million for 2005, $8 million for 2004, and $25 million for 
2003.  

We also maintain a nonqualified defined benefit plan to provide supplemental retirement benefits for certain executives in addition to the 
benefits provided under the qualified pension plan.  

For 2005, an additional minimum pension liability of $2 million was recognized for the nonqualified defined benefit plan with a charge to 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) of $1 million, net of taxes.  

For 2004, an additional minimum pension liability of $20 million was recognized for the nonqualified defined benefit plan with a charge to 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) of $13 million, net of taxes.  

The net pension expense consisted of the following:  
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     As of December 31,   
         2005             2004       
     (in millions)   

Pension benefit obligations     $ (435 )   $ (451 ) 
Intangible asset       80       92   
Accumulated other comprehensive loss           1,308           1,212   

       
  

      
  

Net amount recognized     $ 953     $ 853   
       

  

      

  

     Year Ended December 31, 
     2005    2004    2003 
     (in millions) 
Additional minimum liability     $     1,388    $     1,304    $     1,289 
Intangible asset       80      92      95 

                     

Accumulated other comprehensive loss     $ 1,308    $ 1,212    $ 1,194 
                     

     Year Ended December 31,   
         2005             2004             2003       
     (in millions)   

Service cost - benefits earned during the year     $     134     $     133     $     119   
Interest on projected benefit obligation       264       250       234   
Expected return on plan assets       (328 )     (303 )     (290 ) 
Amortization of unrecognized transition asset       —      (2 )     (3 ) 
Recognition of prior service cost       16       16       15   
Recognition of actuarial losses       110       89       33   
Curtailment loss – partial freeze of benefit accruals       4       —      —  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net pension expense     $ 200     $ 183     $ 108   
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension costs:  
   

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:  
   

In choosing the discount rate, our actuaries construct a hypothetical portfolio of bonds rated AA- or better that produces a cash flow matching 
the projected benefit payments of the plan. The average yield of this portfolio is used as the discount rate benchmark. For the December 31, 2005 
measurement date, this exercise produced a range of yields between 5.67% and 5.87%, and our discount rate was set at 5.75%. For the 
December 31, 2004 measurement date, the bond matching described above produced a range of yields between 5.86% and 6.04%, guiding us to 
set the discount rate at 6.0%.  

During 2005, the assumption regarding the expected long-term return on plan assets was 8.75%, unchanged from the prior year. After revising 
the target asset allocation policy in the second half of 2003 to reduce the pension trust’s exposure to equities, we obtained from two investment 
consulting firms forward-looking estimates of the expected long-term returns for a portfolio invested according to the revised target policy. The 
average of the two firms’ estimates was 8.77%, guiding a reduction in the assumed long-term return from the prior year’s 9.0% to 8.75%. We 
validate this assumption each year against estimates provided by our third party actuaries.  

The plan’s asset allocations by asset category, are as follows:  
   

The pension trust is invested in a well-diversified portfolio of securities. The Employee Benefits Committee has established an investment policy 
that specifies asset allocation targets and ranges for the trust of: Equities 65% (+/-10%), Debt 15% (+/-5%), Real Estate 10% (+/-5%), and 
Alternatives 10% (+/-5%). The pension trust holds no Sprint Nextel securities.  

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid (in millions):  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
         2005             2004             2003       

Discount rate     6.00 %   6.25 %   6.75 % 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets     8.75 %   8.75 %   9.00 % 
Expected blended rate of future pay raises     4.25 %   4.25 %   4.25 % 

     As of December 31,   
         2005             2004       

Discount rate     5.75 %   6.00 % 
Expected blended rate of future pay raises     4.25 %   4.25 % 

     As of December 31,   
         2005             2004       

Equity securities     65 %   66 % 
Debt securities     14 %   17 % 
Real estate     11 %   9 % 
Alternatives         10 %   8 % 

     
  

    
  

Total     100 %       100 % 
     

  

    

  

2006     $ 190 
2007       194 
2008       199 
2009       206 
2010       214 
2011 – 2015           1,223 
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The plan is expected to be split into two plans in connection with the spin-off of Embarq. No contributions are expected to be made until after 
the spin-off. Preliminary estimates of these contributions are $100 million for Sprint Nextel. Pension trust asset performance and changes in 
interest rates in the period leading to the anticipated plan spin-off could significantly affect these estimates.  

Defined Contribution Plans  

We sponsor defined contribution savings plans covering most employees. Participants may contribute portions of their pay to the plans. For 
union employees, we match contributions based on negotiated amounts. Through December 31, 2005, we matched contributions of non-union 
pre-merger Sprint employees in shares of company stock. The matching contribution was equal to 30% of participants’ contributions up to 6% of 
their pay for 2005 and 25% of participants’ contributions during 2004 and the second half of 2003. The matching contribution for the first half of 
2003 was 75%. From the merger date through December 31, 2005, we matched contributions of pre-merger Nextel employees up to 4% of their 
pay. Our total matching contributions were $56 million in 2005, $29 million in 2004, and $72 million in 2003. In 2006, the pre-merger Nextel 
plan will be terminated and participants covered by that plan will be eligible to enroll in the amended Sprint Nextel plan. The amended plan will 
no longer match contributions with company stock, but we will match participants’ contributions up to 5% of their pay.  

Postretirement Benefits  

We provide postretirement medical benefits to certain employees. We also provide postretirement life insurance to employees who retired before 
certain dates. Employees who retired before certain dates were eligible for medical benefits at no cost, or at a reduced cost. Employees who 
retire after certain dates are eligible for medical benefits on a shared-cost basis. We fund the accrued costs as benefits are paid. We use a 
December 31 measurement date for our postretirement benefit plans.  

Because prescription drug coverage is available through Medicare beginning in 2006, we amended the retiree medical plans in the third quarter 
2005 to largely eliminate prescription drug coverage for Medicare-eligible retirees. This amendment precipitated a remeasurement of retiree 
medical expense, using a 5.25% discount rate as of the July 1, 2005 remeasurement date. The amendment decreased the accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation, or APBO, by $250 million, and decreased 2005 benefit expense by $13 million.  

At the time of the Nextel merger, we did not extend plan participation in the retiree medical plan to former Nextel employees and we amended 
the plan to only include employees designated to work for Embarq and legacy Sprint employees born prior to 1956. Because the attribution 
period used to accrue retiree medical benefits begins at age 50, this amendment had no immediate impact on the APBO or expense.  

In 2004, we amended certain retiree medical plans to standardize the plan design effective January 1, 2005, eliminating differences in benefit 
levels. These amendments decreased the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation, or APBO, related to other postretirement benefits by 
approximately $35 million, and decreased the 2004 net benefit expense by $5 million.  

As a result of these amendments, we also recognized the then-anticipated effects of the 2003 Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and 
Modernization Act, or the Act. The Act contains a subsidy to employers who provide prescription drug coverage to retirees that is actuarially 
equivalent to Medicare Part D. In 2004, we planned to provide such coverage. Analysis of our retiree prescription drug claims data determined 
that our retiree prescription drug benefit was actuarially equivalent. In estimating the effects of the Act, estimates of participation rates and per 
capita claims costs were not changed. The effect of recognizing the federal subsidy related to the Act in 2004 was a $67 million reduction in the 
APBO, and an $11 million reduction in the 2004 net benefit cost. We have accounted for our retiree medical benefit plan in accordance with 
FASB Staff Position No. 106-2.  
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The following table shows the changes in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation:  
   

Amounts included on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets were as follows:  
   

The net postretirement benefits cost consisted of the following:  
   

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic postretirement benefit costs:  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
           2005                 2004         
     (in millions)   

Beginning balance     $     967     $     1,116   
Service cost       13       13   
Interest cost       48       56   
Plan amendments       (250 )     (35 ) 
Actuarial losses (gains)       3       (125 ) 
Benefits paid       (62 )     (58 ) 

       
  

      
  

Ending balance     $ 719     $ 967   
       

  

      

  

     As of December 31,   
         2005             2004       
     (in millions)   

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation     $ 719     $ 967   
Plan assets       (42 )     (43 ) 
Unrecognized transition obligation       7       8   
Unrecognized prior service benefit       397       204   
Unrecognized net loss       (243 )     (264 ) 

       
  

      
  

Accrued postretirement benefits cost     $     838     $     872   
       

  

      

  

Discount rate       5.75 %     6.0 % 
       

  

      

  

     Year Ended December 31,   
         2005             2004             2003       
     (in millions)   

Service cost—benefits earned during the year     $ 13     $ 13     $ 14   
Interest on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation       48       56       62   
Expected return on assets       (3 )     (3 )     (3 ) 
Recognition of transition obligation       (1 )     (1 )     (1 ) 
Recognition of prior service cost       (57 )     (49 )     (45 ) 
Recognition of actuarial losses       28       28       27   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net periodic postretirement benefits cost     $     28     $     44     $     54   
       

  

      

  

      

  

     Year Ended December 31,   
         2005             2004             2003       

Discount rate     6.00 %   6.25 %   6.75 % 
Assumed return on assets     8.75 %   8.75 %   9.00 % 
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Assumed health care cost trend rates:  
   

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-percentage-point change 
in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects (in millions):  
   

Plan assets totaled $42 million and $43 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004. We target a 60% allocation to equities and a 40% allocation 
to debt. The plans hold no Sprint Nextel securities.  

We plan to contribute to the postretirement benefit plan an amount equal to the value of benefits and premiums paid.  

The expected benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate are as follows (in millions):  
   

Note 19.    Communication Towers Lease Transaction  

In May 2005, we closed a transaction with Global Signal, Inc. under which Global Signal acquired exclusive rights to lease or operate 
approximately 6,560 communications towers owned by us for a negotiated lease term, which is the greater of the remaining terms of the 
underlying ground leases, approximately 17 years at present, or up to 32 years, assuming successful renegotiation of the underlying ground 
leases at the end of their current lease terms.  

We have subleased space on approximately 6,350 of the towers from Global Signal. This sublease arrangement is accounted for as an operating 
lease. See note 15 for additional information. We will maintain ownership of the towers, and we will continue to reflect the towers on our 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet.  

At closing, we received proceeds of approximately $1.2 billion, which we recorded in other liabilities on our accompanying consolidated balance 
sheet. The deferred rental income is being recognized as a reduction of lease expense related to our subleasing arrangement on a straight-line 
basis over the remaining terms of the underlying ground leases.  

Note 20.    Segment Footnote  

We are divided into three main lines of business: Wireless, Long Distance and Local.  

We generally manage our segments to the operating income (loss) level of reporting. Items below operating income (loss) are managed at a 
corporate level. The reconciliation from operating income to net income is shown on the face of the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations.  
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     As of December 31,   
         2005             2004       

Health care cost increases assumed for next year     9.3 %   10.0 % 
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate)     5.0 %   5.0 % 
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate     2012     2012   

       

One-
percentage-

point  
Increase     

One-
percentage-

point  
Decrease    

Effect on total of service and interest cost     $  2    $ (2 ) 
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation       37      (32 ) 

2006     $ 66 
2007       63 
2008       63 
2009       64 
2010       65 
2011 – 2015           323 
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We generally account for transactions between segments based on fully distributed costs, which we believe approximate fair value. In certain 
transactions, pricing is set using market rates.  

Segment financial information was as follows:  
   

NM = Not meaningful  
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     Wireless     
Long  

Distance     Local (1) 
    

Corporate  
and  

Eliminations 
(2)      Consolidated   

     (in millions)   

2005             

Net operating revenues     $     22,328     $     6,834     $     6,527     $ (1,009 )   $ 34,680   
Inter-company revenues       29       710       270       (1,009 )     —  
Restructuring and asset impairments (3)       20       15       82       8       125   
Depreciation       3,358       488       1,090       (3 )     4,933   
Amortization       1,335       1       —      —      1,336   
Operating expenses       20,155       6,322       4,769       (392 ) (4)     30,854   
Operating income       2,173       512       1,758       (617 )     3,826   
Operating margin       9.7 %     7.5 %     26.9 %     NM       11.0 % 

Capital expenditures       3,545       384       857       271       5,057   
Total assets       67,090       3,437       8,848           23,205       102,580   

2004             

Net operating revenues     $ 14,647     $ 7,327     $ 6,421     $ (967 )   $     27,428   
Inter-company revenues       27       678       262       (967 )     —  
Restructuring and asset impairments (3)       30       3,661       40       —      3,731   
Depreciation       2,557       1,070       1,089       (3 )     4,713   
Amortization       6       1       —      —      7   
Operating expenses       13,095       10,916       4,685       (965 )     27,731   
Operating income (loss)       1,552       (3,589 )     1,736       (2 )     (303 ) 
Operating margin       10.6 %     NM       27.0 %     NM       NM   

Capital expenditures       2,559       282       1,018       121       3,980   
Total assets       21,417       3,695       8,999       7,210       41,321   

2003             

Net operating revenues     $ 12,690     $ 8,005     $ 6,486     $ (984 )   $ 26,197   
Inter-company revenues       25       693       266       (984 )     —  
Restructuring and asset impairments (3)       362       1,564       25       —      1,951   
Depreciation       2,454       1,431       1,089       (2 )     4,972   
Amortization       —      1       —      —      1   
Operating expenses       12,056       9,447       4,666       (979 )     25,190   
Operating income (loss)       634       (1,442 )     1,820       (5 )     1,007   
Operating margin       5.0 %     NM       28.1 %     NM       3.8 % 

Capital expenditures       2,123       339       1,201       134       3,797   
Total assets       21,671       8,232       9,075       3,696       42,674   

(1) Includes North Supply, which in prior years had been included in the Other segment for segment reporting purposes. However, due to the 
planned spin off of Embarq, which is expected to include North Supply, the North Supply operations have been reclassified to the Local 
segment for all periods presented. 
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In 2005, 2004 and 2003, more than 95% of our revenues was from services and equipment provided within the United States.  

More than 99% of our property, plant, and equipment are in the United States.  

Net operating revenues by services and products were as follows:  
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(2) Revenues eliminated in consolidation consist primarily of local access charged to Long Distance by Local, Long Distance services 
provided to Wireless for resale to Wireless customers and for internal business use, caller ID services provided by Local to Wireless, 
handset purchases from Wireless and access to the Wireless network. 

   Corporate assets are not allocated to the operating segments, and consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, the operational 
headquarters campus and other assets managed at a corporate level. Corporate capital expenditures were incurred mainly for various 
administrative assets and improvements at our operational headquarters campus. Operating expenses related to corporate assets are 
allocated to each segment. 

(3) See note 8 for additional information. 

(4) Operating expenses include $608 million of merger and integration costs primarily associated with the Nextel merger and PCS Affiliate 
acquisitions and the anticipated spin-off of Embarq and have been reflected as unallocated corporate selling, general and administrative 
expense. 

     Wireless    
Long  

Distance    Local (1) 
   

Corporate  
and  

Eliminations 
(2)      Consolidated 

     (in millions) 
2005                

Wireless services     $     19,289    $ —   $ —   $ (29 )   $     19,260 
Wireless equipment       2,147      —     —             —      2,147 
Voice       —     4,213      4,335      (829 )     7,719 
Data       —     1,632      983      (63 )     2,552 
Internet       —     736      —     (9 )     727 
Other       892      253      1,209      (79 )     2,275 

                            
  

      

Total net operating revenues     $ 22,328    $     6,834    $     6,527    $ (1,009 )   $ 34,680 
                            

  

      

2004                

Wireless services     $ 12,529    $ —   $ —   $ (27 )   $ 12,502 
Wireless equipment       1,510      —     —     —      1,510 
Voice       —     4,560      4,498      (768 )     8,290 
Data       —     1,722      833      (71 )     2,484 
Internet       —     793      —     (12 )     781 
Other       608      252      1,090      (89 )     1,861 

                            
  

      

Total net operating revenues     $ 14,647    $ 7,327    $ 6,421    $ (967 )   $ 27,428 
                            

  

      

2003                

Wireless services     $ 11,217    $ —   $ —   $ (17 )   $ 11,200 
Wireless equipment       1,143      —     —     (8 )     1,135 
Voice       —     4,999      4,654      (757 )     8,896 
Data       —     1,853      730      (81 )     2,502 
Internet       —     973      —     (29 )     944 
Other       330      180      1,102      (92 )     1,520 

                            
  

      

Total net operating revenues     $ 12,690    $ 8,005    $ 6,486    $ (984 )   $ 26,197 
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Note 21.    Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements  

SFAS No. 123R  

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment . This statement requires an entity to recognize the cost of 
employee services received in share-based payment transactions, through the use of fair-value-based methods of recognizing cost. This statement 
is effective for us as of January 1, 2006.  

We voluntarily adopted fair value accounting for share-based payments effective January 1, 2003, under SFAS No. 123 as amended by SFAS 
No. 148, using the prospective method. Upon adoption, we began expensing the fair value of stock-based compensation for all grants, 
modifications or settlements made on or after January 1, 2003. In connection with the tracking stock recombination, as required by SFAS 
No. 123, we accounted for the conversion of PCS stock options to FON stock options as a modification and accordingly applied stock option 
expensing to FON stock options resulting from the conversion of PCS stock options granted before January 1, 2003. Further, in connection with 
the Nextel merger, we accounted for the conversion of Nextel stock options to Sprint Nextel stock options as a modification and accordingly 
applied stock option expensing to the unvested stock options beginning on the merger date.  

The revised standard will require us to begin to recognize compensation cost for unvested common stock options granted to our employees 
before January 1, 2003, which are outstanding as of January 1, 2006. This requirement to recognize expense on these unvested grants is expected 
to be immaterial to us.  

SFAS No. 151  

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs—an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4 . This statement requires that 
items such as idle facility expense, excessive spoilage, double freight, and rehandling costs be recognized as current-period charges regardless of 
whether they meet the definition of abnormal provided in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, Inventory Pricing . The statement is effective for inventory 
costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a material impact on our 
financial statements.  

Note 22.    Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)  
   

   
F-62  

(1) Includes North Supply, which in prior years had been included in the Other segment for segment reporting purposes. However, due to the 
planned spin-off of Embarq, which is expected to include North Supply, the North Supply operations have been reclassified to the Local 
segment for all periods presented. 

(2) Revenues eliminated in consolidation consist primarily of local access charged to Long Distance by Local, Long Distance services 
provided to Wireless for resale to Wireless customers and for internal business use, caller ID services provided by Local to Wireless, 
handset purchases from Wireless and access to the Wireless network. 

     Quarter 

     1 st 
   2 nd 

   3 rd 
   4 th 

     (in millions, except per share data) 
2005              

Net operating revenues     $     6,936    $     7,113    $     9,335    $     11,296 
Operating income       1,036      1,196      923      671 
Income from continuing operations       472      600      516      213 
Net income       472      600      516      197 
Basic earnings per common share from continuing operations       0.32      0.40      0.23      0.07 
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations       0.31      0.40      0.23      0.07 



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (C ontinued)  

   

   

   

Note 23.    Restatements of Previously Issued Financial Statements  

In November 2004, we restated previously issued financial statements to correct an error related to the calculation of interest capitalized during 
construction. The financial statements were also restated to apply an adjustment previously recorded and disclosed in the 2003 fourth quarter 
related to the liability for medical coverage for participants in our long-term disability plan to the appropriate pre-2003 periods.  

Note 24.     Subsequent Event  

In February 2006, our board of directors declared dividends of 2.5 cents on our common stock to shareholders of record at the close of business 
on March 10, 2006. The dividends are payable March 31, 2006.  

Note 25.    Pending Transaction  

Spin-off of Local Telecommunications Business  

We have decided to spin-off our local communications business to our shareholders as Embarq Corporation. On the date of the spin-off, the 
assets, liabilities and historical financial results which we have reported as our local segment in our financial statements will be removed from 
our financial statements and reported in Embarq’s separate company financial statements. We are currently in the process of identifying the 
assets and liabilities that will be transferred to the new company, for which we expect to receive approximately $6.6 billion in the form of cash 
and senior notes. We will present Embarq’s results of operations for the periods in which it was a wholly owned subsidiary as a discontinued 
operation when the spin-off occurs. We anticipate that the spin-off will be completed in the second quarter 2006.  
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     Quarter 

     1 st 
   2 nd 

   3 rd 
    4 th 

     (in millions, except per share data) 
2004             

Net operating revenues     $     6,707    $     6,869    $     6,922     $     6,930 
Operating income (loss)       724      718      (2,715 )     970 
Income (loss) from continuing operations       225      236      (1,910 )     437 
Net income (loss)       225      236      (1,910 )     437 
Basic earnings (loss) per common share from continuing operations (1)       0.16      0.16      (1.32 )     0.30 
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share from continuing operations (1)(2)       0.16      0.16      (1.32 )     0.29 

(1) On April 23, 2004, we recombined our two tracking stocks. Each share of PCS common stock automatically converted into 0.5 shares of 
FON common stock. All per share amounts had been restated to reflect the recombination of the FON common stock and the PCS common 
stock as of the earliest period presented at an identical conversion ratio (0.5). The conversion ratio was also applied to dilutive PCS 
securities (mainly stock options, employee stock purchase plan shares, convertible preferred stock and restricted stock units) to determine 
diluted weighted average shares on a consolidated basis. 

(2) As the effects of including the incremental shares associated with options, restricted stock units and ESPP shares are antidilutive, both 
basic earnings per common share and diluted earnings per common share reflect the same calculation for the third quarter 2004. 



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  

SCHEDULE II  

CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS  
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003  
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              Additions (Deductions)                 

     

Balance  
Beginning 

of Year     

Charged  
to Income  

(Loss)     

Charged  
to Other  
Accounts      

Other  
Deductions     

Balance  
End  

of Year  
     (in millions) 
2005               

Allowance for doubtful accounts     $     293    $     441    $     160 (1)   $     (578) (2)   $ 316 
                     

  

      

  

      

Valuation allowance - deferred income tax assets     $ 670    $ 15    $ 386 (3)   $ —    $     1,071 
                     

  

      

  

      

2004               

Allowance for doubtful accounts     $ 276    $ 386    $ 124 (1)   $ (493) (2)   $ 293 
                     

  

      

  

      

Valuation allowance - deferred income tax assets     $ 620    $ 50    $ —    $ —    $ 670 
                     

  

      

  

      

2003               

Allowance for doubtful accounts     $ 414    $ 422    $ 137 (1)   $ (697) (2)   $ 276 
                     

  

      

  

      

Valuation allowance - deferred income tax assets     $ 573    $ 47    $ —    $ —    $ 620 
                     

  

      

  

      

(1) Amounts charged to other accounts consist of receivable reserves for billing and collection services we provide for certain PCS Affiliates. 
Uncollectible accounts are recovered from affiliates. In 2005, the amount includes the allowance recorded in the merger of Nextel and the 
PCS Affiliate acquisitions. 

(2) Accounts written off, net of recoveries. 

(3) Amount represents increases in valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets related primarily to the purchase price allocations for 
the Nextel merger and PCS Affiliate acquisitions. 



Exhibit 10.4 

SPRINT NEXTEL  
SHORT-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN  

Article I  
Purpose and Definitions  

1.1 Purpose . The Sprint Nextel Short-Term Incentive Plan is intended to further the Company’s objectives by offering competitive 
incentive compensation to employees who make contributions to those objectives. The Plan is effective January 1, 2006.  

1.2 Definitions . As used in this Plan,  

Board is the Board of Directors of the Company.  

Committee is the Human Capital & Compensation Committee of the Board.  

Company is Sprint Nextel Corporation.  

Disability is a Participant’s termination of employment upon becoming eligible for benefits under the Company’s long-term disability plan. 

Involuntary Termination without Cause is a Participant’s termination of employment under circumstances in which the Participant is 
eligible for severance under the Company’s separation pay plans or policies.  

Participant is an employee or class of employee of the Company or one of its subsidiaries designated to participate in the Plan under 
Article III.  

Performance Goals are the objective(s) established by the Committee under the Plan for measuring performance of Participants during a 
Performance Period. Performance Goals may be described in terms of Company-wide objectives or objectives that are related to the performance 
of the individual Participant or of the division, department, or function within the Company in which the Participant works.  

Performance Period is a calendar year or another period not longer than one year established by the Committee.  

Retirement is a Participant’s termination of employment upon or after attaining age 65.  

Senior Officer is an officer of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company with the title of senior vice president or higher.  

Article II  
Administration  

2.1 Administration. The Committee will be responsible for the administration of the Plan. The Committee is authorized to interpret the 
Plan, to prescribe, amend, and rescind rules and regulations deemed advisable, and to make all other administrative determinations necessary. 
Any determination, interpretation or other action made or taken by the Committee under the Plan’s provisions will be final for all purposes and 
upon all persons.  

2.2 Delegation by Committee. The Chief Executive Officer, or such other Senior Officer or a Committee of Senior Officers as may be 
specified by the Committee, has the authority to select Participants and grant awards under the Plan to employees who are not Senior Officers. 
This authority includes the same powers to make determinations under the Plan with respect to those awards as the Committee has under this 
Plan, provided that all decisions must be within the boundaries of the compensation philosophy established by the Committee.  



Article III  
Participation  

3.1 Eligibility. For each Performance Period, the Committee will determine which employees, who are in a position to influence the 
Company’s success, will participate in the Plan and the target opportunity for those Participants.  

3.2 New hires and changes in position. Employees hired or promoted during a Performance Period into a position appropriate for 
participation in this Plan may either participate in the already existing Performance Period on a prorated basis, or be held out until the beginning 
of the next Performance Period. Participants who change into a position no longer appropriate for participation in this Plan may either continue 
to participate in the already existing Performance Period, participate on a prorated basis up to the date of the change, or cease participation for 
the entire Performance Period. These determinations will be made by the Committee.  

3.3 Terminations. Under rules established by the Committee, Participants who terminate their employment during the Performance Period 
may be entitled to a prorated award if that termination is by reason of Disability, Retirement, or Involuntary Termination without Cause. 
Participants who die during the Performance Period may be entitled to a prorated award based on a percentage of target opportunity payable as 
soon as practicable after the Participant’s death as determined by the Committee. Participants who terminate employment during the 
Performance Period for any other reason will forfeit their award under the Plan unless otherwise determined by the Committee.  

Article IV  
Payment of Award  

4.1 Determining amount of the award. The Committee will determine the award earned by each Senior Officer for any Performance 
Period based on the Senior Officer’s target opportunity and their achievement of Performance Goals during the Performance Period.  

4.2 Adjustment of awards. The Committee may make adjustments in the Performance Goals to compensate for any events that 
significantly alter the basis upon which the goals were determined, following instructions for making such adjustments that are adopted at the 
time the Performance Goals are established. These adjustments may be made before or after the end of the Performance Period.  

4.3 Timing of payment. Payments of amounts due to a Participant under the Plan will be made after approval by the Committee. Payment 
will be made no later than March 15 th of the year following the year in which the Performance Period ends.  

Article V  
General Provisions  

5.1 Non-transferability. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, a Participant’s rights and interests under the Plan may not be 
sold, pledged, assigned or transferred in any manner other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution.  

5.2 Payroll taxes. The Company retains the right to deduct from all awards any taxes required by law to be withheld with respect to the 
awards.  

5.3 Continuance of employment. Nothing in this Plan or any action taken because of the Plan will be construed as giving any employee 
any right to be retained in the Company’s employ.  

5.4 Amendment and termination. The Board at any time may terminate, and at any time and in any respect may amend or modify, the 
Plan.  

5.5 Legal requirements. The designation of participation and any opportunity in the Plan, together with the payment of cash, will be 
subject to all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations. The Plan will be construed in accordance with and governed by the 
laws of the State of Kansas.  
 



EXHIBIT 10.32 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of April 1, 2004 (the “Effective Date”), by and 
between Nextel Communications, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and Richard Lefave (the “Executive”).  

WITNESSETH :  

WHEREAS, the Executive serves the Company as its Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer;  

WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company are parties to a Nextel Confidentiality Agreement dated September 22, 1999 (the 
“Confidentiality Agreement”);  

WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company desire to enter into this employment agreement; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the covenants and agreements set forth herein and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Executive agree as follows:  

1. Employment .  

(a) The Company will continue to employ the Executive and the Executive will continue to be employed by the Company upon the 
terms and conditions set forth herein.  

(b) The employment relationship between the Company and the Executive shall be governed by the general employment policies and 
practices of the Company, including without limitation, those relating to the Company’s Code of Corporate Conduct, confidential 
information and avoidance of conflicts, except that when the terms of this Agreement differ from or are in conflict with the Company’s 
general employment policies or practices, this Agreement shall control.  

2. Term . Subject to termination under Section 9, the Executive’s employment shall be for an initial term of thirty-six (36) months 
commencing on the Effective Date and shall continue through the third anniversary of the Effective Date (the “Employment Term”); provided , 
however , that at the end of the initial Employment Term and on each succeeding anniversary of the Effective Date, the Employment Term will 
be automatically extended by an additional twelve (12) months, unless not less than twelve (12) months prior to the end of the initial 
Employment Term or any such succeeding anniversary date either the Executive or the Company has given the other written notice of 
nonrenewal.  

3. Position and Duties of the Executive .  

(a) The Executive shall serve as a Senior Vice President and the Chief Information Officer of the Company, and agrees to serve as an 
officer and/or agrees to be an employee of any Subsidiary as may be requested from time to time by the Board of Directors of the 
Company (the “Board”), any committee or person delegated by the Board or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “Chief 
Executive Officer”). In such capacity, the Executive shall report directly to the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Operating Officer of 
the Company. The Executive shall perform such duties as may be delineated in the By-laws of the Company, and such other duties 
commensurate with the Executive’s title and position, as may be assigned to the Executive from time to time by the Chief Executive 
Officer or such other officer of the Company as may be designated by the Chief Executive Officer. For purposes of this Agreement, 
“Subsidiary” shall mean any entity, corporation, partnership (general or limited), limited liability company, entity, firm, business 
organization, enterprise, association or joint venture in which the Company directly or indirectly controls ten percent (10%) or more of the 
voting interest.  

(b) Throughout the Employment Term, the Executive shall, except as may from time to time be otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Company and during reasonable vacations as set forth in Section 7 hereof  



and authorized leave, devote his best efforts, full attention and energies during his normal working time to the business of the Company, 
any duties as may be delineated in the Company’s By-laws for the Executive’s position and title and such other related duties and 
responsibilities as may from time to time be reasonably prescribed by the Board, any committee or person delegated by the Board, or the 
Chief Executive Officer, in each case, within the framework of the Company’s policies and objectives.  

(c) Throughout the Employment Term and provided that such activities do not contravene the provisions of Section 3(a) or Sections 
10, 11, 12 and 13 hereof and provided further the Executive does not engage in any other substantial business activity for gain, profit or 
other pecuniary advantage which materially interferes with the performance of his duties hereunder, the Executive may participate in any 
governmental, educational, charitable or other community affairs and serve as a member of the governing board of any such organization 
or of up to three (3) private or public for profit companies, subject in each case to the prior approval of the Chief Executive Officer. The 
Executive may retain all fees and other compensation from any such service, and the Company shall not reduce his compensation by the 
amount of such fees.  

4. Compensation.  

(a) Base Salary . During the Employment Term the Company shall pay to the Executive a base salary of not less than his base salary 
as of the Effective Date (the “Base Salary”), payable at the times and in the manner consistent with the Company’s general policies 
regarding compensation of senior executive employees. The Base Salary will be reviewed not less than annually by the Chief Executive 
Officer and may be increased (but not decreased) in the Chief Executive Officer’s sole discretion. The Executive’s position shall be 
classified as pay grade EX3 or better (as adjusted for any changes to the Company’s system of classifying employees by salary grade level 
implemented subsequent to the Effective Date).  

(b) Incentive Compensation .  

(i) The Executive will continue to be eligible to participate in any short-term and long-term incentive compensation plans, 
annual bonus plans and such other management incentive programs or arrangements of the Company approved by the Board that are 
generally available to the Company’s senior executives, including, but not limited to, (i) the Nextel Communications, Inc. Long-
Term Performance Plan effective January 1, 2004, or any successor plan, program, agreement or arrangement (the “LTPP”) and 
(ii) the Nextel Communications, Inc. Cash Compensation Deferral Plan, each as may be amended from time to time.  

(ii) Annual Performance Bonus . During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to participate in an annual 
bonus plan (the “Bonus Plan”), with such opportunities as may be determined by the Chief Executive Officer (“Target Bonuses”); 
provided, however, that effective for the bonus year ending December 31, 2004, the Executive will participate in the Bonus Plan at a 
Target Bonus opportunity of 50% of his Base Salary and shall be entitled to receive full payment of any award under the Bonus Plan 
determined pursuant to such Bonus Plan (a “Bonus Award”).  

(iii) Long-Term Performance Bonus . During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to participate in the LTPP 
with such opportunities, if any, as may be determined by the Chief Executive Officer (“LTPP Target Award Opportunities”).  

(iv) Incentive bonuses, if earned, shall be paid when incentive compensation is customarily paid to the Company’s senior 
executives in accordance with the terms of the applicable plans, programs or arrangements.  

(v) Pursuant to the Company’s applicable incentive or bonus plans as in effect from time to time, the Executive’s incentive 
compensation during the term of this Agreement may be determined according to criteria intended to qualify under Section 162(m) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).  
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(c) Equity Compensation . The Executive shall continue to be eligible to participate in such equity incentive compensation 
plans and programs as the Company generally provides to its senior executives, including, but not limited to, the Nextel 
Communications, Inc. Amended and Restated Incentive Equity Plan (as amended and restated as of November 16, 2000), as may be 
further amended from time to time, (the “Incentive Equity Plan”).  

(i) Options . During the Employment Term, the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Compensation Committee”) may, 
in its sole discretion, grant stock options to the Executive, which would be subject to the terms of the respective option agreements 
evidencing such grants.  

(ii) Deferred Shares . The Compensation Committee will award to the Executive 75,000 Deferred Shares (as such term is 
defined in the Incentive Equity Plan) of common stock of the Company, par value $.001 per share (“Common Stock”), (the 
“Deferred Shares Award”) in three (3) tranches as follows: 25,000 Deferred Shares as of the Effective Date (the “Tranche 1 Shares”), 
25,000 Deferred Shares as of the date of a Compensation Committee meeting in February 2005 (the “Tranche 2 Shares”) and 25,000 
Deferred Shares as of the date of a Compensation Committee meeting in February 2006 (the “Tranche 3 Shares”). Subject to the 
terms and conditions of the Deferred Shares Award agreement evidencing each such Tranche, the Deferred Shares Award shall vest 
and become nonforfeitable pursuant to the following schedule: one-third (1/3) of the Tranche 1 Shares shall vest and become 
nonforfeitable on each of the first three (3) anniversaries of the Effective Date, one-half (1/2) of the Tranche 2 Shares shall vest and 
become nonforfeitable on each of the second and third anniversaries of the Effective Date, and all of the Tranche 3 Shares shall vest 
and become nonforfeitable on the third anniversary of the Effective Date; provided , however , that in the event of a Change of 
Control (as defined in the Incentive Equity Plan) of the Company, to the extent not awarded, the remaining tranches of the Deferred 
Shares Award shall be awarded effective immediately prior to the Change of Control and any unvested portions of each tranche of 
the Deferred Shares Award shall immediately vest and become nonforfeitable upon the Change of Control.  

5. Benefits .  

(a) During the Employment Term, the Company shall make available to the Executive, subject to the terms and conditions of the 
applicable plans, participation for the Executive and his eligible dependents in (i) Company-sponsored group health, major medical, 
pension and profit sharing, 401(k) and employee welfare benefit plans, programs and arrangements (the “Employee Plans”) and such other 
usual and customary benefits in which senior executives of the Company participate from time to time, and (ii) such fringe benefits and 
perquisites as may be made available to senior executives of the Company as a group, including, but not limited to, long-term disability 
insurance, life insurance coverage and the Nextel Communications, Inc. Change of Control Retention Bonus and Severance Pay Plan, or 
any successor plan, program, agreement or arrangement (the “Change of Control Plan”).  

(b) The Executive acknowledges that the Company may change its benefit programs from time to time which may result in certain 
benefit programs being amended or terminated for its senior executives generally.  

6. Expenses . The Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for reasonable and necessary business expenses incurred by the 
Executive in connection with his duties on behalf of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Travel and Expense Policy and any other 
of its expense policies applicable to senior executives of the Company, following submission by the Executive of reimbursement expense forms 
in a form consistent with such expense policies.  

7. Vacation . In addition to such holidays, sick leave, personal leave and other paid leave as is allowed under the Company’s policies 
applicable to senior executives generally, the Executive shall be entitled to twenty (20) days of vacation per 12-month period and subject to the 
terms and conditions of the Company’s vacation policy applicable to senior executives. The duration of such vacations and the time or times 
when they shall be taken will be determined by the Executive in consultation with the Company.  
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8. Place of Performance . In connection with his employment by the Company, the Executive shall be based at the principal executive 
offices of the Company in the greater Washington, D.C. area, except for travel reasonably required for Company business. If the Company 
relocates his place of work more than 30 miles, the Executive shall relocate to a residence within 30 miles of such relocated executive offices, 
subject, however, to reimbursement of the Executive’s relocation expenses in accordance with the Company’s relocation policy applicable to 
senior executives.  

9. Termination .  

(a) Termination by the Company for Cause or Resignation by the Executive Without Good Reason . If, prior to the expiration of the 
Employment Term, the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for Cause, as defined in Section 9(d), or if the Executive 
resigns from his employment hereunder without Good Reason, as defined in Section 9(f), the Executive shall not be eligible to receive 
Base Salary or to participate in any Employee Plans with respect to future periods after the date of such termination or resignation except 
for the right to receive vested benefits under any Employee Plan in accordance with the terms of such Employee Plan.  

(b) Termination by the Company Without Cause or Resignation by the Executive for Good Reason . If, prior to the expiration of the 
Employment Term, the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause or the Executive terminates his employment 
hereunder for Good Reason, conditioned upon the Executive delivering to the Company a release in a form reasonably satisfactory to the 
Company with all periods for revocation expired, notwithstanding any provision in the terms of any incentive compensation plan or 
agreement to the contrary, in full satisfaction of the Executive’s rights and any benefits the Executive might be entitled to under The Nextel 
Severance Benefits Plan, or any successor plan, program, agreement or arrangement, the Executive shall be entitled to:  

(i) receive from the Company his Base Salary then in effect for the greater of the remainder of the Employment Term or 
twenty-four (24) months (the “Severance Period”), payable through periodic payments with the same frequency as the Company’s 
payroll schedule following the termination of the Executive’s employment;  

(ii) continue participation in the Company’s health care, life and long-term disability plans, substantially on the same basis that 
the Executive participated in such health care, life and long-term disability plans prior to the termination of his employment for the 
Severance Period; provided, however, that benefits otherwise receivable by the Executive pursuant to this Section 9(b)(ii) shall be 
applied against the maximum period of continuation coverage provided under Section 4980B of the Code;  

(iii) (A) receive full payment of the Bonus Award for the Company’s fiscal year during which his termination of employment 
occurs, (B) receive full payment of the Bonus Award for the next fiscal year following the fiscal year during which his termination of 
employment occurs and (C) receive payment of a pro rata portion of the Bonus Award for the second year following the fiscal year 
during which the Executive’s employment terminates (such pro rata formula shall be determined based on the number of months of 
service provided by the Executive during the fiscal year during which his termination of employment occurs), in each case at the 
greater of the annual Target Bonus or actual performance for such fiscal year in accordance with the then existing terms of such cash 
incentive compensation, which shall not be payable until the Compensation Committee has determined that any incentive targets 
have been achieved and the subsequent designated payout date has arrived;  

(iv) receive either (A) a pro rata portion of any LTPP Target Award Opportunity to which he would otherwise be entitled for 
the LTPP performance period during which his termination of employment occurs (but not for any later years) if such termination 
occurs during the first year of the two-year LTPP performance period or (B) full payment of any LTPP Target Award Opportunity to 
which he would otherwise be entitled for the LTPP performance period during which his termination of employment occurs (but not 
for any later years) if such termination occurs during the second year of  
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the two-year LTPP performance period, in each case, in accordance with the then existing terms of the LTPP, which shall not be 
payable until the Compensation Committee has determined that any incentive targets have been achieved and the subsequent 
designated payout date has arrived;  

(v) accelerated vesting of any unvested deferred shares, restricted shares and stock options granted to the Executive which have 
not otherwise vested and any vested stock options shall remain outstanding and exercisable for twelve (12) months following the 
Executive’s termination of employment, and to the extent not awarded, the remaining tranches of the Deferred Shares Award shall be 
awarded effective immediately prior to the termination of the Executive’s employment and any unvested portions of each tranche of 
the Deferred Shares Award shall immediately vest and become nonforfeitable; and  

(vi) receive outplacement services by a firm selected by the Company at its expense in an amount not to exceed the lesser of 
$50,000 or 10% of the Executive’s Base Salary.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Executive terminates his employment for Good Reason due to the relocation of the Executive’s 
principal place of work, as set forth in Section 9(f)(iii), in lieu of payments and benefits set forth under Section 9(b)(i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v) and (vi), 
the Executive shall be entitled to receive (A) the compensation and benefits provided under Sections 9(b)(i), (ii) and (iii) for a maximum period 
of twelve (12) months and under Section 9(b)(v), as provided in such provision and (B) a pro rata portion of the Executive’s LTPP Target Award 
Opportunity, if any, for the Company’s fiscal year during which the Executive’s termination occurs (but not for any later years) payable in 
accordance with the then existing terms of such cash incentive compensation, which shall not be payable until the Compensation Committee has 
determined that any incentive targets have been achieved and the subsequent designated payout has arrived.  

(c) Termination by Death or Disability . If the Executive dies or becomes Disabled, as defined in Section 9(e), prior to the expiration 
of the Employment Term, the Executive’s employment will terminate and the Executive, or in the case of death, the Executive’s 
beneficiary, or if none, the Executive’s estate, shall be entitled to:  

(i) in the case of Disability, receive an amount equal to twelve (12) months Base Salary payable through periodic payments 
with the same frequency as the Company’s payroll schedule or in the event of the Executive’s death, receive an amount equal to 
twelve (12) months Base Salary following termination due to the Executive’s death;  

(ii) in the case of Disability, continue participation in any health care and life plans for a period of twelve (12) months or in the 
event of the Executive’s death, receive any health care benefits under the terms of the Employee Plans; and  

(iii) receive a pro rata portion of the Executive’s Bonus Award and LTPP Target Award Opportunity, if any, for the Company’s 
fiscal year during which the Executive’s death or Disability occurs (but not for any later years) payable in accordance with the then 
existing terms of such cash incentive compensation, which shall not be payable until the Compensation Committee has determined 
that any incentive targets have been achieved and the subsequent designated payout has arrived; and  

(iv) accelerated vesting of any unvested deferred shares, restricted shares and stock options and exercise of any unexercised 
vested stock options for a period of twelve (12) months following termination due to the Executive’s death or Disability, and to the 
extent not awarded, the remaining tranches of the Deferred Shares Award shall be awarded effective immediately prior to the 
termination of the Executive’s employment and any unvested portions of each tranche of the Deferred Shares Award shall 
immediately vest and become nonforfeitable;  

provided , however , if the Executive also becomes entitled to receive benefits under a long-term disability plan (“LTD Plan”) now or hereafter 
paid for by the Company, then the Executive’s disability benefits under Section 9(c)(i) (calculated on a monthly basis) shall be reduced by the 
amount of the benefits paid under such LTD Plan.  
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(d) Cause . For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean:  

(i) any act or omission constituting a material breach by the Executive of any provisions of this Agreement or the willful failure 
by the Executive to perform his duties hereunder (other than any such failure resulting from the Executive’s Disability), after demand 
for performance is delivered by the Company that identifies the manner in which the Company believes the Executive has not 
performed his duties, if, within thirty (30) days of such demand, the Executive fails to cure any such failure capable of being cured;  

(ii) any intentional act or misconduct materially injurious to the Company or any Subsidiary, financial or otherwise, or the 
misappropriation, fraud, embezzlement or conversion by the Executive of the Company’s or any of its Subsidiary’s property in 
connection with the Executive’s duties or in the course of the Executive’s employment with the Company;  

(iii) the conviction or plea of no contest of the Executive for any felony or the indictment of the Executive for any felony 
involving fraud, moral turpitude, embezzlement or theft in connection with the Executive’s duties or in the course of the Executive’s 
employment with the Company;  

(iv) the commission of any intentional or knowing violation of any antifraud provision of the federal or state securities laws or 
the Board reasonably believes that the Executive has committed any of the acts referred to in this Section 9(d)(iv);  

(v) there is a final, non-appealable order in a proceeding before a court of competent jurisdiction or a final order in an 
administrative proceeding finding that the Executive committed any willful misconduct or criminal activity (excluding traffic 
violations or other minor offenses) which commission is materially inimical to the interests of the Company or any Subsidiary, 
whether for his personal benefit or in connection with his duties for the Company or any Subsidiary;  

(vi) current alcohol or prescription drug abuse affecting work performance;  

(vii) current illegal use of drugs; or  

(viii) violation of the Company’s Code of Corporate Conduct.  

For purposes of this Agreement, no act or failure to act on the part of the Executive shall be deemed “intentional” if it was due primarily to 
an error in judgment or negligence, but shall be deemed “intentional” only if done or omitted to be done by the Executive not in good faith and 
without reasonable belief that the Executive’s action or omission was in the best interest of the Company.  

(e) Disability . For purposes of this Agreement, “Disability” or “Disabled” shall mean:  

(i) the Executive’s incapacity due to physical or mental illness to substantially perform his duties and the essential functions of 
his position, with or without reasonable accommodation, on a full-time basis for at least six (6) months in any 12-month period as 
determined by the Board in its reasonable discretion, and within thirty (30) days after a notice of termination is thereafter given by 
the Company, the Executive shall not have returned to the full-time performance of the Executive’s duties; or  

(ii) the Executive becomes eligible to receive benefits under the Company’s LTD Plan;  

provided , however , if the Executive shall not agree with a determination to terminate his employment because of Disability, the question of the 
Executive’s disability shall be subject to the certification of a qualified medical doctor agreed to by the Company and the Executive. The costs of 
such qualified medical doctor shall be paid for by the Company.  

(f) Good Reason . For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean:  

(i) the Company’s material breach of this Agreement (after failure to cure in thirty (30) days);  

(ii) a reduction in the Executive’s Base Salary or Target Bonus opportunity, as set forth in Section 4(b)(ii) (that is not in either 
case agreed to by the Executive) as compared to the corresponding circumstances in place on the Effective Date; or  
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(iii) relocation of the Executive’s principal place of work more than thirty (30) miles without the Executive’s consent.  

(g) No Mitigation Obligation . The Executive will not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment made pursuant to Section 9 
of this Agreement by seeking other employment or otherwise. Except as otherwise provided by applicable law, the Executive’s coverage 
under the Company’s welfare benefit plans will terminate when the Executive becomes eligible for coverage under any employee benefit 
plan made available by another employer and covering the same type of benefits. The Executive shall notify the Company within thirty 
(30) days after becoming eligible for coverage of any such benefits.  

(h) Forfeiture . Notwithstanding the foregoing, any right of the Executive to receive termination payments and benefits hereunder 
shall be forfeited to the extent of any amounts payable after any breach of Section 10, 11, 12, 13 or 15 by the Executive.  

10. Confidential Information; Statements to Third Parties .  

(a) During the Employment Term and on a permanent basis upon and following termination of the Executive’s employment, the 
Executive acknowledges that:  

(i) all information, whether reduced to writing (or in a form from which information can be obtained, translated, or derived into 
reasonably usable form) or maintained in the mind or memory of the Executive and whether compiled or created by the Company, 
any of its Subsidiaries or any affiliates of the Company or its Subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company Group”), which derives 
independent economic value from not being readily known to or ascertainable by proper means by others who can obtain economic 
value from the disclosure or use of such information, of a proprietary, private, secret or confidential nature concerning the Company 
Group’s business, business relationships or financial affairs (collectively, “Proprietary Information”) shall be the exclusive property 
of the Company Group, and by way of illustration, but not limitation, shall include inventions, products, processes, methods, 
techniques, formulas, compositions, compounds, projects, developments, sales strategies, plans, research data, clinical data, financial 
data, personnel data, computer programs, customer and supplier lists, trade marks, service marks, copyrights (whether registered or 
unregistered), artwork, and contacts at or knowledge of customers or prospective customers of the Company Group; and  

(ii) the Proprietary Information of the Company Group gained by the Executive during the Executive’s association with the 
Company Group was or will be developed by and/or for the Company Group through substantial expenditure of time, effort and 
money and constitutes valuable and unique property of the Company Group and that reasonable efforts have been put forth by the 
Company Group to maintain the secrecy of its Proprietary Information, that such Proprietary Information is and will remain the sole 
property of the Company Group, and that any retention or use by the Executive of Proprietary Information after the termination of the 
Executive’s services for the Company Group will constitute a misappropriation of the Company Group’s Proprietary Information.  

(b) The Executive further acknowledges and agrees that he will take all affirmative steps reasonably necessary or required by the 
Company to protect the Proprietary Information from inappropriate disclosure during and after his employment with the Company.  

(c) The Executive further agrees that all files, letters, memoranda, reports, records, data, sketches, drawings, laboratory notebooks, 
program listings, or other written, photographic, electronic, or other tangible material containing or constituting Proprietary Information, 
whether created by the Executive or others, which shall come into his custody or possession, regardless of medium, shall be and are the 
exclusive property of the Company to be used by him only in the performance of his duties for the Company. All such materials or copies 
thereof and all tangible things and other property of the Company Group in the Executive’s custody or possession shall be delivered to the 
Company (to the extent the Executive has not already returned) in good condition, on or before five (5) business days subsequent to the 
earlier of: (i) a request by the Company or (ii) the Executive’s termination of employment for any reason or  
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Cause, including for nonrenewal of this Agreement, Disability, termination by the Company or termination by the Executive. After such 
delivery, the Executive shall not retain any such materials or portions or copies thereof or any such tangible things and other property and 
shall execute any statements or affirmations of compliance under oath that the Company may require.  

(d) The Executive further agrees that his obligation not to disclose or to use information and materials of the types set forth in 
Sections 10(a), 10(b) and 10(c) above, and his obligation to return materials and tangible property, set forth in Section 10(c) above, also 
extends to such types of information, materials and tangible property of customers of the Company Group, consultants for the Company 
Group, suppliers to the Company Group, or other third parties who may have disclosed or entrusted the same to the Company Group or to 
the Executive.  

(e) The Executive further acknowledges and agrees that he will continue to keep in strict confidence, and will not, directly or 
indirectly, at any time, disclose, furnish, disseminate, make available, use or suffer to be used in any manner any Proprietary Information 
of the Company Group without limitation as to when or how the Executive may have acquired such Proprietary Information and that he 
will not disclose any Proprietary Information to any person or entity other than appropriate employees of the Company or use the same for 
any purposes (other than in the performance of his duties as an employee of the Company) without written approval of the Board, either 
during or after his employment with the Company.  

(f) Further the Executive acknowledges that his obligation of confidentiality will survive, regardless of any other breach of this 
Agreement or any other agreement, by any party hereto, until and unless such Proprietary Information of the Company Group has become, 
through no fault of the Executive, generally known to the public. In the event that the Executive is required by law, regulation, or court 
order to disclose any of the Company Group’s Proprietary Information, the Executive will promptly notify the Company prior to making 
any such disclosure to facilitate the Company seeking a protective order or other appropriate remedy from the proper authority. The 
Executive further agrees to cooperate with the Company in seeking such order or other remedy and that, if the Company is not successful 
in precluding the requesting legal body from requiring the disclosure of the Proprietary Information, the Executive will furnish only that 
portion of the Proprietary Information that is legally required, and the Executive will exercise all legal efforts to obtain reliable assurances 
that confidential treatment will be accorded the Proprietary Information.  

(g) The Executive’s obligations under this Section 10 are in addition to, and not in limitation or preemption of, all other obligations 
of confidentiality which the Executive may have to the Company under the Company’s policies, general legal or equitable principles or 
statutes and which will remain in full force and effect following the termination of the Executive’s employment.  

(h) During the Employment Term and following his termination of employment:  

(i) the Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, make or cause to be made any statements to any third parties criticizing or 
disparaging the Company Group or commenting on the character or business reputation of the Company Group. The Executive 
further hereby agrees that, without the prior written consent of the Board, unless otherwise required by law, the Executive shall not 
(A) publicly comment in a manner adverse to the Company Group concerning the status, plans or prospects of the business of the 
Company Group or (B) publicly comment in a manner adverse to the Company Group concerning the status, plans or prospects of 
any existing, threatened or potential claims or litigation involving the Company Group; and  

(ii) the Company shall comply with its policies regarding public statements with respect to the Executive;  

provided , however , that nothing herein shall be interpreted to preclude honest and good faith reporting by the Executive to appropriate 
Company or legal enforcement authorities.  

(i) The Executive acknowledges and agrees that a violation of the foregoing provisions of this Section 10 that results in material 
detriment to the Company Group would cause irreparable harm to  
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the Company Group, and that the Company’s remedy at law for any such violation would be inadequate. In recognition of the 
foregoing, the Executive agrees that, in addition to any other relief afforded by law or this Agreement, including damages sustained 
by a breach of this Agreement and any forfeitures under Section 9(h), and without the necessity or proof of actual damages, the 
Company shall have the right to enforce this Agreement by specific remedies, which shall include, among other things, temporary 
and permanent injunctions, it being the understanding of the undersigned parties hereto that damages, the forfeitures described above 
and injunctions shall all be proper modes of relief and are not to be considered as alternative remedies.  

11. Non-Competition . In consideration of the Company entering into this Agreement, and in particular, the awards of Deferred Shares 
under Section 4(c)(ii), for a period commencing on the Effective Date and for a period ending twenty-four (24) months after the Executive’s 
termination of employment for any reason or Cause, including for nonrenewal of this Agreement, Disability, termination by the Company or 
termination by the Executive:  

(a) the Executive hereby covenants and agrees that he shall not, directly or indirectly, individually or on behalf of any other person or 
entity do or suffer any of the following, engage or be interested in (whether as owner, stockholder, investor, partner, lender, consultant, 
employee, agent, director or otherwise) in any business, activity or enterprise which is then competing with or planning to compete with 
the business of any division or operation of the Company Group within any United States territory or state in which the Company Group is 
conducting the business of providing wireless local area network (e.g., “802.11” or “Wi-Fi” wireless services) or any other business 
authorized by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) to provide “commercial mobile radio service” as that term is defined by 
the FCC (47 C.F.R. § 20.3), (the “Territory”), provided , however , that the Executive’s ownership of less than one percent (1%) of any 
class of stock in a publicly traded corporation shall not be deemed a breach of this Section 11; and;  

(b) the Executive acknowledges that due to his unique and special contributions to the Company Group in his position as specified in 
Section 3, he will be privy to and/or responsible for Proprietary Information generated by the Company Group, so that his employment in 
any capacity for a competing business will create an unreasonable and real risk of disclosure, inevitable or otherwise, of Proprietary 
Information. The Executive further acknowledges that due to his talents, skills and experience, the restrictions contained herein are 
reasonable and will not deprive him of his ability to obtain commensurate employment or work in a non-competing business activity or 
enterprise, and will not impose an undue hardship on him.  

12. Non-Solicitation . In consideration of the Company entering into this Agreement, for a period commencing on the Effective Date and 
for a period ending twenty-four (24) months after the Executive’s termination of employment for any reason or Cause, including for nonrenewal 
of this Agreement, Disability, termination by the Company or termination by the Executive, the Executive hereby covenants and agrees that he 
shall not, directly or indirectly, individually or on behalf of any other person or entity do or suffer any of the following:  

(a) hire or employ or assist in hiring or employing any person who has been an employee, representative or agent of any member of 
the Company Group at any time during the Executive’s employment or solicit, aid, induce or attempt to solicit, aid, induce or persuade, 
directly or indirectly, such person to leave his or his employment with any member of the Company Group to accept employment with any 
other person or entity;  

(b) directly or indirectly induce any person who is an employee, officer or agent of the Company Group, or any of its affiliated, 
related or subsidiary entities to terminate such relationship; or  

(c) solicit any customer of the Company Group, or any person or entity whose business the Company Group had solicited during the 
one hundred and eighty (180) day period prior to termination of the Executive’s employment, within the Territory for purposes of business 
which is competitive to the Company Group.  
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(d) For purposes of this Section 12, the term “solicit or persuade” includes, but is not limited to, (i) initiating communications with an 
employee of the Company Group relating to possible employment, (ii) offering bonuses or additional compensation to encourage an 
employee of the Company Group to terminate his or her employment, and (iii) referring employees of the Company Group to personnel or 
agents employed by competitors, suppliers or customers of the Company Group.  

13. Developments .  

(a) The Executive acknowledges and agrees that he will make full and prompt disclosure to the Company of all inventions, 
improvements, discoveries, methods, developments, software, mask works, and works of authorship, whether patentable or copyrightable 
or not, (i) which relate to the Company’s business and have heretofore been created, made, conceived or reduced to practice by the 
Executive or under his direction or jointly with others, and not assigned to prior employers, or (ii) which have utility in or relate to the 
Company’s business and are created, made, conceived or reduced to practice by the Executive or under his direction or jointly with others 
during his employment with the Company, whether or not during normal working hours or on the premises of the Company (all of the 
foregoing of which are collectively referred to in this Agreement as “Developments”).  

(b) The Executive further agrees to assign and does hereby assign to the Company (or any person or entity designated by the 
Company) all of the Executive’s rights, title and interest worldwide in and to all Developments and all related patents, patent applications, 
copyrights and copyright applications, and any other applications for registration of a proprietary right. However, this Section 13(b) shall 
not apply to Developments that the Executive developed entirely on his own time without using the Company’s equipment, supplies, 
facilities, or trade secret information and that does not, at the time of conception or reduction to practice, have utility in or relate to the 
Company’s business, or actual or demonstrably anticipated research or development. The Executive understands that, to the extent this 
Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of any state or country which precludes a requirement in an employee agreement 
to assign certain classes of inventions made by an employee, this Section 13(b) shall be interpreted not to apply to any invention which a 
court rules or the Company agrees falls within such classes.  

(c) The Executive further agrees to cooperate fully with the Company, both during and after his employment with the Company, with 
respect to the procurement, maintenance and enforcement of copyrights, patents and other intellectual property rights (both in the United 
States and other countries) relating to Developments; provided , however , that the Executive shall not be required to incur or pay any costs 
or expenses in connection with the rendering of such cooperation. The Executive will sign all papers, including, without limitation, 
copyright applications, patent applications, declarations, oaths, formal assignments, assignments of priority rights, and powers of attorney, 
and do all things that the Company may reasonably deem necessary or desirable in order to protect its rights and interests in any 
Development.  

(d) The Executive further acknowledges and agrees that if the Company is unable, after reasonable effort, to secure the Executive’s 
signature on any such papers, any executive officer of the Company shall be entitled to execute any such papers as the Executive’s agent 
and attorney-in-fact, and the Executive hereby irrevocably designates and appoints each executive officer of the Company as his agent and 
attorney-in-fact to execute any such papers on the Executive’s behalf, and to take any and all actions as the Company may deem necessary 
or desirable in order to protect its rights and interests in any Development, under the conditions described in this sentence.  

14. Remedies . The Executive and the Company agree that the covenants contained in Sections 10, 11, 12 and 13 are reasonable under the 
circumstances, and further agree that if in the opinion of any court of competent jurisdiction any such covenant is not reasonable in any respect, 
such court will have the right, power and authority to sever or modify any provision or provisions of such covenants as to the court will appear 
not reasonable and to enforce the remainder of the covenants as so amended. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the remedy at law 
available to the Company for breach of any of the Executive’s obligations under  
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Sections 10, 11, 12 and 13 would be inadequate and that damages flowing from such a breach may not readily be susceptible to being measured 
in monetary terms. Accordingly, the Executive acknowledges, consents and agrees that, in addition to any other rights or remedies that the 
Company may have at law, in equity or under this Agreement, upon adequate proof of the Executive’s violation of any such provision of this 
Agreement, the Company will be entitled to immediate injunctive relief and may obtain a temporary order restraining any threatened or further 
breach, without the necessity of proof of actual damage. Without limiting the applicability of this Section 14 or in any way affecting the right of 
the Company to seek equitable remedies hereunder, in the event that the Executive breaches any of the provisions of Sections 10, 11, 12 or 13 or 
engages in any activity that would constitute a breach save for the Executive’s action being in a state where any of the provisions of Sections 10, 
11, 12, 13 or this Section 14 is not enforceable as a matter of law, then the Company’s obligation to pay any remaining severance compensation 
and benefits that has not already been paid to Executive pursuant to Section 9 shall be terminated and within ten (10) days of notice of such 
termination of payment, the Executive shall return all severance compensation and the value of such benefits, including the value of the Deferred 
Shares Award, or profits derived or received from such benefits.  

15. Continued Availability and Cooperation.  

(a) In the event of termination of the Executive’s employment, the Executive shall cooperate fully with the Company and with the 
Company’s counsel in connection with any present and future actual or threatened litigation or administrative proceeding involving the 
Company that relates to events, occurrences or conduct occurring (or claimed to have occurred) during the period of the Executive’s 
employment by the Company. This cooperation by the Executive will include, but not be limited to:  

(i) making himself reasonably available for interviews and discussions with the Company’s counsel as well as for depositions 
and trial testimony;  

(ii) if depositions or trial testimony are to occur, making himself reasonably available and cooperating in the preparation 
therefor as and to the extent that the Company or the Company’s counsel reasonably requests;  

(iii) refraining from impeding in any way the Company’s prosecution or defense of such litigation or administrative 
proceeding; and  

(iv) cooperating fully in the development and presentation of the Company’s prosecution or defense of such litigation or 
administrative proceeding.  

(b) The Executive will be reimbursed by the Company for reasonable travel, lodging, telephone and similar expenses, as well as 
reasonable attorneys’ fees (if independent legal counsel is necessary), incurred in connection with any cooperation, consultation and advice 
rendered under this Agreement after the Executive’s termination of employment. The Executive shall not unreasonably withhold the 
Executive’s availability for such cooperation, consultation and advice.  

16. Dispute Resolution.  

(a) Any dispute between the parties under this Agreement will be resolved (except as provided below) through informal arbitration 
by a single arbitrator selected under the rules of the American Arbitration Association for arbitration of employment disputes conducted in 
Fairfax County, Virginia. Each party will be entitled to present evidence and argument to the arbitrator. The arbitrator will have the right 
only to interpret and apply the provisions of this Agreement and may not change any of its provisions, except as expressly provided in 
Section 23 and only in the event the Company has not brought an action in a court of competent jurisdiction to enforce the covenants in 
Sections 10, 11, 12 or 13. The arbitrator will permit reasonable pre-hearing discovery of facts, to the extent necessary to establish a claim 
or a defense to a claim, subject to supervision by the arbitrator. The determination of the arbitrator will be conclusive and binding upon the 
parties and judgment upon the same may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator will give written notice to the 
parties stating the arbitrator’s determination, and will  

   
11  



furnish to each party a signed copy of such determination. The expenses of arbitration will be borne equally by the Company and the 
Executive or as the arbitrator equitably determines consistent with the application of state or federal law; provided , however , that the 
Executive’s share of such expenses will not exceed the maximum permitted by law. Any arbitration or action pursuant to this Section 16 
will be governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of Connecticut and, where applicable, federal law, 
without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws of such State.  

(b) Notwithstanding Section 16(a), the Company will not be required to seek or participate in arbitration regarding any actual or 
threatened breach of the Executive’s covenants in Sections 10, 11, 12 or 13, but may pursue its remedies, including injunctive relief, for 
such breach in a court of competent jurisdiction in Fairfax County, Virginia, or in the sole discretion of the Company, in a court of 
competent jurisdiction where the Executive has committed or is threatening to commit a breach of the Executive’s covenants, and no 
arbitrator may make any ruling inconsistent with the findings or rulings of such court.  

17. Other Agreements . The provisions of this Agreement supersede the provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement. No agreements other 
than the agreements evidencing any grants of stock options, deferred shares and restricted shares or representations, oral or otherwise, express or 
implied, with respect to the subject matter hereof have been made by either party which are not expressly set forth in this Agreement. To the 
extent there is a Change of Control (as defined in the Change of Control Plan) of the Company, severance compensation and benefits payable 
under this Agreement upon a termination of the Executive’s employment will be reduced dollar for dollar (but not below zero) by any severance 
compensation and benefits payable under the Change of Control Plan, it being the intent that the Executive receive the greatest of the 
compensation and benefits provided under the Change of Control Plan or this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent there is a 
Change of Control (as defined in the Change of Control Plan), for the purpose of reducing the severance compensation and benefits payable 
under this Agreement, severance compensation and benefits payable under the Plan shall not include any Retention Bonus (as defined in the 
Change of Control Plan) paid or payable to the Executive pursuant to the terms of the Change of Control Plan.  

18. Indemnification . The Company shall, to the fullest extent to which it is empowered to do so by the General Corporation Law of 
Delaware, or any other applicable laws, as from time to time in effect, and in the manner therein provided, indemnify and hold harmless the 
Executive, through the duration of the Employment Term and all statutory periods during which any such claim may be brought or asserted, 
from and against any actual, threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or 
otherwise, to which the Executive is or is threatened to be made a party by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or 
agent of the Company. The Executive will be further covered by the indemnification and limitations on liability of officers and directors 
provided under the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws and any separate agreement between the Company and the Executive 
and/or any officers and directors indemnification insurance policy now or hereafter paid for by the Company.  

19. Withholding of Taxes . The Company may withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement all federal, state, city or other 
taxes as the Company is required to withhold pursuant to any law or government regulation or ruling.  

20. Successors and Binding Agreement.  

(a) The Company will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation, reorganization or 
otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company, by agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the 
Executive, expressly to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent the Company would be 
required to perform if no such succession had taken place. This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company 
and any successor to the Company, including without limitation any persons acquiring directly or indirectly all or substantially all of the 
business or assets of the Company whether by purchase, merger, consolidation, reorganization or otherwise (and such successor shall 
thereafter be deemed the  
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“Company” for the purposes of this Agreement), but will not otherwise be assignable, transferable or delegable by the Company, except 
that the Company may assign and transfer this Agreement and delegate its duties thereunder to a wholly owned Subsidiary.  

(b) This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Executive’s personal or legal representatives, executors, 
administrators, successors, heirs, distributees and legatees.  

(c) This Agreement is personal in nature and neither of the parties hereto shall, without the consent of the other, assign, transfer or 
delegate this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder except as expressly provided in Sections 20(a) and 20(b). Without limiting 
the generality or effect of the foregoing, the Executive’s right to receive payments hereunder will not be assignable, transferable or 
delegable, whether by pledge, creation of a security interest, or otherwise, other than by a transfer by the Executive’s will or by the laws of 
descent and distribution and, in the event of any attempted assignment or transfer contrary to this Section 20(c), the Company shall have no 
liability to pay any amount so attempted to be assigned, transferred or delegated.  

21. Notices . For all purposes of this Agreement, all communications, including without limitation notices, consents, requests or approvals, 
required or permitted to be given hereunder will be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when hand delivered or dispatched by 
electronic facsimile transmission (with receipt thereof confirmed), or five (5) business days after having been mailed by United States registered 
or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or three (3) business days after having been sent by a nationally recognized overnight 
courier service such as Federal Express or UPS, addressed to the Company (to the attention of the Senior Vice President and General Counsel of 
the Company) at its principal executive offices and to the Executive at his principal residence, or to such other address as any party may have 
furnished to the other in writing and in accordance herewith, except that notices of changes of address shall be effective only upon receipt.  

22. Governing Law . The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Agreement will be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the substantive laws of the State of Connecticut, without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws of such State.  

23. Validity/Severability . If any provision of this Agreement or the application of any provision hereof to any person or circumstances is 
held invalid, unenforceable or otherwise illegal, the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provision to any other person or 
circumstances will not be affected, and the provision so held to be invalid, unenforceable or otherwise illegal will be reformed to the extent (and 
only to the extent) necessary to make it enforceable, valid or legal. To the extent any provisions held to be invalid, unenforceable or otherwise 
illegal cannot be reformed, such provisions are to be stricken herefrom and the remainder of this Agreement will be binding on the parties and 
their successors and assigns as if such invalid or illegal provisions were never included in this Agreement from the first instance.  

24. Survival of Provisions . Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the parties’ respective rights and obligations under 
Sections 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16 and 18 will survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement or the termination of the Executive’s 
employment for any reason whatsoever.  

25. Representations.  

(a) The Executive hereby represents that he is not subject to any restriction of any nature whatsoever on his ability to enter into this 
Agreement or to perform his duties and responsibilities hereunder, including, but not limited to, any covenant not to compete with any 
former employer, any covenant not to disclose or use any non-public information acquired during the course of any former employment or 
any covenant not to solicit any customer of any former employer.  

(b) The Executive hereby represents that, except as he has disclosed in writing to the Company, he is not bound by the terms of any 
agreement with any previous employer or other party to refrain from using or  
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disclosing any trade secret or confidential or proprietary information in the course of the Executive’s employment with the Company or to 
refrain from competing, directly or indirectly, with the business of such previous employer or any other party.  

(c) The Executive further represents that, to the best of his knowledge, his performance of all the terms of this Agreement and as an 
employee of the Company does not and will not breach any agreement with another party, including without limitation any agreement to 
keep in confidence proprietary information, knowledge or data the Executive acquired in confidence or in trust prior to his employment 
with the Company, and that he will not knowingly disclose to the Company or induce the Company to use any confidential or proprietary 
information or material belonging to any previous employer or others.  

26. Amendment; Waiver . This Agreement may not be modified, amended or waived in any manner except by an instrument in writing 
signed by both parties hereto. No waiver by either party hereto at any time of any breach by the other party hereto or compliance with any 
condition or provision of this Agreement to be performed by such other party will be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or 
conditions at the same or at any prior or subsequent time.  

27. Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of 
which together will constitute one and the same agreement.  

28. Headings . Unless otherwise noted, the headings of sections herein are included solely for convenience of reference and shall not 
control the meaning or interpretation of any of the provisions of this Agreement.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be signed by an officer pursuant to the authority of its Board, and 
the Executive has executed this Agreement, as of the day and year first written above.  
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NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS, INC.  

By:   /s/    T IMOTHY M. D ONAHUE          

  
Timothy M. Donahue  

President and Chief Executive Officer  

  /s/    R ICHARD L E F AVE          
  Richard LeFave 
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SPRINT NEXTEL DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN  

SECTION 1  

INTRODUCTION  

1.1. Statement of Plan . Effective January 1, 2006, Sprint Nextel Corporation (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “Sprint Nextel”) 
hereby creates a nonqualified, unfunded, elective deferral plan for the purpose of allowing members of its Board of Directors and a select group 
of its management and highly compensated employees to defer the receipt of compensation which would otherwise be paid to them.  

1.2. Definitions . When the following terms are used herein with initial capital letters, they shall have the following meanings:  

1.2.1. Account —the separate bookkeeping account(s) representing the unfunded and unsecured general obligation of Sprint Nextel 
that are maintained for the purpose of determining each Participant’s or Beneficiary’s interest in the Plan. To the extent determined by the 
Committee, the Committee may establish a separate Pre-Tax Contribution Account and a separate Matching Contribution Account and 
such other accounts and subaccounts as it determines from time to time to be advisable. For convenience, and unless the context otherwise 
indicates, “Account” shall refer to a Participant’s or Beneficiary’s entire interest under the Plan.  

   

1.2.3. “Base Salary ”—an employee’s salary inclusive of any amounts contributed on behalf of the Employee to a cafeteria plan or 
cash or deferred arrangement or a qualified transportation fringe plan and not includible in income under section 125 or 402(g) or 132(f) of 
the Code and inclusive of any Pre-Tax Contributions made from Base Salary.  

1.2.4. Beneficiary —a person designated by a Participant (or automatically by operation of this Plan Statement) to receive all or a 
part of the Participant’s Account in the event of the Participant’s death prior to its complete distribution. A person so designated shall not 
be considered a Beneficiary until the death of the Participant.  

1.2.5. Beneficiary Designation Form —the form prescribed by the Committee upon which a Participant may designate a 
Beneficiary.  

   

1.2.7. Change in Control —a “Change in Control” shall have the same meaning as defined under the 1997 Long-Term Stock 
Incentive Program, or its successor plan.  

1.2.8. Code —the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including applicable regulations for the specified section of the Code. 
Any reference in this Plan Statement to a section of the Code, including the applicable regulation, shall be considered also to mean and 
refer to any subsequent amendment or replacement of that section or regulation.  

1.2.9. Committee —the Employee Benefits Committee of Sprint Nextel, as appointed by management of Sprint Nextel.  

1.2.10. Compensation —a Board Member’s annual retainer and meeting fees or, in the case of a Participant who is an employee of 
Sprint Nextel or one of its subsidiaries, (a) for purposes of making Pre-Tax Contributions made without regard to the numeric Limit, the 
definition of Compensation used in the Sprint Nextel 401(k) Plan shall be used except that Pre-Tax Contributions to the Plan shall be 
included in Compensation, commissions shall not be included and the limit imposed by Code section 401(a)(17) will not apply; (b) for 
purposes of determining when a Participant has become eligible to make Pre-Tax Contributions made above the Limit and to receive 
Matching Contributions, and for purposes of determining the amount of any Matching Contributions, the definition of Compensation used 
in the Sprint Nextel 401(k)  
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  1.2.2. Annual Valuation Date —each December 31. 

  1.2.6. Board Member —a member of the Board of Directors of Sprint Nextel. 



Plan shall be used except that Pre-Tax Contributions to the Plan and commissions shall be included in Compensation, and only 
compensation above the numeric limit imposed by Code section 401(a)(17) will be considered. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
the Plan, Pre-Tax Contributions by Eligible Employees may be made only in Base Salary and incentive compensation and not in sales 
compensation or any other form of compensation.  

1.2.11. Disability , Disabled —a Participant shall be considered to have a Disability or to be Disabled if such Participant has been 
approved to receive Social Security Disability.  

   

1.2.13. Eligible Employee —an active employee of Sprint Nextel or a Sprint Nextel subsidiary who has a title of Director or above 
(or the equivalent thereof), but excluding employees who are designated as local business employees or are employees who are not subject 
to United States income tax withholding. All subsidiaries of Sprint Nextel will be participating subsidiaries unless specifically excluded 
from participation by the Committee.  

1.2.14. ERISA —the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.  

1.2.15. Initial Deferral Election Form —the form prescribed by the Committee pursuant to which a Participant may elect to make a 
Pre-Tax Contribution of his or her Compensation to an Account established under this Plan and may elect the time and form of distribution 
of his or her Account.  

1.2.16. Investment Election Form —the form prescribed by the Committee from time to time pursuant to which a Participant may 
select the hypothetical investment of his or her Account pursuant to the provisions of Section 3.  

1.2.17. Investment Fund —any of the hypothetical investment funds established by the Committee pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 3.  

1.2.18. Limit —Compensation limit imposed by Code section 401(a)(17) limiting the amount of compensation taken into account for 
purposes of contributions to the 401(k) plan. The 2006 limit is $220,000 (as indexed).  

1.2.19. 401(k) plan —the Sprint Nextel 401(k) plan.  

1.2.20. Matching Contribution —employer contribution to the Matching Contribution Account pursuant to Section 3.1.2.  

1.2.21. Matching Contribution Account —the Account maintained for a Participant to which is credited Matching Contributions (if 
any), pursuant to Section 3.1.2.  

1.2.22. Participant —an outside Board Member or an Eligible Employee of Sprint Nextel who elects to participate in accordance 
with the terms of this Plan. A Board Member or an employee who has become a Participant shall continue as a Participant until the earlier 
of (a) the Participant’s death or (b) the date on which the Participant’s entire Account balance has been distributed. If an employee is no 
longer a part of a select group of highly compensated employees, the Participant will no longer be permitted to defer compensation after 
completion of deferrals already elected.  

1.2.23. Plan —the nonqualified, income deferral program maintained by Sprint Nextel established for the benefit of Participants 
eligible to participate therein, as set forth in this Plan Statement. (As used herein, “Plan” does not refer to the documents pursuant to which 
the Plan is maintained. Those documents are referred to herein as the “Plan Statement”). The Plan shall be referred to as the “Sprint Nextel 
Deferred Compensation Plan.”  

1.2.24. Plan Statement —this document entitled “Sprint Nextel Deferred Compensation Plan” as adopted by Sprint Nextel effective 
as of January 1, 2006, as the same may be amended from time to time thereafter.  
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  1.2.12. Effective Date —January 1, 2006. 

  1.2.25. Plan Year —the calendar year. 



1.2.26. Pre-Tax Contributions —contributions made to the Plan pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2.1.  

1.2.27. Pre-Tax Contribution Account —the Account(s) maintained for a Participant to which is credited such Participant’s Pre-
Tax Contributions.  

1.2.28. Separation From Service —a “separation from service” from Sprint Nextel as such term is used in Code section 409A(a)(2)
(A)(i). If an Eligible Employee is also a Board Member, he or she will not be considered to have had a Separation From Service until both 
his or her employment and his or her Board membership shall have ceased such as to constitute a Separation From Service.  

1.2.29. Specified Employee —a key employee as defined under Code section 416(i) without regard to Code section 416(i)(5). For 
purposes of the foregoing, an employee is a key employee if the employee meets the requirements of Code section 416(i)(1)(i), (ii) or 
(iii) (applied in accordance with the regulations thereunder and disregarding section 416(i)(5)) as of the identification date. A key 
employee shall be considered to be a Specified Employee for the twelve (12) month period beginning on the first day of the fourth month 
following the identification date. Unless changed by the Committee, such identification date shall be December 31, 2005 and December 31 
of each following Plan Year.  

1.2.30. Sprint Nextel —Sprint Nextel Corporation, a Kansas corporation. References herein to Sprint Nextel shall also refer to any 
successor of Sprint Nextel that adopts the Plan. Except as hereinafter provided, functions generally assigned to Sprint Nextel shall be 
discharged by the Committee or delegated and allocated as provided herein.  

1.2.31. Subsequent Deferral Election Form —the form prescribed by the Committee pursuant to which a Participant may elect to 
change the time or form of distribution of his or her Pre-Tax Contribution Account.  

1.2.32. Valuation Date —each Annual Valuation Date and the last business day of each calendar month.  

1.3. Rules of Interpretation . An individual shall be considered to have attained a given age on such individual’s birthday for that age 
(and not on the day before). Individuals born on February 29 in a leap year shall be considered to have their birthdays on February 28 in each 
year that is not a leap year. Whenever appropriate, words used herein in the singular may be read in the plural, or words used herein in the plural 
may be read in the singular; the masculine may include the feminine; and the words “hereof,” “herein” or “hereunder” or other similar 
compounds of the word “here” shall mean and refer to this entire Plan Statement and not to any particular paragraph or section of this Plan 
Statement unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary. The titles given to the various sections of this Plan Statement are inserted for 
convenience of reference only and are not part of this Plan Statement, and they shall not be considered in determining the purpose, meaning or 
intent of any provision hereof. As to Participants who are employees, this Plan Statement shall be construed and administered to create an 
unfunded plan providing deferred compensation for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, which plan is exempt from 
the requirements of Parts 2, 3 and 4 of Title I of ERISA, and which qualifies for a form of simplified, alternative compliance with the reporting 
and disclosure requirements of Part 1 of Title I of ERISA. It is further intended that this Plan shall constitute a nonqualified deferred 
compensation plan that satisfies the conditions for a deferral of income pursuant to the provisions of Code section 409A. Any reference in this 
Plan Statement to a statute or regulation shall be considered also to mean and refer to any subsequent amendment or replacement of that statute 
or regulation.  

1.4. Legal Construction. This document is intended to be governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the Code, ERISA to the 
extent applicable and, to the extent not preempted by ERISA, the laws of the State of Kansas.  
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SECTION 2  

PARTICIPATION  

2.1. Participation . A Board Member or an Eligible Employee may enroll to become a Participant in this Plan for any Plan Year provided 
that such Board Member or Eligible Employee completes and files an Initial Deferral Election Form acceptable to the Committee, and provided 
that the Eligible Employee has not made a withdrawal due to hardship under Code section 401(k)(2) from any Code section 401(k) plan 
sponsored by Sprint Nextel within the prior six months.  

2.2. Initial Deferral Election. A Participant shall make an initial deferral election by filing an Initial Deferral Election Form with the 
Committee for each Plan Year for which Pre-Tax Contributions are made to the Plan at such time and in such manner as the Committee shall 
from time to time prescribe consistent with section 2.2.1 below and requirements of Code section 409A(a)(4)(B),  

2.2.1. Pre-Tax Contribution Election. In conjunction with each deferral election made by a Participant for a Plan Year, such Initial 
Deferral Election Form shall specify, in increments of 1%, the amount or portion of the Participant’s Base Salary which is earned during 
such following Plan Year and annual incentive compensation earned during such following Plan Year and paid during a subsequent Plan 
Year which shall not be paid to the Participant but instead shall be credited to the Plan as a Pre-Tax Contribution. Such Pre-Tax 
Contribution shall not exceed (a) in the case of a Participant who is an employee, an amount equal to 75% of such employee’s Base Salary 
and 100% of such employee’s annual incentive payment; or (b) in the case of a Board Member (who is not also an employee), up to 100% 
of such Board Member’s retainer and meeting fees. Eligible Employees may use the Initial Deferral Election Form to designate that their 
Pre-Tax Contributions be made on all Compensation as defined in 1.2.10(a), or only on Compensation that exceeds the Limit. Except as 
provided in the following paragraph, such Pre-Tax Contribution election shall not be effective for any Plan Year unless filed by the last day 
of the Plan Year preceding the Plan Year in which the Compensation sought to be deferred is to be earned or such earlier date as may be 
designated by the Committee, shall only be effective as to Compensation that is earned after the Pre-Tax Contribution election has been 
accepted by the Committee, and, except as provided in Section 2.4, shall be irrevocable for the Plan Year (or the remainder thereof) with 
respect to which it is made once it has been so accepted. Base Salary payable after the last day of the Plan Year solely for services 
performed during the final payroll period described in Code section 3401(b) containing December 31 shall be treated as compensation 
earned during the subsequent Plan Year.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may, at its discretion, allow a change in the Initial Deferral Election Form with 
respect to “performance-based compensation” attributable to services performed over a period of at least twelve (12) months. If the 
Committee chooses, a Participant may, under uniform rules adopted by the Committee, file a revised Initial Deferral Election Form with 
the Committee no later than six (6) months before the end of the performance period for which such performance-based compensation is 
paid. This rule shall apply only to Compensation determined by the Committee to be “bonus compensation” where (a) the payment or 
amount of the Compensation is contingent upon the satisfaction of organizational or individual performance criteria (including subjective 
criteria in certain circumstances), and (b) the performance criteria are not substantially certain to be satisfied at the time of election.  

2.2.2. Distribution Election. With respect to each initial deferral election made by a Participant pursuant to Section 2.2.1, such 
Participant shall, pursuant to Sections 5.1 and 5.2, below, also elect the time and form of distribution of such Pre-Tax Contributions.  

2.3. Specific Exclusions . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan Statement or in any written communication, summary, 
resolution, document or oral communication, no individual shall be a Participant in this Plan, develop benefits under this Plan or be entitled to 
receive benefits under this Plan (either for himself or  
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herself or his or her survivors) unless such individual is either a member of a select group of management or highly compensated employees (as 
that expression is used in section 201(2) of ERISA) or a Board Member.  

2.4. Suspension of Pre-Tax Contributions . If a Participant has made a withdrawal due to hardship under Code section 401(k)(2), all 
remaining Pre-Tax Contributions for the year in which such hardship distribution was made shall be cancelled and such Participant shall not be 
permitted to make any further Pre-Tax Contributions to the Plan absent the acceptance of a new Pre-Tax Contribution Election Form made for 
the first Plan Year beginning at least six months after the hardship withdrawal for that Participant consistent with Sections 2.2 and 2.3.  

SECTION 3  

ADJUSTMENT OF ACCOUNTS  

3.1. Credits to Accounts . Accounts shall be established for each Participant and shall be adjusted each Valuation Date.  

3.1.1. Pre-Tax Contributions . The Participant’s Pre-Tax Contribution Account shall be credited with the amount of such 
contribution within an administratively reasonable time following the date that the amount elected by the Participant as a Pre-Tax 
Contribution would otherwise be paid to such Participant.  

3.1.2. Matching Contributions . At such time as the Administrator shall determine, the Matching Contribution Account of each 
Participant who is an Eligible Employee shall be credited with a Matching Contribution equal to 100% of such Participant’s Pre-Tax 
Contributions, but only to the extent that the Participant’s Pre-Tax Contributions do not exceed five percent (5%) of their Compensation 
above the Limit, as provided in Section 1.2.10(b). The Participant must be an active Eligible Employee on the last business day of the year 
to receive the Matching Contribution, if any.  

3.2. Adjustments of Account . Subject to such rules as may be prescribed by the Committee from time to time, amounts shall be credited 
or debited to a Participant’s Account in connection with the deemed investment thereof as follows:  

3.2.1. Initial Election of Investment Funds . In connection with a Participant’s initial enrollment into the Plan, a Participant shall 
elect one or more Investment Funds on an Investment Election Form filed with the Committee to be used as an index to determine the 
additional amounts to be credited or debited to such Participant’s Account.  

3.2.2. Changes to Investment Fund Elections . A Participant may (but is not required to) elect, by filing a new Investment Election 
Form pursuant to rules established from time to time by the Committee, to add, delete or modify one or more of his or her Investment Fund
(s) elections with respect to his or her existing Account and/or future Pre-Tax Contributions, with such election to be effective as of the 
later of the next following business day or the business day following three months after the effective date of the last form provided, except 
as may otherwise be allowed by the Committee.  

3.2.3. Proportionate Allocation . Subject to such rules as the Committee may from time to time prescribe, Participant investment 
elections described in this Section shall be made in increments of one percentage point (1%).  

3.2.4. Investment Funds . The Participant may elect one or more of the Investment Funds selected by the Committee from time to 
time as hypothetical investments. One of the Investment Funds that a Participant may designate shall be in phantom share units 
representing shares of Sprint Nextel’s common stock. The Committee may, in its sole discretion, discontinue, substitute or add any other 
Investment Fund. The Committee shall also have the power to direct that any separate Investment Funds shall be consolidated with (or 
“mapped” to) any other Investment Fund. Each such change shall take effect at such time or times and under such rules as shall be 
established by the Committee.  
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3.2.5. Debits and Credits to Accounts . Adjustments to Accounts shall be made in accordance with the following rules:  

(a) To the extent administratively feasible, any Account will be valued daily at the fair market value thereof by adding (i) the 
fair market value of all investments reflected in the Account, (ii) any accrued interest or declared dividends (as of the record date) on 
such hypothetical investments not reflected in (i) above, and (iii) an amount equal to the hypothetical cash reflected in the Account; 
and subtracting therefrom any liabilities of the Account. Participant’s Accounts will be adjusted daily by allocating among them the 
earnings or losses of each Investment Fund since the previous day in proportion to each Participant’s portion of the Investment Fund 
balance immediately following the previous day’s adjustment. To the extent daily Account valuations and adjustments are not 
administratively feasible, such valuations and adjustments shall occur as frequently as administratively feasible.  

(b) Distributions shall be made in cash or cash equivalents and made pursuant to Section 5. The amount paid upon such a 
distribution shall be based on the value immediately after the adjustment of a Participant’s Account on the effective date of the 
withdrawal or distribution.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may establish revised or additional rules for the adjustment of Accounts including, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the times when contributions shall be credited under this Section 3 and the manner of 
allocating gains and losses of Accounts.  

3.3. No Actual Investment . Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan that may be interpreted to the contrary, the Investment 
Funds are to be used for measurement purposes only, and a Participant’s election of any such Investment Fund, the allocation to his or her 
Account in respect thereto, the calculation of additional amounts and the crediting or debiting of such amounts to a Participant’s Account shall 
not be considered or construed in any manner as an actual investment of his or her Account in any such Investment Fund. In the event that the 
Employer or the Trustees of the Trusts (if any), in their own discretion, decide to invest funds in any or all of the Investment Funds, no 
Participant shall have any rights in or to such investments themselves. Without limiting the foregoing, a Participant’s Account shall at all times 
be a bookkeeping entry only and shall not represent any investment made on his or her behalf by the Employer or any Trust; the Participant shall 
at all times remain an unsecured creditor of the Employer.  

3.4. FICA and Other Taxes . For each Plan Year in which credits are made for or on behalf of a Participant, the Employer shall withhold 
from that portion of the Participant’s Base Salary or incentive that is not being deferred, in a manner determined by the Committee, the 
Participant’s share of FICA and other employment taxes. If Base Salary or incentive that is not being deferred is insufficient for this purpose, the 
Committee may reduce any Pre-Tax Contribution of the Participant in order to withhold the Participant’s share of FICA and other employment 
taxes.  

SECTION 4  

VESTING OF ACCOUNT  

The Pre-Tax Contribution Accounts of Participants shall be fully (100%) vested and nonforfeitable at all times.  

The Matching Contribution Account of a Participant shall be forfeited if the Participant has a Termination for Cause. “Termination for 
Cause” shall mean, in the case of an Employee, an involuntary termination of employment because (i) the Employee has materially breached 
Sprint Nextel’s Code of Conduct, or the code of conduct of the employer; (ii) the Employee has materially breached the Sprint Nextel Employee 
Agreement Regarding Property Rights and Business Practices (as it may be amended and renamed from time to time);  
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(iii) the Employee has engaged in acts or omissions constituting dishonesty, intentional breach of a fiduciary obligation, or intentional acts of 
wrongdoing or misfeasance; or (iv) the Employee has acted intentionally and in bad faith in a manner that results in a material detriment to the 
assets, business, or prospects of the employer.  

SECTION 5  

DISTRIBUTION  

5.1. General Valuation Date . A Participant’s Account shall be valued on the last business day of the month of the event giving rise to the 
payment.  

5.2. General Distribution Date . A Participant’s Account shall be paid (or commence, as applicable) on the first Valuation Date that 
follows the event giving rise to the payment. As allowed under 409A, such payment will be made not later than the end of the calendar year or 2 
 1 / 2 months following such Valuation Date.  

5.2.1. Time of Distribution of Pre-Tax Contributions. A Participant may, with respect to each separate initial deferral election 
made pursuant to Section 2.3 above, elect to commence payment of such Pre-Tax Contribution (together with gains and losses thereon) on 
either of the following dates:  

(a) Such Participant’s Separation From Service, or  

(b) A specific future month or year, but not earlier than five (5) years from the effective date of such initial deferral election. If 
a month is specified, the distribution will be made on the Valuation Date that follows such specified month.  

5.2.2. Time of Distribution of Matching Contributions . A Participant’s Matching Contribution Account shall be paid upon such 
Participant’s Separation From Service.  

5.2.3. Acceleration of Benefits . Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 5.2.1, the entire Pre-Tax Contribution Account balance 
of a Participant shall be paid in a lump sum on the first Valuation Date following the occurrence of any of the following events:  

(a) The Participant’s death;  

(b) The Participant’s Separation From Service if the total value of the Participant’s entire interest under the Plan as of such date 
is less than $10,000 if Separation From Service is in 2006 or $20,000 as of the Separation From Service in each Plan Year thereafter, 
or  

(c) The Participant’s Separation From Service within twelve (12) months after a Change in Control.  

The account balance of a Participant shall be accelerated and paid in the benefit form selected on the first Valuation Date following 
the determination by the Committee that the Participant is Disabled.  

5.2.4. Delay for Specified Employees . Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 5.1, if a distribution is being made 
to a Specified Employee due to such employee’s Separation From Service (including a distribution on Separation From Service within 
twelve months after a Change in Control made pursuant to Section 5.1.3(c), but only if such delay is determined by the Committee to be 
necessary to satisfy Code section 409A), such distribution shall not be made (or commence) during the six-month period following such 
Separation From Service. Such distribution shall be valued as of the Valuation Date on or next following the end of such six-month period, 
and shall be paid on the Valuation Date on or next following the end of such six-month period. As allowed by Code section 409A, such 
payment will be made not later than the end of the calendar year or 2  1 / 2 months following such Valuation Date.  

5.3. Form of Distribution .  

5.3.1. Pre-Tax Contribution Account . The Participant shall elect in his or her Initial Deferral Election form to have his or her Pre-
Tax Contribution Account distributed either in (a) a series of annual installments  
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payable over at least two (2) but not more than fifteen (15) years, or (b) single lump sum payment. No spouse, former spouse, Beneficiary 
or other person shall have any right to participate in the Participant’s selection of a form of benefit. All payments from such Pre-Tax 
Contribution Account shall be made in cash and shall be subject to the provisions of Section 5.2.3.  

5.3.2. Matching Contribution Account . A Participant’s Matching Contribution Account shall be distributed in cash in a lump sum 
upon Separation From Service unless involuntarily terminated for cause.  

5.3.3. Installment Amounts . The amount of the annual installments shall be determined by dividing the value of the amount of the 
Account as of the Valuation Date determined by the Committee in accordance with Section 5.1 or its annual anniversary, by the number of 
remaining installment payments to be made (including the payment being determined), with the last scheduled installment resulting in a 
complete payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the second and any subsequent installments that are made to a Specified Employee due 
to Separation From Service will be determined as of the annual anniversary of his or her Separation From Service, such that only the first 
such installment will be delayed six months.  

5.3.4. Delay for Taxes . Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Committee in its reasonable discretion determines that delaying the 
time of such distribution would increase the probability that such payments would be fully deductible by Sprint Nextel under Code section 
162(m), the Committee may unilaterally delay the time of the making or commencement of payments until the earliest point at which the 
Committee reasonably anticipates the deduction will not be limited or eliminated under Code section 162(m).  

5.4. Subsequent Changes in Time and Form of Payment . A Participant may, before such Participant’s Separation From Service, elect to 
delay a payment or to change the form of payment of his or her Pre-Tax Contribution Account by filing a properly completed Subsequent 
Deferral Election Form with the Committee, provided that:  

(a) Such election shall not be effective until twelve (12) months after it is filed with the Committee;  

(b) Such election shall require that the payment with respect to which the election is made shall be delayed for a period of not 
less than five (5) years from the date such payment would have been made absent such subsequent election and  

(c) If the election relates to a delay in the payment of a Pre-Tax Contribution Account from a specific year and month 
previously elected by the Participant in his or her initial deferral election form or relates to a prior election of installment payments, 
such election cannot be made less than twelve (12) months before the date the payment was otherwise scheduled to be made or 
commence.  

5.5. Designation of Beneficiaries .  

5.5.1. Right to Designate . Each Participant may designate, upon a Beneficiary Designation Form furnished by and filed with the 
Committee, one or more primary Beneficiaries or alternative Beneficiaries to receive all or a specified part of such Participant’s Account in 
the event of such Participant’s death. The Participant may change or revoke any such designation from time to time without notice to or 
consent from any Beneficiary. No such designation, change or revocation shall be effective unless executed by the Participant and received 
by the Committee during the Participant’s lifetime.  

5.5.2. Failure of Designation . If a Participant:  

(a) fails to designate a Beneficiary,  

(b) designates a Beneficiary and thereafter revokes such designation without naming another Beneficiary, or  

(c) designates one or more Beneficiaries and such Beneficiaries so designated fail to survive the Participant, such Participant’s 
Account, or the part thereof as to which such Participant’s designation  
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fails, as the case may be, shall be payable to the first class of the following classes of automatic Beneficiaries with a member 
surviving the Participant and (except in the case of surviving issue) in equal shares if there is more than one member in such class 
surviving the Participant:  

Participant’s surviving spouse  
Participant’s surviving issue per stirpes and not per capita  
Representative of Participant’s estate.  

5.5.3. Disclaimers by Beneficiaries . A Beneficiary entitled to a distribution of all or a portion of a deceased Participant’s Account 
may disclaim an interest therein subject to the following requirements. To be eligible to disclaim, a Beneficiary must be a natural person, 
must not have received a distribution of all or any portion of the Account at the time such disclaimer is executed and delivered, and must 
have attained at least age twenty-one (21) years as of the date of the Participant’s death. Any disclaimer must be in writing and must be 
executed personally by the Beneficiary before a notary public. A disclaimer shall state that the Beneficiary’s entire interest in the 
undistributed Account is disclaimed or shall specify what portion thereof is disclaimed. To be effective, duplicate original executed copies 
of the disclaimer must be both executed and actually delivered to the Committee after the date of the Participant’s death but not later than 
one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of the Participant’s death. A disclaimer shall be irrevocable when delivered to the Committee. 
A disclaimer shall be considered to be delivered to the Committee only when actually received by the Committee. The Committee shall be 
the sole judge of the content, interpretation and validity of a purported disclaimer. Upon the filing of a valid disclaimer, the Beneficiary 
shall be considered not to have survived the Participant as to the interest disclaimed. A disclaimer by a Beneficiary shall not be considered 
to be a transfer of an interest in violation of the provisions of Section 6. The Committee shall recognize no other form of attempted 
disclaimer.  

5.5.4. Definitions . When used herein and, unless the Participant has otherwise specified in the Participant’s Beneficiary Designation 
Form, when used in a Beneficiary’s designation, “issue” means all persons who are lineal descendants of the person whose issue are 
referred to, including legally adopted descendants and their descendants but not including illegitimate descendants and their descendants; 
“child” means an issue of the first generation; “per stirpes” means in equal shares among living children of the person whose issue are 
referred to and the issue (taken collectively) of each deceased child of such person, with such issue taking by right of representation of 
such deceased child; and “survive” and “surviving” mean living after the death of the Participant.  

5.5.5. Special Rules . Unless the Participant has otherwise specified in the Participant’s Beneficiary Designation Form, the following 
rules shall apply:  

(a) If there is not sufficient evidence that a Beneficiary was living at the time of the death of the Participant, it shall be deemed 
that the Beneficiary was not living at the time of the death of the Participant.  

(b) The automatic Beneficiaries specified in Section 5.5.2 and the Beneficiaries designated by the Participant shall become 
fixed at the time of the Participant’s death so that, if a Beneficiary survives the Participant but dies before the receipt of all payments 
due such Beneficiary hereunder, such remaining payments shall be payable to the representative of such Beneficiary’s estate.  

(c) If the Participant designates as a Beneficiary the person who is the Participant’s spouse on the date of the designation, either 
by name or by relationship, or both, the dissolution, annulment or other legal termination of the marriage between the Participant and 
such person shall automatically revoke such designation. The foregoing shall not prevent the Participant from designating a former 
spouse as a Beneficiary on a form executed by the Participant and received by the Committee after the date of the legal termination 
of the marriage between the Participant and such former spouse, and during the Participant’s lifetime.  

(d) Any designation of a non-spouse Beneficiary by name that is accompanied by a description of relationship to the Participant 
shall be given effect without regard to whether the relationship to the Participant exists either then or at the Participant’s death.  
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(e) Any designation of a Beneficiary only by statement of relationship to the Participant shall be effective only to designate the 
person or persons standing in such relationship to the Participant at the Participant’s death.  

A Beneficiary designation is permanently void if it either is executed or is filed by a Participant who, at the time of such execution or 
filing, is then a minor under the law of the state of the Participant’s legal residence. The Committee shall be the sole judge of the content, 
interpretation and validity of a purported Beneficiary designation.  

5.5.6. No Spousal Rights . Except as required by law, no spouse or surviving spouse of a Participant and no person designated to be 
a Beneficiary shall have any rights or interest in the benefits accumulated under this Plan including, but not limited to, the right to be the 
sole Beneficiary or to consent to the designation of Beneficiaries (or the changing of designated Beneficiaries) by the Participant.  

5.6. Facility of Payment . In case of the legal disability, including minority, of a Participant or Beneficiary entitled to receive any 
distribution under the Plan, payment shall be made, if the Committee shall be advised of the existence of such condition:  

(a) to the duly appointed guardian, conservator or other legal representative of such Participant or Beneficiary, or  

(b) to a person or institution entrusted with the care or maintenance of the incompetent or disabled Participant or Beneficiary, 
provided such person or institution has satisfied the Committee that the payment will be used for the best interest and assist in the 
care of such Participant or Beneficiary, and provided further, that no prior claim for said payment has been made by a duly appointed 
guardian, conservator or other legal representative of such Participant or Beneficiary.  

Any payment made in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this section shall constitute a complete discharge of any liability or 
obligation of Sprint Nextel therefor.  

SECTION 6  

UNFUNDED PLAN  

6.1. Unfunded Plan . The obligation of Sprint Nextel to make payments under this Plan constitutes only the unsecured (but legally 
enforceable) promise of Sprint Nextel to make such payments. The Participant shall have no lien, prior claim or other security interest in any 
property of Sprint Nextel. Sprint Nextel is not required to establish or maintain any fund, trust or account (other than a bookkeeping account) for 
the purpose of funding or paying the benefits promised under this Plan. If such a fund is established, the property therein shall remain the sole 
and exclusive property of Sprint Nextel.  

6.2. Spendthrift Provision . Except as required by law, no Participant or Beneficiary shall have any interest in any Account which can be 
transferred nor shall any Participant or Beneficiary have any power to anticipate, alienate, dispose of, pledge or encumber the same while in the 
possession or control of Sprint Nextel, nor shall the Committee recognize any assignment thereof, either in whole or in part, nor shall any 
Account be subject to attachment, garnishment, execution following judgment or other legal process while in the possession or control of Sprint 
Nextel, except as may be required by law and as is consistent with the provisions of Code section 409A..  

The power to designate Beneficiaries to receive the Account of a Participant in the event of such Participant’s death shall not permit or be 
construed to permit such power or right to be exercised by the Participant so as thereby to anticipate, pledge, mortgage or encumber such 
Participant’s Account or any part thereof, and any attempt of a Participant so to exercise said power in violation of this provision shall be of no 
force and effect and shall be disregarded by the Committee.  
   

10  



SECTION 7  

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION  

7.1. Amendment . By action of the Committee, Sprint Nextel reserves the power to amend the Plan Statement from time to time, 
retroactively and/or prospectively, as it deems appropriate. No such amendment of the Plan Statement shall, however, reduce a Participant’s 
Account earned as of the date of such amendment unless the Participant so affected consents in writing to the amendment.  

7.2. Termination . By action of the Human Capital & Compensation Committee, Sprint Nextel reserves the right to terminate the Plan and 
accelerate the payment of Accounts to Participants in accordance with one of the following provisions:  

7.2.1. Dissolution or Bankruptcy . At the discretion of Sprint Nextel within twelve (12) months of a corporate dissolution taxed 
under Code section 331 or with the approval of a bankruptcy court pursuant to 11 U.S.S. §503(b)(1)(A), provided that Accounts are 
included in the Participants’ gross incomes in the latest of (a) the calendar year in which the Plan termination occurs; (b) the calendar year 
in which the amount is no longer subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture; or (c) the first calendar year in which payment is 
administratively feasible.  

7.2.2. Discretionary Termination . At the discretion of Sprint Nextel, provided that (a) all other arrangements sponsored by Sprint 
Nextel that would be aggregated with this arrangement under Code section 409A are also terminated; (b) no payments, other than 
payments that would have been made under this Plan had the termination not occurred, are made from the Plan within twelve (12) months 
of the termination; (c) all Accounts are fully distributed within twenty-four (24) months of such termination; and (d) Sprint Nextel does not 
adopt a new arrangement that would be aggregated under Code section 409A with this Plan for five (5) years after the termination of this 
Plan.  

SECTION 8  

DETERMINATIONS—RULES AND REGULATIONS  

8.1. Determinations . The Committee shall have the sole discretion to make such determinations as may be required from time to time in 
the administration of the Plan. The Committee shall have the sole discretionary authority and responsibility to interpret and construe the Plan 
Statement and to determine all factual and legal questions under the Plan, including, but not limited to, the eligibility of an individual to 
participate in the Plan, the amounts of benefits paid under the Plan, and the administrative reasonability of the Valuation Dates used to determine 
benefits and their timing. The rules, interpretations, computations and other actions of the Committee shall be binding and conclusive on all 
persons.  

8.2. Rules and Regulations . Any rule not in conflict or at variance with the provisions hereof may be adopted by the Committee.  

8.3. Method of Executing Instruments . Information to be supplied or written notices to be made or consents to be given by the 
Committee pursuant to any provision of this Plan Statement may be signed in the name of the Committee by any officer who has been authorized 
to make such certification or to give such notices or consents.  

8.4. Claims Procedure . Until modified by the Committee, the claims procedure set forth in this Section shall be the exclusive procedure 
for the disposition of claims for benefits arising under the Plan.  

8.4.1. Initial Claim . An individual may, subject to any applicable deadline, file with the Benefits Administrative Committee (BAC), 
appointed by the Committee to hear benefit appeals, a written claim for benefits under the Plan in a form and manner prescribed by the 
BAC.  

(a) If the claim is denied in whole or in part, the BAC shall notify the claimant of the adverse benefit determination within 
ninety (90) days after receipt of the claim.  
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(b) The ninety (90) day period for making the claim determination may be extended for ninety (90) days if the BAC determines 
that special circumstances required an extension of time for determination of the claim, provided that the BAC notifies the claimant, 
prior to the expiration of the initial ninety (90) day period, of the special circumstances requiring an extension and the date by which 
a claim determination is expected to be made.  

8.4.2. Notice of Initial Adverse Determination. A notice of an adverse determination shall set forth in a manner calculated to be 
understood by the claimant:  

(a) the specific reasons for the adverse determination;  

(b) references to the specific provisions of the Plan Statement (or other applicable Plan document) on which the adverse 
determination is based;  

(c) a description of any additional material or information necessary to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such 
material or information is necessary; and  

(d) a description of the claims review procedure, including the time limits applicable to such procedure, and a statement of the 
claimant’s right to bring a civil action against the Plan pursuant to section 502(a) of ERISA.  

8.4.3. Claims on Review. If the claim, upon review, is denied in whole or in part, the BAC shall notify the claimant of the adverse 
benefit determination within sixty (60) days after receipt of such request for review.  

(a) The sixty (60) day period for deciding the claim on review may be extended for sixty (60) days if the BAC determines that 
special circumstances require an extension of time for determination of the claim, provided that the BAC notifies the claimant, prior 
to the expiration of the initial sixty (60) day period, of the special circumstances requiring an extension and the date by which a claim 
determination is expected to be made.  

(b) In the event that the time period is extended due to a claimant’s failure to submit information necessary to decide a claim on 
review, the claimant shall have sixty (60) days within which to provide the necessary information and the period for making the 
claim determination on review shall be tolled from the date on which the notification of the extension is sent to the claimant until the 
date on which the claimant responds to the request for additional information or, if earlier, the expiration of sixty (60) days.  

(c) The BAC’s review of a denied claim shall take into account all comments, documents, records, and other information 
submitted by the claimant relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial 
benefit determination.  

8.4.4. Notice of Adverse Determination for Claim on Review. A notice of an adverse determination for a claim on review shall set 
forth in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant:  

(a) the specific reasons for the denial;  

(b) references to the specific provisions of the Plan Statement (or other applicable Plan document) on which the adverse 
determination is based;  

(c) a statement that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to, and copies of, all 
documents, records, and other information relevant to, the claimant’s claim for benefits;  

(d) a statement describing any voluntary appeal procedures offered by the Plan and the claimant’s right to obtain information 
about such procedures; and  

(e) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring an action under ERISA section 502(a).  
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8.5. Claims and Review Procedure for Disability Claims Filed under the Plan . Until modified by the Committee, the claims and 
review procedure for employees for disability claims shall be that set forth in the Sprint Nextel Long Term Disability Plan. Similar procedures 
shall be used for Board Members, except that no statements referencing ERISA rights will be provided.  

8.6. Rules .  

(a) No inquiry or question shall be deemed to be a claim or a request for a review of a denied claim unless made in accordance 
with the claims procedure. The BAC may require that any claim for benefits and any request for a review of a denied claim be filed 
on forms to be furnished by the BAC upon request.  

(b) All decisions on claims and on requests for a review of denied claims shall be made by the BAC unless delegated as 
provided for in the Plan Statement, in which case references in this Section 8 to the BAC shall be treated as references to the BAC’s 
delegate.  

(c) The BAC may, in its discretion, hold one or more hearings on a claim or a request for a review of a denied claim.  

(d) The decision of the BAC on a claim and on a request for a review of denied claim may be provided to the claimant in 
electronic form instead of in writing at the discretion of the BAC.  

(e) A claimant may be represented by a lawyer or other authorized representative (at the claimant’s own expense), but the BAC 
reserves the right to require the claimant to furnish written authorization. A claimant’s representative shall be entitled to copies of all 
notices given to the claimant.  

(f) In connection with the review of a denied claim, the claimant or the claimant’s representative shall be provided, upon 
request and free of charge, reasonable access to, and copies of, all documents, records, and other information relevant to the 
claimant’s claim for benefits.  

(g) The time period within which a benefit determination will be made shall begin to run at the time a claim or request for 
review is filed in accordance with the claims procedures, without regard to whether all the information necessary to make a benefit 
determination accompanies the filing.  

(h) For the purposes of this Section, a document, record, or other information shall be considered “relevant” if such document, 
record, or other information: (i) was relied upon in making the benefit determination; (ii) was submitted, considered, or generated in 
the course of making the benefit determination, without regard to whether such document, record, or other information was relied 
upon in making the benefit determination; (iii) demonstrates compliance with the administrative processes and safeguards designed 
to ensure that the benefit claim determination was made in accordance with the governing plan documents and that, where 
appropriate, the Plan Statement provisions have been applied consistently with respect to similarly situated claimants; and 
(iv) constitutes a statement of policy or guidance with respect to the Plan concerning the denied treatment option or benefit for the 
claimant’s diagnosis, without regard to whether such advice or statement was relied upon in making the benefit determination.  

(i) The BAC may, in its discretion, rely on any applicable statute of limitation or deadline as a basis for denial of any claim.  

8.7. Information Furnished by Participants . Neither Sprint Nextel nor the BAC shall be liable or responsible for any error in the 
computation of the Account of a Participant resulting from any misstatement of fact made by the Participant, directly or indirectly, to Sprint 
Nextel or to the BAC, and used by it in determining the Participant’s Account. Neither Sprint Nextel nor the BAC shall be obligated or required 
to increase the Account of such Participant which, on discovery of the misstatement, is found to be understated as a result of such misstatement 
of the Participant. However, the Account of any Participant which is overstated by reason of any such misstatement shall be reduced to the 
amount appropriate in view of the truth.  
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SECTION 9  

PLAN ADMINISTRATION  

9.1. Authority . The Committee shall:  

(a) establish rules for the functioning of the Committee, including the times and places for holding meetings, the notices to be 
given in respect of such meetings and the number of members who shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business,  

(b) organize and delegate to such of its members as it shall select authority to execute or authenticate rules, advisory opinions 
or instructions, and other instruments adopted or authorized by the Committee; adopt such bylaws or regulations as it deems 
desirable for the conduct of its affairs; appoint a secretary, who need not be a member of the Committee, to keep its records and 
otherwise assist the Committee in the performance of its duties; keep a record of all its proceedings and acts and keep all books of 
accounts, records and other data as may be necessary for the proper administration of the Plan; notify Sprint Nextel of any action 
taken by the Committee and, when required, notify any other interested person or persons,  

(c) determine from the records of Sprint Nextel the Compensation, service records, status and other facts regarding Participants 
and other employees,  

(d) cause to be compiled at least annually, from the records of the Committee and the reports and accountings of any Trustee, a 
report or accounting of the status of the Plan and the Accounts of the Participants, and make it available to each Participant who shall 
have the right to examine that part of such report or accounting (or a true and correct copy of such part) which sets forth the 
Participant’s benefits and ratable interest in the Plan,  

(e) prescribe forms to be used for applications for participation, benefits, notifications, etc., as may be required in the 
administration of the Plan,  

(f) set up such rules as are deemed necessary to carry out the terms of this Plan Statement,  

(g) resolve all questions of administration of the Plan not specifically referred to in this Section,  

(h) delegate or redelegate to one or more persons, jointly or severally, and whether or not such persons are members of the 
Committee or employees of Sprint Nextel, such functions assigned to the Committee hereunder as it may from time to time deem 
advisable, and  

(i) perform all other acts reasonably necessary for administering the Plan and carrying out the provisions of this Plan Statement 
and performing the duties imposed on it.  

9.1.1. Majority Decisions . Except as otherwise may be resolved by the Board of Directors of Sprint Nextel or as specified in its 
bylaws, if there shall at any time be three (3) or more members of the Committee serving hereunder who are qualified to perform a 
particular act, the same may be performed, on behalf of all, by a majority of those qualified, with or without the concurrence of the 
minority. No person who failed to join or concur in such act shall be held liable for the consequences thereof, except to the extent that 
liability is imposed under ERISA.  

9.2. Miscellaneous .  

9.2.1. Conflict of Interest . If any officer or employee of Sprint Nextel, any member of the Board of Directors of Sprint Nextel or 
any member of the Committee to whom authority has been delegated or redelegated hereunder shall also be a Participant or Beneficiary in 
the Plan, the individual shall have no authority as such officer, employee or member with respect to any matter specially affecting his or 
her individual interest hereunder (as distinguished from the interests of all Participants and Beneficiaries or a broad class of Participants 
and Beneficiaries), all such authority being reserved exclusively to the other officers, employees or members, as the case may be, to the 
exclusion of such Participant or Beneficiary, and such Participant or Beneficiary shall act only in his or her individual capacity in 
connection with any such matter.  
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9.2.2. Dual Capacity . Individuals, firms, corporations or partnerships identified herein or delegated or allocated authority or 
responsibility hereunder may serve in more than one capacity.  

9.2.3. Administrator . The Committee shall be the plan administrator.  

9.2.4. Service of Process . In the absence of any designation to the contrary by Sprint Nextel, the Secretary of Sprint Nextel is 
designated as the appropriate and exclusive agent for the receipt of service of process directed to the Plan in any legal proceeding, 
including arbitration, involving the Plan.  

9.2.5. Administrative Expenses . The reasonable expenses of administering the Plan shall be payable out of the Accounts except to 
the extent that Sprint Nextel, in its discretion, directly pays the expenses.  

SECTION 10  

DISCLAIMERS  

10.1. No Implied Employment Contract . The Plan shall not be deemed (i) to give any employee or other person any right to be retained 
in the employ of Sprint Nextel or (ii) to interfere with the right of Sprint Nextel to discharge any employee or other person at any time for any or 
no reason, which right is hereby reserved.  

10.2. Source of Payment . Neither Sprint Nextel nor any of its officers nor any member of the Committee or the Board of Directors in any 
way secure or guarantee the payment of any benefit or amount which may become due and payable hereunder to any Participant or to any 
Beneficiary or to any creditor of a Participant or a Beneficiary. Each Participant, Beneficiary or other person entitled at any time to payments 
hereunder shall look solely to the assets of Sprint Nextel for such payments or to the Accounts distributed to any Participant or Beneficiary, as 
the case may be, for such payments. In each case where Accounts shall have been distributed to a former Participant or a Beneficiary or to the 
person or any one of a group of persons entitled jointly to the receipt thereof and which purports to cover in full the benefit hereunder, such 
former Participant or Beneficiary, or such person or persons, as the case may be, shall have no further right or interest in the other assets of 
Sprint Nextel. Neither Sprint Nextel nor any of its officers nor any member of its Board of Directors shall be under any liability or responsibility 
for failure to affect any of the objectives or purposes of the Plan by reason of the insolvency of Sprint Nextel.  

10.3. Delegation . Sprint Nextel, and its officers and the members of its Board of Directors and the Committee shall not be liable for an act 
or omission of another person with regard to a responsibility that has been allocated to or delegated to such other person pursuant to the terms of 
this Plan Statement or pursuant to procedures set forth in this Plan Statement.  
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Exhibit 10.47 

SUMMARY OF EXECUTIVE OFFICER BENEFITS  
AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS BENEFITS AND FEES *  

   
Description of Benefit     Eligible Positions     Amount/Schedule  

Club Memberships 
   

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating 
Officer, President, Consumer Solutions    

Club Membership, not including dues 

Sprint Nextel Long-Distance Telephone and 
Wireless Service (1) 

   

Board of Directors 

   

Actual usage (continues after retirement 
for up to 120 months for legacy Sprint 
Directors with 5 years or more service) 
and use of Sprint PCS and IDEN 
handsets, accessories, equipment and 
replacement parts related to this service. 

Sprint Nextel Long-Distance Telephone Service 
(1)    

Executive Officers 
   

Legacy Sprint: Actual usage (continues 
after retirement) 

Personal use of corporate aircraft 

   

Chief Executive Officer 

   

Under an executive security program 
established by the Human Capital and 
Compensation Committee, the CEO is 
required to use Sprint Nextel aircraft for 
personal as well as business travel. 
Sprint Nextel provides these security 
services for its benefit rather than as a 
personal benefit or perquisite for the 
CEO. 

   

Executive Officers 

   

The CEO must pre-approve any 
proposed personal use of the corporate 
aircraft for personal reasons. 

Executive Physical 
   

Legacy Sprint Executive Officers 
   

Reimbursement for Annual Physical 
Examination 

Separation 

   

Executive Officers (unless otherwise 
provided in an individual agreement with an 
officer) 

   

Legacy Sprint: 1 year salary and 
benefits continuation plus lump sum 
bonus payment at conclusion of one 
year period equal to 80 percent of target 
opportunity  

   

Legacy Nextel: Benefits set forth in 
Nextel Change of Control Retention 
Bonus and Severance Pay Plan  
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Description of Benefit     Eligible Positions     Amount/Schedule  
Fees  

   

Board of Directors 

   

Annual retainer - $70,000/year  

   

Additional Annual retainer for Lead 
Directors - $75,000/year  

   

Committee Chair additional annual 
retainer  

   

Audit Committee - $20,000  

   

Human Capital and Compensation 
Committee - $15,000  

   

Other Committees - $10,000  

   

Board and Committee Meeting Fees - 
$2,000/ meeting  

   

Telephonic Board and Committee 
Meeting Fees-$1,000/meeting  

   

Annual award of $100,000 in restricted 
stock units  

* This summary is effective beginning March 1, 2006 and replaces the schedule filed as Exhibit 10(dd) to Sprint Nextel’s Quarterly Report 
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005. 

(1) Sprint reimburses for income taxes associated with these benefits. 



SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  

EXHIBIT (12)  

COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS  
   

   

   

   

   

 

    2005     2004     2003     2002     2001   
    (in millions)   

Earnings            

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes    $     2,906     $     (1,603)     $ (504 )   $ 401     $ (2,350 ) 
Capitalized interest      (55 )     (57)       (59 )     (90 )     (110 ) 
Net losses (earnings) in equity method investees      (107 )     41       79       119       175   

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Subtotal      2,744       (1,619 )     (484 )     430       (2,285 ) 
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Fixed charges            

Interest charges      1,406       1,339       1,496       1,560       1,383   
Interest factor of operating rents      478       371       377       422       396   

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total fixed charges      1,884       1,710       1,873       1,982             1,779   
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Earnings (loss), as adjusted    $ 4,628     $ 91     $     1,389     $     2,412     $ (506 ) 
      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Preferred stock dividends paid      7       7       7       7       7   
Total fixed charges      1,884       1,710       1,873       1,982       1,779   

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total fixed charges and preferred stock dividends      1,891       1,717       1,880       1,989       1,786   
Ratio of combined earnings to fixed charges and preferred stock dividends      2.45       —(1)     —(2)     1.21       —(3) 

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

(1) Earnings, as adjusted, were inadequate to cover fixed charges and preferred stock dividends by $1.6 billion in 2004. 

(2) Earnings, as adjusted, were inadequate to cover fixed charges and preferred stock dividends by $491 million in 2003. 

(3) Earnings, as adjusted, were inadequate to cover fixed charges and preferred stock dividends by $2.3 billion in 2001. 

Note: The ratios of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends were computed by dividing fixed charges and pre-tax 
earnings required to cover preferred stock dividends into the sum of earnings (after certain adjustments) and fixed charges. Fixed 
charges include interest on all debt of continuing operations, including amortization of debt issuance costs, and the interest component 
of operating rents. Pre-tax earnings required to cover preferred stock dividends are calculated by dividing one less our effective income 
tax rate into preferred stock dividends, as adjusted for the tax benefits related to unallocated shares. Earnings included Income from 
continuing operations before income taxes, plus net losses in equity method investees, less capitalized interest. 



Exhibit 21 

SPRINT NEXTEL CORPORATION  
SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT  

Sprint Nextel Corporation is the parent. The subsidiaries of Sprint Nextel Corporation are as follows:  
   

Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization    

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent  

Alamosa Holdings, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

AirGate PCS, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

AGW Leasing Company, Inc.     Delaware    100 
AirGate Network Services, LLC     Delaware    100 
AirGate Service Company, Inc.     Delaware    100 

Alamosa PCS Holdings, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

Alamosa (Delaware), Inc.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

Alamosa Delaware Operations, LLC     Delaware    100 
Alamosa Holdings, LLC     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

Alamosa PCS, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

Alamosa Wisconsin GP, LLC     Wisconsin    100 
Subsidiary        

Alamosa Wisconsin Limited Partnership     Wisconsin    1 
Subsidiary:        

Alamosa (Wisconsin) Properties, LLC     Wisconsin    100 
Alamosa Finance, LLC     Delaware    100 
Alamosa Limited, LLC     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

Texas Telecommunications, LP     Texas    99 
Subsidiary:        

Alamosa Properties, LP     Texas    99 
Alamosa Delaware GP, LLC     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

Alamosa Properties, LP     Texas    1 
Texas Telecommunications, LP     Texas    1 

Alamosa Wisconsin Limited Partnership     Wisconsin    99 
Alamosa Missouri, LLC     Missouri    100 

Subsidiary:        

Alamosa Missouri Properties, LLC     Missouri    100 
Washington Oregon Wireless, LLC     Oregon    100 

Subsidiary:        

Washington Oregon Wireless Licenses, LLC     Delaware    100 
Washington Oregon Wireless Properties, LLC     Delaware    100 

SWLP, L.L.C.     Oklahoma    100 
Subsidiary:        

Southwest PCS, L.P.     Oklahoma    99 
SWGP, L.L.C.     Oklahoma    100 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent  

(SWGP, LLC Subsidiaries Continued)        

Subsidiary:        

Southwest PCS, L.P.     Oklahoma    1 
Subsidiary:        

Southwest PCS Licenses, LLC     Delaware    100 
Southwest PCS Properties, LLC     Delaware    

American Telecasting, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiaries:        

American Telecasting Development, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

Fresno MMDS Associates, A General Partnership (see Fresno Wireless Cable Television, 
Inc.)     California Partnership    35 
Subsidiary:        

FMA Licensee Subsidiary, Inc.     California    100 
American Telecasting of Anchorage, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Bend, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Billings, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Bismarck, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Central Florida, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Cincinnati, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Colorado Springs, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Columbus, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Denver, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Fort Collins, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Fort Myers, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Green Bay, Inc.     Delaware    100 

Subsidiaries:        

American Telecasting of Minnesota, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Nebraska, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of North Dakota, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of South Dakota, Inc.     Delaware    100 

American Telecasting of Hawaii, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Jackson, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Jacksonville, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Lansing, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Lincoln, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Little Rock, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Louisville, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Medford, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Michiana, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Monterey, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Oklahoma, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Portland, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Rapid City, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Redding, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Rockford, Inc.     Delaware    100 
American Telecasting of Salem/Eugene, Inc.     Delaware    100 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent    

(American Telecasting, Inc. Subsidiaries Continued)        

American Telecasting of Santa Barbara, Inc.     Delaware    100   
American Telecasting of Santa Rosa, Inc.     Delaware    100   
American Telecasting of Sarasota, Inc.     Delaware    100   
American Telecasting of Seattle, Inc.     Delaware    90   
American Telecasting of Sheridan, Inc.     Delaware    100   
American Telecasting of Sioux Valley, Inc.     Delaware    100   
American Telecasting of Toledo, Inc.     Delaware    100   
American Telecasting of Youngstown, Inc.     Delaware    100   
American Telecasting of Yuba City, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Fresno Wireless Cable Television, Inc.     Washington    100   

Subsidiary:        

Fresno MMDS Associates, A General Partnership  
(see American Telecasting Development, Inc.)     California Partnership    65   

Superchannels of Las Vegas, Inc.     Arizona    100   
Carolina Telephone and Telegraph Company     North Carolina    100   

Subsidiaries:        

NOCUTS, Inc.     Pennsylvania    100   
SC One Company     Kansas    100   

Caroline Ventures, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Centel Corporation     Kansas    91.4   (1) 

Subsidiaries:        

Centel Capital Corporation     Delaware    100   
Centel Directories LLC     Delaware    100   
Centel SPE LLC     Delaware LLC    100   
Centel-Texas, Inc.     Texas    100   

Subsidiary:        

Central Telephone Company of Texas     Texas    100   
Central Telephone Company     Delaware    100   

Subsidiaries:        

Central Telephone Company of Virginia     Virginia    100   
Sprint-Florida, Incorporated     Florida    100   

C FON Corporation     Delaware    100   
Embarq Communications, Inc.     Delaware    100   

Subsidiary:        

Embarq Communications of Virginia, Inc.     Virginia    100   
Embarq Corporation     Delaware    100   
Embarq Management Company     Delaware    100   
Embarq Solutions, Inc.     Delaware    100   
IWO Holdings, Inc.     Delaware    100   

Subsidiary:        

Independent Wireless One Corporation     Delaware    100   
Subsidiary:        

Independent Wireless One Leased Realty Corporation     Delaware    100   
Mandolin Company LLC     Delaware LLC    100   

(1) Sprint Nextel Corporation owns all of the common stock. The voting preferred stock is held by 11 Sprint subsidiaries. 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization    

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent    

(Sprint Nextel Corporation Subsidiaries Continued)        

Nextel Communications, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Subsidiary:        

Dial Call Midwest, Inc.     Delaware    100   
NCI 900 Spectrum Holdings, Inc.     Delaware    100   

Subsidiary:        

ACI 900, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Velocita Wireless Holding Corp.     Delaware    94   (2) 

Subsidiary:        

Machine License Holding, LLC     Delaware    96.17   
Velocita Wireless, L.P.     Delaware    96.17   
Velocita Wireless Holding, LLC     Delaware    100   

Subsidiary:        

Machine License Holding, LLC     Delaware    3.83   
Velocita Wireless, L.P.     Delaware    3.83   

Nextel Finance Company     Delaware    100   
Subsidiary:        

FCI 900, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Nextel of California, Inc.     Delaware    100   

Subsidiary:        

Boost Mobile, LLC     Delaware    100   
Nextel Boost of California, LLC     Delaware    100   

Nextel Communications of the Mid-Atlantic, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Subsidiary:        

Nextel Boost of the Mid-Atlantic, LLC     Delaware    100   
Nextel License Acquisition Corp.     Delaware    100   
Nextel of New York, Inc.     Delaware    100   

Subsidiary:        

Nextel Boost of New York, LLC     Delaware    100   
Nextel Operations, Inc.     Delaware    100   

Subsidiary:        

Nextel Retail Stores, LLC     Delaware    100   
Nextel South Corp.     Georgia    100   

Subsidiary:        

Nextel Boost South, LLC     Delaware    100   
Nextel License Holdings 1, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Nextel License Holdings 3, Inc.     Delaware    100   

Nextel Systems Corp.     Delaware    100   
Nextel of Texas, Inc.     Texas    100   

Subsidiary:        

Nextel Boost of Texas, LLC     Delaware    100   
Nextel West Corp.     Delaware    100   

Subsidiary:        

Nextel Boost West, LLC     Delaware    100   
Nextel West Services, LLC     Delaware    100   
Nextel License Holdings 2, Inc.     Delaware    100   

(2) NCI 900 Spectrum Holdings, Inc. has agreed to acquire the remaining 6% in May 2006. 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent  

(Nextel West Corp. Subsidiaries Continued)        

Nextel License Holdings 4, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Nextel of Puerto Rico, Inc.     Puerto Rico    100 

Subsidiary:        

Nextel License Holdings 5, Inc.     Puerto Rico    100 
Tower Parent Corp.     Delaware    100 
Unrestricted Subsidiary Funding Company     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

Nextel 220 License Acquisition Corp.     Delaware    100 
Nextel Spectrum Acquisition Corp.     Delaware    100 
Nextel Broadband, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Nextel Data Investments 1, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Nextel Unrestricted Relocation Corp.     Delaware    100 
Nextel 700 Guard Band Corp.     Delaware    100 

Unrestricted UMTS Funding Company     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

Nextel UK Ltd.     United Kingdom    100 
Domestic USF Corp.     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

Nextel Aviation, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Falcon Administration, LLC     Delaware    100 
Nextel WIP Corp.     Delaware    100 
Unrestricted Subscriber Equipment Leasing Company, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Nextel Boost Investment, Inc.     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

Boost Worldwide, Inc.     Delaware    100 
NCI 700, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Nextel China Holding Company     Delaware    100 
Unrestricted Extend America Investment Corp.     Delaware    100 

People’s Choice TV Corp.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiaries:        

Alda Gold, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Alda Tucson, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Alda Wireless Holdings, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Broadcast Cable, Inc. (see Wireless Cable of Indianapolis, Inc.)     Indiana    24.85 
PCTV Development Co.     Delaware    100 
PCTV Gold, Inc.     Delaware    100 
People’s Choice TV of Albuquerque, Inc.     Delaware    100 
People’s Choice TV of Houston, Inc.     Delaware    100 
People’s Choice TV of Milwaukee, Inc.     Delaware    100 
People’s Choice TV of Salt Lake City, Inc.     Delaware    100 
People’s Choice TV of St. Louis, Inc.     Delaware    100 
People’s Choice TV of Tucson, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Preferred Entertainment, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Sat-Tel Services, Inc.     Arizona    100 
SpeedChoice Equipment, Inc.     Delaware    100 
SpeedChoice of Detroit, Inc.     Delaware    100 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership  
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate  
Parent  

(People’s Choice TV Corp. Subsidiaries Continued)        

SpeedChoice of Phoenix, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Waverunner, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Wireless Cable of Indianapolis, Inc.     Delaware    91.625 

Subsidiary:        

Broadcast Cable, Inc. (see People’s Choice TV Corp.)     Indiana    75.15 
Pin Drop Insurance, Ltd.     Bermuda    100 
S-N GC GP, Inc.     Delaware    100 

Subsidiaries:        

Gulf Coast Wireless Limited Partnership (see S-N GC HoldCo, LLC)     Louisiana Partnership    2 
S-N GC HoldCo, LLC (see S-N GC LP HoldCo, Inc.)     Delaware LLC    1 

Subsidiary:        

Gulf Coast Wireless Limited Partnership (see S-N GC GP, Inc.)     Louisiana Partnership    98 
S-N GC LP HoldCo, Inc.     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

S-N GC HoldCo, LLC (see S-N GC GP, Inc.)     Delaware LLC    99 
SPCS Caribe Inc.     Puerto Rico    100 
Sprint Asian American, Inc.     Kansas    100 
Sprint Capital Corporation     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

Sprint FinCo, Inc.     Kansas    100 
SprintCom, Inc.     Kansas    100 

Subsidiary:        

SprintCom ECP I, L.L.C.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

Enterprise Communications Partnership (see SprintCom ECP II, L.L.C.)     Georgia Partnership    50 
Subsidiary:        

Enterprise Digital PCS, LLC     Georgia    100 
Enterprise Towers, LLC     Georgia    100 
Enterprise Wireless, LLC     Georgia    100 

SprintCom ECP II, L.L.C.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

Enterprise Communications Partnership (see SprintCom ECP I, L.L.C.)     Georgia Partnership    50 
STC Two LLC (see SprintCom Equipment Company L.P.)     Delaware    50 

Sprint Corporation     Kansas    100 
Sprint Credit General, Inc.     Kansas    100 
Sprint Credit Limited, Inc.     Kansas    100 
Sprint eBusiness, Inc.     Kansas    100 
Sprint Enterprise Mobility, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Sprint Enterprise Network Services, Inc.     Kansas    100 

Subsidiary:        

Sprint Paranet Canada, Inc.     Canada    100 
Sprint eWireless, Inc.     Kansas    100 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent  

(Sprint Nextel Corporation Subsidiaries Continued)        

Sprint Healthcare Systems, Inc.     Kansas    100 
Sprint International Holding, Inc.     Kansas    100 

Subsidiaries:        

SETTOV UK Limited     United Kingdom    100 
SIHI Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (see Sprint International Incorporated)     Mexico    99 
SIHI New Zealand Holdco, Inc.     Kansas    100 

Subsidiaries:        

Sprint International New Zealand     New Zealand    100 
SIHI Scandinavia AB     Sweden    100 
SIHI South Africa (Pty) Ltd.     South Africa    100 
Sprint France SAS     France    100 
Sprint Hong Kong Limited (see Sprint International Incorporated)     Hong Kong    50 
Sprint International Argentina SRL (see Sprint International Incorporated)     Argentina    99.9 
Sprint International Australia Pty. Limited     Australia    100 
Sprint International Austria GmbH     Austria    100 
Sprint International Chile Limitada (see Sprint International Incorporated)     Chile    99.9 
Sprint International Colombia Ltda. (see Sprint International Incorporated)     Colombia    99.9 
Sprint International Communications Canada ULC     Canada    100 
Sprint International Communications Singapore Pte. Ltd.     Singa Pore    100 
Sprint International do Brasil Ltda. (see Sprint International Incorporated)     Brazil    50 
Sprint International Holding, Inc.—India Liaison Office     India    100 
Sprint International Holding, Inc.—Japanese Branch Office     Japan    100 
Sprint International Holding, Inc.—Shanghai Representative Office     China    100 
Sprint International Japan Corp.     Japan    100 
Sprint International Korea     Korea    100 
Sprint International Norway AS     Norway    100 
Sprint International Spain, S.L. (see Sprint International Incorporated)     Spain    98 
Sprint International Taiwan     Taiwan    100 
Sprint International Venezuela, S.R.L.     Venezuela    100 
SprintLink Belgium BVBA (see Sprint International Incorporated)     Belgium    99.5 
SprintLink Denmark ApS     Denmark    100 
SprintLink France SAS     France    100 
SprintLink Germany GmbH     Germany    100 
Sprintlink India Private Limited     India    100 
SprintLink International (Switzerland) GmbH     Switzerland    95 
SprintLink Ireland Limited     Ireland    100 
SprintLink Italy S.r.l. (see Sprint International Incorporated)     Italy    99 
SprintLink Netherlands B.V.     Netherlands    100 
SprintLink UK Limited     United Kingdom    100 
Sprint Netherlands B.V.     Netherlands    100 
Telecom Entity Participações Ltda.     Brazil    50 

Subsidiary:        

JVCO Participações Ltda.     Brazil    50 
Subsidiary:        

Holdco Participações Ltda.     Brazil    99.9 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent  

(Holdco Participações Ltda. Subsidiaries Continued)        

Subsidiary:        

Intelig Telecomunicações Ltda.     Brazil    99.9 
Sprint Mexico, Inc.     Kansas    100 
Sprint Mid-Atlantic Telecom, Inc.     North Carolina    100 
Sprint Minnesota, Inc.     Minnesota    100 
Sprint Missouri, Inc.     Missouri    100 

Subsidiary:        

SC Eight Company     Kansas    100 
Sprint North Supply Company     Ohio    100 

Subsidiaries:        

Northstar Transportation, Inc.     Kansas    100 
North Supply Company of Lenexa     Delaware    100 
Sprint Products Group, Inc.     Kansas    100 

Sprint Payphone Services, Inc.     Florida    100 
Sprint PCS Canada Holdings, Inc.     Kansas    100 
Sprint Solutions, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Sprint TELECENTERs, Inc.     Florida    100 
Sprint/United Management Company     Kansas    100 

Subsidiaries:        

Sprint Services, Inc.     Kansas    100 
Sprint Ventures, Inc.     Kansas    100 
Sprint Wavepath Holdings, Inc.     Delaware    100 

Subsidiaries:        

Sprint (Bay Area), Inc.     Florida    100 
Wavepath Holdings, Inc. (see Transworld Telecommunications, Inc.)     Delaware    62.5 

Subsidiaries:        

Bay Area Cablevision, Inc.     California    100 
Transworld Wireless T.V.—Spokane, Inc.     Delaware    100 
TTI Acquisition Corporation     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

Desert Winds Comm, Inc.     California    100 
WHI—San Diego, Inc.     California    100 
Wireless Holdings Purchasing Co.     Delaware    100 

SWV Eight, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

SWV Three Telephony Partnership (see SWV Seven, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    22 
Subsidiary:        

Sprint Telephony PCS, L.P. (see Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    40.8 
Subsidiaries:        

Sprint PCS Assets, L.L.C.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

STC One LLC     Delaware    100 
Sprint PCS License, L.L.C.     Delaware    100 
PCS Leasing Company, L.P. (see Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    51 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent    

(Sprint Nextel Corporation Subsidiaries Continued)        

SWV Five, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Subsidiaries:        

PhillieCo Partners I, L.P. (see SWV Four, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    35.3   
Subsidiary:        

PhillieCo Sub, L.P. (see PhillieCo Partners II, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    99   
Subsidiaries:        

PhillieCo, L.P. (see PhillieCo Partners II, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    99   
Subsidiary:        

STC Four LLC     Delaware    100   
PhillieCo Equipment & Realty Company, L.P. (see PhillieCo Partners II, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    99   

PhillieCo Partners II, L.P. (see SWV Four, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    35.3   
Subsidiaries:        

PhillieCo Equipment & Realty Company, L.P. (see PhillieCo Sub, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    1   
PhillieCo, L.P. (see PhillieCo Sub, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    1   
PhillieCo Sub, L.P. (see PhillieCo Partners I, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    1   

SWV Four, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Subsidiaries:        

PhillieCo Partners I, L.P. (see Sprint Enterprises, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    17.6   
PhillieCo Partners II, L.P. (see Sprint Enterprises, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    17.6   
SWV Two Telephony Partnership (see SWV Three, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    99   

Subsidiaries:        

MinorCo, L.P. (see SWV One Telephony Partnership)     Delaware Partnership    15   
Subsidiaries:        

American PCS, L.P. (see Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership      (3) 

Subsidiaries:        

American PCS Communications, LLC (see American Personal 
Communications Holdings, Inc.)     Delaware    99   (4) 

Subsidiaries:        

APC PCS, LLC (see American Personal Communications 
Holdings, Inc.)     Delaware    99   (5) 

APC Realty and Equipment Company, LLC (see American 
Personal Communications Holdings, Inc.)     Delaware    99   (5) 

Subsidiary:        

STC Three LLC     Delaware    100   
American Personal Communications Holdings, Inc.     Delaware    100   

Subsidiaries:        

American PCS Communications, LLC (see American PCS, L.P.)     Delaware      (6) 

(3) MinorCo, L.P. holds a limited and preferred partnership interest of less than 1%. 
(4) American PCS, L.P. holds the general partnership interest of greater than 99%. 
(5) American PCS Communications, LLC holds the general partnership interest of greater than 99%. 
(6) American Personal Communications Holdings, Inc. holds a limited partnership interest of less than 1%. 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent    

(American Personal Communications Holdings, Inc. Subsidiaries Continued)        

APC PCS, LLC (see American PCS Communications, LLC)     Delaware      (6) 

APC Realty and Equipment Company, LLC (see American PCS 
Communications, LLC)     Delaware      (6) 

Sprint Spectrum Equipment Company, L.P. (see Sprint Spectrum L.P.)     Delaware Partnership      (3) 

Subsidiaries:        

MASSPCSCO     Delaware Statutory Trust    100   
Sprint Spectrum L.P. (see Sprint Spectrum Holding  

Company, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership      (3) 

Subsidiaries:        

Sprint Spectrum Equipment Company, L.P. (see  
MinorCo, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    99   (7) 

Subsidiary:        

STC Five LLC     Delaware    100   
Subsidiary:        

STC Six Company     Delaware Statutory Trust    100   
Sprint Spectrum Realty Company, L.P. (see MinorCo, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    99   (7) 

WirelessCo, L.P. (see MinorCo, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    99   (7) 

Sprint Spectrum Realty Company, L.P. (see Sprint Spectrum L.P.)     Delaware Partnership      (3) 

WirelessCo, L.P. (see Sprint Spectrum L.P.)     Delaware Partnership      (3) 

Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P. (see SWV One Telephony Partnership)     Delaware Partnership    15   
Subsidiaries:        

American PCS, L.P. (see MinorCo, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    99   (8) 

Sprint Telephony PCS, L.P. (see SWV Three Telephony Partnership)     Delaware Partnership    59.2   
PCS Leasing Company, L.P. (see Sprint Telephony PCS, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    49   
Sprint Spectrum L.P. (see MinorCo, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    99   (8) 

SWV One, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Subsidiary:        

SWV One Telephony Partnership (see SWV Two, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    1   
Subsidiaries:        

MinorCo, L.P. (see SWV Six, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    15   
Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P. (see SWV Six, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    15   

SWV Seven, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Subsidiary:        

SWV Three Telephony Partnership (see SWV Eight, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    78   

(3) MinorCo, L.P. holds a limited and preferred partnership interest of less than 1%. 
(6) American Personal Communications Holdings, Inc. holds a limited partnership interest of less than 1%. 
(7) Sprint Spectrum L.P. holds the general partnership interest of greater than 99%. 
(8) Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P. holds the general partnership interest of greater than 99%. 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent  

(Sprint Nextel Corporation Subsidiaries Continued)        

SWV Six, Inc.     Colorado    100 
Subsidiaries:        

MinorCo, L.P. (see Sprint Enterprises, L.P. )     Delaware Partnership    30 
Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P. (see Sprint Enterprises, L.P.)     Delaware Partnership    30 

SWV Three, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

SWV Two Telephony Partnership (see SWV Four, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    1 
SWV Two, Inc.     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

SWV One Telephony Partnership (see SWV One, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    99 
TDI Acquisition Corporation     Delaware    100 

Subsidiaries:        

WBS California, LLC     Delaware    100 
Subsidiaries:        

WBSE Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100 
WBSS Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100 

WBS Idaho, LLC     Delaware    100 
Subsidiary:        

WBSB Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100 
WBS Montana, LLC     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

WBSH Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100 
WBS Oregon, LLC     Delaware    100 

Subsidiaries:        

WBSCB Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100 
WBSK Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100 
WBSR Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100 

WBS Washington, LLC     Delaware    100 
Subsidiaries:        

Kennewick Licensing, LLC     Delaware    100 
WBSY Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100 

Wireless Broadband Company LLC     Delaware    100 
Wireless Broadband Services of America, LLC     Delaware    100 
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of America, Inc.     Delaware    100 

Subsidiaries:        

Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Boise, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Coos Bay, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Eureka, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Ft. Pierce, Inc.     Delaware    100 

Subsidiary:        

WBSFP Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100 
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Helena, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Klamath, Inc.     Delaware    100 
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Melbourne, Inc.     Delaware    100 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent    

(Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Melbourne, Inc. Subsidiaries Continued)        

Subsidiary:        

WBSM Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100   
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Roseburg, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Sacramento, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of West Palm, Inc.     Delaware    100   

Subsidiary:        

WBSWP Licensing Corporation     Delaware    100   
Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Yakima, Inc.     Delaware    100   

Wireless Broadcasting Systems of Knoxville, LLC     Delaware    100   
Subsidiary:        

Cherokee Wireless of Knoxville, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Transworld Telecommunications, Inc.     Pennsylvania    100   

Subsidiary:        

Wavepath Holdings, Inc. (see Sprint Wavepath Holdings, Inc.)     Delaware    37.5   
UCOM, Inc.     Missouri    100   

Subsidiaries:        

Sprint Communications Company L.P. (see US Telecom, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    34.14   
Subsidiaries:        

MASSFONCO     Delaware Statutory Trust    100   
Sprint Communications Company of New Hampshire, Inc.     New Hampshire    100   
Sprint Communications Company of Virginia, Inc.     Virginia    100   
Sprint Communications LLC     Delaware    100   
Sprint Directory Trademark Company, LLC     Delaware    100   
Sprint Licensing, Inc.     Kansas    100   
United Telephone Company of Kansas     Kansas    1 (9) 

USST of Texas, Inc.     Texas    100   
SprintCom Equipment Company L.P. (see US Telecom, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    49   
Sprint Enterprises, L.P.     Delaware Partnership    48.99   

Subsidiaries:        

MinorCo, L.P. (see SWV Two Telephony Partnership)     Delaware Partnership    40   
PhillieCo Partners I, L.P. (see SWV Five, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    47.1   
PhillieCo Partners II, L.P. (see SWV Five, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    47.1   
Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P. (see SWV Six, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    40   

Sprint Global Venture, Inc.     Kansas      (10) 

Subsidiary:        

SGV Corporation     Kansas    100   
United Telephone Company of the Carolinas     South Carolina    100   

Subsidiary:        

SC Two Company     Kansas    100   
United Telephone Company of Eastern Kansas     Delaware    100   

(9) Sprint Nextel Corporation owns all of the common stock. The voting preferred stock is held by Sprint Communications Company L.P. 
(10) UCOM, Inc., US Telecom, Inc., and Utelcom, Inc. each holds less than 1% of the common stock. 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent    

(United Telephone Company of Eastern Kansas Subsidiaries Continued)        

Subsidiary:        

Sprint/United Midwest Management Services Company (see United Telephone Company 
of Kansas)     Kansas    20   
Subsidiary:        

United Teleservices, Inc.     Kansas    100   
United Telephone Company of Florida     Florida    100   
United Telephone Company of Indiana, Inc.     Indiana    100   

Subsidiary:        

SC Four Company     Kansas    100   
United Telephone Company of Kansas (see Sprint Communications Company L.P.)     Kansas    99 (9) 

Subsidiary:        

Sprint/United Midwest Management Services Company (see United Telephone Company 
of Eastern Kansas)     Kansas    80   

United Telephone Company of New Jersey, Inc.     New Jersey    100   
United Telephone Company of the Northwest     Oregon    100   
United Telephone Company of Ohio     Ohio    100   

Subsidiaries:        

SC Five Company     Kansas    100   
United Telephone Company of Pennsylvania, The     Pennsylvania    100   

Subsidiary:        

SC Six Company     Kansas    100   
United Telephone Company of Southcentral Kansas     Arkansas    100   
United Telephone Company of Texas, Inc.     Texas    100   

Subsidiary:        

SC Seven Company (see US Telecom, Inc.)     Kansas    50   
United Telephone Company of the West     Delaware    100   
United Telephone-Southeast, Inc.     Virginia    100   

Subsidiary:        

SC Three Company     Kansas    100   
US Telecom, Inc.     Kansas    100   

Subsidiaries:        

ASC Telecom, Inc.     Kansas    100   
LCF, Inc.     California    100   
SC Seven Company (see United Telephone Company of Texas, Inc.)     Kansas    50   
Sprint Communications Company L.P. (see Utelcom, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    58.98   
SprintCom Equipment Company L.P. (see UCOM, Inc.)     Delaware    51   

Subsidiary:        

STC Two LLC (see SprintCom, Inc.)     Delaware    50   
Sprint Enterprises, L.P.     Delaware Partnership    51.01   
Sprint Global Venture, Inc. (see UCOM, Inc.)     Kansas      (10) 

Sprint Iridium, Inc.     Kansas    100   

(9) Sprint Nextel Corporation owns all of the common stock. The voting preferred stock is held by Sprint Communications Company L.P. 
(10) UCOM, Inc., US Telecom, Inc., and Utelcom, Inc. each holds less than 1% of the common stock. 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization     

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent    

(US Telecom, Inc. Subsidiaries Continued)        

United Telecommunications, Inc.     Delaware    100   
US Telecom of New Hampshire, Inc.     New Hampshire    100   

US Unwired Inc.     Louisiana    100   
Subsidiary:        

Louisiana Unwired, LLC     Louisiana    100   
Subsidiary:        

Georgia PCS Management, L.L.C.     Georgia    100   
Subsidiary:        

Georgia PCS Leasing, LLC     Georgia    100   
Texas Unwired (see US Unwired Inc.)     Louisiana General Part    80   

Texas Unwired (see Louisiana Unwired, LLC)     Louisiana General Part    20   
Wireless Management Corporation     Louisiana    20   

Utelcom, Inc.     Kansas    100   
Subsidiaries:        

Private TransAtlantic Telecommunications System, Inc.     Delaware    100   
Subsidiary:        

Private Trans-Atlantic Telecommunications System (N.J.), Inc.     New Jersey    100   
Sprint Communications Company L.P. (see Sprint International Communications 

Corporation)     Delaware Partnership    4.94   
Sprint Global Venture, Inc. (see Sprint International Communications Corporation)     Kansas      (10) 

Sprint International Incorporated     Delaware    100   
Subsidiaries:        

Dial—The Israeli Company For International Communication Services LTD.     Israel    54.36   
SIHI Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.)     Mexico    1   
Sprint Global Venture, Inc. (see UCOM, Inc.)     Kansas    86   
Sprint Hong Kong Limited     Hong Kong    50   (11) 

Sprint International Argentina SRL (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.)     Argentina    .1   
Sprint International do Brasil Ltda. (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.)     Brazil    50   
Sprint International Caribe, Inc.     Puerto Rico    100   
Sprint International Chile Limitada (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.)     Chile    .1   
Sprint International Colombia Ltda. (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.)     Colombia    .1   
Sprint International Communications Corporation     Delaware    100   

Subsidiaries:        

Sprint Communications Company L.P. (see UCOM, Inc.)     Delaware Partnership    1.94   
Sprint Global Venture, Inc. (see UCOM, Inc.)     Kansas    13   

(10) UCOM, Inc., US Telecom, Inc., and Utelcom, Inc. each holds less than 1% of the common stock. 
(11) Held in trust for Sprint International Holding, Inc. 
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Name     

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization    

Ownership 
Interest  

Held  
By Its  

Immediate 
Parent  

(Sprint International Communications Corporation Subsidiaries Continued)        

Sprint International Network Company LLC     Delaware    100 
Sprint International Incorporated—Beijing Representative Office     China    100 
Sprint International Spain, S.L.—(see Sprint International Holding, Inc.)     Spain    2 
SprintLink Belgium BVBA (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.)     Belgium    .5 
SprintLink International (Switzerland) GmbH     Switzerland    5 
SprintLink Italy S.r.l. (see Sprint International Holding, Inc.)     Italy    1 
Sprint Telecommunications Services GmbH     Germany    100 

Wireless Cable of Florida, Inc.     Florida    100 



EXHIBIT 23(a) 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING  FIRM  

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders  
Sprint Nextel Corporation:  

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-3, No. 33-58488; Form S-3, No. 333-128940; Form S-3, 
No. 333-131851; Form S-8, No. 33-31802; Form S-8, No. 33-59326; Form S-8, No. 333-25449; Form S-8, No. 333-42077; Form S-8, No. 333-
46491; Form S-8, No. 333-68737; Form S-8, No. 333-56938; Form S-8, No. 333-59124; Form S-8, No. 333-76783; Form S-8, No. 333-92809; 
Form S-8, No. 333-54108; Form S-8, No. 333-75664; Form S-8, No. 333-103689; Form S-8, No. 333-103691; Form S-8, No. 333-105244; Form 
S-8, No. 333-106086; Form S-8, No. 333-111956; Form S-8, No. 333-115621; Form S-8, No. 333-115607; Form S-8, No. 333-115608; Form S-
8, No. 333-115609; Form S-8, No. 333-124189; Form S-8, No. 333-127426; Form S-8, No. 333-127497; Form S-8, No. 333-130277; and Form 
S-8, No. 333-131301) of Sprint Nextel Corporation, formerly known as Sprint Corporation, of our report dated March 7, 2006 with respect to the 
consolidated balance sheets of Sprint Nextel Corporation and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows, shareholders’ equity, and the related financial statement 
schedule, for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, and our report dated March 7, 2006, with respect to management’s assessment of the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 and the effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, which reports appear in the annual report on Form 10-K of Sprint Nextel 
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our report on the consolidated financial statements and related financial statement schedule 
refers to the adoption of the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations , in the fourth 
quarter of 2005.  

   

   
   

McLean, Virginia  
March 7, 2006  
 

   /s/ KPMG LLP 
   



Exhibit 23(b) 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-3, No. 33-58488; Form S-3, No. 333-128940; Form 
S-3, No. 333-131851; Form S-8, No. 33-31802; Form S-8, No. 33-59326; Form S-8, No. 333-25449; Form S-8, No. 333-42077; Form S-8, No. 
333-46491; Form S-8, No. 333-68737; Form S-8, No. 333-56938; Form S-8, No. 333-59124; Form S-8, No. 333-76783; Form S-8, No. 333-
92809; Form S-8, No. 333-54108; Form S-8, No. 333-75664; Form S-8, No. 333-103689; Form S-8, No. 333-103691; Form S-8, No. 333-
105244; Form S-8, No. 333-106086; Form S-8, No. 333-111956; Form S-8, No. 333-115621; Form S-8, No. 333-115607; Form S-8, No. 333-
115608; Form S-8, No. 333-115609; Form S-8, No. 333-124189; Form S-8, No. 333-127426; Form S-8, No. 333-127497; Form S-8, No. 333-
130277; and Form S-8, No. 333-131301) of Sprint Nextel Corporation and in the related Prospectuses of our report dated February 3, 2004 
(except for Note 3, as to which the date is April 23, 2004, and Note 23, as to which the date is November 2, 2004) with respect to the 
consolidated financial statements and schedule of Sprint Nextel Corporation (formerly Sprint Corporation) for the year ended December 31, 
2003, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2005.  

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP  

Kansas City, Missouri  
March 7, 2006  
 



EXHIBIT 31(a) 

CERTIFICATIONS  

I, Gary D. Forsee, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Date: March 7, 2006  
   

 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Sprint Nextel Corporation; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under 

our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

  
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financing reporting. 

  /s/ Gary D. Forsee  
  Gary D. Forsee  
  Chief Executive Officer and President  



EXHIBIT 31(b) 

CERTIFICATIONS  

I, Paul N. Saleh, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Date: March 7, 2006  
   

 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Sprint Nextel Corporation; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under 

our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

  
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financing reporting. 

  /s/ Paul N. Saleh  
  Paul N. Saleh  
  Chief Financial Officer  



EXHIBIT 32(a) 

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  

In connection with the annual report of Sprint Nextel Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2005, as 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Gary D. Forsee, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company, 
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  
   

   

   

 

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company. 

March 7, 2006      /s/ Gary D. Forsee  

  

  Gary D. Forsee  
  Chief Executive Officer and President  



EXHIBIT 32(b) 

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,  
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the  

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  

In connection with the annual report of Sprint Nextel Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2005, as 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Paul N. Saleh, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  
   

   

   

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company. 

March 7, 2006      /s/ Paul N. Saleh  

  

  Paul N. Saleh  
  Executive Vice President  
  and Chief Financial Officer  


